FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

Camp Jellystone, LLC
a Delaware Limited Liability Company
27777 Franklin Road, Ste. 300
Southfield, Michigan 48034
(800) 626-3720
www.jellystonefranchise.com
rschutter@campjellystone.com

The franchise is for the establishment and operation of camp-resorts under the “Yogi Bear’s
Jellystone Park Camp-Resort™” name, service mark and System for short-term rental to the
general public and the sale of related goods and services.

The total investment necessary to begin operation of a newly built Camp Jellystone franchise
ranges from $5,749,000 to $14,370,000 and for conversion of an existing business ranges from
$324,000 to $2,370,000. This includes $105,000 to $300,000 that must be paid to the franchisor
or its affiliate. The above costs are representative of a 125 site campground.

This Disclosure Document summarizes certain provisions of your franchise agreement and other
information in plain English. Read this Disclosure Document and all accompanying agreements
carefully. You must receive this Disclosure Document at least 14 calendar-days before you sign
a binding agreement with, or make any payment to, the franchisor or an affiliate in connection
with the proposed franchise sale. Note, however, that no governmental agency has verified the
information contained in this document.

You may wish to receive your Disclosure Document in another format that is more convenient for
you. To discuss the availability of disclosures in different formats, contact Lisa Courtney at 27777
Franklin Road, Suite 300, Southfield, Michigan 48034 and (800) 626-3720. The terms of your
contract will govern your franchise relationship. Do not rely on the Disclosure Document alone
to understand your contract. Read all of your contract carefully. Show your contract and this
Disclosure Document to an advisor, like a lawyer or an accountant.

Buying a franchise is a complex investment. The information in this Disclosure Document can
help you make up your mind. More information on franchising, such as “A Consumer’s Guide to
Buying a Franchise,” which can help you understand how to use this Disclosure Document, is
available from the Federal Trade Commission. You can contact the FTC at 1-877-FTC-HELP or
by writing to the FTC at 600 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW, Washington, D.C. 20580. You can also
visit the FTC’s home page at www.ftc.gov for additional information. Call your state agency or
visit your public library for other sources of information on franchising.

There may also be laws on franchising in your state. Ask your state agencies about them.
Issuance Date:
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How to Use This Franchise Disclosure Document

Here are some questions you may be asking about buying a franchise and tips on how to find more

information:
QUESTION

How much can | earn?

How much will I need to invest?

Does the franchisor have the
financial ability to provide
support to my business?

Is the franchise system stable,
growing, or shrinking?

Will my business be the only
Yogi Bear’s Jellystone Park

Camp-Resort business in my
area?

Does the franchisor have a

troubled legal history?

What’s it like to be a Yogi
Bear’s Jellystone Park Camp-
Resort franchisee?

What else should | know?
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WHERE TO FIND INFORMATION

Item 19 may give you information about outlet sales,
costs, profits or losses. You should also try to obtain this
information from others, like current and former
franchisees. You can find their names and contact
information in Item 20 or Exhibit B.

Items 5 and 6 list fees you will be paying to the franchisor
or at the franchisor’s direction. Item 7 lists the initial
investment to open. Item 8 describes the suppliers you
must use.

Item 21 or Exhibit C includes financial statements.
Review these statements carefully.

Item 20 summarizes the recent history of the number of
company-owned and franchised outlets.

Item 12 and the “territory” provisions in the franchise
agreement describe whether the franchisor and other
franchisees can compete with you.

Items 3 and 4 tell you whether the franchisor or its
management have been involved in material litigation or
bankruptcy proceedings.

Item 20 or Exhibit B lists current and former franchisees.
You can contact them to ask about their experiences.

These questions are only a few things you should look for.
Review all 23 Items and all Exhibits in this disclosure
document to better understand this franchise opportunity.
See the table of contents.



What You Need To Know About Franchising Generally

Continuing responsibility to pay fees. You may have to pay royalties and other fees even if you
are losing money.

Business model can change. The franchise agreement may allow the franchisor to change its
manuals and business model without your consent. These changes may require you to make
additional investments in your franchise business or may harm your franchise business.

Supplier restrictions. You may have to buy or lease items from the franchisor or a limited group
of suppliers the franchisor designates. These items may be more expensive than similar items you
could buy on your own.

Operating restrictions. The franchise agreement may prohibit you from operating a similar
business during the term of the franchise. There are usually other restrictions. Some examples may
include controlling your location, your access to customers, what you sell, how you market, and
your hours of operation.

Competition from franchisor. Even if the franchise agreement grants you a territory, the
franchisor may have the right to compete with you in your territory.

Renewal. Your franchise agreement may not permit you to renew. Even if it does, you may have
to sign a new agreement with different terms and conditions in order to continue to operate your
franchise business.

When your franchise ends. The franchise agreement may prohibit you from operating a similar
business after your franchise ends even if you still have obligations to your landlord or other
creditors.

Some States Require Registration

Your state may have a franchise law, or other law, that requires franchisors to register
before offering or selling franchises in the state. Registration does not mean that the state
recommends the franchise or has verified the information in this document. To find out if your
state has a registration requirement, or to contact your state, use the agency information in Exhibit
A

Your state also may have laws that require special disclosures or amendments to be made
to your franchise agreement. If so, you should check the State Specific Addenda. See the Table of
Contents for the location of the State Specific Addenda.
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Special Risks to Consider About This Franchise
Certain states require that the following risk(s) be highlighted:

1. Dispute Resolution. The Franchise Agreement requires you to resolve disputes
with us by litigation only in Oakland County, Michigan or the federal district court
located in Detroit, Michigan. Out of state litigation may force you to accept a less
favorable outcome for disputes. It may also cost you more to litigate with us in
Michigan than in your own state.

Certain states may require other risks to be highlighted. Check the “State Specific
Addenda” (if any) to see whether your state requires other risks to be highlighted.

(Remainder of page intentionally blank)
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ITEM 1. THE FRANCHISOR, AND ANY PARENTS, PREDECESSORS AND
AFFILIATES

The Franchisor

To simplify the language in this Franchise Disclosure Document,” “CJS,” “we,” “us” or
“our” means Camp Jellystone, LLC., the Franchisor. *“You” means the person who buys the
franchise. If the purchaser of the franchise is a corporation, partnership or other entity, “you”
includes the franchisee’s owners.

CJS is a Delaware series limited liability company formerly known as Leisure Systems,
Inc. (“LSI”). On December 22, 2021, Park River Corporation (“Park River”), a Wisconsin
corporation and the parent company to LSI, converted LSI by changing its name to Camp
Jellystone, LLC (*CJS”). On December 31, 2021, Sun Jellystone Holding, LLC (“SJH”), a
Delaware limited liability company and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Sun Communities
Operating Limited Partnership (“SCOLP”), a Michigan limited partnership, purchased the
membership interest of CJS from Park River for the purpose of acquiring the Camp Jellystone
franchise system and its licenses, and immediately caused the recapitalization of CJS so that CJS
is owned entirely by (i) SCOLP and (ii) Sun Home Services, Inc. (“SHS”), a Michigan corporation
and also a wholly-owned subsidiary of SCOLP. Our principal business address is 27777 Franklin
Road, Ste. 300, Southfield, Michigan 48034.

CJS does not do business under another name. We do not own or operate any other business
of the type being franchised. We are in the business of owning and franchising Camp Jellystone
parks.

Our registered agents for service of process are disclosed in Exhibit A.

Our Parents, Predecessors and Affiliates

For purposes of this disclosure document, our parent company is deemed to be Sun
Communities, Inc. (“SUI”), a publicly held real estate investment trust incorporated in the State of
Maryland on July 23, 1993. SUI indirectly controls CJS and its member entities: (i) SCOLP and,
(i) SHS. SUI has numerous other subsidiary entities that own and operate campgrounds
throughout the United States, which would be considered our Affiliates along with SCOLP and
SHS. As of the date of this disclosure document, we are provided with certain administrative and
support functions from SCOLP and may obtain additional products or services from SCOLP or
our other Affiliates in the future.

Prior to being acquired by SJH, our Predecessor, LSI, was a wholly owned subsidiary of
Park River, which operated an amusement park in Loveland, Ohio. LSI was created in 1985
through a merger with Jellystone Campgrounds, Ltd. with a business address of 14 3@ Avenue,
Sturgeon Bay, WI 54235.

LSI’s predecessor, Jellystone Campgrounds, Ltd., opened its first Yogi Bear’s Jellystone

Park Camp-Resort in July 1969. Jellystone Campgrounds, Ltd. granted its first franchise for a
Camp-Resort in March 1970. In August 1985, Jellystone Campgrounds, Ltd, and LSI merged, after

174197262v2



which Camp-Resorts franchises were offered by LSI. All Camp-Resorts open and in operation are
referred to in this Franchise Disclosure Document as the “Network,” or “System.” In the past, LSI
offered franchisees a proprietary rights program permitting the sale by franchisees of deeded or
leased campsites and a proprietary rights program permitting the sale by franchisees of camping
memberships. CJS may, but is not required to, offer such programs to you in the future. Except as
described herein, neither the Franchisor nor the Predecessor has offered franchises in other lines
of business. As of the date of this disclosure document, neither SUI or CJS, nor any of their affiliate
entities, offers franchises in any line of business other than through CJS.

Description of Franchise

CJS has a license from Warner Bros. Animation, a Division of Warner Bros. Discovery
(“Licensor” or “WB”) to use the name, character, symbol, design, likeness and visual
representation of YOGI BEAR and related trademarks and service marks owned by Warner Bros.
Discovery (the “Marks”) in providing camping services.

CJS is the owner of a system (the “System”) for the construction and operation of
campgrounds using the Marks known as “Yogi Bear’s Jellystone Park Camp-Resorts” (the “Camp-
Resorts™) that provide camping sites for short-term rental to the general public and related goods
and services. The elements of the System are the Marks, distinctive and readily recognized
designs, theming elements and formats for the operation of campgrounds and certain standards,
methods, specifications and procedures required by CJS.

The Franchise Offered

We offer the right to establish and operate a Camp-Resort under the terms of our single
unit Franchise Agreement at a location that we have approved in a defined territory. Our franchises
will operate under trademarks, service marks, logos, trade dress and other elements identifying our
franchise system, some of which are described in Item 13 of this Franchise Disclosure Document
(the “Franchise Marks” or “Marks”) and in accordance with the systems that we specify for
operating a Camp-Resort under our System. The distinguishing characteristics of the System
include the Franchise Marks, trade dress elements of the business, certain materials used in the
operation of the business, supplier and distribution arrangements, training, operational procedures,
promotional techniques and materials, signs, park layout, and manuals covering business practices
and policies. Your Camp-Resort franchise may be referred to in this Franchise Disclosure
Document as the “Franchise Business.”

Market and Competition

CJS does not currently own or operate Camp Resorts, but SUI owns 20 Camp-Resorts
throughout the United States. CJS or Affiliates may purchase existing franchises or unaffiliated
properties. The purchased locations may compete with other locations in certain markets; however,
all protected territories will be honored. CJS also sells its franchisees merchandise inventory,
certain items of equipment and certain supplies.

Persons desiring to rent camping sites and/or camping facilities with full amenities near
major metropolitan areas or heavily traveled interstate highways in the vicinity of popular tourist
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or vacation attractions are the primary market for the goods and services to be sold by you. This
market, which is a developed market, is the market for “destination camping” goods and services.

You will have to compete with many publicly and privately owned campgrounds providing
comparable services and facilities. Due to government funding, many publicly owned
campgrounds offer camping sites at prices lower than those that can be offered by Yogi Bear’s
Jellystone Park Camp-Resorts. You will also face competition from campgrounds in the “overnight
camping” market segment. Campgrounds in the “overnight camping” market segment typically
are not located near popular tourist or vacation attractions.

Industry Specific Laws

As the owner/operator of the operation of a Camp-Resort, you will be subject to all federal,
state and local laws, ordinances and regulations pertaining to the operation of businesses in
general. You should be aware that there may be other general laws that apply to your Camp-
Resort’s operation, and you should make further inquiries to find out about these regulations as
part of your decision-making process. For example, laws and regulations related to boarding,
lodging and food service establishments, and water attractions may apply, as well as those that
apply to business generally, such as the Americans With Disabilities Act, Federal Wage and Hour
Laws and the Occupational Safety and Health Act.

You must identify, investigate, satisfy and comply with all manufacturer specifications,
laws, ordinances and/or regulations applicable to your franchise including employment, workers’
compensation, insurance, corporate, tax, public health and similar laws and regulations, because
they vary from place to place, can change over time and may affect the operation of your franchise.
You should independently research and review the legal requirements of the camping services
industry with your own attorney before you sign any binding documents or make any investments.

ITEM 2. BUSINESS EXPERIENCE
President: Robert E. Schutter, Jr.

Mr. Schutter served as President, Chief Operating Officer and a Director of LSI in
Loveland, Ohio since July 1994. He will continue to serve as President with CJS. His duties will
be to oversee and manage the day-to-day operations of CJS.

Executive Vice President: Jon P. Burek

Mr. Burek is currently Executive Vice President of CJS in Loveland, Ohio. He assumed
this position with LSI in February 2020. Prior to that, from May 2018 to February 2020, he held
the role of Vice President of Operations for Mike’s Carwash, a 25-location chain in the
Midwest. Before 2018, he worked for the aviation company Executive Jet Management for more
than 17 years holding various positions including Vice President of Operations and Senior Vice
President of Sales and Charter Services.

Director of Operations: Lisa D. Courtney
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Ms. Courtney assumed her current position with CJS in January 2023. Prior thereto she
served as Franchise Sales Director with our predecessor LSI from May 2019 to December 2022.
Prior to May 2019, she spent 10 years at the Jellystone Park in Nashville, TN holding various titles
including General Manager. Ms. Courtney’s duties include onboarding new park locations,
assisting in negotiating franchise agreements and assisting with CAMP, CARE and Symposium
conferences.

Director of Franchise Sales: Steve M. Stafford

Mr. Stafford assumed his current role as Director of Franchise Sales in January of 2023.
From 2009 to January 2022, he worked as the General Manager of North Texas Jellystone Camp
Resort in Burleson, Texas. Mr. Stafford’s duties include developing and implementing a sales
strategy to increase the number of franchisees.

Operating Partner and Owner Representative: Jackie Maguire.

Ms. Maguire joined SUI in April 2013. Since March 2023 she has served as SUI’s Vice-
President of RV Operations where she is responsible for corporate oversight of Camp Jellystone
and works closely with our President, Rob Schutter. From November 2020 to March 2023, she
served as Director of RV Strategy where she was responsible for overseeing the onsite execution
of SUI’s RV rebrand to Sun Outdoors and developing an operations playbook addressing over 200
touch points to ensure a consistent brand experience across 140+ locations for both guests and
team members. From January 2018 to November 2020 Ms. Maguire served as Divisional Vice
President, leading a division of 4 Regions consisting of 38 properties and 1,000 team members
across the United States.

ITEM 3. LITIGATION

No litigation is required to be disclosed in this Item.
ITEM 4. BANKRUPTCY

No bankruptcy is required to be disclosed in this Item.
ITEM 5. INITIAL FEES

The Initial Franchise Fee is $75,000. The Initial Franchise Fee is payable in two (2)
installments, fifty percent (50.0%) due when you sign the Franchise Agreement, and fifty percent
(50.0%) due the following September 30th. The Initial Franchise Fee is fully earned by CJS upon
signing the franchise agreement. If you timely select a location for a proposed Camp-Resort site
but such site is rejected by CJS, we will refund 75% of the first installment of the Initial Franchise
Fee; otherwise, it is non-refundable. The Initial Franchise Fee is generally uniform as to all
franchisees currently purchasing a franchise, but may be waived or reduced by us, in our discretion,
for franchisees who already have a franchise to operate a Camp-Resort, military veterans, or for
other factors. The decision to waive or reduce the fee will be determined in our sole discretion.

As part of the Initial Franchise Fee, you will receive certain Themed Elements. The
provided items include:(i) One (1) each Yogi Bear™, Boo Boo™, and Cindy Bear™ character
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costumes; (ii) One (1) themed front entrance sign; (iii) Four (4) standard size fiberglass statues
consisting of One (1) each Yogi Bear, Boo Boo, Cindy Bear, and Ranger Smith™; and, (iv)
Themed signage for each required facility as listed in Item 6. The amount of additional Themed
Elements and initial inventory you are required to purchase is primarily determined based upon
the size of your developed campground. The cost of these additional required items range from
approximately $30,000 to $75,000, as determined by CJS based on your Camp-Resort. If your
business opens in or before July in any calendar year, payment for the Themed Elements and initial
inventory will be due fifty percent (50.0%) in the month of July in the year your order is placed
and the remaining fifty percent (50.0%) due in the month of September in the year your order is
placed. If your business opens after July in any calendar year, payment for the Themed Elements
and initial inventory will be due fifty percent (50.0%) in July, and fifty percent (50.0%) in
September of the following calendar year. No interest charges are applied to purchase of the
Themed Elements and initial inventory, regardless of the year in which you are required to pay.
These purchases are non-refundable.

You are responsible for the additional costs of installing, erecting and displaying these
items on your Camp-Resort.

ITEM 6. OTHER FEES

A. Conversion Parks

Type of Fee Amount Due Date Remarks
Royalty and 4.5% of Gross Payable Gross revenues include all sales, rentals or
Service Fee! Revenue monthly services performed at or by the Camp-

Resort not specifically excluded in the
Franchise Agreement.

Marketing, 2.0% of Gross Payable This fee is payable in the same manner as
Advertising, Revenues? monthly the royalty and service fee is payable.®
Rewards CJS is not obligated to ensure that

Program and expenditures of the marketing, advertising,
Promotion Fee! rewards program and promotional fees

1 All fees are imposed by and payable to CJS. All fees are non-refundable.

2 The marketing, advertising, rewards program and promotion fee will be applied by CJS, in its sole

discretion, to defray direct and indirect costs incurred in marketing, promoting and advertising of the
program, and to reimburse you with respect to certain reward certificate redemptions at your Camp-Resort.
CJS undertakes and has no obligation to ensure that expenditure of the marketing fee affecting any
geographic area is proportional or equivalent to the rewards program marketing fee paid by the Jellystone
Park Camp-Resort operating within that geographic area or that any Jellystone Park Camp-Resort will
benefit directly or in proportion to its payment of rewards program and marketing fees from CJS’s
application of the rewards program marketing fee.

3 This accounting will be furnished not later than 45 days after the date it is requested.
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Type of Fee Amount Due Date Remarks
affects any geographic area are
proportional or equivalent to the marketing,
advertising, rewards program and
promotional fees paid by Camp-Resorts
operating in that geographic area.?
You may obtain an accounting fee fund by
making a request therefore to CJS.3
System-Wide The then current | Payable The proceeds from the System-Wide
Reservation per campsite monthly to | Reservation Program Fee are used to
Program Fee reservation fee reservation | maintain the system-wide reservation
charged by our system system allowing customers to make a
reservation vendor reservation at the Camp-Resort.
system vendor
Audit! Cost of audit On Payable only if you fail to pay royalties or
demand keep complete books and records or if
audit shows underpayment of at least 2% in
royalty or other fees.
Transfer? $5,000 Before Certain transfers do not require payment of
consummat | transfer fee.
ion of
transfer of
Camp-
Resort
Additional $250 per day 30 days CJS provides initial training for two (2)
Training? after persons without charge. Additional
billing training or training of additional persons
requested by you will be provided at the
quoted daily rate.
Delinquent Greater of 18% Accrues
Account per annum or when fees
Charges! maximum legal are not
rate paid when
due
Electronic Funds | N/A N/A You are required to permit CJS electronic
Transfer access to an account maintained by you to
provide for prompt payment of fees at any
time after you have failed to pay fees when
due and that failure has continued for ten
(10) days. CJS will also accept EFT/ACH
payments.
Liquidated The monthly Within 15 You must pay us liquidated damages if the
Damages/ average Royalty | days of Franchise Agreement is terminated before
and Service fee termination | the end of the term, except for termination
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Type of Fee Amount Due Date Remarks
Damages For and Marketing, of the by you for cause. The damages for our loss
Loss of Bargain | Advertising, Franchise | of bargain will be the present value of the
Rewards Program | Agreement | royalty fees that you would have paid to us
and Promotion , unless for the balance of the term of the Franchise
Fee for the terminated | Agreement if the Franchise Agreement had
preceding 12 due to not been terminated.
months default by | |f the Camp-Resort has not been opened,
multiplied by the | CJS. liquidated damages shall be limited to any
number of initial franchise fee paid, initial costs due to
months remaining CJs for the Themed Elements and initial
in the term of the inventory'
Franchise
Agreement with
interest of 5%.
Renewal Fee $2,500 Upon
signing
new
Franchise
Agreement
Noncompliance | $500 first event; | As We may impose this fee for violation of the
Fee $1,000 each time | incurred Franchise Agreement or Brands Standard

thereafter

manual in addition to claim for default.

Some franchisees who entered the Network prior to August 15, 1989, may pay fees or
payments that are lesser in amount or that are calculated on the basis of criteria that differ from
those described above or may not be required to pay certain fees.

B. New Build Franchisees

Type of Fee

Amount

Due Date

Remarks

Royalty and
Service Fee

6.0% of
Gross
Revenue
Revenues
for the first
two (2)
years of the
Agreement,
then 4.5%
of Gross
Revenues
for the
remaining

five (5)

Payable
monthly

Gross revenues include all sales, rentals or
services performed at or by the Camp-
Resort not specifically excluded in the
Franchise Agreement.
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reservation
fee charged

system vendor

Type of Fee Amount Due Date Remarks
years of the
Agreement
Marketing, 2.0% of Payable This fee shall be payable in the same
Advertising and | Gross monthly manner as the royalty and service fee is
Promotion Fee' | Revenues payable. CJS is not obligated to ensure that
expenditures of the marketing, advertising,
rewards program and promotional fees
affecting any geographic area are
proportional or equivalent to the marketing,
advertising and promotional fees paid by
Camp-Resorts operating in that geographic
area.?
You may obtain an accounting of the
Marketing, Advertising and Promotion Fee
fund by making a request therefore to CJS®
System-Wide The then Payable The proceeds from the System-Wide
Reservation current per | monthly to Reservation Program Fee are used to
Program Fee campsite reservation maintain the system-wide reservation

system allowing customers to make a
reservation at the Camp-Resort.

by our
reservation
system
vendor
Audit! Cost of On demand Payable only if you fail to pay royalties or
audit keep complete books and records or if audit
shows underpayment of at least 2% in
royalty or other fees.
Transfer? $5,000 Before Certain transfers do not require payment of
consummatio | a transfer fee.
n of transfer
of Camp-
Resort
Additional $250 per 30 days after | CJS provides initial training for 2 persons
Training* day billing without charge. Additional training or
training of additional persons requested by
you will be provided at the quoted daily
rate.
Delinquent Greater of Accrues when
Account 18% per fees are not
Charges! annum or paid when due
maximum
legal rate
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Type of Fee Amount Due Date Remarks
Electronic N/A N/A You are required to permit CJS electronic
Funds Transfer access to an account maintained by you to
provide for prompt payment of fees at any
time after you have failed to pay fees when
due and that failure has continued for ten
(10) days. CJS will also accept EFT/ACH
payments.
In certain instances, CJS may accept
payments by check if approved in advance
by CJS.
Liquidated The Within 15 You must pay us liquidated damages if the
Damages/Dama | monthly days of Franchise Agreement is terminated before
ges For Loss of | average termination of | the end of the term, except for termination
Bargain Royalty and | the Franchise | by you for cause. The damages for our loss
Service fee | Agreement, of bargain will be the present value of the
and unless royalty fees that you would have paid to us
Marketing, | terminated for the balance of the term of the Franchise
Advertising, | due to default | Agreement if the Franchise Agreement had
Rewards by CJS. not been terminated.
Program If the Camp-Resort has not been opened,
and _ liquidated damages shall be limited to any
Promotion initial franchise fee paid, initial costs due to
Fee for' the CJS for the Themed Elements and initial
preceding inventory.
12 months
multiplied
by the
number of
months
remaining
in the term
of the
Franchise
Agreement
with interest
of 5%.
Renewal Fee $2,500 Upon signing
new Franchise
Agreement
Noncompliance | $500 first As incurred We may impose this fee for violation of the
Fee event; Franchise Agreement or Brands Standard
$1,000 each manual in addition to claim for default.
time
thereafter
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Item 7. ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT
YOUR ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT
NEEDED FOR CONVERTING A
TYPICAL 125 SITE CAMPGROUND
YOU ALREADY OWN (Note 1)
TYPE OF AMOUNT METHOD WHEN DUE TO WHOM
EXPENDITURE OF PAYMENT PAYMENT
ISTO BE
MADE
Initial Franchise $75,000 As Incurred At time of execution CJS
Fee of Franchise
Agreement
Campground (Already | =~ | e e
owned by
you)

Utilities (Notes 2 | $0-500,000 | As Incurred Before opening as Contractor
& 3) incurred
Buildings (Notes | $0-1,000,000 | As Incurred Before opening as Contractor
2,4 &Y5) incurred
Recreational $75,000 - As Incurred Before opening as CJSand
Facilities, Signs, | 500,000 incurred Suppliers
Fixtures and
Miscellaneous
Equipment
(Notes 2, 4 & 6)
Themed $30,000- As Incurred As Incurred CJS and
Elements and 75,000 Suppliers
Initial Inventory
(Note 7)
Training (Note 0 |- e e
10)
Insurance (Note | $44,000 - As Incurred As Incurred Insurer
8) 70,000
Additional Funds | $100,000- As Incurred As Incurred Suppliers,
(6 months) (Note | 150,000 Employees

9)

TOTAL

NOTES:

174197262v2

$324,000-$2,370,000 (Range) (Note 11)
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1. The estimates in this table are based upon a Camp-Resort with 125
campsites. Typical Camp-Resorts vary in number of developed campsites from
approximately 125 campsites to more than 500 campsites. The Franchise
Agreement provides that your Camp-Resort must have no fewer than a minimum
number (negotiated between CJS and you and included in your Franchise
Agreement) of “Qualifying Campsites,” that is, campsites graded level and
improved for parking of campers and recreational vehicles, with water and
electrical hookups available and sanitary facilities reasonably accessible. Subject
to this minimum number of Qualifying Campsites and CJS’s approval, you are free
to develop any number of additional campsites. The number of campsites to be
developed will affect not only your variable costs of developing the campsites, but
also the costs of developing other required improvements. CJS requires (as stated
in the Franchise Agreement) that certain minimum improvements and recreational
facilities be constructed. Each of these improvements and facilities are required by
CJS to be planned and constructed to meet the anticipated number of people who
will use the facilities. The number of campsites you plan will directly affect the
size and number of these improvements and facilities and costs.

2. Generally, the costs of constructing the required buildings and recreational
facilities, and to a lesser extent utilities, on the site of an existing campground will
depend on the extent to which the campground has been developed. If you own a
highly developed campground, you can anticipate that the initial costs for utilities,
buildings and facilities will fall within the lower end of the range of cost estimates
provided for those categories of expenditures.

3. Utilities consist of electrical and water hook-ups for camper and
recreational vehicles, sanitary facilities, campground lighting and the like. The
costs of installing a full complement of utilities may be minimal if you own a fully
developed campground. On the other hand, these costs can be significant if you
must install utilities in a less developed campground.

4. The Franchise Agreement provides that the Camp-Resort must be built,
converted, completed and maintained according to the standards and specifications
provided or approved by CJS and must conform with CJS’s then current standards
and specifications for Yogi Bear’s Jellystone Park Camp-Resorts, and must have
the following:

Required* -- Laundry Facilities
Recreation Pavilion
125 Campsites Commercial Children’s Playground
Highway Sign(s) Theme Signs
Main Entrance Sign(s) Yogi Bear, Boo Boo and Cindy Bear
Ranger Station (Registration/ Character Costume
Retail Sales Area) Approved Costume Care Facility
Yogi Bear, Boo Boo, Cindy Bear and Ranger  Buildings, etc. Painted to
Smith Statues System Specifications
20’ x 50’ Swimming Area/Pool(s) Recreation and Special

174197262v2
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Modern Restroom Facilities Events Programming
Movie Theater Hay Wagon/Train Ride

¥09! Sea: ﬁ?/lar:or(]) nr? di Four (4) full-service Cabin style rentals which
Si?glmaeriers ? dgn?i fyilrsle each site shall consist of a cabin with restroom
9 accommodations and a kitchenette.

Additional Recreational facilities —
At least six (6) must be present: Two (2) from
each Tier

Tier 1

Basketball Court
Pickleball/Tennis Court
Jumping Pillow/Pad
Gaga Ball Pit

Tier 2

Dog Park

Bear’s Den
Volleyball Court
Boat Rentals

Tier 3

Commercial Mini-Golf
Gem Mining Sluice
Golf Cart Rentals
Arcade

Suggested* -- Ranger Smith Character Costumes
Snack Bar Facility

Splashground water attraction

*Note: Exact specifications, codes, timing, dimensions, costs, may vary by park. The timing for
completion of some required conversions can take up to one year.

-- In all cases, your Camp-Resort will be required to have accomplished all required facility
improvements within fifteen (15) months from the date of your Franchise Agreement. The average
time that elapses between execution of a Franchise Agreement and opening of a Camp-Resort is
six (6) months.

5. For conversion of an existing campground, the costs of constructing the
various buildings required under the Franchise Agreement will vary according to
the nature of the pre-existing structures. If your existing campground includes all
of the required structures, you will incur minimal building costs. If it is necessary

174197262v2
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for you to construct only a main lodge building (Ranger Station), the building costs
will range from $500,00 to $1,000,000.

6. Similarly, the cost of recreational facilities, signs, fixtures and equipment
will vary considerably depending upon what facilities are present at the existing
campground. Converting a fully developed campground may involve only the
installation of signs, mylars, etc. and minor construction and decorating which may
cost as little as $100,000. On the other hand, the costs for developing a complete
set of recreational facilities will generally range from $100,000 to $200,000. The
costs for adding certain required facilities, for example, a swimming pool or a
recreational pavilion, will fall outside the above extremes.

7. Themed Elements and initial inventory consists of signage, retail inventory,
statutes and other approved licensed products that CJS may require. Initial
Inventory typically consists of groceries and other food products, gift and souvenir
items and operating maintenance supplies. For new Franchisees, payment for
Themed Elements and initial inventory ordered from CJS prior to the opening of
your business is due 50% in the July following your order and 50% in the
September following your order.

8. You must obtain and at all times keep in force throughout the term of your
Franchise Agreement insurance as described in the Franchise Agreement. This
insurance coverage is primary. The estimated cost of obtaining the required $2.0
million primary liability insurance for your Camp-Resort will be between $44,000
and $70,000 annually for a typical 100 to 200 site Camp-Resort. Generally, this
insurance is based upon a percentage of your gross revenues (approximately
between 3.75% and 6.0% currently), but the cost can be substantially more than the
above estimates. The types and amounts of insurance required are set forth in Item
11 of this disclosure document. You should obtain competent professional advice
on this matter.

9. While completion of conversion activity can take up to one (1) year, the
average time that elapses between execution of a Franchise Agreement and
commencement of operations at a Camp-Resort is six (6) months. It has been the
experience of our predecessor, LSI, that, depending on the size of the Camp-Resort
and the level of business activity at the Camp-Resort, franchisees will require
between $100,000 and $150,000 for use as working capital in the operation of their
Camp-Resort. This estimate is based on our predecessor LSI’s experience and with
reference to a sampling of park development projects and conversions. Working
capital is used to purchase uniforms and other non-inventory related items and to
pay employee wages. The amounts are for recommended working capital
necessary to complete the business cycle during periods of low operational income
due to seasonality of the business and/or the timeframe required to ready the Camp-
Resort for operation. CJS imposes no restrictions on your withdrawal of working
capital at your Camp-Resort. However, your ability to withdraw, and the timing of
any such withdrawal of, working capital depends on the results of operation of your
Camp-Resort. CJS estimates that the average time that elapses between the time a
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Camp-Resort commences operations and the time an operator is able to withdraw
working capital is eighteen (18) to twenty-four (24) months.

10.  CJS does not charge for the Certification and Management Program and
pays for approved travel and lodging expenses for you or your manager. Any
additional training beyond the initial Certification and Management Program is
solely your responsibility.

11.  Your total investment will vary substantially depending upon the site and
location of your Camp-Resort, the number of campsites to be developed, the laws
and regulations (including building codes and zoning regulations, health and safety
laws and laws regulating the sale of campground memberships or lots) applicable
to your Camp-Resort.

Due to a wide variance in franchisee expenditures, the foregoing figures can only be regarded as
estimates. You should obtain your own estimates of costs from engineers, contractors and other
qualified professionals.

The items listed above, may or may not be refundable, depending on the terms the franchisee
negotiates with the supplier/vendor of the goods or services in question. Other than the deferral
of charges for Themed Elements and initial inventory discussed in Note 7, we do not finance any

fees.

YOUR ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT NEEDED
IF YOU DEVELOP A NEW
TYPICAL 125 SITE JELLYSTONE PARK (Note 1)

TYPE OF AMOUNT METHOD OF WHEN DUE TO WHOM
EXPENDITURE PAYMENT PAYMENT
ISTO BE
MADE
Campground:
Initial Franchise $75,000 As Incurred At time of signing | CJS
Fee Franchise
Agreement
Undeveloped $400,000 - | As Incurred At Closing, before | Seller
Land, Preparation | 3,000,000 opening
& Improvements
(Notes 3 & 5)
Utilities (Notes 3 | $4,000,000 | As Incurred Before opening as | Seller
& 5) - 6,500,000 incurred
Buildings (Notes | $1,000,000 | As Incurred Before opening as | Contractor
3,6&7) - 4,000,000 incurred
Recreational $100,000 - | As Incurred Before opening as | CJS, and
Facilities, (Notes 6 | 500,000 ordered Suppliers

174197262v2
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& 8) Signs,
Fixtures and
Miscellaneous
Equipment
Themed Elements | $30,000 - As Incurred As Incurred CJS, and
and Initial 75,000 Suppliers
Inventory (Note 9)
Training (note 0o |- e
(10)
Insurance (Note $44,000 - As Ordered As Ordered Insurer
11) 70,000
Additional Funds | $100,000 - | As Incurred As Incurred Suppliers,
(3 months) (Note | 150,000 Employees
12)
TOTAL: 5,749,000 - $14,370,000 (Range) (Note 11)
NOTES:
1. The estimates in this table are based upon a Camp-Resort with 125

174197262v2

campsites. Typical Camp-Resorts vary in number of developed campsites from
approximately 125 campsites to more than 500 campsites. The Franchise
Agreement provides that your Camp-Resort must have no fewer than a minimum
number (negotiated between CJS and you and included in your Franchise
Agreement) of “Qualifying Campsites,” that is, campsites graded level and
improved for parking of campers and recreational vehicles, with water and
electrical hookups available and sanitary facilities reasonably accessible. Subject
to this minimum number of Qualifying Campsites and CJS’s approval, you are free
to develop any number of additional campsites. The number of campsites to be
developed will affect not only your variable costs of developing the campsites but
also the costs of developing other required improvements. CJS requires (as stated
in the Franchise Agreement) that certain minimum improvements and recreational
facilities be constructed. Each of these improvements and facilities are required by
CJS to be planned and constructed to meet the anticipated number of people who
will use the facilities. The number of campsites you plan will directly affect the
size and number of these improvements and facilities and costs.

2. Generally, the costs of constructing the required building and recreational
facilities, and to a lesser extent utilities, on the site of an existing campground will
vary inversely with the purchase price of the campground you acquire. In other
words, if you acquire a campground selling in the higher end of the above-noted
price range, you can anticipate that the initial costs for utilities, buildings and
facilities will fall within the lower end of the range cost estimates provided for those
categories of expenditures.
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3. If you choose to acquire undeveloped land and construct a new
campground, it is estimated that a minimum of thirty (30) acres will be required for
the development of a Camp-Resort meeting CJS’s requirements. The probable
location of a site will be a rural area in reasonable proximity to major highways,
vacation areas or population concentrations. Land costs for suitable Camp-Resort
property may vary from approximately $20,000 to $150,000 per acre or more. Land
costs will vary due to local real property markets and the desirability of the costs
will vary due to local real property markets and the desirability of the site.
Preparation and improvements costs relate to the construction of graded and
improved campsites suitable for the parking of campers and recreational vehicles.

4. Utilities consist of electrical and water hook-ups for campers and
recreational vehicles, sanitary facilities, campground lighting and the like. The
costs of installing a full complement of the utilities may be minimal if you acquire
an existing campground. On the other hand, these costs can be substantial if you
construct a Camp-Resort on undeveloped land.

5. The Franchise Agreement provides that the Camp-Resort must be built,
converted, completed and maintained according to the standards and specifications
provided or approved by CJS and must conform with CJS’s then current standards
and specifications for Yogi Bear’s Jellystone Park Camp- Resorts, and must have
the following:

Required™* -- Laundry Facilities
Recreation Pavilion
125 Campsites Commercial Children’s Playground
Highway Sign(s) Hay Wagon/Train Ride
Main Entrance Sign(s) Theme Signs
Ranger Station (Registration/ Yogi Bear, Boo Boo and Cindy Bear
Retail Sales Area), Character Costumes
Suggested size: 1,500 sq./ft. Approved Costume Care Facility
Yogi Bear, Boo Boo, Cindy Bear and Ranger  Buildings, etc. Painted to
Smith Statues System Specifications
20’ x 50’ Swimming Area/Pool(s) Recreation and Special
Modern Restroom Facilities Events Programming

Movie Theater
Yogi Bear Cartoons
Yogi Bear Merchandise

Four (4) full-service Cabin style rentals which
shall consist of a cabin with restroom
accommodations and a kitchenette

Site markers identifying each site

Additional Recreational facilities —
At least six (6) must be present: Two (2) from

each Tier

Tier 1

Basketball Court
Pickleball/Tennis Court

174197262v2
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Jumping Pillow/Pad
Gaga Ball Pit

Tier 2

Dog Park

Bear’s Den
Volleyball Court
Boat Rentals

Tier 3

Commercial Mini-Golf
Gem Mining Sluice
Golf Cart Rentals
Arcade

Suggested* -- Ranger Smith Character Costumes
Snack Bar Facility

Splashground water attraction

*Note: Exact specifications, codes, timing, dimensions, costs, may vary by park. The timing for
completion of some required conversions can take up to one year. In all cases, your Camp-Resort
will be required to have accomplished all required facility improvements within eighteen (18)
months from the date of your Franchise Agreement.

6. Similarly, the cost of recreational facilities, signs, fixtures and equipment
will vary considerably depending upon whether an existing or new campground is
developed. Converting a fully developed campground may involve only the
installation of signs, mylars, etc. and minor construction and decorating which may
cost as little as $100,000. On the other hand, these costs for developing a new
campground will generally range from $100,000 to $200,000. The costs for adding
certain required facilities, for example, a swimming pool or a recreational pavilion,
will fall outside the above extremes.

7. Themed Elements and initial inventory consists of signage, retail inventory,
statutes and other approved licensed products that CJS may require. Initial
Inventory typically consists of groceries and other food products, gift and souvenir
items and operating maintenance supplies. Payment for Themed Elements and
initial inventory ordered from CJS prior to the opening of your business is due 50%
in the July following your order and 50% in the September following your order.

8. CJS does not charge for the Certification and Management Program and
pays for approved travel and lodging expenses for you or your manager. Any
additional training beyond the Certification and Management Program is solely
your responsibility.

1741972622
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9. You must obtain and at all times keep in force throughout the term of the
Franchise Agreement insurance as described in the Franchise Agreement. This
insurance coverage is primary. The estimated cost of obtaining the required $2.0
million primary liability insurance for your Camp-Resort will be between $44,000
and $70,000 annually for a typical 100 to 200 site Camp-Resort. Generally, this
insurance is based upon a percentage of your gross revenues (between 3.75% and
6.0%), but the costs can be substantially more than the estimates above. You should
obtain competent professional advice on this matter.

10.  While completion of conversion activity can take up to one (1) year, the
average time that elapses between execution of a Franchise Agreement and
commencement of operations at a Camp-Resort is six (6) months. It has been our
predecessor LSI’s experience that, depending on the size of the Camp-Resort,
franchisees will require between $100,000 and $150,000 for use as working capital
in the operation of their Camp-Resort. This estimate is based on our predecessor
LSI’s experience and with reference to a sampling of park development projects
and conversions. Working capital is used to purchase uniforms and other non-
inventory related items and to pay employee wages. The amounts are for
recommended working capital necessary to complete the business cycle during
periods of low operational income due to seasonality of the business and/or the
timeframe required to ready the Camp-Resort for operation. CJS imposes no
restrictions on your withdrawal of working capital at your Camp-Resort. However,
your ability to withdraw, and the timing of any such withdrawal of, working capital
depends on the results of operation of your Camp-Resort. CJS estimates that the
average time that elapses between the time a Camp-Resort commences operations
and the time an operator is able to withdraw working capital is eighteen (18) to
twenty-four (24) months.

11.  Your total investment will vary substantially depending upon the site and
location of your Camp-Resort, the number of campsites to be developed, the laws
and regulations (including building codes and zoning regulations, health and safety
laws and laws regulating the sale of campground memberships or lots) applicable
to your Camp-Resort and, most importantly, on whether you presently own or are
acquiring an existing campground and are converting it to a Camp-Resort or
developing a new Camp-Resort and, in the latter case, whether you must purchase
land for your Camp-Resort or already own a suitable parcel for your Camp-Resort.

Due to a wide variance in franchisee expenditures, the foregoing figures can only be regarded as
estimates. You should obtain your own estimates of costs from engineers, contractors and other
qualified professionals.

The items listed above, may or may not be refundable, depending on the terms the franchisee
negotiates with the supplier/vendor of the goods or services in question. Other than the deferral
of charges for Themed Elements and initial inventory discussed in Note 7, we do not finance any

RESTRICTIONS ON SOURCES OF PRODUCTS AND SERVICES
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Obligations to Purchase or Lease from the Franchisor or its Designated Suppliers

CJS’s right to use the Marks comes from a license agreement with the Licensor. Use of the
Marks on products not authorized for sale by CJS or the Licensor at your Camp-Resort will
constitute an infringement of the respective rights of CJS and Licensor in the Marks and will result
in substantial injury to CJS. Accordingly, you must purchase products bearing the Marks only
from CJS or suppliers approved by CJS or the Licensor. If you desire to purchase any item or
product bearing any Mark from a manufacturer or supplier other than CJS or a supplier approved
by CJS or the Licensor, you must notify CJS in advance, providing information concerning the
manufacturer or supplier and the product or item as reasonably requested by CJS. CJS may grant
or deny you permission to purchase and sell such product at your Camp-Resort in its sole
discretion, and the grant of permission will be expressly contingent on the manufacturer’s
obtaining full right and license to use the Marks from the Licensor and the manufacturer’s or
source’s agreement to the terms and conditions for the use of the Marks and for the sale of the
products to you established by the Licensor or CJS. CJS will notify you of whether CJS grants or
denies permission to purchase from a manufacturer or supplier other than CJS or a supplier
approved by CJS within thirty (30) days of your request.

CJS will provide to you, certain themed elements. The provided items include (i) One (1)
of each Yogi Bear, Boo Boo, and Cindy Bear character costume; (ii) One (1) themed front entrance
sign; (iii) Four (4) standard size fiberglass statues consisting of one (1) each Yogi Bear, Boo Boo,
Cindy Bear, and Ranger Smith; and (iv) Themed signage for each required facility as listed in Item
6You are required to purchase from CJS (i) other themed elements that CJS may require; and (ii)
other miscellaneous equipment, operating supplies and inventory that CJS may require. The cost
of all required items ranges from approximately $30,000 to $75,000, as determined by CJS based
on your Camp-Resort. This cost includes shipping costs but not installation. You are responsible
for installing, erecting and displaying these items on your Camp-Resort. CJS does not provide
written specifications for the erection or installation of these items. In addition to CJS providing
these items directly to you, CJS has approved suppliers from whom you may purchase additional
signage, theme elements or supplies which utilize the Marks.

We will provide a list of Approved Suppliers to you in memos, bulletins, emails or
manuals. This list may be amended from time to time at our discretion. Our criteria for approving
suppliers are made available to you upon request (and may be set forth in various bulletins, memos
and emails). Our specifications and standards with respect to product and supply purchases will
be available through bulletins, memos and emails.

Our designation of a manufacturer, supplier or distributor does not create any express or
implied promise, guaranty or warranty by us as to the products or services of the manufacturer,
supplier or distributor and we will not have any liability to you for any claims, damages or losses
suffered by you as a result of or arising from the products or services provided by the manufacturer,
supplier or distributor or the acts or omissions of the manufacturer, supplier or distributor.

We may negotiate purchase arrangements with some of our Approved Suppliers for the
benefit of our franchisees in order to take advantage of group purchasing power.

174197262v2
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Items, including identification signs, statues and any other franchise identifying items,
inventory or souvenir items, and other items containing or using any trademark, trade name, logo,
sign or symbol owned or used by CJS for its Network of franchised Camp-Resorts, are available
only from CJS, from suppliers approved by CJS or the Licensor, or from licensees of CJS or
licensees of the Licensor.

There are no approved suppliers in which any of our officers owns an interest. Also, other
than as described below with respect to SUI, no affiliate of CJS derives any revenue from the
products you are required to purchase or lease.

Insurance

You must maintain a $2.0 million liability insurance policy (which policy will provide
primary coverage and which must name CJS, SUI and its directors and officers, Warner Bros.
Discovery Inc. and its subsidiaries and affiliates, and any other parties designated by CJS as
additional insureds), with respect to your Camp-Resort and its operations and in the event you
choose to add umbrella/excess coverage the above listed entities must be co-insureds as well. This
policy must provide primary coverage. You must also maintain a $1.0 million automobile liability
policy and a $1.0 million umbrella liability policy. CJS does not require you to utilize a designated
insurance carrier or broker in obtaining this insurance coverage but does require the insurance
carrier maintain an AM Best rating of “A” or better.

Revenue or Other Benefits to Franchisor or Affiliates

CJS will give you access to any centralized purchasing program for suppliers or other
items developed by CJS. Although CJS does not currently have a centralized purchasing program
in effect, nor is CJS aware of any purchasing or distribution cooperatives organized for the benefit
of its franchisees, SUI may create or enter into centralized purchasing programs for the benefit of
its affiliated entities. In such event, franchisees of CJS may be offered the opportunity, at their
option, to participate in supplier membership programs with vendors of SUI, to purchase products
or services at negotiated costs or rates. SUI may then derive revenue from such vendor based on
purchases by CJS franchisees, the amount or percentage of which would be negotiated by SUI
with such vendor. CJS does from time to time negotiate prices with suppliers for the benefit of
franchisees. CJS derives revenues and a profit on all items described above in the form of an
administrative mark-up from the sale of these items sold directly by CJS to franchisees or in the
form of fees (in the form of an 10% royalty) from other approved suppliers providing these items
to franchisees. In the year ended December 31, 2024, CJS received $531,734 from the sale of
goods and products that are required to be purchased from CJS’s suppliers by franchisees, or 4.8%
of CJS’s total revenues of $11,073,995.

Percentage of Purchases

Purchases of the items described above would constitute a small percentage of your total
initial investment (i.e., the proportion of all required purchases by you to all total purchases by you
of goods and services in establishing and operating of the Camp-Resort will likely be less than five
percent (5%), unless all of your initial costs are at the low end of the ranges specified on Table A
(Item 7)). The magnitude of required purchases of inventory souvenir items in relation to your
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total purchases in the operation of the Camp-Resort will depend upon the type and quantity of
inventory souvenir items purchased as well as the type and quantity of other goods and services
you purchase in the operation of the franchised business. Due to the wide variance in franchisees’
expenditures, it is not possible to specify a generally applicable percentage representing the
magnitude of the aforementioned required purchases in relation to all your purchases of goods and
services.

Cooperatives; Material Benefits to Franchisees

We do not at this time have any formal purchasing or distribution cooperatives. As
described above, SUI may enter into purchasing agreement with certain vendors to supply products
or services to our franchisees at negotiated prices. We do not provide material benefits to our
franchisees based on a franchisee’s purchases from designated sources.

ITEM 9. FRANCHISEE’S OBLIGATIONS

This table lists your principal obligations under the franchise and other agreements.
It will help you find more detailed information about your obligations in these agreements
and in other items of this disclosure document.

Obligation Section in Agreement Disclosure
Document
Item
a. Site selection and Article V of the Franchise Agreement | Item 7
acquisition/lease
b. Pre-opening purchases /leases Articles 1V and V of the Franchise Iltems 7,8 &
Agreement 11
c. Site development and other pre- | Articles IV and V of the Franchise Item 7
opening requirements Agreement
d. Initial and ongoing training Articles 1V and V of the Franchise Iltems 6, 7 &
Agreement 15
e. Opening Articles 111 and 1V of the Franchise Item 7
Agreement
f. Fees Articles V1 and IX of the Franchise Items 5,6 &
Agreement 7
g. Compliance with standards and | Articles I, 1I, IV and V of the Items 13 &
policies/Operating Manual Franchise Agreement 14
h. Trademarks and proprietary Articles I, 11, IV and IX of the Items 13 &
information Franchise Agreement 14
I. Restrictions on products/ Articles I, 1V, V and XI of the Items 8, 13,
services offered Franchise Agreement 14 & 16
J.  Warranty and customer service Articles 1V and V of the Franchise Item 14
requirements Agreement
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Agreement

Obligation Section in Agreement Disclosure
Document
Item
k. Territorial development and Articles I and 1V of the Franchise Item 12
sales quotas Agreement
I.  Ongoing product/service Articles I, IV and V of the Franchise | Items 6, 7, 8
purchases Agreement & 16
m. Maintenance, appearance and Articles I, 111, IV and V of the Items 7 & 17
remodeling requirements Franchise Agreement
Insurance Article X of the Franchise Agreement | Item 7
0. Advertising Articles I, IV and V of the Franchise | Items 6, 7 &
Agreement 11
p. Indemnification Acrticle VIII of the Franchise Item 6
Agreement
g. Owner’s participation/ Articles 1V and V of the Franchise Item 15
management/staffing Agreement
r. Records/reports Articles 1V, VI and VII of the Item 6
Franchise Agreement
s. Inspections/audits Articles 1V, V, VIl and XI of the Iltems 6 & 11
Franchise Agreement
t. Transfer Articles 1X and XII1 of the Franchise | Items 6 & 17
Agreement
u. Renewal Article 111 of the Franchise Item 17
Agreement
v. Post-termination obligations Articles I, 11, IV, Xl and XIII of the Item 17
Franchise Agreement
w. Non-competition covenants Article IV of the Franchise Item 17
Agreement
x. Dispute resolution Article XII1 of the Franchise Item 17

ITEM 10. FINANCING

CJS does not offer direct or indirect financing. CJS does not guarantee your note, lease or
obligation. At our discretion, we may allow you to pay 50% of the initial franchise fee upon
execution of the Franchise Agreement and 50% by September 30. We do not require a promissory
note or other financing documents to be executed and we do not charge interest.

ITEM 11.
AND TRAINING

FRANCHISOR’S ASSISTANCE, ADVERTISING, COMPUTER SYSTEMS

Except as listed below, CJS is not required to provide you with any assistance.

174197262v2
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Before you open your business, CJS will provide or perform the following supervision and
services:

1) Site Approval, Construction, and Remodeling [Article V, p. 12 of the Franchise
Agreement]

(@) Statue, Signs and Costumes [Article V, p. 14, and Article IV p. 11 of the Franchise
Agreement]

(3) Training [Article V, p. 12 of the Franchise Agreement]
Retail Set-Up for 2 days [Article V(j) of the Franchise Agreement]

During the operation of the franchise business, CJS will provide or perform the following
supervision, assistance and services:

1) Promotion [Article V, p. 13 of the Franchise Agreement]

2 Camp-Resort Directory [Article V, p. 13 of the Franchise Agreement]

(3) Brand Standards Manual [Article V, p. 13 of the Franchise Agreement]

4) Guidance and Assistance [Article V, p. 14 of the Franchise Agreement]

4) Additional Training [Article V, p. 12 of the Franchise Agreement]

1) Advertising [Article IV, p. 10 of the Franchise Agreement]

(6) System-Wide Reservation Program [Article 1V, p. 12 of the Franchise Agreement]

CJS is co-branding a System-Wide Reservation Program (“Reservation Program”) with
Rezplot Systems, LLC, whose tradename is ‘Campspot’ that will allow customers to make a
campsite reservation at any participating Camp-Resort. While this Reservation Program is
currently not mandatory for certain Camp-Resorts due to their current franchise agreement
language, it is the intention of CJS to require its use at the time of franchise agreement renewal.
This Reservation Program is the only reservation software that will be permitted to accept online
reservations through our website, campjellystone.com.

All franchisees utilizing the Reservation Program will be required to use a specific card
card processor, currently Card Connect, and active enrollment in the approved online travel agency
(“OTA”), Marketplace. Participating Camp-Resorts will be responsible for paying any and all
associate fees as billed by Campspot, on a monthly basis. These fees for the Reservation Program
shall be stated in the Brands Standards Manual and may be amended from time to time upon notice.

Franchisee will publish its own privacy policy on its website, or at the direction of
Franchisor publish a Franchisor approved privacy policy on its website, which discloses to
customers that reservation data may be accessed by Campspot, CJS, any alternative third-party
reservation service provider designated by CJS or any CJS franchisee for purposes of providing
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any services associated with CJS. The privacy policy will also be required to include that
Customer’s personal information may be transferred to any customer relationship management
or reservation system that CJS adopts or implements. As referenced in Addendum E of the
Franchise Agreement.

Site Selection and Approval

Your Franchise Agreement requires your Camp-Resort to be located at a specific location
approved in advance by CJS. Site selection and approval depends upon many factors including
access to a primary traffic route, proximity to major cities or attractions, suitability of land,
availability of necessary utility hook-ups, relative location of other competing campgrounds and
similar factors. The approval of any site or existing campground by CJS is not a representation or
warranty that your use of that site for a Camp-Resort will result in profit or gain to you. Nor is
site approval by CJS a representation or warranty that the site may be developed into a Camp-
Resort in compliance with applicable laws and regulations or as to the environmental condition of
the soil and groundwater at the site. You bear sole responsibility for site selection and development
and for compliance with applicable laws and regulations, including environmental, zoning and
land use laws and regulations. If you, within one (1) year after signing a Franchise Agreement,
fail to present a site location approved by CJS, the payment for the Themed Element and initial
inventory may be forfeited, the Franchise Agreement will be terminated and neither you nor CJS
will have any further obligations under the Franchise Agreement. CJS must approve any
construction, remodeling or decorating of your Camp-Resort prior to the operation opening of your
Camp-Resort and may make site approval dependent upon your proper construction, remodeling
or decorating of the Camp-Resort.

CJS generally does not own a premises and lease such premises to franchisees.

Time of Opening

The average time that elapses between execution of a Franchise Agreement and opening
of a Camp-Resort is six (6) months for conversion parks and thirty (30) months for newly
constructed Camp-Resorts. Generally, the most significant factor impacting this timing is the time
required to construct any improvements to the Camp-Resort necessary to comply with the
requirements of the Franchise Agreement and the Brand Standards Manual

Training

Before you open CJS will provide you or the individual who will assume primary general
management responsibility for the daily operation of your Camp-Resort (“general operator”) with
training and instruction in the operation of a Camp-Resort both on site at your Camp-Resort and
at CJS’s Certification and Management Program (“C.A.M.P.”). The initial C.A.M.P. training
session, typically scheduled in January, February or March of each year, lasts for between three
(3) and five (5) days. The C.A.M.P. training program for new franchisees and for each new Camp-
Resort manager is mandatory and must be attended at the next regularly scheduled session.
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TRAINING PROGRAM

Subject Hours of Hours of Location
Classroom | On-The-Job
Training Training

Franchisor/Franchisee 1 0 CJS’s Southfield, MI headquarters or

Relationship/Getting a designated campground

Yogized

Daily Operating 2.5 0 CJS’s Southfield, MI headquarters or

Procedures & Managing a a designated campground

Jellystone Park

Customer Care & 1.5 0 CJS’s Southfield, MI headquarters or

Communications a designated campground

Park Assessment Process 1.5 0 CJS’s Southfield, MI headquarters or
a designated campground

Park Assessment Activity 3 0 CJS’s Southfield, MI headquarters or
a designated campground

Strategies for People 2 0 CJS’s Southfield, MI headquarters or

Development a designated campground

Pricing Strategies when 1.5 0 CJS’s Southfield, MI headquarters or

Determining Camp-Site a designated campground

Rates

Club Yogi Rewards 1.5 0 CJS’s Southfield, MI headquarters or
a designated campground

Marketing Strategy 1.5 0 CJS’s Southfield, MI headquarters or
a designated campground

Warner Bros. Policies 1.5 0 CJS’s Southfield, MI headquarters or
a designated campground

Recreation 2 0 CJS’s Southfield, MI headquarters or
a designated campground

Camp Store 2.5 0 CJS’s Southfield, MI headquarters or

Merchandising a designated campground

Gift Card Program 1 0 CJS’s Southfield, MI headquarters or
a designated campground

Importance of Customer 1 0 CJS’s Southfield, MI headquarters or

Focused Policies a designated campground

Costume Care and Usage 2 0 CJS’s Southfield, MI headquarters or
a designated campground

Importance of Running an 2 0 CJS’s Southfield, MI headquarters or

Exceptional Recreational
Program

a designated campground
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Subject Hours of Hours of Location
Classroom | On-The-Job
Training Training
Recreation Activity 2.5 0 CJS’s Southfield, MI headquarters or
a designated campground
Importance of 2 0 CJS’s Southfield, MI headquarters or
Maintenance & Cleaning a designated campground
Procedures
Importance of Interview 2 0 CJS’s Southfield, MI headquarters or
Process & Staff Retention a designated campground
On-the-Job Training 0 20+ Your Camp-Resort
Total Hours 34 20+

The training is usually held in January, February or March following the execution of your
Franchise Agreement. CJS does not charge for this training or service and pays approved travel
and lodging expenses for C.A.M.P. for you or your manager. Except for on-the-job training, all
training occurs at CJS’s Southfield, M1 headquarters or a designated campground. The need for
on-the-job training will be jointly determined and agreed upon between you and CJS. On-the-job
training occurs at your Camp-Resort.

All instructional materials used at C.A.M.P. are included in the Brand Standards Manual,
with the exception of an annual Customer Satisfaction Survey used in the Marketing portion of
C.A.M.P., a video presentation used in the Guest Service portion of C.A.M.P. and the costumes
used in the Costume Care and Usage portion of C.A.M.P. A copy of the table of contents of the
Brand Standards Manual is attached as Exhibit E.

The instructors at C.A.M.P. - currently Robert Schutter Jr., Jon Burek, Lauri Hart, Lisa
Courtney, Hannah Reinke, Chelsey Schreiber, DezaRae Beers, Renata Evans, Tiffany Davies,
Nicole Ramundo, Trent Hershenson, Alex Reed, and Marcy Jordan serve as our training
instructors. All of the primary C.A.M.P. instructors have more than a decade of experience in the
System and/or in their area of functional expertise. Hannah Reinke has been employed with CJS
since March of 2023 as a Franchise Operations Manager and earned her Master of Education from
Western Governor’s University. Chelsey Schreiber has been employed with CJS since July of 2022
as a Franchise Operations Manager and earned her Bachelor of Professional Studies in Business
Management from Cazenovia College. DezaRae Beers has been employed with CJS since
February 2023 as a Franchise Operations Manager and earned her Bachelor of Arts in
Communication-Public Relations from Virginia Tech. Renata Evans has been employed with CJS
since 2015 as its Vice President of Retail and earned her Bachelor of Science Degree in Marketing
from Wright State University. Tiffany Davies has been employed with CJS since April of 2019
and earned her Bachelor of Business Administration in Marketing and Management from
University of Cincinnati. Nicole Ramundo has been employed with CJS since February of 2019
and earned her Bachelor in Merchandising from the University of Kentucky. Mr. Hershenson has
been employed with CJS since June of 2018 as its Vice President of Marketing and earned his
Bachelor of Arts Degree from the University of Miami (FL) and his Master of Business Admiration
from the University of Southern California. Lauri Hart has been employed by CJS since 2011 and

174197262v2
26




earned her Bachelor of Business Administration in Marketing and Management from the
University of Cincinnati. Alex Reed has been employed by CJS since 2018 as a Marketing
Manager, earned his Bachelor of Arts in Electronic Media Communications from Xavier
University. Mrs. Hart has been employed by CJS since 2011 and earned her Bachelor of Business
Administration in marketing and management from the University of Cincinnati. Ms. Beers has
been employed with CJS since February 2023 as the company’s Franchise Operations Manager
and earned her Bachelor of Arts in Communication — Public Relations from Virginia Tech. Ms.
Jordan joined CJS in July 2018 and received her bachelor’s degree in public relations from
Northern Kentucky University.

You must complete to CJS’s reasonable satisfaction the required training within one (1) year of
joining the System. The party that must attend C.A.M.P. is the individual who will control the
day-to-day operations of the Camp-Resort. You may have other representatives attend C.A.M.P.
but they are not required to do so.

In addition, all franchisees must send at least one (1) general operator to attend one or more
general training sessions administered by CJS annually. These general training sessions are
generally held in the first and fourth quarters of the calendar year. The franchisee is responsible
for the costs incurred in attending such general training sessions, including travel and living
expenses.

Advertising and Marketing

CJS provides advertising and promotional services and other assistance to you and other
members of the System primarily using funds provided by franchisee payments of the Marketing,
Advertising, Rewards Program and Promotion Fee (“Franchisee-Provided Funds”). All
franchisees, including Camp-Resorts owned by CJS and its affiliates, must contribute the amounts
described in Item 6, under the heading “Marketing, Advertising, Rewards Program and Promotion
Fee”. All Franchisee-Provided Funds must be spent on advertising, brand training, rewards
certificate reimbursement, promotion and marketing of goods and services, and provision of
administrative services provided to members of the System as outlined in the chart below.
Franchisee-Provided Funds are held by CJS as part of its general assets and are not segregated.
CJS supplements the Franchisee-Provided Funds with additional corporate resources in providing
advertising and promotional services and assistance to System members. You are also required to
spend 5.0% of gross revenues for the marketing and advertising of your franchise; 3.0% which is
for local advertising and 2.0% that you pay to us for the Marketing, Advertising, Rewards Program
and Promotion Fee.

Franchisee-Provided Funds are not audited. CJS provides to franchisees, through the
Franchisee Advisory Council 4, an annual accounting of the Franchisee-Provided Funds and their
expenditure. However, CJS is not obligated to ensure that expenditures of Franchisee-Provided
Funds affecting any geographic area are proportional or equivalent to such fees paid by Camp-
Resorts operating in that geographic area. Also, there is no assurance that your Camp-Resort will
benefit directly or in proportion to your payments of Marketing, Advertising, Rewards Program

4 Members of the Franchisee Advisory Council are elected by you and your franchisee peers.
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and Promotional Fees from CJS’s expenditures in advertising and other promotional activities. No
portion of these funds is spent to solicit new franchise sales. In the year ended December 31, 2024,
CJS utilized collected and utilized the Franchisee-Provided Funds as follows:

2024 ADVERTISING REVENUES $ $2,112,806
COLLECTED

EXPENSE PERCENTAGE | ALLOCATION
SALARIES 16.7% $353,759
TRAVEL & BUSINESS 0.4% $9,014
TRAVEL & BUSINESS- MEALS 0.1% $1,266
WAREHOUSE 0.3% $6,280
FREIGHT 1.3% $28,241
CONTRACT SERVICES 0.0% -
MARKETING 24.6% $518,707
INTERNET 41.1% $869,164
COSTUME EXPENSES/STATUE 0.0%
EXPENSE i
PROMOTIONS 3.1% $66,540
ADVERTISEMENTS - PRINT 15.2% $320,774
ADVERTISING 0.1% $2,887
ADVERTISEMENTS - PRODUCTION 0.0% $428
FRANCHISEE SEMINAR 14.3% $302,319
MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSES 0.0% -
FOREIGN EXCHANGE-ADVERTISING 0.0% -
FINANCE CHARGES -
TOTAL EXPENSES 100.0% $2,479,380
ADVERTISING FUNDS CARRIED OVER
FROM PRIOR YEAR i
NET ADVERTISING FUNDS
REMAINING ($365,574)

CJS’s primary marketing objective is to increase consumer awareness of Yogi Bear’s
Jellystone Camp-Resorts through various media outlets. CJS’s secondary marketing objective is
to provide franchisees with tools and information to improve their own marketing efforts.

Materials provided by CJS to all franchisees include a centralized website that provides
online reservations through its Reservation Program provider, video and audio commercial tapes,
artwork, layout services and miscellaneous point-of-sale items. Such items are provided to you at
no cost.

You are not required to participate in a local or regional advertising cooperative.
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Currently, Franchisees are permitted to use Internet websites for promotional purposes.
However, if you choose to have an Internet address utilizing any of the Marks for your Camp-
Resort, you must receive prior authorization and assignment of that Internet address from the
Licensor. CJS will use its reasonable best efforts to facilitate the authorization and assignment
process. Itis the intention of CJS to eliminate these individual Camp-Resort websites in the future.

You may develop advertising materials for your own use, at your own cost. CJS must
approve the advertising materials in advance and in writing.

CJS occasionally provides for placement of advertising on behalf of the entire System,
including franchisees. CJS may use print, electronic, video and radio broadcasts on a local,
national or regional level. Some of this placement is done on a regional basis. However, most
placement is done on a national basis using print, electronic and other non-broadcast media. In
the past, CJS has used an outside advertising agency to create and place advertising; however,
most advertising is placed by CJS’s in-house marketing department. Franchisee-Provided Funds
are used to promote the services and goods provided to the public by franchisees and are not used
to sell additional franchises.

Our Camp-Resort Directory, which we will periodically issue to you, will contain other
franchisees and a directory of System Camp-Resorts. You will be listed in a directory if you are
not in breach of the Franchise Agreement and if you are current in the payment of all amounts due
CJS. Each Camp-Resort in good standing as described above will be listed in each edition of the
directory beginning with the edition next published following opening of the Camp-Resort.

Brand Standards Manual

CJS will make available to you during the term of your franchise one (1) copy of Yogi Bear’s
Jellystone Park Camp-Resorts Brand Standards Manual (the “Brand Standards Manual”). The
Brand Standards Manual is divided in two (2) separate sections including the Brand Standards
Manual and the Resource Manual. The table of contents of the Brand Standards Manual is attached
as Exhibit E and consists of 105 pages. You may obtain the Brand Standards Manual by obtaining
from CJS an access code that will enable you to view and download necessary sections. A copy
of the table of contents of the Brand Standards Manual accompanies this Disclosure Document.
The Brand Standards Manual, which has been copyrighted by CJS, contains mandatory standards
and specifications; information for performance of camping services; advertising standards;
standards for maintenance of the Camp-Resort; information on the permitted use of the Yogi Bear
name, Mark and likeness; information concerning all aspects of the System required from time to
time by CJS for Yogi Bear’s Jellystone Park Camp-Resorts; and information concerning your other
obligations under the Franchise Agreement and in the operation of your Camp-Resort. The Manual
must remain confidential and is our proprietary property. CJS may modify the Brand Standards
Manual and your obligations to reflect changes in the System provided these additions or
modifications will not alter your fundamental status and rights under the Franchise Agreement.
You must use the most current version of the Brand Standards Manual after receiving notice of
changes from CJS. If a dispute arises concerning the contents of the Brand Standards Manual, the
master copies maintained by CJS at its principal office will be controlling. You must retain
possession of your Brand Standards Manual at all times and may not, at any time, copy any part
of the Brand Standards Manual to distribute. Prospective franchisees may view the Brand
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Standards Manual prior to entering into a Franchise Agreement if the prospective franchisee signs
a written agreement not to copy, or disclose the contents of, the Brand Standards Manual to others
or to use the substance of the Brand Standards Manual in competition with CJS. Informal guidance
such as emails or oral advice is not considered to be part of the Brand Standards Manual.

ITEM 12. TERRITORY

You are granted a designated territory within which CJS will not establish either a
company-owned or a franchised Camp-Resort. This designated territory will be outlined along the
highway or highways and other access roads to be the primary access routes to the entrance to your
Camp-Resort. Franchisees are typically granted a distance of twenty-five (25) miles from the front
entrance of their Camp-Resort along the primary access routes. If, in CJS’s judgment after
analyzing traffic count, the number of your available campsites, other available campsites within
an hour’s driving time and other market factors, additional protected distance is appropriate, a
different territory may be mutually agreed upon. Before the execution of the Franchise Agreement,
a map and written description of your designated territory will be provided to you. In case of
discrepancies between the map and the written description, the written description will control.

You will not receive an exclusive territory. You may face competition from other
franchisees, from outlets that we own, or from other channels of distribution or competitive brands
that we control. The designation of your territory applies only to the establishment of one (1)
Camp-Resort. You do not receive the right to acquire additional franchises within your area. There
is no exclusive right to the use of the Marks in any other fashion and there is no exclusive right to
sell or distribute items bearing the Marks, whether or not those items may also be available for
distribution at your Camp-Resort. You are not prohibited or restricted from advertising, soliciting
business or otherwise promoting your Camp-Resort outside of your designated territory and may
do so within the territory of another Camp-Resort, provided you do not use a facility with a
permanent or semi-permanent (seasonal) physical presence in the designated territory of another
franchisee. This includes soliciting business using the internet, catalogs and telemarketing. Other
franchisees may advertise, solicit business or otherwise promote their Camp-Resorts within your
designated territory provided they do not use a facility or site with a permanent or semi-permanent
(seasonal) physical presence in your designated territory. Also, CJS retains the right in its sole
discretion, subject only to your rights, to operate through CJS-owned outlets, franchise the
operation of, or otherwise grant rights to operate Camp-Resorts at locations outside your
designated territory or to operate through CJS-owned outlets other campgrounds and resorts under
any names or marks not utilizing the YOGI BEAR name and logo for any locations, including
locations in your designated territory, as CJS, in its sole discretion, deems appropriate.

In addition, SUI currently owns, operates and may acquire campgrounds and other similar
parks under different tradenames and marks than those that are licensed to you, which parks may
be located within your designated territory.

There is no minimum sales quota, however declining revenues or failure of an assessment
may trigger a modification of the designated territory. It should also be noted that you will be
responsible for the minimum Royalty and Service Fee, despite the fact that there is not a minimum
sales quota. CJS will not modify your designated territory during the term of your Franchise
Agreement without your written permission or without cause. The designated territory will
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terminate upon termination of your Franchise Agreement. Upon renewal of your Franchise
Agreement, continuation of your designated territory will be based upon your satisfactory
compliance with all of the CJS’s requirements relating to renewal. The territory may be adjusted
on renewal at the option of CJS on a case-by-case basis based upon changes in population and
other demographic conditions. You and CJS must enter into a separate Franchise Agreement, and
CJS must approve the site as suitable for a Camp-Resort, before you relocate your Camp-Resort
or before you establish additional Camp-Resorts.

Franchisee Options; Additional Franchises

You will not have any options, rights of first refusal or similar rights to acquire additional
franchises within any specified territory or any contiguous territories. We may allow you to
acquire additional franchises if you meet our qualifications in place at that time for acquiring a
franchise and ownership of multiple locations. These qualifications may include standards of
character, business experience, financial strength, credit standing, health, reputation, business
ability, experience, availability of management personnel, etc.

ITEM 13. TRADEMARKS

CJS, as licensee of Warner Bros. Animation, a Division of Warner Bros. Discovery, a
Delaware corporation (“Licensor” or “WB”), grants you the limited, revocable right to operate a
Camp-Resort under the name “Yogi Bear’s Jellystone Park Camp-Resort.” You may also use our
current or future trademarks, whether owned or licensed, to operate your Camp-Resort provided
that you comply with any usage guidelines that CJS established. By trademarks or “Marks” CJS
means trade names, trademarks, service marks and logos needed to identify your Camp-Resort and
specifically designated by CJS.

You must use the Marks as sole trade identifications of your Camp-Resort and must also
identify yourself as the independent owner of your Camp-Resort in the manner required by CJS.
You must not use any Marks as part of your corporate or trade name or with any prefix, suffix or
other modifying words, terms, designs, or symbols (other than logos and additional trade and
service marks licensed to you under the Franchise Agreement) or in any modified form, nor may
you use any Mark in the manufacture or sale of products or the performance of any service not
expressly authorized in writing by CJS. You must prominently display the Marks at your Camp-
Resort on literature, rental and lease agreements, invoices and other forms designated, including
advertising and marketing materials. All Marks shall be displayed and used in the manner
established by CJS. You must agree to give notices of trade and service mark registrations as CJS
requires and to obtain such fictitious or assumed name registrations as may be required under
applicable law.

If you choose to have an Internet address utilizing any of the Marks for your Camp-Resort,
you must receive prior authorization and assignment of that Internet address from Licensor. CJS
will use its reasonable best efforts to facilitate the authorization and the assignment process.

CJS holds a license from Licensor to construct and operate, and to grant franchises to others to
construct and operate campgrounds that utilize the likeness and visual representation of the cartoon
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character “YOGI BEAR” and various other cartoons characters associated with “YOGI BEAR”.
Under this perpetual license, which may be terminated in the event CJS does not either maintain
fifty (50) franchise locations or pay the Licensor $50,000 in annual royalties, CJS pays Licensor a
portion of its royalty income, but not less than $50,000 annually, for use of the Marks. Franchisees
are licensed to use the Marks for your business. The following service marks have been registered
on the Principal Register of the United States Patent and Trademark Office:

1. “YOGI BEAR HEAD DEVICE DESIGN”

Service Mark, Int. Classes 35, 41 & 42
Reg. No. 1270196

Reg. Date: March 13, 1984

Renewal Date: March 13, 2012.

2. “YOGI BEAR’S JELLYSTONE PARK CAMP-RESORT & DESIGN”

Service Mark, Int. Classes 35, 39, 41 & 42
Reg. No. 1288110

Reg. Date: July 31, 1984

Renewal Date: August 1, 2014

3. “WHERE YOU CAMP WITH FRIENDS!” (owned by CJS)

Service Mark, Int. Classes 41 & 42
Reg. No. 1847045

Reg. Date: July 26, 1994

Renewal Date: February 11, 2014

4. “CLUB YOGI”

Service Mark, Int. Class 39
Reg. No. 3401636

Reg. Date: March 25, 2008
Renewal Date: April 13, 2018

Other than the service mark “Where You Camp With Friends!”, which has been registered with
several states, the above Marks are not registered in any state. To the knowledge of CJS, its
predecessor, LSI, filed all affidavits required in connection with the “WHERE YOU CAMP
WITH FRIENDS!” mark. To CJS’s knowledge, the Licensor has filed all affidavits required in
connection with the other Marks.

There are no currently effective material determinations of the Trademark Trial and Appeal
Board (the “TTAB”).

Other than the registrations of the registered marks listed above, there are no presently
effective determinations of the United States Patent and Trademark Office, the trademark
administrator of any state or any court, no pending interference opposition or cancellation
proceedings and no pending material litigation involving the Marks which is relevant to their use

174197262v2
32



in any state. There are no agreements currently in effect which significantly limit the rights of CJS
to use or license the use of the Marks in any manner material to you. CJS has no contractual
obligation to protect your rights to use the Marks, or to protect you against claims of infringement
or unfair competition that involve the Marks. In the event that CJS’s licensing rights are terminated
by Licensor, you will also lose the right to use the Marks. There are no infringing uses actually
known to CJS which would materially adversely affect your use of the Marks.

You must immediately notify CJS of any apparent infringement of or challenge to your use
of any Mark or of any claim by any person of any rights in any Mark, and you must not
communicate with any person other than CJS and its counsel involving any infringement,
challenge or claim. CJS will have sole discretion to take any action as it deems appropriate and
will have the right to exclusive control of any litigation or other proceedings arising out of any
infringement challenge or claim or otherwise relating to any Mark. You must execute all
instruments and documents, render assistance and do these acts and things as may, in the opinion
of CJS’s counsel, be necessary or advisable to protect and maintain CJS’s interest in any litigation
or other proceeding or otherwise to protect and maintain CJS’s interest in the Marks. CJS has no
responsibility to participate in your defense or indemnify you for expenses or damages if you are
a party to any litigation or other proceeding involving any Mark.

If it becomes advisable at any time in CJS’s sole judgment for your Camp-Resort to modify
or discontinue use of any Mark or for your Camp-Resort to use one or more additional or substitute
trade or service marks, you must comply with CJS’s directions to modify or otherwise discontinue
the use of such Mark, and/or use one or more additional or substitute trade or service marks, within
a reasonable time after notice by CJS. You must bear the cost of any modification to or
discontinuance of use of the Marks, and, any such modifications or changes will have no effect on
your obligations under the franchise agreement. CJS has no obligation to compensate you in the
event that the Marks are so modified or discontinued. You must operate your Camp-Resort under
the name Yogi Bear’s Jellystone Park Camp-Resort (Geographic Location Inserted Here) without
prefix or suffix or other phrases (including your name) and only that name. Subject to CJS’s right
to discontinue use of or modify the Marks, at all times in the operation, advertisement and
promotion of the Camp-Resort, you shall feature the words “Yogi Bear’s Jellystone Park Camp-
Resort,” together with the distinguishing characteristics of the System in substantially the same
combination, arrangement and manner as CJS requires, so that your Camp-Resort will be readily
recognizable by the public as a Camp-Resort which is a member of the Network.

You will not, without CJS’s written consent, use any of the Marks licensed under the
Franchise Agreement or any similar words as a part of your corporate, partnership or other business
name or title or Internet address. Upon termination of the Franchise Agreement, you must remove
any Mark or similar words from your corporation, partnership, or other business name or title or
Internet address. If you show your own business name (corporate, partnership or individual) in
advertising, you must also show in the advertising the word “franchisee” or other means of
identifying yourself as operating the Camp-Resort as an independent owner and operator under a
franchise from CJS.

ITEM 14. PATENTS, COPYRIGHTS AND PROPRIETARY INFORMATION

No patents are material to the franchise.
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You do not receive the right to use an item covered by a copyright but can use the
proprietary information contained in CJS’s Brand Standards Manual. CJS is the sole owner of the
System and its distinguishing characteristics now or if used or adopted as a part of the System.
CJS has the exclusive right to grant franchises to others to use the System. You must agree that
you will not infringe on, use or imitate the System or any of its distinguishing characteristics except
under written agreement with CJS, that you have no interest in same except as created by the
Franchise Agreement, and that every use by you of any and all color schemes and combinations,
buildings designs and signs, characterizations, theming elements and standards, specifications and
similar items comprising the System (the “Confidential Information”) benefits CJS. CJS will
disclose the Confidential Information to you during training, in the Brand Standards Manual and
in guidance furnished to you during the term of your franchise. You must acknowledge and agree
that the Confidential Information is a valuable asset of CJS. The Confidential Information will be
disclosed to you solely on the condition that you agree that you: (i) will not use the Confidential
Information in any other business or capacity; (ii) will maintain the confidentiality of the
Confidential Information during and after the term of your Franchise Agreement; and (iii) will not
make unauthorized copies of any portion of the Confidential Information disclosed in written form.
If you have obtained CJS’s prior written consent, the restriction on your disclosure and use of the
Confidential Information will not apply to the following: (i) information, processes or techniques
which are or become generally known and used in the camping services industry other than through
disclosure (whether deliberate or inadvertent) by you; and (ii) disclosure of the Confidential
Information in judicial or administrative proceedings to the extent that you have used your best
efforts, and have given CJS the opportunity, to obtain an appropriate protective order or other
assurance satisfactory to CJS of confidential treatment for the information required to be so
disclosed.

Based upon controlled distribution, CJS owns and claims non-statutory copyright of the
Brand Standards Manual, which contains information, including trade secrets, on uniform methods
of operating a Camp-Resort. This copyright has not been registered. CJS does not derive its rights
in the Brand Standards Manual from any outside source, and its rights to use and license this
copyright are not significantly limited by any existing agreement. There is no currently effective
determination of the United States Copyright Office with respect to these rights. CJS is not
required to protect your right to the Brand Standards Manual, or to participate in your defense or
indemnify you for damages or expenses incurred if you are a party to any proceeding involving
the Brand Standards Manual. You are not required to notify CJS of any conflicting claims or rights
to the Brand Standards Manual, and CJS is not obligated to take any affirmative action if so
notified. There is no provision giving either party the right to control any litigation involving use
of the Brand Standards Manual.

ITEM 15. OBLIGATION TO PARTICIPATE IN THE ACTUAL OPERATION OF
THE FRANCHISE BUSINESS

For the entire term of your Franchise Agreement, you must participate in the actual
operation of the franchise business and must use your best efforts to establish, develop and promote
the business of your Camp-Resort. Franchisee will be required to display signage, provided by
CJS to Franchisee at no cost, identifying Franchisee as being independently owned and operated
under a franchise issued by CJS. Your Camp-Resort must be open for business during all times of
the year when camping is normally done in the geographic area where your Camp-Resort is located
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and during all times of the year that your Camp-Resort is listed in the Network directory as being
open for business. You shall promptly notify CJS of any material change in the operation of the
Camp-Resort or in the ownership or management of your franchise.

You understand and agree to ensure that the operation of the Camp-Resort will be subject
to all federal, state and local laws, ordinances and regulations and manufacturer specifications
pertaining to the operation of the businesses in general. You should be aware that there may be
other general laws that apply to your Camp-Resort’s operation, and you should make further
inquiries to find out about these regulations as part of your decision-making process. For example,
laws and regulations related to boarding, lodging and food service establishments may apply, as
well as those that apply to business generally, such as the Americans With Disabilities Act, Federal
Wage and Hour Laws and the Occupational Safety and Health Act.

You, or if you are a corporation, partnership, limited liability company or other entity, at
least one of the persons designated in Appendix A of the Franchise Agreement (a “Designated
Owner”), who has been trained, must: (a) devote his or her full time and effort to the day-to-day
active management and operation of the Camp-Resort; (b) personally exercise his or her best
efforts to market the franchise and maximize customer satisfaction; (c) preserve and exercise
ultimate authority and responsibility with respect to the management and operation of the
franchise; and (d) represent and act on behalf of Franchisee in all dealings with us. Each
Designated Owner must have an ownership interest in the Franchise. If you desire to have a
manager or management company, other than a Designated Owner, devote full time and effort to
the day-to-day active management and operation of the Franchise Business in place of a
Designated Owner, the manager or management company must successfully complete the training
program designated by us and must be approved, in writing, by us. We shall have sole discretion
as to the approval of such manager or management company. CJS does not require you to impose
any restrictions, such as non-competition or confidentiality covenants, on your manager but you
will, notwithstanding the appointment of a manager, remain responsible for all of your obligations
under the Franchise Agreement.

If the Franchisee is a corporation, partnership, limited liability company or other entity,
any person or entity with 30% or more equity must personally guaranty all of the Franchisee’s
obligations to us (see Addendum G to Franchise Agreement, Personal Guaranty).

The Franchise Agreement includes as the “Franchisee” all shareholders, members, general
partners and other principals of Franchisees that are corporations, limited liability companies or
partnerships. Hence, such shareholders, members, general partners and other principals are bound
by each of the terms of the Franchise Agreement, including the royalty payment provisions and
the covenant not to compete during the term of the Franchise Agreement.

ITEM 16. RESTRICTIONS ON WHAT THE FRANCHISEE MAY SELL

You are restricted from selling goods or services that employ any of the Marks that are not
authorized by CJS or the Licensor, as described in Item 8 of this Disclosure Document. Further,
you must use your Camp-Resort site solely for the operation of a Camp-Resort in accordance with
all rules, regulations, specifications standards and operating procedures established by CJS and
must refrain from using the premises and from permitting their use in any other manner or for any
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other purpose or activity, without first obtaining the written consent of CJS. You are not limited
in the customers to whom goods and services may be sold.

CJS has the right to add additional authorized goods or services that the franchisee is
required to offer its customers. There are no limits on CJS’s right to do so but CJS’s management
does not currently intend to exercise its rights in a manner that would require a franchisee to make
an investment of more than $10,000 per change made by CJS.

Minimum and Maximum Prices

To maintain uniformity and pricing viability of our franchise system, we reserve the right
to require that your franchise advertise and charge minimum and maximum prices we may
determine in our sole discretion, including prices for resort fees, amenity fees or other such similar
fees that franchisee may charge to its customers.

ITEM 17. RENEWAL, TERMINATION, TRANSFER AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION

THE FRANCHISE RELATIONSHIP

This table lists important provisions of the franchise and related agreements. You
should read these provisions in the agreements attached to this disclosure document.

Provision Section in Franchise Summary
Adgreement

a. Length of the Article 1l1[a] Term is 7 years
franchise term

b. Renewal or Article 1l1[a-€] If you are in good standing you can renew
extension of the for one (1) additional term of five (5) years
term

C. Requirements Article 1l1[e] Not in default; no multiple defaults within
for franchisee to last twelve (12) months; provide notice;
renew or extend maintain possession of Franchise Location;

has satisfied payment and reporting
requirements throughout the initial term;
satisfy current training standards; sign a
general release; sign new Franchise
Agreement that may have materially
different terms and conditions than your
original Franchise Agreement; and comply
with other standards including remodeling
of Camp-Resort.

d. Termination by | Article XI[a] Upon thirty (30) days’ notice, if CJS

franchisee substantially fails to comply with material
terms or conditions of the agreement and
does not cure.
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Provision Section in Franchise Summary
Agreement

e. Termination by | None
CJS without
cause

f. Termination by | Article XI[b] CJS can terminate only if franchisee
CJS with cause abandons franchise, defaults, fails

substantially to comply with agreement,
violates applicable laws or operational
standards, fails an assessment, makes
unauthorized use of Confidential
Information, is bankrupt or makes non-
approved transfer or assignment. The
provision in the franchise agreement which
provides for termination upon bankruptcy
of the franchisee may not be enforceable
under federal bankruptcy law (11 U.S.C.
Section 101 et seq.).

g. “Cause” defined | Article XI[b] You have twenty-four (24) hours to cure
— curable certain violations of health, safety and
defaults sanitation laws, five (5) days to cure

payment defaults and thirty (30) days to
cure most other defaults

h. “Cause” defined | Article XI[b] You have no cure for abandonment,

— non-curable bankruptcy, unauthorized use of
defaults Confidential Information or non-approved
transfer or assignment

I. Franchisee’s Article Xl[c-d], Obligations include liquidated damages,
obligations on Article Il and Article | complete de-identification, return of all
termination/non | 1V[o0] statues & costumes provided to the
-renewal Franchisee by CJS to CJS headquarters or

as directed by CJS, and payment of other
amounts due

J. Assignment of | Article IX[e] No restriction on CJS’s right to assign
contract by CJS

k. “Transfer” by Article 1X[a] Includes transfer of contract or assets or
franchisee — ownership change
definition

l. CJS’s approval | Article IX[b-c] CJS has the right to approve all transfers but
of transfer by will not unreasonably withhold approval
franchisee subject to specified conditions

m. Conditions for | Article IX[b-c] New franchisee qualifies, if three (3) years
CJS’s approval or less remain in the term of the franchise
of transfer being transferred, the new franchisee agrees
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Provision Section in Franchise Summary
Agreement
to extend the term of the franchise to five
(5) years, transfer fee paid, you must be
current in your accounts with CJS, training
arranged, release signed by you and current
agreement signed by new franchisee.

n. CJS’s right of Article 1X[d] CJS can match any offer for the franchise
first refusal to business and real estate on which your
acquire Camp-Resort is located; if real estate is
franchisee’s owned by a non-franchisee the third party
business must sign a consent to our ROFR.

0. CJS’soptionto | Art. XI. (d)None Franchisor is not obligated by the
purchase Agreement to do so, but we may purchase, s
franchisee’s your trademarked retail inventory at fair
business or market value.
business assets

p. Death or Article 1X][b] Franchise must be assigned by estate to
disability of approved buyer, but no transfer fee is
franchisee payable if transferee is an immediate family

member.

g. Non- Article IV[m] & No involvement in competing business
competition Article IV][q] within fifty (50) miles of Camp-Resort and
covenants exclusive referral obligation.
during the term
of the franchise

r. Non- None
competition
covenants after
the franchise is
terminated or
expires

S. Modification of | Article IV[d] and No modifications generally but Operating
the agreement Article XIII[h] Manual subject to change.

t. Integration/ Acrticle XII[i] Only the terms of the franchise agreement
merger clause are binding (subject to applicable laws).

Any other promises may not be enforceable.
Nothing in the franchise agreement or in
any related agreement is intended to
disclaim the franchisor’s representations
made in this Disclosure Document.

u. Dispute None
resolution by
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Provision Section in Franchise Summary
Agreement
arbitration or
mediation
V. Choice of forum | Article XII Legal action must be brought either in the
Oakland County Michigan Circuit Court or
Federal District Court in Detroit as
applicable*
W. Choice of law Acrticle XI11(Kk) Michigan law governs except for federal
trademark law, which governs where
applicable. *

*The Provisions above may be altered by a state specific addendum. If a state specific addendum
is applicable to your state, that addendum is attached as Addendum E to the Franchise Agreement.

ITEM 18. PUBLIC FIGURES

CJS pays to the Licensor a percentage (ranging from 5% to 15%) of franchise fees, royalty
fees and related fees collected for the right to use the name, character, symbol, design and likeness
and visual representation of YOGI BEAR and related trademarks, service marks and trade names
for the operation, franchising and advertising of the Yogi Bear’s Jellystone Park Camp-Resort
franchise.

CJS also pays to the Licensor a percentage (ranging from 2.5% to 5%) of the difference
between the sales price and invoice cost of supplies and equipment sold by CJS to its franchisees.
Additionally, any revenue derived from businesses operated by CJS will be assessed a royalty of
1.2%.

Subject to rules and regulations established by CJS and Licensor and subject to CJS’s
approval as to the form of each use and the time or times of each such use, you may, without
charge, use the name and likeness of YOGI BEAR in your advertising and promotional efforts.
The rules and regulations which limit the use of the name and likeness of YOGI BEAR are
designed generally to control the use so that the goodwill of the YOGI BEAR character will be
maintained and so that the character will not be used in inappropriate way or ways which would
otherwise reflect adversely on CJS or the Licensor. In addition, your use of the YOGI BEAR
character and voice on radio and television are strictly controlled and approval of each use must
be obtained from CJS. The YOGI BEAR character identified costumes may only be utilized on
the premises of your business except that the costumes may be used off such premises for the
promotion of your franchised business, but in these situations your business must be identified by
appropriate sign, announcement or written notification.

ITEM 19. FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REPRESENTATIONS

The FTC’s Franchise Rule permits a franchisor to provide information about the actual or
potential financial performance of its franchised and/or franchisor-owned outlets, if there is a

174197262v2
39



reasonable basis for the information, and if the information is included in the disclosure
document. Financial performance information that differs from that included this Item 19 may
be given only if: (1) a franchisor provides the actual records of an existing outlet you are
considering buying; or (2) a franchisor supplements the information provided in this Item 19, for
example, by providing information about possible performance at a particular location or under
particular circumstances.

2024 Results by Camper Nights

A camper night is 1 camping site occupied by 1 “unit” for 1 night. A recreational vehicle, a tent,
a cabin structure, or a unique accommaodation on a camping site would be one “unit.” This data is
gathered through “camper night reporting” provided to CJS.

Factors other than camper night volume affect campground revenue, expense, and operating
profit. Examples of these factors are:

1. Length of season. Is the campground open all year or only during certain months of a
season?

2. Geographic location. Is the campground near a major city, attraction, or interstate? Is the
campground located in a rural area?

3. Staff experience and hospitality. Is the staff experienced with managing a business or
operating as part of a franchise system? Is the staff experienced with managing a
hospitality business or an outdoor recreation business? What is the quality of service and
hospitality offered to campers?

4. Cleanliness and condition of the campground.

As of December 31, 2024, there were 78 CJS-franchised campgrounds. The financial
information set out below shows results for 55 of them during the year 2024. We believe that the
55 campgrounds included are representative of our System as a whole because they were in
operation during the full 2024 reporting period and submitted complete data. CJS did not use
information from the remaining 23 campgrounds, because such franchisees either did not report
such information to CJS prior to the cut-off date for the Franchise Disclosure Document
calculations or the reported information was not complete. Also, within the excluded group of
campgrounds are two (2) lot owner parks, and four (4) Canadian campgrounds. Revenue,
expense, and profit information is stated on a per camper night basis.

Please note that the figures in the table reflect both averages and the median results for
each category. Some campgrounds have earned these amounts. Your individual results
may differ. There is no assurance that you will sell or earn as much.

Characteristics of the campgrounds included in the following information may differ
substantially from characteristics of your campground and financial performance may be
affected materially by your prior experience; competition in your area; length of time that the
included campgrounds have operated, as compared to your campground; the level of service you
provide at your campground, the cleanliness and condition of your campground, and the specific
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amenities, services and goods offered at your campground, as compared to the included
campgrounds. Written substantiation for the following information is available to you upon
reasonable request.

Yooi Bear's lellystone Park™ Camp-Resorts
2024 - Average & Median Dollars Per Camper Night
s Small Small Medium Medium Large Large
Average ! | Median ? Average ' Median 2 Average ' | Median ?

Park Size Range 017919 0-17,999 | 13,000-27,999 | 18,000-27,999 =18,000 =30
Camper Nights AverageMedian 10,179 108,615 71,946 71,435 46,768 40,629
Sample Size 13 13 13 13 19 19
Total Gross Revenue $156.92 $140.65 $178.45 $146.29 $151.15 $146.66
Ancillary Revenue 5344 41935 533.13 541,95 530,53 51176
Store Revenue 52153 S17.37 514.79 S14.74 %13.86 5047
COGS %13.06 412,90 %13.83 %12.98 %9.89 %869
Gross Profit $143.85 $127.76 $164.62 $133.31 $141.25 $137.97

i 5 Small Small Medium Medium Large Large
Operating Expense Average Median Average Median Average Median
Salaries & Benefits $44.33 $39.37 $40.24 $42.78 $3L63 s2018
UWtilities %1276 1317 S11L.0 S10./4 %8.60 %652
Operating Supplies $6.06 $4.84 $6.02 544 $3.53 $3.08
Royalties 63 %6.20 539 %4.56 %3.36 £3.38
Property Taxes 5154 %163 464 3.2 L1 a5 204
Repairs & Maintenance sS4 Loy i ] %681 580 5,95 593
Advertising .36 385 54.31 54.56 5218 5213
Auto Expense 073 %034 5047 s0.47 %049 5041
Insurance 49.38 e 8 .75 447 3.4 52.89
Misc” $15.96 $9.66 $12.65 $9.32 $7.00 $6.09
Total Operating Expenses $113.30 $91.68 $98.50 $91.36 $68.93 $62.75
[Operating Profit | 33055 | $36.08 | 6612 [  $41.95 | $72.32 | s715.22 |
[Profit Percent | 195% | 256% | 37.0% | 287% | 479% | 51.3% |

Note 1 — The calculations represent the average result for each category within each of the three
(3) camper night groupings. We calculated averages by dividing the revenue, cost and expense
totals by the total number of reported campgrounds. We calculated average camper nights by
dividing the total camper nights by the number of reporting campgrounds.

Note 2 — The median numbers represent the midpoint result for each category within each of the
three (3) camper night groupings. Because the median number would not have been from the
same campground in each category, the median gross profit, operating expenses, and operating
profit will not be a mathematical computation of the other numbers, but rather, simply the
median gross profit, operating expense, and operating profit of the results in the column. With
respect to the median results listed on the above charts, small park size campground results
represent nine (9) campgrounds (50%), medium size campground results represent nine (9)
campgrounds (50%), and large size campground results represent 10 (ten) campgrounds (53%).
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Note 3 — Salaries and benefits include wages, payroll taxes, and benefits.

Note 4 — The miscellaneous category covers returns and allowances, legal, sales tax, travel,
training, credit card and banking fees, dues, postage, and items deemed miscellaneous on P&L’s

Note 5 — Amortization, depreciation, rent/lease machinery, rent/lease business property, loan fee
expense, mortgage interest, interest expense, and management fee are not included in the
operating expense and are excluded from calculations.

Results for Conversion Campgrounds

The table below provides information on campgrounds converted to the CJS system since
January 2014, provided they reported royalties to CJS for the entire period shown in the table
and were still operating as a franchise campground as of December 2023. This table shows the
reported gross revenue history, beginning with their first year’s revenues after joining the
franchise system. Many factors, both internal and external, influence business from year to year
and the comparison results may or may not relate directly to the CJS brand benefits.

During this period (January 1, 2013 - December 31, 2024), six (6) converted franchised
campgrounds left the CJS system and therefore were not included in this table.

Some campgrounds have earned these amounts. Your individual results may differ. There
is no assurance that you’ll earn as much.

This revenue history does not reflect the operating expenses, royalties or other costs or expenses
that must be deducted from revenues to obtain net income or operating profit. You should
conduct an independent investigation of the costs and expenses you will incur in operating your
campground. Franchisees or former franchisees listed in this Disclosure Document may be one
source of this information.
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Gross Revenue History For Conversion Campgrounds

Franchise First

Agreement | Reporting

StartDate' | Period” | 2014 |% | 2015 | % | 2016 | % | 2017 % 2018 %
1 | 9f1/2013 | 1/1/2014 | 744,665 |0% | 965,367 |30% | 1,085,546 | 12%| 1,283,977 | 18% | 1,428,691 | 11%
2 1/1/2014 | 633,333 |0%| 719,556 | 14%| 988386 |37% 1,054,300 | 7% | 1,108,993 | 5%
3 | 2/7/2014 |5/16/2014 | 418,638 |0%| 650,204 | 57%| 882,506 |34%| 1,027,001 | 16% | 988,125 | -4%
4 | 11112014 | 3/1/2016 o |0% o© 0% | 265001 | 0% | 354326 | 34% | 538822 | 52%
5 | 12/14/2015 | a/1/2016 0o |0% o 0% | 437586 | 0% | 519,030 | 19% | 523,072 | 1%
6 | 1/27/2016 |4f16f2016| © 0% © 0% | 1,459,189 | 0% | 3,018,230 | 107% | 3,956,062 | 31%
7 | 1/27/2016 | 5/1/2016 o |0% o© 0% | 194986 | 0% | 218744 | 12% | 270596 | 24%
8 | 722016 | 8/1/2016 o |0% o© 0% | 664,478 | 0% | 2,701,439 |307% | 5,159,881 | 91%
9 | 1/1/201a | 1/1/2017 0o |0% o 0% 0 0% | 93837 | 0% | 124049 | 32%
10 | 8/23/2017 |1/16/2018| 0 |0%| o© 0% 0 0% 0 0% | 276,767 | 0%
11 | 6f9/2017 | 1/1/2019 o |0% o© 0% 0 0% 0 0% 0 0%
12 |12/12/2018 | 4/16/2019| 0 (0%| o© 0% 0 0% 0 0% 0 0%
13 | 12/17/2019 | 1/1/2020 o |0% o 0% 0 0% 0 0% 0 0%
14 | 12/15/2019 | 1/1/2020 0o |0% o 0% 0 0% 0 0% 0 0%
15 | 11/11/2019 | 4/1/2020 0o |0% © 0% 0 0% 0 0% 0 0%
16 | 1/15/2021 | 3/1/2021 o |0% o© 0% 0 0% 0 0% 0 0%
17 | 1/4/2021 | 4/1/2021 o |0% o© 0% 0 0% 0 0% 0 0%
18 | 1/8/2022 | 1/1/2022 0o |0% o 0% 0 0% 0 0% 0 0%
19 | 1/4/2022 | 1/1/2022 0o |0% © 0% 0 0% 0 0% 0 0%
20 | 12/23/2021 | 1/1/2022 o |0% o© 0% 0 0% 0 0% 0 0%
21 | 4/13/2022 | 412022 o |0% o© 0% 0 0% 0 0% 0 0%
22 | 5/12/2021 | 4/1/2022 0o |0% © 0% 0 0% 0 0% 0 0%
23 | 4/13/2022 | 4f1/2022 o |0% o© 0% 0 0% 0 0% 0 0%
24 | 5/10/2022 | 5/1/2022 o |0% o© 0% 0 0% 0 0% 0 0%
25 | 5/10/2022 | 5/1/2022 0o |0% o 0% 0 0% 0 0% 0 0%
26 | 7/25/2022 | 1/1/2024 0o |0% © 0% 0 0% 0 0% 0 0%
27 | 7/27/2022 | 112024 o |0% o© 0% 0 0% 0 0% 0 0%
28 | 12/12/2022 | 5/1/2024 o |0% o© 0% 0 0% 0 0% 0 0%
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Gross Revenue History For Conversion Campgrounds

Franchise Farst

Agreament | Reporting

Start Date' | Period’ 2019 % 2020 % 2021 % 2022 % % 2024 %
1 | 9s1p013 | 1712014 1550542 | 9% [1,750458 | 13% | 2202035 | 31% | 2,325,132 | 1% | 2153925 | 7% | 2006643 | 3%
2 1/1/2014 | 1,247,043 | 12% | 1838373 | 47% | 1,992376° | 6% | 1,651,433 |-15%| 1,776,374 | 8% | 2,555,153 | 44%
3 | 2/7201a |5/16/2014 [ 1,426,126 | 21% | 1627025 | 14% | 1,756,960 | 8% | 1665187 | 5% | 1443910 [-13%| 1,231,900 |-15%
4 | 11/11/2014 | 3/1/2016 0%  |-100%| 820377 | 0% | 1,063,764 | 30% | 878212 |-17%| 804,372 | 8% | 847,035 | 5%
5 | 1271472015 | 4/21/2016 | 557,635 | 7% |1,020442 | 85% | 1,133,434 | 10% | 1,504234 | 33% | 1646704 | 9% | 1,027,800 |-18%
6 | 1/27/2016 | 4/16/2016 | 5,372,759 | 36% |6,423300 | 20% | 8211202 | 28% | 8451633 | 3% | 7662330 | 9% | 6795823 |-11%
7 | 12702016 | 5/1/2016 | 302936 | 12% | 230188 | 21% | 513503 [115%| 55485 | 8% | 621976 | 12% | 636710 | 2%
8 | 7016 | 8/1/2016 6,127,340 | 19% |6383,135| 4% | 11205500 | 77% | 10,357,888 | 8% | 9962004 | 4% | 10935800 | 10%
9 | 112014 | 1/1/2017 | 461662 | 272% | 743003 | 61% | 1,182,711 | 50% | 1674312 | 2% | 1940317 | 16% | 2003583 | 3%
10 | 8230017 | 1/16/2018 | 105207 | 6% | 638,400 | 58% |1,077217° | 69% | 401,859 |-54%| 780016 |60% | 524991 | 5%
11 | 6/9/2017 | 1/1/2019 1578591 | 0% |4,528964 | 187% | 7,584,530 | 67% | 8,812,703 | 16% | 9835546 | 12% | 9955795 | 1%
12 | 12/12/2018 | 4f16/2019 | 355436 | 0% | 666421 | 87% | 763,045 | 11% | 571,193 |-25%| 206319 |-64%| 530209 |157%
13 | 12/17/2019 | 1/1/2020 0 0% |2,181443| 0% | 4225814 | 99% | 6,440,179 | 52% | 857603 | 33% | 7,206,680 |-16%
14 | 12/15/2019 | 1/1/2020 0 0% |2302320| 0% | 3082077 | 34% | 3600830 | 20% | 4326126 | 17% | 4404712 | a%
15 | 11/11/2019 | 47172020 0 0% |2,406404| 0% | 2,870,485 | 19% | 1,750910°% | -30% | 1759374 | 0% | 2758685 | 57%
16 | 17152021 | 32011 0 0% 0 0% | 1,339,048 | 0% | 1,952,980 | 96% | 2,710976 | 39% | 2,182,691 |-19%
17 | 1/apo1 | anfon 0 0% 0 0% | 1,357,112 | 0% | 1,265,779 | -7% | 3,188,001.10 | 152% | 6,210,579.38 | 95%
18 | 1/g8Phon | 1n200 0 0% 0 0% 0 0% | 561,399 | 0% | 636413 | 13% | 656295 | 3%
19 | 1/af2022 | 1712022 0 0% 0 0% 0 0% | 1,144531 | 0% | 1,362,170 | 19% | 1,407,421 | 3%
20 | 12/23/2001 | 112022 0 0% 0 0% 0 0% | 6,487,060 | 0% | 6751587 | 4% | 7,711,686 | 11%
21 | 4/13/2022 | af1 /2022 0 0% 0 0% 0 0% | 2,131,836 | 0% | 2,737,785 | 28% | 2805799 | 2%
22 | 5/12/2021 | a/1f2022 0 0% 0 0% 0 0% | 914367 | 0% | 006323 | -1% | 677915 |-25%
23 | a/1302022 | afLf2022 0 0% 0 0% 0 0% | 5251170 | 0% | 3800911 |-26%| 3912981 | 1%
24 | 5/10£2022 | 5/1/2022 0 0% 0 0% 0 0% | 2510131 | 0% | 3502645 | 43% | 2057250 | 13%
25 | /102022 | 5/1/2022 0 0% 0 0% 0 0% | 1,332,687 | 0% | 1456480 | 9% | 1873552 | 29%
26 | 72502022 | 1A f2024 0 0% 0 0% 0 0% 0 0% | 989369 | 0% | 967349 | 2%
27 | #2022 | 172000 0 0% 0 0% 0 0% 0 0% | 696483 | 0% | 753082 | 8%
28 | 12/12/2022 | 5/1/2024 0 0% 0 0% 0 0% 0 0% 0 0% | 2356281 | 0%

! Franchise Agreement Start Date = Effective date of the Franchise Agreement

2 First Reporting Date = 1st Royalty period using the start date of that period

3 These parks transferred to new ownership during or prior to the operating year.

4 Closed due to flooding in 2019

Other than the preceding financial performance representation, CJS does not make any financial

performance representations. We also do not authorize our employees or representatives to make
any such representations either orally or in writing. If you are purchasing an existing outlet,

however, we may provide you with the actual records of that outlet. If you receive any other
financial performance information or projections of your future income, you should report it to
the franchisor’s management by contacting Robert E. Schutter, Jr., 27777 Franklin Road, Suite
300, Southfield, M1 48034, at (248) 233-0103.
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ITEM 20. OUTLETS AND FRANCHISEE INFORMATION

Note: All information in this Item 20 prior to 2023 is based on historical information of
our predecessor, LSI.

Table No. 1

Systemwide Outlet Summary
For Years 2022 to 2024

Column 1 Column 2 Column 3 Column 4 Column 5
Outlet Type Year Outlets at the Outlets at the Net Change
Start of the Year  End of the Year
Franchised 2022 74 78
2023 78 78
2024 78 78
Company-Owned 2022 0 0
2023 0 0
2024 0 0
Total Outlets 2022 74 78
2023 78 78
2024 78 78

OO P~ OOOO O AN

Table No. 2

Transfers of Outlets from Franchises to New Owners (other than the Franchisor)
For years 2022 to 2024

Column 1 Column 2 Column 3
State Year Number of Transfers

Indiana 2022 1

2023

2024

Maine 2022

2023

2024

Michigan 2022

2023

2024

New York 2022

2023

2024

Pennsylvania 2022

2023

[elell il llellellelle}] el Jlelle)le]

2024
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Column 1 Column 2 Column 3
State Year Number of Transfers
Indiana 2022 1
2023 0
2024 0
Maine 2022 0
2023 1
2024 0
Michigan 2022 1
2023 0
2024 0
New York 2022 0
2023 0
2024 1
New Brunswick, CAN 2022 0
2023 0
2024 1
Totals 2022 5
2023 2
2024 3
Table No. 3
Status of Franchised Outlets
For Years 2022 to 2024
Col. 1 Col.2 | Col.3 | Col. 4 Col. 5 Col. 6 Col. 7 Col. 8
State Year | Outlets | Outlets | Terminations Non- Ceased | Outlets
at Start | Opened Renewals | Operations | at End
of — Other of the
Year Reasons Year
Alabama 2022 1 0 0 0 0 1
2023 1 0 0 0 0 1
2024 1 0 0 0 0 1
Alaska 2022 0 0 0 0 0 0
2023 0 0 0 0 0 0
2024 0 0 0 0 0 0
Arizona 2022 0 0 0 0 0 0
2023 0 0 0 0 0 0
2024 0 0 0 0 0 0
Arkansas 2022 0 0 0 0 0 0
2023 0 0 0 0 0 0
2024 0 0 0 0 0 0
California 2022 1 0 0 0 0 1
2023 1 0 0 0 0 1
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Col. 1
State

Col. 2
Year

Col. 3
Outlets
at Start
of
Year

Col. 4
Outlets
Opened

Terminations

Col. 5

Col. 6
Non-
Renewals

Col. 7
Ceased
Operations
— Other
Reasons

Col. 8
Outlets
at End
of the
Year

2024

1

0

1

Colorado

2022

2023

2024

Connecticut

2022

2023

2024

Delaware

2022

2023

2024

Florida

2022

2023

2024

Georgia

2022

2023

2024

Hawaii

2022

2023

2024

Idaho

2022

2023

2024

Ilinois

2022

2023

2024

Indiana

2022

2023

2024

lowa

2022

2023

2024

Kansas

2022

2023

2024

Kentucky

2022

2023

2024

Louisiana

2022

2023

2024

Ol IFPIFPFRPIFRPOOIOCIFRFIFLPIOOGIOINIWWO|IO|IOIOC0O|I0OFRP FPIFPIOCIOCICOIFRIFPIFPIOCIOCIOINININ
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Col. 1
State

Col. 2
Year

Col. 3
Outlets
at Start
of
Year

Col. 4
Outlets
Opened

Col. 5
Terminations

Col. 6
Non-
Renewals

Col. 7
Ceased
Operations
— Other
Reasons

Col. 8
Outlets
at End
of the
Year

Maine

2022

1

0

2

2023

2024

Maryland

2022

2023

2024

Massachusetts

2022

2023

2024

Michigan

2022

2023

2023

Minnesota

2022

2023

2024

Mississippi

2022

2023

2024

Missouri

2022

2023

2024

Montana

2022

2023

2024

Nebraska

2022

2023

2024

Nevada

20221

2023

2024

New
Hampshire

2022

2023

2024

New Jersey

2022

2023

2024

New Mexico

2022

2023

2024

OO IO|IFRPIFIOINININO|IOIOCOI0O|I0OICIC|IO|IFRPIWIWWINININO|O|IOC(OTO1|OT|FP|FP|IFPIFPIFPIFPINIDN
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Col. 1
State

Col. 2
Year

Col. 3
Outlets
at Start
of
Year

Col. 4
Outlets
Opened

Terminations

Col. 5

Col. 6
Non-
Renewals

Col. 7
Ceased
Operations
— Other
Reasons

Col. 8
Outlets
at End
of the
Year

New York

2022

(62}

0

7

2023

2024

North Carolina

2022

2023

2024

North Dakota

2022

2023

2024

Ohio

2022

2023

2024

Oklahoma

2022

2023

2024

Oregon

2022

2023

2024

Pennsylvania

2022

2023

2024

Rhode Island

2022

2023

2024

South Carolina

2022

2023

2024

South Dakota

2022

2023

2024

Tennessee

2022

2023

2024

Texas

2022

2023

2024

Utah

2022

2023

2024

Vermont

174197262v2

2022

OO0 IONINO|IFRPIFPIFPIFPIFPPFPOOOIOIOCOC|OIOITIO1O|O(OINMNINNOIOCOTO|IOC(O |~ ININ

el JdlellellellellJdiellellellellellelleo]llellelleollellello]llelleollelle]llollolleolleollelle]] Jdlellellelle] (ellelle}le}] V]

OO0 |0|0O|0O 000|000 |0O|0|0|O|O|0O|0|0|O|O|O|0O|0|0O|0O|0O|0O|0O|0O|0O|O|0O|0O|O|O|O|O|O

ellelilellelleollelle}ll Jdilellellellelilellelielleolleollello}lleollelleolleolleolileolleo]llolileolleolleolilolleo}llelilo}llol el le}llo} o] l)

OO0 |0O|0O|0O|0O0|0|0O|OO|0O0|0|O|O0O|0O|0|0|0O|0O(0O|0|0|0O|O|O|0O|0O|0O|O|O|O|0O|O|O|O

O|IFRPIOCIOIN|IN(NO|IR|(FP|IFPIFPIFPIO|IOCO|O|OOC|0T1jlUOTI01IO|O(O|NINNOOOYO OO0 |~ ININ

49




Col. 1
State

Col. 2
Year

Col. 3
Outlets
at Start
of
Year

Col. 4
Outlets
Opened

Col. 5
Terminations

Col. 6
Non-
Renewals

Col. 7
Ceased
Operations
— Other
Reasons

Col. 8
Outlets
at End
of the
Year

2023

0

0

0

2024

Virginia

2022

2023

2024

Washington

2022

2023

2024

West Virginia

2022

2023

2024

Wisconsin

2022

2023

2024

Wyoming

2022

2023

2024

New
Brunswick

2022

RPOIOO|01|U1|[O) | OO0 |O|OOC|WIwWwIN|O

OO0 0|0|0O|O|0O|0O|0|0|O|0O|0|O0|k,|O|O

OO0 0|0|0O|O|O|0O|0|0O|O|0O|0O|0O|O|O|O
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2023

2024

Newfoundland

2022

2023

2024

Nova Scotia

2022

2023

2024

Ontario

2022

2023

2024

Prince Edward
Island

2022

2023

2024

Quebec

2022

2023

2024

Totals

2022

2023

2024
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Table No. 4

Status of Company-Owned Outlets

For Years 2022 to 2024
Col. 1 Col. 2 Col. 3 Col. 4 Col. 5 Col. 6 Col. 7 Col. 8
State Year Outlets | Outlets Outlets Outlets Outlets Outlets
at Start | Opened | Reacquired | Closed Sold to at End
of the From Franchisee | of the
Year Franchise Year
Totals 2022 0 0 0 0 0 0
2023 0 0 0 0 0 0
2024 0 0 0 0 0 0
Table No. 5
Projected Openings As Of December 31, 2024
Column 1 Column 2 Column 3 Column 4
State Franchise Projected New Projected New
Agreements Signed | Franchised Outlet In Company-Owned
But Outlet Not The Next Fiscal Year Outlet In the Next
Opened Fiscal Year
Indiana 0 1 0
lowa 0 1 0
Missouri 0 1 0
South Dakota 0 1 0
Texas 1 1 0
Totals 1 5 0

The names of all current franchisees and their address and telephone number of each of
their Camp-Resorts as of December 31, 2024 are attached as Exhibit B.

There were two (2) franchisees who had an outlet terminated, cancelled, transferred, not renewed,
or otherwise voluntarily or involuntarily ceased to do business under the Franchise during
the most recently completed fiscal year. The locations and addresses of these locations were:
Pigeon Forge, TN, 3404 Whaley Dr., Pigeon Forge, TN 37863, Phone: (865) 453-8117,; Pouch
Cove, NL, 515 Pouch Cove Line, Pouch Cove, NL AOA 3L0, Phone: (709) 335-7275

If you buy this franchise, your contact information may be disclosed to other buyers when
you leave the franchise system.

During the ten (10) week period prior to the date of this Franchise Disclosure Document,
no Franchisee has failed to communicate with CJS.
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During the last three fiscal years, we have not signed any confidentiality clauses with
current or former franchisees which would restrict them from speaking openly with you about
their experience with us.

CJS and its Franchisees have established and endorsed a franchisee advisory council
known as the Yogi Advisory Council (*YAC” or “Franchise Advisory Council”). You may reach
the YAC at Yogi Advisory Council, 27777 Franklin Road, Ste. 300, Southfield, M1 48034, Tele.
No. (800)-626-3720, c/o Camp Jellystone, LLC. The YAC’s affairs are conducted by a group of
Franchisees elected by all franchise owners. The YAC meets periodically with the management
of CJS to discuss topics affecting CJS and the Franchisees. Its purpose is to promote candid and
open communications between all of the Franchisees and CJS. The YAC serves in an advisory
capacity only and does not have authority to modify the policies of CJS. CJS makes no
representation or warranty that the plans or wishes of the YAC will be adopted by CJS. CJS does,
however, consider it important and beneficial to have the input of the YAC as CJS formulates
plans, programs, and policies affecting Franchisees and CJS.

ITEM 21. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Attached hereto as Exhibit C are the interim unaudited financial statements of CJS for the
period of January 1, 2025, to April 30, 2025, audited financial statements of CJS ending December
31, 2024, December 31, 2023, and December 31, 2022.

ITEM 22. CONTRACTS

All franchise and other contracts and amendments proposed for use in this state are
attached here as Exhibit D. These contracts and Addendums are as follows:

DOCUMENTS EXHIBIT NO.

Yogi Bear’s Jellystone Park

Camp-Resort Franchise AQreeMENT.........ccveiueiieiieie et e e e ste e e sae e e e e Exhibit D

Addendum A - Legal Description of Franchise Location: Designated Territory Agreement.
Addendum B - Facilities, Standards, Specifications.

Addendum C - Terms and Conditions of Right of First Refusal.

Addendum D - Consent to Participate in Network-Wide Promotions

Addendum E - Data Privacy

Addendum F — State law Addenda

Addendum G — Acknowledgement by Franchisee

Addendum H — Personal Guaranty

ITEM 23. RECEIPTS

The last two (2) pages of this Disclosure Document contains two detachable documents
acknowledging receipt of the Disclosure Document. You must execute both Receipts and return
one (1) copy to CJS.
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EXHIBIT A
LIST OF STATE AGENCIES/AGENTS
FOR SERVICE OF PROCESS

CALIFORNIA HAWAII

Director of Department of Commerce and
Department of Financial Protection Consumer Affairs Business RegistrationDivision
/And Innovation 1010 Richards Street
320 West 4th Street, Suite 750 Honolulu, Hawaii 96813

Los Angeles, CA 90013
(213) 576-7500 Toll Free (866) 275-2677

Department of Financial Protection and
Innovation

320 West 4th Street, Suite 750

Los Angeles, CA 90013

(213) 576-7500 Toll Free (866) 275-2677

2101 Arena Blvd
Sacramento, CA 95834
(916) 445-7205

1350 Front Street
San Diego, CA 92101
(619) 525-4233

One Sansome Street, Suite 600
San Francisco, CA 94105
(415) 972-8559

ILLINOIS INDIANA

Attorney General Indiana Securities Commissioner
State of Illinois 302 W. Washington Street

500 South Second Street Indianapolis, Indiana 46204
Springfield, 1llinois 62706 Indiana Secretary of State

201 State House

200 W. Washington Street
Indianapolis, Indiana 46204
(Agent for Service of Process)
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MARYLAND

Office of the Attorney General
Securities Division

200 St. Paul Place

Baltimore, Maryland 21202-2020
Maryland Securities Commissioner
division of Securities

200 St. Paul Place, 20th Floor
Baltimore, Maryland 21202-2020
(Agent for Service of Process)

MICHIGAN
Franchise Administrator
Consumer Protection Division

IAntitrust and Franchise Unit

Michigan Dept. of Attorney General
670 Law Building

Lansing, Michigan 48913

(517) 373-7117

Michigan Department of Commerce
Corporations and Securities Bureau
Corporate Division

6546 Mercantile Way

Lansing, Michigan 48911

(Agent for Service Process)

MINNESOTA

Agency:

Minnesota Department of Commerce
Securities Unit

85 Seventh Place E, Suite 280St
Paul, MN 55101

Agent for Service of Process:
Commissioner of Commerce

85 Seventh Place E, Suite 280St
Paul, MN 55101

NEW YORK

New York State Department of Law
Investor Protection Bureau

28 Liberty Street, 21% Floor

New York, New York 10005

Secretary of State

of the State of New York

99 Washington Avenue
Albany, New York 12231
(Agent for Service of Process)

NORTH CAROLINA
Secretary of StateSuite

302

300 North Salisbury St.
Raleigh, North Carolina 27603

NORTH DAKOTA

Agency:

North Dakota Securities Department
600 East Boulevard Avenue

State Capitol, Fifth Floor, Dept 414
Bismarck, North Dakota 58505-0510
(701) 328-4712

Agent for Service of Process:
Securities Commissioner

North Dakota Securities Department
600 East Boulevard Avenue

State Capitol, Fifth Floor, Dept 414
Bismarck, North Dakota 58505-0510

OREGON

Oregon Corporation Division
Commerce Building

Salem, Oregon 97310

RHODE ISLAND

Rhode Island Department of Business
Regulations

Securities Section

233 Richmond Street, Suite 232

Providence, Rhode Island 02903
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SOUTH CAROLINA

Secretary of State

P.O. Box 11350

Columbia, South Carolina 29211

SOUTH DAKOTA

Department of Labor and Regulation
Securities Regulation

124 S. Euclid, Suite 104

Pierre, South Dakota 57501

VIRGINIA

Clerk of the State Corporation Commission1300
East Main Street, 9" Floor

Richmond, Virginia 23219

Clerk of the State Corporation Commission
1300 East Main Street

Richmond, Virginia 23219 (Agent

for Process of Service)

WASHINGTON

Director of the Department of Financial Institutions
150 Israel Road SW

Tumwater, Washington 98501

(360) 902-8760

WISCONSIN

Commissioner of Securities Franchise
Investment Department

101 East Wilson Street, 4th Floor
Madison. Wisconsin 53702
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Exhibit B
Exhibit B
NAMES, ADDRESSES AND TELEPHONE NUMBERS OF ALL FRANCHISEES UNDER

FRANCHISE AGREEMENTS WITH CJS AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2024; LIST OF ERANCHISEES
WHO HAVE LEFT THE SYSTEM IN THE 2024 CALENDAR YEAR

Alabama

City Campground Address/Telephone Franchisee

Elberta Yogi Bear’s 12610 Wortel Rd., Kinetic Capital I,
Jellystone Park of the | Elberta, AL 36530 LLC
Alabama Gulf Coast | (251) 986-3566

California

City Campground Address/Telephone Franchisee

Lodi Yogi Bear’s 149000 W. Hwy. 12, | Stockton Delta
Jellystone Park at Lodi, CA 95242 Resort, LLC
Tower Park (209) 369-1041

Colorado

City Campground Address/Telephone Franchisee

Estes Park Yogi Bear’s 5495 US Hwy. 36, Div HTR Estes Park,
Jellystone Park Estes | Estes Park, CO 80517 | LLC
Park, CO (970) 586-4230

Larkspur Yogi Bear’s 650 Sky View Lane, | Sun Jelly-Larkspur
Jellystone Park Larkspur, CO 80118 | CORV, LLC
Larkspur, CO (720) 325-2393

Delaware

City Campground Address/Telephone Franchisee

Lincoln Yogi Bear’s 8295 Brick Granary | AB Delaware
Jellystone Park Rd., Lincoln, DE Beaches, LLC
Delaware Beaches 19960

(302) 491-6614

Georgia

City Campground Address/Telephone Franchisee

Bremen Yogi Bear’s 106 King St. Bremen, | Great Escapes
Jellystone Park GA 30110 Bremen, LLC
Bremen, GA (404) 855-2778
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Jellystone Park at
Barton Lake

Lake, Fremont, IN
46737
(260) 833-1114

Cochran Yogi Bear’s 592 GA Hwy 87 S., Kinetic Capital XIV
Jellystone Park Cochran, GA 31014
Cochran, GA (478) 934-6694

Ilinois

City Campground Address/Telephone Franchisee

New Douglas Yogi Bear’s 12246 Binney Rd., Double DKP
Jellystone Park New Douglas, IL Corporation
Rustic Acres/New 62704
Douglas, IL (217) 456-1122

Pittsfield Yogi Bear’s 1405 Lakeview Four Points RV
Jellystone Park at Heights, Pittsfield, IL | Resorts of IL, LLC
Pine Lakes 62363

(217) 285-6719

Indiana

City Campground Address/Telephone Franchisee

Bloomington Yogi Bear’s 9396 S. Strain Ridge | Bloomington
Jellystone Park at Rd. Bloomington, IN | Investors Group,
Lake Monroe 47401 LLC

(812) 824-3322
Fremont Yogi Bear’s 140 Ln. 201 Barton Sun NG Jelly-Barton

Lake RV, LLC

Knightstown

Yogi Bear’s
Jellystone Park
Indianapolis East

5964 S State Rd. 109,
Knightstown, IN
46148

(765) 737-6585

CJ Family Fun, LLC

(319) 465-4665

Pierceton Yogi Bear’s 1916 N 8/50 E, Y.B.M.C.
Jellystone Park Pierceton, IN 46562 | Corporation
Pierceton, IN (574) 594-2124

Plymouth Yogi Bear’s 7719 Redwood Rd., Marshall County
Jellystone Park Plymouth, IN 46563 | Membership
Plymouth, IN (574) 936-7851 Corporation

lowa

City Campground Address/Telephone Franchisee

Monticello Yogi Bear’s 22128 Hwy. 38 Four Points RV
Jellystone Park North, Monticello, 1A | Resorts of IA, LLC
Monticello, 1A 52310
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Kentucky

City Campground Address/Telephone Franchisee
Cave City Yogi Bear’s 950 Mammoth Cave | Sun BW Jelly-
Jellystone Park Cave | Rd., Cave City, KY Mammoth Cave RV,
City, KY 42127 LLC
(270) 773-3840
Louisiana
Lake Charles Yogi Bear’s 4200 Luke Powers LCLA Investors
Jellystone Park Lake | Rd., Lake Charles, Group
Charles, LA LA 70615
(337) 433-1114
Maine
City Campground Address/Telephone Franchisee
Madison Yogi Bear’s 221 Lakewood Rd., Yonderhill RV, LLC
Jellystone Park at Madison, ME 04950
Yonder Hill (207) 474-7353
North Monmouth Yogi Bear’s 1 Wilson Pond Rd., Sun NG Beaver
Jellystone Park at North Monmouth, Brook RV, LLC
Androscoggin Lake ME 04265
(207) 933-2108

Maryland
City Campground Address/Telephone Franchisee
Williamsport Yogi Bear’s 9550 Jellystone Park | Field of Dreams
Jellystone Park Way, Williamsport, Holding Company,
Williamsport, MD MD 21795 LLC
(301) 223-7117
Massachusetts
City Campground Address/Telephone Franchisee
Carver Yogi Bear’s 20 Shoestring Rd., NGR Camp Cod,
Jellystone Park Carver, MA 02330 LLC
Cranberry Acres (508) 866-4040
Michigan
City | Campground | Address/Telephone | Franchisee
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Jellystone Park South
Haven, Ml

Haven, M1 49090
(269) 637-9181

Carsonville Yogi Bear’s 2353 North Great Escapes North
Jellystone Park North | Lakeshore Rd., Port Huron, LLC
Port Huron Carsonville, Ml
48419
(810) 622-0110
Frankenmuth Yogi Bear’s 1339 Weiss St., Frankenmuth RV
Jellystone Park Frankenmuth, Ml Park, Inc.
Frankenmuth, Ml 48734
(989) 652-6668
Grayling Yogi Bear’s 370 W. 4 Miles Rd., | Making S’more
Jellystone Park Grayling, M1 49738 | Memories, LLC
Grayling, Ml (989) 348-2157
Petoskey Yogi Bear’s 1800 N. US. 31, Sun Petoskey RV
Jellystone Park Petoskey, M1 49770 | Kampgrounds, LLC
Petoskey, Ml (888) 665-0784
South Haven Yogi Bear’s 03403 64" St., South | South Haven Family

Campground, LLC

Mississippi
City Campground Address/Telephone Franchisee
Horn Lake Yogi Bear’s 1400 Audubon Point | Audubon Point RV
Jellystone Park Horn | Dr., Horn Lake, MS | Park II, LLC
Lake, MS 38637
(662) 280-8282
Pelahatchie Yogi Bear’s 143 Campground Great Escapes
Jellystone Park Rd., Pelahatchie, MS | Pelahatchie, LP
Pelahatchie, MS 39145
(601) 854-6859
Missouri
City Campground Address/Telephone Franchisee
Eureka Yogi Bear’s 5300 Fox Creek Rd., | Eureka Camp Resort,
Jellystone Park St. Eureka, MO 63069 Inc.
Louis (636) 458-6652
Monroe City Yogi Bear’s 42819 Landing Ln., Great Escapes Mark
Jellystone Park at Monroe City, MO Twain, LLC
Mark Twain Lake 63456
(773) 735-9422
New Hampshire
City | Campground | Address/Telephone | Franchisee
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Barlett

Yogi Bear’s
Jellystone Park Glen
Ellis/North Conway,
NH

83 Glen Ellis
Campground Rd.,
Bartlett, NH 03838
(603) 383-4567

Sun NG Glen Ellis
RV, LLC

Milton Yogi Bear’s 111 Mitejo Rd., Three Ponds Resort,
Jellystone Park Lakes | Milton, NH 03851 LLC
Region (603) 652-9022
New Jersey
City Campground Address/Telephone Franchisee
Williamstown Yogi Bear’s 1174 Coles Mill Rd., | Sun Ng Hospitality

Jellystone Park South
Jersey

Williamstown, NJ
08094
(856) 629-5140

Creek RV, LLC

New York

City Campground Address/Telephone Franchisee

Bath Yogi Bear’s 2932 Cty. Rt. 11, Family Campground
Jellystone Park at the | Bath, NY 14819 at Babcock Hollow,
Finger Lakes (607) 776-7185 LLC

Endicott Yogi Bear’s 600 Boswell Hill Rd., | Burke Campgrounds
Jellystone Park Endicott, NY 13760 | of NY, LLC
Binghamton, NY (607) 785-6868

Gardiner Yogi Bear’s 50 Bevier Rd., Lazy River Resort,

Jellystone Park Lazy
River

Gardiner, NY 12525
(845) 255-5193

LLC

Greenfield Park

Yogi Bear’s

85 Martinfeld Rd.,

Sun Jelly-Birchwood

Jellystone Park Greenfield Park, NY | NY RV, LLC
Birchwood Acres 12435
(845) 434-4743

Jamestown Yogi Bear’s 299 Kiantone Rd., Hidden Valley
Jellystone Park Jamestown, NY Camping, Inc.
Chautauqua County, | 14701
NY (716) 569-5433

Mexico Yogi Bear’s 601 CR 16, Mexico, | Sunshade Outdoor
Jellystone Park NY 13114 LLC
Mexico, NY (315) 963-7096

North Java Yogi Bear’s 5204 Youngers Rd., | Sun Jelly-WNY RV,
Jellystone Park North Java, NY LLC
Western New York 14113

(585) 457-9644

North Carolina

City

| Campground

| Address/Telephone

| Franchisee
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Asheboro

Yogi Bear’s
Jellystone Park
Asheboro, NC

964 Crestview
Church Rd.,
Asheboro, NC 27205
(336) 964-0813

Honey-Jely, LLC

(740) 385-6720

Bostic Yogi Bear’s 182 Jellystone Northgate Golden
Jellystone Park Parkway, Bostic, NC | Valley, LLC
Golden Valley 28018
(828) 417-0086
Cherokee Yogi Bear’s 317 Galamore Bridge | Warrens Lodging,
Jellystone Park Rd., Cherokee, NC LLC
Cherokee, NC 28719
(828) 497-9151
Tabor City Yogi Bear’s 626 Richard Wright | Daddy Joe’s LLC
Jellystone Park at Rd., Tabor City, NC
Tabor City/Daddy 28463
Joe’s, NC (910) 653-2155
Ohio
City Campground Address/Telephone Franchisee
Big Prairie Yogi Bear’s 8181 OH-514, Big Whispering Hills
Jellystone Park Prairie, OH 44611 Recreation, Inc.
Whispering Hills (330) 567-2137
Mt. Gilead Yogi Bear’s 4185 Township Rd. Great Escapes
Jellystone Park 99, Mt. Gilead, OH Columbus North,
Columbus North, OH | 43338 LLC
(419) 946-5230
Nelsonville Yogi Bear’s 222475 SR 278, Happy Hills
Jellystone Park Nelsonville, OH Campground &
Hocking Hills, OH 45764 Cabins, LLC

North Lawrence

Yogi Bear’s
Jellystone Park
Clay’s Resort

12951 Patterson St.
NW, North
Lawrence, OH 44666
(330) 854-6691

Northgate-Clay’s
Park, LLC

Nova Yogi Bear’s 40C Township Rd., Great Escapes
Jellystone Park Nova, OH 44859 Cleveland, LLC
Cleveland/Sandusky, | (419) 652-2267
OH

Uniontown Yogi Bear’s 12712 Hoover Ave. Clearwater Park,
Jellystone Park NW, Uniontown, OH | LLC
Akon/Canton, OH 44685

(330)_ 877-9800
Oklahoma
City | Campground | Address/Telephone | Franchisee
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Eufaula

Yogi Bear’s
Jellystone Park Lake
Eufaula

610 Lake Shor Dr.,
Eufaula, OK 74431
(918) 707-5636

Xtreme RV Resort,
LLC

Mannford

Yogi Bear’s
Jellystone Park at
Keystone Lake

29365 West Hwy. 51,
Mannford, OK 74044
(918) 865-2845

Keystone Resort and
Yacht Club, LLC

Pennsylvania

City Campground Address/Telephone Franchisee
Harrisville Yogi Bear’s 449 Campground Kozy Rest Lessee,
Jellystone Park Kozy | Road, Harrisville, PA | LLC
Rest 16038
(724) 735-2417
Mansfield Yogi Bear’s 130 Bucktail Rd., Four Points RV
Jellystone Park PA Mansfield, PA 16933 | Resorts of PA, LLC
Wilds (570) 662-2923
Mill Run Yogi Bear’s 839 Mill Run Rd., Mill Run
Jellystone Park Mill Mill Run, PA 15464 | Campground, Inc.
Run, PA (724) 455-2929
Milton Yogi Bear’s 670 Hidden Paradise | Great Escapes
Jellystone Park Rd., Milton, PA Milton, LLC
Milton, PA 17847
(570) 524-4561
Quarryville Yogi Bear’s 340 Blackburn Rd., Quarryville Resorts,
Jellystone Park Quarryville, PA LP
Quarryville, PA 17566
(717) 786-3458
South Dakota
City Campground Address/Telephone Franchisee
Brandon Yogi Bear’s 26014 478" Ave., Sioux Falls
Jellystone Park Sioux | Brandon, SD 57005 | Campground, Inc.
Falls, SD (605) 332-2233
Tennessee
City Campground Address/Telephone Franchisee
Loudon Yogi Bear’s 10250 Corporate Park | GEOZF Tennessee,
Jellystone Park Watts | Dr., Loudon, TN LLC
Bar Lake, TN 37774
(865) 284-9644
Texas
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City

Campground

Address/Telephone

Franchisee

Burleson

Yogi Bear’s
Jellystone Park North
Texas

2301 S Burleson
Blvd., Burleson, TX
76028

(817) 426-5037

South Fort Worth RV
Ranch, LLC

Canyon Lake

Yogi Bear’s
Jellystone Park
Canyon Lake, TX

12915 FM 306,
Canyon Lake, TX
78133

(830) 964-3731

Hill Country Resorts,
LLC

Fredericksburg Yogi Bear’s 10618 East Hwy. TWC 10618, LLC
Jellystone Park Texas | 290, Fredericksburg,
Wine Country TX 78028
(830) 990-2267
Kerrville Yogi Bear’s 2605 Junction Hwy. | Kerrville Camp-
Jellystone Park 27, Kerrville, TX Resort, LLC
Kerrville, TX 78928
(830) 367-5676
Tyler Yogi Bear’s 5583 FM 16E, Tyler, | Sun NG Whispering
Jellystone Park TX 75706 Pines RV, LLC
Whispering Pines (903) 858-2405
Waller Yogi Bear’s 34843 Betka Rd., Sun NG Jelly-Lone
Jellystone Park Waller, TX 77484 Star TX RV, LLC
Waller, TX (979) 826-4111
Wichita Falls Yogi Bear’s 14145 US-287 N., Sun NG Coyote
Jellystone Park Wichita Falls, TX Ranch RV, LLC
Wichita Falls, TX 76310
(940) 767-6700
Utah
City Campground Address/Telephone Franchisee
Hurricane Yogi Bear’s 505 S. Sand Hollow | Blow Sands, LLC
Jellystone Park Zion | Rd., Hurricane, UT
84737
(866) 934-5267
Virginia
City Campground Address/Telephone Franchisee
Chincoteague Island | Yogi Bear’s 6742 Maddox Blvd., | Sun Chincoteague
Jellystone Park Chincoteague Island, | Island, LLC

Chincoteague Island,
VA

VA 23336
(757) 336-3111

Luray Yogi Bear’s 2250 Hwy. 211 East, | Mountain View
Jellystone Park Luray, VA 22835 Resorts, LLC
Luray, VA (540) 743-4002
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Natural Bridge
Station

Yogi Bear’s
Jellystone Park
Natural Bridge

16 Recreation Ln.,
Natural Bridge
Station, VA 24579
(540) 291-2727

Sun Jelly-Natural
Bridge RV, LLC

Wisconsin
City Campground Address/Telephone Franchisee
Caledonia Yogi Bear’s 8425 Hwy. 38, Bear Country, Inc.
Jellystone Park Caledonia. WI 53108
Caledonia, WI (920) 743-9001
Sturgeon Bay Yogi Bear’s 3677 May Rd., The Bears Family

Jellystone Park
Sturgeon Bay, WI

Sturgeon Bay, WI
54235
(920) 743-9001

Campground
Operations, LLC

Warrens Yogi Bear’s 1500 Jellystone Park | GE EPR Warrens
Jellystone Park Dr., Warrens, WI HoldCo Owner, LLC
Warrens. WI 54666
(608) 378-2000
Wisconsin Dells Yogi Bear’s S1915 Ishnala Rd., R&G, Inc.
Jellystone Park Wisconsin Dells, W1
Wisconsin Dells, WI | 53965
(608) 254-2568
New Brunswick
City Campground Address/Telephone Franchisee
Lower Woodstock Yogi Bear’s 174 Hemlock St., Greenfield Outdoor
Jellystone Park Kozy | Lower Woodstock, Hospitality Inc.
Acres NB E7M 4E5
(506) 328-6287
Nova Scotia
City Campground Address/Telephone Franchisee
Kingston Yogi Bear’s 43 Boo Boo Blvd., Holiday Haven
Jellystone Park Kingston, NS BOP Campground Ltd.,
Holiday Haven 1R0 Nova Scotia
(902) 765-2830
Ontario
City Campground Address/Telephone Franchisee
Niagara Falls Yogi Bear’s 8676 Oakwood Dr., 1314488 Ontario
Jellystone Park Niagara Falls, ONT Limited
Niagara Falls 12G 0J2
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\ \ | (905) 775-1377 \

Franchisees Who L eft the Franchise System During the Past Fiscal Year:

Pigeon Forge, TN 3404 Whaley Dr., Pigeon Forge, TN 37863 Phone: 865-453-8117

Pouch Cove, Newfoundland Canada 515 Pouch Cove Line, Pouch Cove, NL AOA 3L0, Canada Phone: 709-
335-7275

174197262v2
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CAMPJELLYSTONE, LLC
UNAUDITED FINANCIALS

January 1, 2024 through June 30, 2024
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FINANCIAL ROW

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income
4220-000 - Total Retail &
Dining
4220-400 -
Merchandise

Total - 4220-400 -
Merchandise

Total - 4220-000 - Total
Retail & Dining

4230-000 - Total
Entertainment

4230-300 - Activities

Total - 4230-300 -
Activities
Total - 4230-000 - Total
Entertainment

4240-000 - Total Other
SRDE Income

4240-999 - Other
Ancillary Revenue

174197262v2

Sun Communities, Inc.

Sun-TLP (Consolidated)
FP | CJS Income Statement
From Jan 2024 to Jun 2024
Options: Activity Only

SAGE ITEM

CJS-ALLOWANCE FOR
RETURNS-DAMAGES

CJS-ALLOWANCE FOR
RETURNS-OTHER

CJS-MERCHANDISE
CERAMICS SALES

CJS-MERCHANDISE
REV-FOREIGN EXCH

CJS-MERCHANDISE
SALES

CJS-MERCHANDISE
SALES - DROP SHIP

CJS-OPERATIONAL
SALES

PERIOD  PERIOD
ACTUAL  BUDGET

(JAN (JAN

PAYABLE ITEM 2024 2024
JUN JUN

2024) 2024)

$87,099.76 $1,720,912.

00
($1,033.57) $0.00
($3,603.40) $0.00
$42,026.85 $0.00
($3,881.66) $0.00
$1,273,945. $0.00
29
$3,573.76 $0.00

$1,398,127. $1,720,912.
03 00

$1,398,127. $1,720,912.
03 00

$1,638.13 $69,028.50

$48,622.42 $0.00

$50,260.55 $69,028.50

$50,260.55 $69,028.50

YTD YTD
VZE?A%E ACTUAL  BUDGET
. (JAN (JAN
2024) 2024)
- $0.00 $474,745.0
$1,633,812. 0
24
-$1,033.57 ($149.25) $0.00
-$3,603.40  ($53.04) $0.00
$42,026.85 $0.00 $0.00
-$3,881.66 $0.00 $0.00
$1,273,945. $454,689. $0.00
29 99
$3,573.76 $0.00 $0.00
- $454,487. $474,745.0
$322,784.9 70 0
7
- $454,487. $474,745.0
$322,784.9 70 0
7
-$67,390.37 $0.00 $12,181.50
$48,622.42 $17,378.5 $0.00
5
-$18,767.95 $17,378.5 $12,181.50
5
-$18,767.95 $17,378.5 $12,181.50
5

YTD
VARIAN
CE

$474,745.
00

-$149.25

-$53.04

$0.00

$0.00

$454,689.
99

$0.00

$20,257.3
0

$20,257.3
0

$12,181.5
0

$17,378.5
5

$5,197.05

$5,197.05



FINANCIAL
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ROW SAGE ITEM

CJS-OPERATIONAL
SALES -
COSTUMES/SIGNS/STA
TUES

Total - 4240-999 -

Other Ancillary

Revenue

Total - 4240-000 - Total
Other SRDE Income

4400-000 - Total
Miscellaneous Income

4400-999 - Other
Income

CJS-MISCELLANEOUS

Total - 4400-999 -
Other Income
Total - 4400-000 - Total
Miscellaneous Income

4600-000 - Total
Franchise Income

4600-005 - CJS -
Operating Royalties

CJS-OPERATING ROY -
FOREIGN EXCH

CJS-OPERATING
ROYALTIES

Total - 4600-005 -
CJS - Operating
Royalties
4600-010 - CJS -
Advertising
Royalties

CJS-ADVERTISING ROY
- FOREIGN EXCH

CJS-ADVERTISING
ROYALTIES

Total - 4600-010 -
CJS - Advertising
Royalties
4600-015 - CJS -
Franchise Sales

PAYABLE ITEM

PERIOD  PERIOD
ACTUAL  BUDGET ..
UAN UAN "\ aRIANC
2024 - 2024 - .
JUN JUN
2024) 2024)

$0.00 $178,585.0 -
0 $178,585.0
0

$49,360.85 $0.00 $49,360.85

$49,360.85 $178,585.0 -
0 $129,224.1
5

$49,360.85 $178,585.0 -
0 $129,224.1

5
$123.61 $0.00  $123.61
$26.19 $0.00 $26.19
$149.80 $0.00  $149.80
$149.80 $0.00  $149.80

$55,744.60 $1,679,091. -
00 $1,623,346.

40

($8,357.31) $0.00 -$8,357.31
$1,427,120. $0.00 $1,427,120.
42 42
$1,474,507. $1,679,091. -
71 00 $204,583.2

9

$492,238.3 $1,469,234. -
3 83 $976,996.5

0

($3,659.96) $0.00 -$3,659.96
$768,440.9 $0.00 $768,440.9
9 9
$1,257,019. $1,469,234. -
36 83 $212,215.4

7

YTD
ACTUAL
(JAN
2024)

$0.00

$422.55

$422.55

$422.55

$123.61
$12.79

$136.40

$136.40

$0.00

($610.82)

$87,093.3
5

$86,482.5
3

$120,128.
97

($101.80)

$44,148.4
4

$164,175.
61

YTD
YTD
BUDGET
VARIAN
(JAN CE
2024)
$11,000.00 -
$11,000.0
0
$0.00  $422.55
$11,000.00 -
$10,577.4
5
$11,000.00 -
$10,577.4
5
$0.00 $123.61
$0.00  $12.79
$0.00 $136.40
$0.00 $136.40
$73,395.00 -
$73,395.0
0
$0.00 -$610.82
$0.00 $87,093.3
5
$73,395.00 $13,087.5
3
$121,084.3 -$955.33
0
$0.00 -$101.80
$0.00 $44,148.4
4
$121,084.3 $43,091.3
0 1



PERIOD PERIOD

ACTUAL BUDGET YTD YTD
PERIOD YTD
(JAN (JAN ACTUAL BUDGET
FINANCIAL ROW SAGE ITEM PAYABLE ITEM VARIANC VARIAN
2024 - 2024 - £ (JAN (JAN CE
JUN JUN 2024) 2024)
2024) 2024)
$0.00 $15,000.00 -$15,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
CJS-FRANCHISE SALES $23,000.00 $0.00 $23,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Total - 4600-015 - $23,000.00 $15,000.00 $8,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
CJS - Franchise Sales
4600-020 - CJS -
Merchandise
Royalties
$0.00 $306,594.4 - $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
0 $306,594.4
0
CJS-MERCHANDISE $132,571.7 $0.00 $132,571.7 $28.50 $0.00 $28.50
ROYALTIES 9 9
Total - 4600-020 - $132,571.7 $306,594.4 - $28.50 $0.00 $28.50
CJS - Merchandise 9 0 $174,022.6
Royalties 1
4600-025 - CJS - Club
Yogi Rewards
Royalties
$1,421.49 $511,314.2 - ($2,562.92 $44,701.44 -
0 $509,892.7 ) $47,264.3
1 6
CJS-CLUB YOGI $411,137.1 $0.00 $411,137.1 $18,042.0 $0.00 $18,042.0
REWARDS ROYALTIES 1 1 2 2
CJS-CLUB YOGI ($2,185.67) $0.00 -$2,185.67 ($50.90) $0.00 -$50.90
REWARDS ROYALTY -
FOREIGN EXCHANGE
Total - 4600-025 - $410,372.9 $511,314.2 - $15,428.2 $44,701.44 -
CJS - Club Yogi 3 0 $100,941.2 0 $29,273.2
Rewards Royalties 7 4
Total - 4600-000 - Total $3,297,471. $3,981,234. - $266,114. $239,180.7 $26,934.1
Franchise Income 79 43 $683,762.6 84 4 0
4
Total - Income $4,795,370. $5,949,759. - $738,540. $737,107.2 $1,432.80
02 93 $1,154,389. 04 4
91
Cost Of Sales
5200-000 - Total SRDE
Cost of Sales
5220-400 - COGS -
Merchandise
$47,177.49 $1,056,640. - $19,061.9 $291,494.0 -
00 $1,009,462. 5 0 $272,432.
51 05
Franchise - COS - $34,884.00 $0.00 $34,884.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Ceramics
Franchise - COS - $2,508.80 $0.00 $2,508.80 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Merch Drop Ship
Franchise - COS - $8,718.99 $0.00 $8,718.99 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Merchandise
Franchise - Freight $4,233.61 $0.00 $4,233.61 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
- Ceramics
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FINANCIAL ROW

Total - 5220-400 -

COGS - Merchandise

5230-300 - COGS -
Activities

Total - 5230-300 -
COGS - Activities

5240-999 - COGS -
Other Purchases

Total - 5240-999 -
COGS - Other
Purchases

Total - 5200-000 - Total
SRDE Cost of Sales

Total - Cost Of Sales

Gross Profit

SAGE ITEM

CJS-INVENTORY
ADJUSTMENTS

CJS-MERCHANDISE

CJS-PRODUCTION
FREIGHT AND
SAMPLES

CJS-OPERATIONAL COS

PAYABLE ITEM

Franchise - Freight
- Merch Drop Ship

Franchise - Freight
- Merchandise

Franchise - Other
Merchandise
charges

Franchise - Freight
- Operational
Merchandise

Activities - COGS -
Arts & Crafts

Franchise - COS -
Costumes/Signs/St
atue

Franchise - Freight

Costumes/Signs/St
atue

PERIOD  PERIOD
ACTUAL  BUDGET
(JAN (JAN
2024 - 2024 -
JUN JUN
2024) 2024)
$358.55 $0.00
$101,951.3 $0.00
9
$7,166.75 $0.00
$3,760.92 $0.00
$661,865.2 $0.00
9
($86,636.96 $0.00
)
$785,988.8 $1,056,640.
3 00
$5,678.33 $55,222.80
$338.89 $0.00
$1,733.85 $0.00
$38,749.02 $0.00
$46,500.09 $55,222.80
$0.00 $164,298.2
0
$30,990.42 $0.00
$3,258.93 $0.00
$34,249.35 $164,298.2
0

$866,738.2 $1,276,161.
7 00

$866,738.2 $1,276,161.
7 00

$3,928,631. $4,673,598.
75 93

YTD
PERIOD
ACTUAL
VARIAN(EI UAN
2024)
$358.55 $0.00

$101,951.3 $8,145.54

9
$7,166.75 $0.00
$3,760.92  ($5.05)
$661,865.2 $236,098.
9 82
-$86,636.96 ($26,308.0
2)
- $236,993.
$270,651.1 24
7
-$49,544.47 $0.00
$338.89  $100.17
$1,733.85 $0.00
$38,749.02 $14,086.7
0
-$8,722.71 $14,186.8
7
- $0.00
$164,298.2
0
$30,990.42 $0.00
$3,258.93 $0.00
- $0.00
$130,048.8
5
- $251,180.
$409,422.7 11
3
- $251,180.
$409,422.7 11
3
- $487,359.
$744,967.1 93
8

YTD
BUDGET
(JAN
2024)

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$291,494.0
0

$9,745.20

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$9,745.20

$10,120.00

$0.00

$0.00

$10,120.00

$311,359.2
0

$311,359.2
0

$425,748.0
a

YTD
VARIAN
CE

$0.00

$8,145.54

$0.00

-$5.05

$236,098.
82

$26,308.0
2

$54,500.7
6

-$9,745.20

$100.17

$0.00

$14,086.7
0

$4,441.67

$10,120.0
0

$0.00

$0.00

$10,120.0
0

$60,179.0
9

$60,179.0
9

$61,611.8
9



PERIOD PERIOD

ACTUAL BUDGET YTD YTD
PERIOD YTD
(JAN (JAN ACTUAL BUDGET
FINANCIAL ROW SAGE ITEM PAYABLE ITEM VARIANC VARIAN
2024 - 2024 - £ (JAN (JAN CE
JUN JUN 2024) 2024)
2024) 2024)
Expense
6000-000 - Total People
and Culture
6000-100 - Payroll $665,786.8 $683,622.0 -$17,835.14 $147,015. $113,306.0 $33,709.6
Wages 6 0 63 0 3
6000-105 - Overtime $1,590.38 $0.00 $1,590.38 $77.50 $0.00 $77.50
6000-200 - $63,838.78 $77,040.00 -$13,201.22 $11,508.9 $12,840.00 -$1,331.05
Employee Benefits 5
6000-205 - Payroll $73,315.19 $103,716.0 -$30,400.81 $26,809.5 $33,530.00 -$6,720.43
Taxes 0 7
6000-210 - Workers $9,996.01 $13,200.00 -$3,203.99 $2,694.30 $2,200.00  $494.30
Compensation
Insurance
6000-215 - Employer $17,663.26 $17,184.00  $479.26 $3,228.79 $2,354.00  $874.79
401k Contribution
6000-300 - Bonus - $111,078.5 $120,726.0 -$9,647.48 $24,081.0 $20,121.00 $3,960.00
Annual Accrual 2 0 0
6000-400 - $0.00 $9,714.28 -$9,714.28 $0.00 $2,428.57 -$2,428.57
Consulting Fees
6000-410 - Service $0.00  $390.00  -$390.00 $0.00 $65.00  -$65.00
Awards
6000-415 -
Corporate Events
(5207,838.4 $0.00 - ($31,749.2 $0.00 -
3) $207,838.4 7) $31,749.2
3 7
Franchise - $554.61 $0.00 $554.61 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Regional Meetings
Franchise - $177,413.7 $0.00 $177,413.7 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Symposium 0 0
Total - 6000-415 - ($29,870.12 $0.00 -$29,870.12 ($31,749.2 $0.00 -
Corporate Events ) 7) $31,749.2
7
6000-435 -
Entertainment
($195.96) $0.00 -$195.96 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Sun Homes - $195.96 $0.00 $195.96 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Entertainment
Total - 6000-435 - $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Entertainment
Total - 6000-000 - Total $913,398.8 $1,025,592. - $183,666. $186,844.5 -$3,178.10
People and Culture 8 28 $112,193.4 47 7
0
6200-000 - Total Utilities
6200-320 - Electric
Expense
$0.00 $15,800.00 -$15,800.00 $3,250.97 $2,900.00 $350.97
Main Office Electric  $1,938.23 $0.00 $1,938.23 $1,938.23 $0.00 $1,938.23
Expense
Franchise - Electric $9,385.75 $0.00 $9,385.75 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Expense
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ROW

Total - 6200-320 -
Electric Expense

6200-330 -
Telecomm Service

Total - 6200-330 -
Telecomm Service
6200-335 - Guest
Wi-Fi Service
Total - 6200-000 - Total
Utilities
6300-000 - Total Supplies
and Repairs
6300-010 - General

Maintenance and
Tools

6300-310 - SRDE
General Operating
Expenses

Total - 6300-310 -

SRDE General

Operating Expenses
Total - 6300-000 - Total
Supplies and Repairs
6410-000 - Total Office
Expenses

6410-005 - General

Office Expense

SAGE ITEM

PAYABLE ITEM

Internet/Online
Fees

Community -
Office/Clubhouse:

Cable/Internet/Pho

ne

Franchise-
Telecomm Service

Franchise - CJS Wifi

Expense

Community -
Preventative
Maintenance
Supplies

Franchise -
Warehouse
Management

Franchise -
Inventory Physical
Count

Franchise - Office
Supplies - Cells

Franchise - Office
Supplies -
Operations

PERIOD  PERIOD
ACTUAL  BUDGET
(JAN (JAN
2024 - 2024 -
JUN JUN
2024) 2024)

$11,323.98 $15,800.00

$13,641.64 $13,023.50

$2,722.90 $0.00
$399.76 $0.00
$447.00 $0.00

$17,211.30 $13,023.50
$150.00 $0.00

$28,685.28 $28,823.50

$1,870.62 $0.00

($5,648.29) $165,000.0

0

$165,487.7 $0.00
0

$5,637.50 $0.00

$165,476.9 $165,000.0
1 0

$167,347.5 $165,000.0

3 ()}
($232.95) $11,344.55
$100.02 $0.00
($2,298.80) $0.00

PERIOD
VARIANC
E

-$4,476.02

$618.14

$2,722.90

$399.76

$447.00

$4,187.80

$150.00

-$138.22

$1,870.62

$170,648.2
9

$165,487.7
0

$5,637.50

$476.91

$2,347.53

-$11,577.50

$100.02

-$2,298.80

YTD
ACTUAL
(JAN
2024)

$5,189.20

$860.10

$296.31

$0.00

$0.00

$1,156.41

$0.00

$6,345.61

$0.00

$34,485.0
2

$7,078.61

$5,637.50

$47,201.1
3

$47,201.1
3

$84.23

$0.00

$0.00

YTD
BUDGET
(JAN
2024)

$2,900.00

$1,910.10

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$1,910.10

$0.00

$4,810.10

$0.00

$30,000.00

$0.00

$0.00

$30,000.00

$30,000.00

$336.20

$0.00

$0.00

YTD
VARIAN
CE

$2,289.20

-$1,050.00

$296.31

$0.00

$0.00

-$753.69

$0.00

$1,535.51

$0.00

$4,485.02

$7,078.61

$5,637.50

$17,201.1
3

$17,201.1
3

-$251.97

$0.00

$0.00
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SAGE ITEM PAYABLE ITEM
Office Supplies
Total - 6410-005 -
General Office
Expense
6410-010 - Postage
and Shipping
SCOLP - Postage
and Shipping
Franchise-Postage
and Shipping
Fax/Copy/Postage/Mai
| Services
Total - 6410-010 -
Postage and
Shipping
6410-011 - Postage
and Shipping - CJS -
CYR
Franchise - Postage
and Shipping - MKT
Total - 6410-011 -
Postage and
Shipping - CJS - CYR
6410-012 - Postage
and Shipping - CJS -
MKT
Franchise - Postage
and Shipping - CYR
CJS-FREIGHT -
MARKETING

Total - 6410-012 -
Postage and
Shipping - CJS - MKT
6410-015 - License,
Dues and
Subscriptions

Franchise - Dues
and Subscriptions -
Operations

Franchise - License
Expense
Professional
Subscriptions/Dues

Franchise - Warner
Brothers

PERIOD
ACTUAL
(JAN
2024 -
JUN
2024)

$8.47

(52,423.26)

$388.16

$71.34

$57.99

($19.47)

$498.02

($949.96)

$24,793.21

$23,843.25

($933.61)

$49,706.40

$19.47

$48,792.26

$32,500.54

$8,884.34

$33,599.99
$720.00

$87,745.13

PERIOD
Buiisz PERIOD
2024 VAmANE
JUN
2024)
$0.00 $8.47

$11,344.55 -$13,767.81

$3,050.00 -$2,661.84
$0.00 $71.34
$0.00 $57.99
$0.00 -$19.47
$3,050.00 -$2,551.98
$11,162.00 -$12,111.96
$0.00 $24,793.21
$11,162.00 $12,681.25
$53,900.00 -$54,833.61
$0.00 $49,706.40
$0.00 $19.47
$53,900.00 -$5,107.74
$217,058.7 -
4 $184,558.2

0

$0.00 $8,884.34
$0.00 $33,599.99
$0.00 $720.00
$0.00 $87,745.13

YTD
ACTUAL
(JAN
2024)

$8.47

$92.70

$0.00

$71.34

$0.00

$0.00

$71.34

$1,605.81

$0.00

$1,605.81

($677.63)

$8,622.50

$0.00

$7,944.87

$55,374.7
0

$0.00

$0.00
$0.00

$0.00

YTD
BUDGET
(JAN
2024)

$0.00

$336.20

$150.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$150.00

$519.00

$0.00

$519.00

$4,700.00

$0.00

$0.00

$4,700.00

$28,732.00

$0.00

$0.00
$0.00

$0.00

YTD
VARIAN
CE

$8.47

-$243.50

-$150.00

$71.34

$0.00

$0.00

-$78.66

$1,086.81

$0.00

$1,086.81

-$5,377.63

$8,622.50

$0.00

$3,244.87

$26,642.7
0

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00
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Total - 6410-015 -
License, Dues and
Subscriptions

6410-025 - Printing

Total - 6410-000 - Total
Office Expenses

6420-000 - Total
Advertising

6420-005 -
Advertising -
Corporate

Total - 6420-005 -
Advertising -
Corporate
6420-205 -
Advertising - Print

Total - 6420-205 -
Advertising - Print
6420-210 -
Advertising -
Production

Total - 6420-210 -
Advertising -
Production

6420-215 - Franchise

Sales Operating
Expense

Total - 6420-215 -
Franchise Sales
Operating Expense

PAYABLE ITEM

Franchise-Other
License and Dues

Property Spread -
Advertising - All
MH/RV Properties

CJS - Franchise -

Other Advertising -
Corporate

CJS - Franchise-
Other Advertising -
Print

CJS - Franchise -
Advertising -
Production

Franchise - Sales
Operating Expense

10

PERIOD
ACTUAL
(JAN
2024 -
JUN
2024)

$900.00

PERIOD

BUD(fAEJ PERIOD

2024 VARIAN(EI
JUN
2024)

$0.00 $900.00

$164,350.0 $217,058.7 -$52,708.74

0

$0.00

$235,060.2
7

$0.00

$0.00

$110,096.9
9

$110,096.9
9

$151,851.5
1

$23,868.53

4
$300.00 -$300.00
$296,815.2 -$61,755.02
9
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $110,096.9
9

$0.00 $110,096.9
9

$193,398.0 -$41,546.49

0
$0.00 $23,868.53

$175,720.0 $193,398.0 -$17,677.96

4

$0.00

$18.01

$18.01

(54,840.75)

$25,915.51

$128.00

$128.00

0

-$128.00

$0.00 $18.01

-$109.99

$26,582.32 -$31,423.07

$0.00 $25,915.51

$21,074.76 $26,582.32 -$5,507.56

YTD
ACTUAL
(JAN
2024)

$0.00

YTD

YTD

BUDGET iy

(JAN CE
2024)

$0.00 $0.00

$55,374.7 $28,732.00 $26,642.7

0

$0.00

0

$0.00 $0.00

$65,089.4 $34,437.20 $30,652.2

2

$2,525.72

$2,917.21

$0.00

$5,442.93

$155,295.
86

$0.00

$155,295.
86

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$4,040.75

$4,040.75

2

$0.00 $2,525.72

$0.00 $2,917.21

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $5,442.93

$22,539.00 $132,756.

86
$0.00 $0.00

$22,539.00 $132,756.

86

$128.00 -$128.00

$0.00 $0.00

$128.00 -$128.00

$243.65 -$243.65

$0.00 $4,040.75

$243.65 $3,797.10
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SAGE ITEM PAYABLE ITEM

6420-220 - Franchise
Sales Advertising
Expense

CJS - Franchise -
Sales Advertising

Expense
CJS-FRANCHISE SALES

Total - 6420-220 -

Franchise Sales

Advertising Expense

6420-225 - New

Franchise Training
Franchise -
Franchisee Training
- Camp
Franchise -
Franchisee Training
- Camp Meals
Franchise -
Franchisee Training
- Care

Total - 6420-225 -

New Franchise

Training

6420-230 - Franchise

Marketing
Franchise -

Character Costume
Refurbishment
Franchise -
Character Costume
Refurbishment
Freight
Franchise-Other
Franchise
Marketing

Sponsorship/Advertisin
g

Total - 6420-230 -
Franchise Marketing

6420-235 - Franchise
Marketing
Promotions

11

PERIOD  PERIOD
ACTUAL  BUDGET
(JAN (JAN
2024 - 2024 -
JUN JUN
2024) 2024)

$1,211.03 $29,675.36

$29,494.00 $0.00
$459.58 $0.00
$31,164.61 $29,675.36
$158.82 $51,534.85
$52,448.00 $0.00
$23,823.43 $0.00
$3,495.62 $0.00
$79,925.87 $51,534.85
$1,505.11 $334,366.0
0
$239,130.5 $0.00
1
$13,548.21 $0.00
$63,873.29 $0.00
$232.32 $0.00

PERIOD
VARIANC
E

-$28,464.33
$29,494.00

$459.58

$1,489.25

-$51,376.03
$52,448.00

$23,823.43

$3,495.62

$28,391.02

$332,860.8
9

$239,130.5
1

$13,548.21

$63,873.29

$232.32

$318,289.4 $334,366.0 -$16,076.56

4 0

$0.00 $66,580.00

-$66,580.00

YTD
ACTUAL
(JAN
2024)

$2,016.03
$0.00

$0.00

$2,016.03

$0.00
$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$9,047.83

$3,460.67

$4,027.26

$0.00

$0.00

$16,535.7
6

$0.00

YTD

YTD

BUDGET iy

(JAN CE
2024)

$0.00 $2,016.03
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $2,016.03

$40.97  -$40.97
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$40.97  -$40.97
$53,890.00 -
$44,842.1

7

$0.00 $3,460.67
$0.00 $4,027.26
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$53,890.00 -
$37,354.2

4

$0.00 $0.00
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Total - 6420-235 -
Franchise Marketing
Promotions
6420-240 - Franchise
Internet Marketing

Total - 6420-240 -
Franchise Internet
Marketing

6420-245 - Club Yogi
Marketing

Total - 6420-245 -
Club Yogi Marketing

6420-250 - Club Yogi
Redemptions

Total - 6420-250 -
Club Yogi
Redemptions
6420-255 - Club Yogi
Training and
Development

SAGE ITEM

CJS-REDEMPTIONS

PAYABLE ITEM

Franchise -
Marketing
Promotions

Franchise-Other
Franchise
Marketing
Promotions

CJS - Franchise -
Digital Paid
Advertising
(Internet)

CJS - Franchise -
Social Media
Content
Production

CJS - Franchise -
Social Media Paid
Advertising

CJS - Franchise -
Website

Franchise - Club
Yogi Marketing

Franchise - Club

Yogi Redemptions

12

PERIOD  PERIOD
ACTUAL  BUDGET
(JAN (JAN
2024 - 2024 -
JUN JUN
2024) 2024)

$34,140.00 $0.00

$30,780.00 $0.00

$64,920.00 $66,580.00

$20,178.02 $583,138.0
0
$74,914.64 $0.00
$15,317.08 $0.00
$45,384.30 $0.00
$150,000.0 $0.00
0
$305,794.0 $583,138.0
4 0
$23,194.65 $152,385.0
0
$116,278.3 $0.00
8
$139,473.0 $152,385.0
3 0
$19,478.00 $107,500.0
0
$5,440.00 $0.00
$7,909.00 $0.00
$32,827.00 $107,500.0
0
$0.00  $3,000.00

YTD
PERIOD
ACTUAL
VARIANC
. (JAN
2024)
$34,140.00  $450.00
$30,780.00 $0.00
-$1,660.00  $450.00
- $10,120.9
$562,959.9 6
8
$74,914.64 $0.00
$15,317.08 $8.54
$45,384.30 $0.00
$150,000.0 $0.00
0
- $10,129.5
$277,343.9 0
6
- ($4,509.57
$129,190.3 )
5
$116,278.3 $6,625.45
8

-$12,911.97 $2,115.88

-$88,022.00 $0.00
$5,440.00 $0.00
$7,909.00 $0.00

-$74,673.00 $0.00
-$3,000.00 $0.00

YTD
BUDGET
(JAN
2024)

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$10,131.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$10,131.00

$2,600.00

$0.00

$2,600.00

$6,000.00

$0.00

$0.00

$6,000.00

$0.00

YTD
VARIAN
CE

$450.00

$0.00

$450.00

-$10.04

$0.00

$8.54

$0.00

$0.00

-$1.50

-$7,109.57

$6,625.45

-$484.12

-$6,000.00

$0.00

$0.00

-$6,000.00

$0.00



PERIOD PERIOD

ACTUAL BUDGET YTD YTD
PERIOD YTD
(JAN (JAN ACTUAL BUDGET
FINANCIAL ROW SAGE ITEM PAYABLE ITEM VARIANC VARIAN
2024 - 2024 - £ (JAN (JAN CE
JUN JUN 2024) 2024)
2024) 2024)
Total - 6420-000 - Total $1,279,303. $1,548,287. - $196,026. $95,572.62 $100,454.
Advertising 79 53 $268,983.7 71 09
4
6430-000 - Total Banking
Expenses
6430-010 - Credit $32,070.28 $33,150.00 -$1,079.72 $11,946.8 $15,700.00 -$3,753.15
Card Processing Fees 5
6430-020 - Late
Payment Fees and
Penalties
Sun Homes - Late $29.10 $0.00 $29.10 $29.10 $0.00 $29.10
Payment Fees
Franchise-Late $502.74 $0.00 $502.74 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Payment Fees and
Penalties
Total - 6430-020 - $531.84 $0.00 $531.84 $29.10 $0.00 $29.10
Late Payment Fees
and Penalties
Total - 6430-000 - Total $32,602.12 $33,150.00 -$547.88 $11,975.9 $15,700.00 -$3,724.05
Banking Expenses 5
6440-000 - Total Training
6440-005 - Training, $4,990.75 $9,063.67 -$4,072.92 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Seminars and
Conventions
6440-010 -
Operations
Meetings
$0.00 $1,750.00 -$1,750.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Franchise - Off-Site $490.63 $0.00 $490.63 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Meeting Room
Rental
Total - 6440-010 - $490.63 $1,750.00 -$1,259.37 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Operations
Meetings
Total - 6440-000 - Total $5,481.38 $10,813.67 -$5,332.29 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Training
6450-000 - Total Travel
6450-005 - Travel
$5,020.61 $69,000.00 -$63,979.39 $0.00 $3,000.00 -$3,000.00
SCOLP - Airfare $628.79 $0.00 $628.79 $94.00 $0.00 $94.00
SCOLP - Car Rental $618.36 $0.00 $618.36 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
SCOLP - Travel- $§79.21 $0.00 $79.21 $79.21 $0.00 $§79.21
Fuel
SCOLP - Hotel $834.15 $0.00 $834.15  $323.40 $0.00  $323.40
SCOLP - Travel - $82.00 $0.00 $82.00 $82.00 $0.00 $82.00
Parking
SCOLP - Travel- $12.50 $0.00 $12.50 $12.50 $0.00 $12.50
Tolls/Road Charges
Sun Homes - $20,567.68 $0.00 $20,567.68 $1,819.60 $0.00 $1,819.60
Airfare

174197262v2
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Total - 6450-005 -
Travel

6450-010 - Meals

Total - 6450-010 -
Meals

6450-015 - Mileage

Total - 6450-015 -
Mileage
Total - 6450-000 - Total
Travel

6470-000 - Total

Information Technology

6470-005 -
Hardware Support
and License Fees

SAGE ITEM

PAYABLE ITEM

Sun Homes - Car
Rental

Sun Homes -
Travel- Fuel

Sun Homes - Hotel

Sun Homes -
Travel- Parking
Sun Homes - Travel
- Taxi/Ride Share
Sun Homes -
Travel-
Tips/Gratuities
Sun Homes -
Travel- Tolls/Road
Charges

SCOLP - Airline
Fees

Sun Homes - Airline

Fees

Franchise-Other
Travel

SCOLP - Meals
Sun Homes - Meals
F&B - Meals

Entertainment -
Meals

SCOLP - Personal
Car Mileage

Sun Homes -
Personal Car
Mileage

F&B - Personal Car
Mileage

14

PERIOD  PERIOD
ACTUAL  BUDGET
(JAN (JAN
2024 - 2024 -
JUN JUN
2024) 2024)
$6,739.06 $0.00
$1,048.20 $0.00
$11,810.29 $0.00
$2,803.38 $0.00
$199.98 $0.00
$21.00 $0.00
$184.46 $0.00
$60.00 $0.00
$1,603.81 $0.00
$61.00 $0.00
$52,374.48 $69,000.00
($603.57) $15,400.00
$716.33 $0.00
$7,470.39 $0.00
$34.89 $0.00
$12.60 $0.00

$7,630.64 $15,400.00

$885.74 $10,000.00
$916.18 $0.00
$4,404.37 $0.00
$69.01 $0.00

$6,275.30 $10,000.00

PERIOD
VARIANC
E

$6,739.06

$1,048.20

$11,810.29

$2,803.38

$199.98

$21.00

$184.46

$60.00

$1,603.81

$61.00

-$16,625.52

-$16,003.57
$716.33
$7,470.39
$34.89

$12.60

-$7,769.36

-$9,114.26

$916.18

$4,404.37

$69.01

-$3,724.70

YTD
ACTUAL
(JAN
2024)

$324.06

$29.49

$177.21

$77.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$3,018.47

$0.00
$16.64
$132.50
$12.99

$12.60

$174.73

$0.00

$338.64

$218.88

$0.00

$557.52

YTD
BUDGET
(JAN
2024)

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$3,000.00

$500.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

$0.00

$500.00

$100.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$100.00

$66,280.42 $94,400.00 -$28,119.58 $3,750.72 $3,600.00

YTD
VARIAN
CE

$324.06

$29.49

$177.21

$77.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$18.47

-$500.00
$16.64
$132.50
$12.99

$12.60

-$325.27

-$100.00

$338.64

$218.88

$0.00

$457.52

$150.72
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Total - 6470-005 -
Hardware Support
and License Fees
6470-010 - Software
Support and License
Fees

Total - 6470-010 -

Software Support

and License Fees
Total - 6470-000 - Total
Information Technology

6480-000 - Total Other
Miscellaneous Expenses

6480-005 -
Miscellaneous

Total - 6480-005 -
Miscellaneous

Total - 6480-000 - Total
Other Miscellaneous
Expenses

6500-000 - Total Legal
and Insurance

6500-005 - Legal
Fees

174197262v2

SAGE ITEM

PAYABLE ITEM

Franchise-
Equipment -
Maintenance/Leas
e

Franchise - Loyalty
Management
Software

Franchise - Other
Software/Program
ming

Office Software
Franchise-Other

Software Support
and License Fees

Placeholder

Franchise-Other
Miscellaneous

15

PERIOD
ACTUAL
(JAN
2024 -
JUN
2024)

$0.00

$1,854.59

$1,854.59

($618.00)

$67,650.00

$15,408.64

$600.00

$27,428.08
$110,468.7

2

$112,323.3
1

$21,617.12

$1,281.63

$1,672.03

$24,570.78

$24,570.78

$60,816.78

PERIOD
BUDGET
(JAN
2024 -
JUN
2024)

$2,185.02

$0.00

$2,185.02

$247,388.1
7

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$247,388.1
7

$249,573.1
9

$150,625.0
0

$0.00

$0.00

$150,625.0
0

$150,625.0
0

$45,455.00

PERIOD
VARIANC
E

-$2,185.02

$1,854.59

-$330.43

$248,006.1
7

$67,650.00

$15,408.64

$600.00

$27,428.08

$136,919.4
5

$137,249.8
8

$129,007.8
8

$1,281.63

$1,672.03

$126,054.2
2

$126,054.2
2

$15,361.78

YTD
ACTUAL
(JAN
2024)

$364.17

$0.00

$364.17

$11,250.0
0

$0.00

$1,494.50

$600.00

$0.00

$13,344.5
0

$13,708.6
7

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$10,196.1
0

YTD
BUDGET
(JAN
2024)

$364.17

$0.00

$364.17

$53,500.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$53,500.00

$53,864.17

$625.00

$0.00

$0.00

$625.00

$625.00

$5,000.00

YTD
VARIAN
CE

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$42,250.0
0

$0.00

$1,494.50

$600.00

$0.00

$40,155.5
0

$40,155.5
()}

-$625.00

$0.00

$0.00

-$625.00

-$625.00

$5,196.10



FINANCIAL
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ROW SAGE ITEM PAYABLE ITEM

Franchise-Legal
Fees

Total - 6500-005 -
Legal Fees
6500-205 - Audit

Franchise-Audit

Total - 6500-205 -
Audit

Total - 6500-000 - Total

Legal and Insurance

6600-000 - Total Taxes
6600-115 - Sales Tax
6600-120 - Use Tax
on Rental Program
6600-220 - Other
Tax

Total - 6600-000 - Total

Taxes

6700-000 - Total

Miscellaneous Expenses

6700-110 -
Operating Lease -
ROU Asset - PLE

Total - 6700-000 - Total
Miscellaneous Expenses

8000-000 - Total Other
G&A Expenses

8000-005 -
Contributions

Donations

Total - 8000-005 -
Contributions

8000-410 - Allocated
Expenses - CJS-CYR

Franchise -

Allocated Expenses

- CJS-CYR

Total - 8000-410 -
Allocated Expenses -
CIS-CYR

8000-415 - Allocated
Expenses - CJS-MKT

16

PERIOD  PERIOD
ACTUAL  BUDGET YTD
(JAN (JAN VZETA%Z ACTUAL
2024 - 2024 - e (JAN
JUN JUN 2024)
2024) 2024)
$15,642.16 $0.00 $15,642.16 $0.00
$76,458.94 $45,455.00 $31,003.94 $10,196.1
0
$0.00 $37,800.00 -$37,800.00 $0.00
$37,500.00 $0.00 $37,500.00 $0.00
$37,500.00 $37,800.00 -$300.00 $0.00
$113,958.9 $83,255.00 $30,703.94 $10,196.1
a 0
$4,302.90 $0.00  $4,302.90 $0.00
($335.99) $0.00  -$335.99 $0.00
$335.99 $0.00  $335.99 $0.00
$4,302.90 $0.00 $4,302.90 $0.00
$12,411.97 $14,398.45 -$1,986.48 $2,189.22
$12,411.97 $14,398.45 -$1,986.48 $2,189.22
$111.20  $450.00  -$338.80 $0.00
$216.89 $0.00  $216.89 $0.00
$328.09  $450.00 -$121.91 $0.00
$124,395.3 $141,887.2 -$17,491.90  $456.51
0 0
$6,775.71 $0.00 $6,775.71 $0.00
$131,171.0 $141,887.2 -$10,716.19  $456.51
1 0
$178,915.3 $186,189.9 -$7,274.62 $125.96

6 8

YTD
BUDGET
(JAN
2024)

$0.00

$5,000.00

$0.00
$0.00

$0.00

$5,000.00

$0.00
$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$2,537.51

$2,537.51

$0.00
$0.00

$0.00

$22,602.44

$0.00

$22,602.44

$29,655.33

YTD
VARIAN
CE

$0.00

$5,196.10

$0.00
$0.00

$0.00

$5,196.10

$0.00
$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

-$348.29

-$348.29

$0.00
$0.00

$0.00

$22,145.9
3

$0.00

$22,145.9
3

$29,529.3
7



FINANCIAL

Tota

ROW SAGE ITEM

Total - 8000-415 -
Allocated Expenses -
CJS-MKT

Total - 8000-000 - Total
Other G&A Expenses

8500-000 - Total
Depreciation and
amortization
8500-100 - Total
Amortization
8500-130 -
Amortization -
Franchise Fee
Total - 8500-100 -
Total Amortization
8500-200 - Total
Gain/Loss on Sale of
Equipment/Vehicles
8500-210 - Sale
of
Equipment/Vehi
cles
Total - 8500-200 -
Total Gain/Loss on
Sale of
Equipment/Vehicles
8500-300 - Total
Depreciation
8500-310 -
Depreciation
Total - 8500-300 -
Total Depreciation
Total - 8500-000 - Total
Depreciation and
amortization

| - Expense

Net Ordinary Income

Other Income and Expenses

Other Income

174197262v2

4300-000 - Total Interest
Income

4300-010 - Interest
Income - Cash
Management

4300-110 - Interest
Income and Other

PAYABLE ITEM

Franchise -

Allocated Expenses

- CJS-MKT

17

PERIOD  PERIOD
ACTUAL  BUDGET
(JAN (JAN
2024 - 2024 -
JUN JUN
2024) 2024)
$4,417.47 $0.00
$183,332.8 $186,189.9
3 8
$314,831.9 $328,527.1
3 8
$268,518.5 $268,518.0
4 0
$268,518.5 $268,518.0
4 0
$24,599.00 $0.00
$24,599.00 $0.00
$15,182.26 $13,402.50
$15,182.26 $13,402.50

$308,299.8 $281,920.5
0 0

$3,618,859. $4,311,181.

30 59
$309,772.4 $362,417.3
5 4
$18,020.98 $0.00

YTD YTD
VZETAIﬂE ACTUAL  BUDGET
e (JAN (JAN
2024) 2024)
$4,417.47 $0.00 $0.00
$2,857.15 $125.96 $29,655.33
-$13,695.25 $582.47 $52,257.77

$0.54 $44,753.0 $44,753.00
9

$0.54 $44,753.0 $44,753.00

9
$24,599.00 $0.00 $0.00
$24,599.00 $0.00 $0.00
$1,779.76 $0.00 $2,233.75
$1,779.76 $0.00 $2,233.75
$26,379.30 $44,753.0 $46,986.75
9
- $585,485. $532,235.6
$692,322.2 56 9
9
-$52,644.89 ($98,125.6 ($106,487.

3) 65)

$18,020.98 $3,858.61 $0.00

YTD
VARIAN
CE

$0.00

$29,529.3
7

$51,675.3
()}

$0.09

$0.09

$0.00

$0.00

-$2,233.75

-$2,233.75

-$2,233.66

$53,249.8
7

$8,362.02

$3,858.61



FINANCIAL ROW SAGE ITEM PAYABLE ITEM

CJS-INTEREST INCOME

Total - 4300-110 -
Interest Income and
Other

Total - 4300-000 - Total
Interest Income

Total - Other Income
Net Other Income

Net Income

174197262v2
18

PERIOD
ACTUAL
(JAN
2024 -
JUN
2024)

($5,631.15)
($893.93)

($6,525.08)

$11,495.90

$11,495.90
$11,495.90

PERIOD
BUDGET YTD
(JAN VZETA'ﬂZ ACTUAL
2024 - . (JAN
JUN 2024)
2024)

$1,800.00 -$7,431.15  $996.07
$0.00 -$893.93 $0.00

$1,800.00 -$8,325.08 $996.07

$1,800.00 $9,695.90 $4,854.68

$1,800.00 $9,695.90 $4,854.68
$1,800.00 $9,695.90 $4,854.68

$321,268.3 $364,217.3 -$42,948.99 ($93,270.9

5

4 5)

YTD

YTD

BUDGET iy

(JAN CE
2024)

$300.00  $696.07
$0.00 $0.00

$300.00 $696.07

$300.00 $4,554.68

$300.00 $4,554.68
$300.00 $4,554.68

($106,187. $12,916.7
65) 0



FINANCIAL ROW

ASSETS

Current Assets

Bank

174197262v2

1012-232 - BofA
-CJs -
8670814071

Total - 1012-232
- BofA - CJS -
8670814071

1024-046 - Fifth
Third - CJS Gift
Card -
7916858082

Total - 1024-046
- Fifth Third -
CJS Gift Card -
7916858082
1024-026 - Fifth
Third - SHS Main
Dep -
7915470152

Total Bank

Accounts Receivable

zz1301-011 -
Accounts
Receivable -
Allowance

Total Accounts
Receivable

Unbilled Receivable

Other Current Asset

1201-010 -
Prepaid
Expenses

SUBSIDIARY:
INTERNAL ID

9

9

Sun Communities, Inc.
Sun-TLP (Consolidated)

GL Summary | Balance Sheet

End of Jun 2024
Options: Show Zeros, Activity Only

PROPERTY  BUSINESS

SUBSIDIARY

Sun US

Sun US

Sun US

Sun US

Sun US

Sun US

Sun US

Sun US

PROPERTY

CODE

cIs

s

s

CIs

cIs

CIs

cIs

CIs

19

NAME

Camp
Jellystone

Camp
Jellystone

Camp
Jellystone

Camp
Jellystone

Camp
Jellystone

Camp
Jellystone

Camp
Jellystone

Camp
Jellystone

LINE

Sun Homes
Parent

SCOLP Parent

SCOLP Parent

Sun Homes
Parent

Sun Homes
Parent

Sun Homes
Parent

Sun Homes
Parent

SCOLP Parent

ACCOUNT ACCOUNT

NUMBER

1012-232

1012-232

1024-046

1024-046

1024-026

zz1301-011

1201-010

1201-010

NAME YTD AMOUNT
BofA - CJS - $18,450,843.56
8670814071
BofA - CJS - ($18,227,186.88)
8670814071

$223,656.68
Fifth Third - CJS ($37,931.86)
Gift Card -
7916858082
Fifth Third - CJS $486,405.35
Gift Card -
7916858082

$448,473.49
Fifth Third - SHS $0.00
Main Dep -
7915470152

$672,130.17
Accounts $0.00
Receivable -
Allowance

$0.00
$0.00

Prepaid $163,587.64
Expenses
Prepaid $0.00
Expenses



FINANCIAL ROW

Total - 1201-010
- Prepaid
Expenses
1201-011 -
Prepaid
Expenses -
Insurance

1201-035 -
Prepaid
Acquisition
Costs
Total Other Current
Asset

Total Current Assets

Fixed Assets

1512-010 - Building
Improvements
1512-020 - Land
Improvement
1512-720 -
Construction in
Progress

Total - 1512-720 -
Construction in
Progress

1512-740 - Other
Projects in Process
1512-799 - NetAsset
Go-Live Clearing
1514-015 -
Equipment

Total - 1514-015 -
Equipment
1514-020 - Furniture
and Fixtures
1590-010 -
Accumulated
Depreciation - FA

SUBSIDIARY:
INTERNAL ID

SUBSIDIARY

Sun US

Sun US

Sun US

Sun US

Sun US

Sun US

Sun US

Sun US

Sun US

Sun US

Sun US

Sun US

Sun US

Sun US

Sun US

PROPERTY PROPERTY BUSINESS

CODE

cIs

cIs

cIs

CIs

s

cIs

CIs

s

caJs

s

CIs

CIs

s

cIs

s

20

NAME

Camp
Jellystone

Camp
Jellystone

Camp
Jellystone

Camp
Jellystone

Camp
Jellystone

Camp
Jellystone

Camp
Jellystone

Camp
Jellystone

Camp
Jellystone

Camp
Jellystone

Camp
Jellystone

Camp
Jellystone

Camp
Jellystone

Camp
Jellystone

Camp
Jellystone

LINE

Sun Homes
Parent

Sun Homes
Parent

Sun Homes
Parent

Sun Homes
Parent

Sun Homes
Parent

SCOLP Parent

Property
Operations

Property
Operations

Sun Homes
Parent

Sun Homes
Parent

Property
Operations

Sun Homes
Parent

Property
Operations

Sun Homes
Parent

SCOLP Parent

ACCOUNT  ACCOUNT

NUMBER

1201-011

1201-035

1512-010

1512-020

1512-720

1512-720

1512-720

1512-740

1512-799

1514-015

1514-015

1514-020

1590-010

1590-010

1590-010

NAME

Prepaid
Expenses -
Insurance

Prepaid
Acquisition
Costs

Building
Improvements

Land
Improvement

Construction in
Progress

Construction in
Progress

Construction in
Progress

Other Projects
in Process
NetAsset Go-
Live Clearing

Equipment

Equipment

Furniture and
Fixtures

Accumulated
Depreciation -
FA
Accumulated
Depreciation -
FA
Accumulated

Depreciation -
FA

YTD AMOUNT

$163,587.64

$22,050.33

$0.00

$185,637.97

$857,768.14

$0.00

$6,975.00

$144,191.89

(516,839.86)

$16,839.86

$144,191.89

$12,667.76

$0.00

$206,666.11

$0.00

$206,666.11

$12,781.20

($150.81)

($38,124.86)

$150.81



SUBSIDIARY: PROPERTY PROPERTY BUSINESS ACCOUNT  ACCOUNT

FINANCIAL ROW INTERNAL ID SUBSIDIARY CODE NAME LINE NUMBER  NAME YTD AMOUNT
Total - 1590-010 - ($38,124.86)
Accumulated
Depreciation - FA

Total Fixed Assets $345,157.10
Other Assets
1150-020 - Operating 9 Sun US CJS Camp Sun Homes 1150-020 Operating Cash $0.00
Cash Jellystone Parent
1160-010 - Deposits
- Utilities & Other
9 Sun US CIS Camp SCOLP Parent 1160-010 Deposits - $2,485.00
Jellystone Utilities & Other
9 Sun US CJs Camp Sun Homes 1160-010 Deposits - $22,450.75
Jellystone Parent Utilities & Other
Total - 1160-010 - $24,935.75
Deposits - Utilities &
Other
1161-035 - Escrow -
Rent
9 Sun US CJS Camp SCOLP Parent 1161-035 Escrow - Rent (5648,344.46)
Jellystone
9 Sun US CJS Camp Sun Homes 1161-035 Escrow - Rent $1,135,797.65
Jellystone Parent
Total - 1161-035 - $487,453.19
Escrow - Rent
1204-025 - Inventory 9 Sun US CJS Camp Sun Homes 1204-025 Inventory - $1,339,037.24
- Merchandise Jellystone Parent Merchandise
1207-010 - Operating 9 Sun US cls Camp Sun Homes 1207-010 Operating Lease $0.00
Lease - ROU Asset Jellystone Parent - ROU Asset
1301-011 - Accounts
Receivable -
Allowance
9 Sun US cJs Camp Sun Homes 1301-011 Accounts ($15,096.36)
Jellystone Parent Receivable -
Allowance
9 Sun US CIS Camp Rental 1301-011 Accounts $0.00
Jellystone Program - Receivable -
Home Allowance
Total - 1301-011 - ($15,096.36)
Accounts Receivable
- Allowance
1303-040 - Accounts 9 Sun US CJS Camp Sun Homes 1303-040 Accounts $1,810,494.60
Receivable - Camp Jellystone Parent Receivable -
Jellystone Franchise Camp Jellystone
Franchise
1600-000 - Goodwill 9 Sun US cJs Camp Sun Homes 1600-000 Goodwill $9,492,993.17
Jellystone Parent
1650-043 - Franchise 9 Sun US CJS Camp Sun Homes 1650-043 Franchise Fee $14,500,000.00
Fee Jellystone Parent
1650-049 - 9 Sun US cJs Camp Sun Homes 1650-049 Accumulated ($1,342,592.62)
Accumulated Jellystone Parent Amortization -
Amortization - Intangibles -
Intangibles - Other Other
Total Other Assets $26,297,224.97
Total ASSETS $27,500,150.21

Liabilities & Equity

Current Liabilities

174197262v2
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FINANCIAL ROW

Accounts Payable

2001-010 -
Accounts
Payable
(System)

Total - 2001-010
- Accounts
Payable
(System)
2001-020 -
Accounts
Payable - PNC

Total - 2001-020
- Accounts
Payable - PNC

Total Accounts
Payable

Credit Card

Other Current

Liability
2001-009 -

Accounts
Payable (JE)

Total - 2001-009

- Accounts
Payable (JE)
2002-320 - AP 9
Due to US (From
Canada) - ELIM
2010-035-A/P -
Inventory
Purchase

Clearing

174197262v2

SUBSIDIARY:
INTERNAL ID

SUBSIDIARY

Sun US

Sun US

Sun US

Sun US

Sun US

Sun US

Sun US

Sun US

Sun US

Sun US

Sun US

PROPERTY PROPERTY BUSINESS

CODE

s

s

CIs

s

CIs

CIs

s

CIs

cls

s

s

NAME

Camp
Jellystone

Camp
Jellystone

Camp
Jellystone

Camp
Jellystone

Camp
Jellystone

Camp
Jellystone

Camp
Jellystone

Camp
Jellystone

Camp
Jellystone

Camp
Jellystone

Camp
Jellystone

22

LINE NUMBER

SCOLP Parent 2001-010

Sun Homes 2001-010
Parent

Property 2001-010
Operations

Property 2001-020
Operations

SCOLP Parent 2001-020

Sun Homes 2001-020
Parent

Property 2001-009
Operations

SCOLP Parent 2001-009

Sun Homes 2001-009
Parent
Sun Homes 2002-320
Parent

SCOLP Parent 2010-035

ACCOUNT  ACCOUNT

NAME

Accounts
Payable
(System)
Accounts
Payable
(System)
Accounts
Payable
(System)

Accounts
Payable - PNC

Accounts
Payable - PNC

Accounts
Payable - PNC

Accounts
Payable (JE)
Accounts
Payable (JE)

Accounts
Payable (JE)

AP Due to US
(From Canada) -
ELIM

A/P - Inventory
Purchase
Clearing

YTD AMOUNT

($74,406.82)

$0.00

$0.00

($74,406.82)

$0.00

$0.00

($63,163.00)

($63,163.00)

($137,569.82)

$0.00

($1,397.56)

$1,397.56

($15,041.39)

($15,041.39)

$0.00

$0.00



FINANCIAL ROW

174197262v2

SUBSIDIARY:
INTERNAL ID SUBSIDIARY

9 Sun US

Total - 2010-035
-A/P-
Inventory
Purchase
Clearing

2010-115 - 9
Accrued

Expenses -

Utilities

2010-135 - 9
Accrued

Expenses - AmEx
Card

2010-199 -
Accrued

Expenses -
Other

Sun US

Sun US

9 Sun US

9 Sun US

Total - 2010-199
- Accrued
Expenses -
Other

2011-010- 9
Accrued Payroll
2011-015 - 9
Accrued

Bonuses - Bonus

& Incentive Plan
2011-025 -

Expense
Reimbursement

Sun US

Sun US

9 Sun US

9 Sun US

Total - 2011-025
- Expense
Reimbursement
2012-010 -
Accrued Sales
Tax

9 Sun US

9 Sun US

Total - 2012-010
- Accrued Sales
Tax

2012-011 - 9
Accrued Sales
Tax - Legacy

Sun US

PROPERTY PROPERTY BUSINESS

CODE NAME LINE

ClS Camp Sun Homes
Jellystone Parent

CJS Camp SCOLP Parent
Jellystone

CJS Camp Sun Homes
Jellystone Parent

CJS Camp Sun Homes
Jellystone Parent

cls Camp SCOLP Parent
Jellystone

CJS Camp Sun Homes
Jellystone Parent

cls Camp Sun Homes
Jellystone Parent

CJS Camp Sun Homes
Jellystone Parent

CJS Camp SCOLP Parent
Jellystone

CJS Camp Sun Homes
Jellystone Parent

cJs Camp Retail
Jellystone

ClS Camp Sun Homes
Jellystone Parent

23

ACCOUNT  ACCOUNT
NUMBER  NAME

2010-035  A/P-Inventory
Purchase

Clearing

2010-115 Accrued
Expenses -
Utilities
2010-135 Accrued
Expenses -
AmEx Card

2010-199 Accrued
Expenses -

Other

2010-199 Accrued
Expenses -

Other

2011-010 Accrued Payroll

2011-015 Accrued
Bonuses -
Bonus &

Incentive Plan

2011-025 Expense

Reimbursement

2011-025 Expense

Reimbursement

2012-010 Accrued Sales

Tax

2012-010 Accrued Sales

Tax

2012-011 Accrued Sales

Tax - Legacy

YTD AMOUNT

($168,562.45)

(5168,562.45)

$0.00

($6,584.09)

($448,798.06)

($27,549.38)

(5476,347.44)

($744.21)

($374,394.73)

($5,502.71)

($347.57)

($5,850.28)

($9,969.13)

$733.47

($9,235.66)

$0.00



FINANCIAL ROW

2012-020 -
Accrued Sales
Tax - SRD&E
2100-025 -
Unearned
Income
2100-061 -
Operating Lease
Liabilities

Total - 2100-061
- Operating
Lease Liabilities
2201-010 - Gift
Cards - Due to
Total Other Current
Liability
Total Current Liabilities
Long Term Liabilities
Equity
Equity
3121-010-

Investment
owed to Parent

Total - 3121-010
- Investment
owed to Parent

3121-030 -
Investment
owed to Parent
- Northgate

174197262v2

SUBSIDIARY:
INTERNAL ID

9

SUBSIDIARY

Sun US

Sun US

Sun US

Sun US

Sun US

Sun US

Sun US

Sun US

Sun US

Sun US

Sun US

Sun US

Sun US

Sun US

Sun US

Sun US

PROPERTY PROPERTY BUSINESS
CODE

caJs

CIs

cls

CIs

caJs

s

s

caJs

s

cIs

CIs

cls

cls

s

s

caJs

24

NAME

Camp
Jellystone

Camp
Jellystone

Camp
Jellystone

Camp
Jellystone

Camp
Jellystone

Camp
Jellystone

Camp
Jellystone

Camp
Jellystone

Camp
Jellystone

Camp
Jellystone

Camp
Jellystone

Camp
Jellystone

Camp
Jellystone

Camp
Jellystone

Camp
Jellystone

Camp
Jellystone

LINE NUMBER
Sun Homes 2012-020
Parent
Sun Homes 2100-025
Parent

SCOLP Parent 2100-061

Sun Homes 2100-061
Parent

Sun Homes 2201-010
Parent

Broker 3121-010
Property 3121-010
Operations

Home Sales  3121-010
Retail 3121-010
Dining 3121-010
Sun Homes 3121-010
Parent

SCOLP Parent 3121-010
Other 3121-010
3121-010

Legacy

Entertainment 3121-010

Sun Homes 3121-030

Parent

ACCOUNT  ACCOUNT

NAME YTD AMOUNT
Accrued Sales $1,378.39
Tax - SRD&E
Unearned ($434,771.93)
Income

Operating Lease $653,953.47

Liabilities
Operating Lease ($1,028,105.82)
Liabilities

($374,152.35)

Gift Cards - Due ($607,826.32)

to
($2,472,132.46)
($2,609,702.28)
$0.00
Investment $0.00
owed to Parent
Investment ($12,462.21)
owed to Parent
Investment $0.00

owed to Parent

Investment
owed to Parent

$2,178,759.60

Investment ($103.90)
owed to Parent
Investment ($50,074,454.73)

owed to Parent

Investment
owed to Parent

$17,902,463.46

Investment $69,196.91

owed to Parent

Investment
owed to Parent

($270,286.49)

Investment
owed to Parent

($222,825.74)

($30,429,713.10)

Investment $0.00
owed to Parent
- Northgate



FINANCIAL

SUBSIDIARY: PROPERTY PROPERTY BUSINESS ACCOUNT  ACCOUNT

ROW INTERNAL ID SUBSIDIARY CODE NAME LINE NUMBER  NAME YTD AMOUNT
9 Sun US CIS Camp SCOLP Parent 3121-030 Investment $0.00
Jellystone owed to Parent
- Northgate
Total - 3121-030 $0.00
- Investment
owed to Parent
- Northgate
3121-040 - 9 Sun US CJs Camp Sun Homes 3121-040 Investment $8,944,433.74
Investment Jellystone Parent owed to Parent
owed to Parent - - Camp
Camp Jellystone Jellystone
3140-030 -
Current Year
Profit/Loss
9 Sun US CJS Camp Sun Homes 3140-030 Current Year $0.00
Jellystone Parent Profit/Loss
9 Sun US CJS Camp SCOLP Parent 3140-030 Current Year $0.00
Jellystone Profit/Loss
Total - 3140-030 $0.00
- Current Year
Profit/Loss
Total - Equity ($21,485,279.36)
Retained Earnings
Retained
Earnings
(Account
Section)
3140-021- 9 Sun US CIS Camp Sun Homes 3140-021 Retained $62,248.00
Retained Jellystone Parent Earnings (NS)
Earnings
(Ns)
Net Income ($3,146,148.22)
(Balance
Forward to
Beginning of
Year)

Total Retained
Earnings

Net Income
Cumulative
Translation
Adjustment

Total Equity

Total Liabilities & Equity
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($3,083,900.22)
($321,268.35)

$0.00

($24,890,447.93)
($27,500,150.21)
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f‘? ARK SCHAEFER HACKETT

BUSIMESS ADVISORS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Members of
Camp Jellystone LLC

Opinion

W have audited the accompanying financial statemaents of Camp Jellystone LLC, which comprise tha
bakance sheets as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, and the relaled statements of operations, members’
equity and cash lows for the years then ended, and the related noles 1o the finandal statements.

In our opinean, the financal statements referred 1o above present fairy, in all material respects, the
financial position of Camp Jellystone LLC as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and the results of its
operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles ganerally
accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

Wa conducted our audils in accordance with auditing standards generally accaplad in the Uniled States
of America. Qur responsibiliies under those standards are further described in the Auditors’
Responsibiities for the Audil of the Financial Statemnents section ol our report. We are required to be
independant of Camp Jellystone LLC and to meet our other ethical responsibiliies in accordance with the
relevant ethical requiraments relating to our audits. We believe that the awdit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management i responsible for the praparation and fair presantation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, mplemantation, and maintenance of internal control relevant Lo the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from materal misstatemant, whether due to fraud or
BITOF.

In preparing the financal stalements, management is required 1o evaluate whether there are conditions or
events, considered in the aggregate, thal raise substantial doubt about the Camp Jellystone LLC s ability
to conlinwe as a going concern within ane year after the date that the financal statemeants ane available o
b Issuwed,

Auditors’ Responsibllities for the Audit of the Financlal Statements

Our objectives are to oblain reasonable assurance aboul whather the financal statemants as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and (o issue an auditors’ report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assuranca is a high level of assurance bul is not absolute assurance
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepled auditing
standards will always detect a material misstalement when it exists. The risk of nol detecting a matarial
misstatemeant resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may invalve
collusion, forgery, intentional omessions, misrepresantations, or the override of internal control.
Misstatements are considered material if there s a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the
aggregate, they would influance the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the finanaal
stalements.
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In parforming an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:

Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audits.
Ientify and assess the risks of material misstatemant of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procadures responsive (o those risks. Such

procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statemenis.

Obtain an understanding of internal control redevant to the audits in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Camp Jellystone LLC s internal control. Accordingly, no such
opinion is expressead.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by manageament, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,

that raise substantial doubt about the Camp Jellystone LLC's ability to continue as a going
concem for a reasonable period of ime.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matiers,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant awdit findings, and certain internal control related
matters that we identified during the audit.

Clark, :fséa&ﬁq tackett & Co.

Cincinnati, Ohio
June 4, 2025
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Camp Jellystone LLC

{A Subsidiary of Sun Communities Operating Limited Partnership and Sun Home Services, Inc.)
Balance Shesis

Decamber 31, 2024 and 2023

2024 2023
Assets
Current assats:
Cash $ 477918 3,501,458
Restricted cash, cumrent portion 92,984 183,150
Accournts receivable - irade, net of allowance for credit
losses of $15,096 in 2024 and 2023 1,363,248 815,357
Invantorias 1,010,691 1,493,010
Prepaid expenses 191,611 171,499
3,136 453 6,174,472
Praperty and equipmant, net 873,492 203,481
Chiher assets:
Restricted cash, net of current portion 374,957 942 648
Goodwill 8,482 993 8,482 983
Existing franchise relationships, net 12,888 880 13,425,926

22,756,839 23,861,567

§ 26,766,784 30,239,520

See accompanying notes to the financial statemenis.

3
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Liabilities and Membars' Equity

Cumrent liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Related party payables
Abandoned lease liability, current portion
Deferred revenua

Other Eabllities:
Abandoned lease liabilty, net of current portion

Meambers' equity:
Series A mambarship units
Series B mambarship unils

Camp Jellystona LLC
(A Subsidiary of Sun Communities Operating Limited Parinership and Sun Home Services, Inc.)

Balance Sheets (Continuad)
December 31, 2024 and 2023

2024 2023

§ 1,591,968 1,586,195
1,795 978 2370253

a2 384 183,150
796,224 BA5 052
4,277,154 5,034,650
296,879 834,956
(747,802) (499,437)

22 940,653 24,869,351
22,192,751 24,369,914
$ 26,766,784 30,239,520

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.

4
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Camp Jellystone LLC

{A Subsidiary of Sun Communities Operating Limited Partnership and Sun Home Services, Inc.}

Royalty revenue

Merchandise sales, net

Franchise transfer and territory fees
Early termination feas

Diperating income

Other (expenses) income:

Less an disposal of property and equipment
Other

Met income

Staterneants of Operations
Years Ended Decamber 31, 2024 and 2023

2024 2023

$ 8,047,868 8,545,688
2,828 633 3,957,270
98, 790 11,500

- 78,717

- 163
11,073,261 12,591,336
1,692 B46 2,312,324
6,556,298 7,568,478
31,920 22,167
B37.037 537,037
8,818,111 10,440,006
2,255,180 2,151,330

. {15,414

25,253 33,968
25253 18,554

$ 2280433 2,169,884

See accompanying noles 1o the financial stataments.

5
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Balance - January 1, 2023
Distributions

MNet income (loss)

Balance - December 31, 2023
Distributicns

Met income (loss)

Balance - December 31, 2024

Camp Jellystone LLC

{A Subsidiary of Sun Communities Operating Limited Parinership and Sun Home Sarvices, Inc.)
Staternants of Members' Equity

Years Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023

Members' Equity
Series A Series B
Units Units Total

5 (124,256) 23,163 422 23,039,166
. (839,136) (839,136)

(375,181) 2,545,085 2,160,884

$ (499,437) 24,869,351 24,360,914
. (4,457 596) (4,457 596)

(248 465) 24528898 2 2280433

5 (747,902) 22,940,853 22,192,751

See accompanying notes lo the financial statements.
6
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Camp Jallystone LLC

(A Subsidiary of Sun Communities Operating Limited Partnership and Sun Home Sarvices, Inc.)

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income
Adjustments 1o reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation
Amortization
Loss on disposal of fived assets
Changes in assels and Rabilities:
Accounis receivable
Inventories
Prepaid expenses
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Related party payables
Doferrad revenue
Lease Rability

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of fixed assats

Cash Nlows: from financing activities:
Members' distributions

Het change in cash and restricied cash
Cash and restricted cash at beginning of year

Cash and restricted cash at end of year

Statemants of Cash Flows
Yeamrs Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023

2024 2023
$ 2280433 2,160 884
31,529 22,167
537,047 537,037
. 15414
(547,891) (341,701)
482,319 268,525
(20,112) (38,488)
5,773 {339,755)
(574,275) 1,091,309
(88,828) (739.747)
(638,243) (167.672)
1,468,142 2,475.062
(701,940) (196,778)
(4,457 596) (839,136)
(3,691 304) 1,440,048
4,637,254 3,197,206
$ 045860 4,637.254

See accompanying notes 1o the inancial statements.
7
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Camp Jellysicne LLC

{A Subsidiary of Sun Communities Operating Limited Partnership and Sun Home Services, Inc.)
Maotes to the Financial Statements

Decamber 31, 2024 and 2023

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

The following accounting principles and practces of Camp Jeilystona LLC (the “Company”) are sel forth
to facilitate the understanding of data presented in the financial statements.

Business activity

Camp Jellystona LLC ("CJ5"), a Delaware limited liability company, ks owned by Sun Jellystone Holding
LLC ("5JH"). SJH assigned series A LLC units of CJS to Sun Communities Operating Limited Partnership
("SCOLP") and series B LLC units of CJS to Sun Home Services, Inc. ("SHS"). The Seres A units hold
rights 1o the franchise license and Series B units owns all other assets of CJS. The Company is the
axclusive franchisor of campgrounds under the Yogi Bear's Jellystone Park Camps - Resors. Thase
campgrounds are operated throughout the United States and Canada.

Cash and restricted cash

The Company maintains cash balances in a financial institution that may, at times, exceed federally
ingured limits, Mo losses have been incumred and management believes the Company is not exposed to
any significant credit risk of loss in cash.

As of Decembar 31, 2024 and 2023, the Company had $467,941 and $1,135,798, respectively, of cash in
an escrow account designated to pay the remainder of the abandoned lease obligation (Maote 4). These
amounts are classified as restricted cash.

The following table provides a reconciliation of cash and restricted cash reported within the balance
sheets that sum 1o the total of the same such amounts shown in the statements of cash flows:

2024 2023
Cash $ 477019 3,501,456
Restricted cash, current portion 82 984 183,150
Restricted cash, net of current portion 374 957 942 648
Total cash and restricted cash shown in the
statements of cash flows 5 45860 4,637,254

Accounts receivable

Accounts recelvable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from outstanding balances.
An allowance for credil losses is an estimate based upon historical account write-off trends, facts about
the current financial condition of the deblor, forecasts of future operating results based upon current
trends and macroeconomic factors. Credit quality is monitored through the timing of payments compared
o payment terms and known facts regarding the financial condition of debtors. Accounts receivable
balancas are changed off against the allowance for credit losses after recovery efforts have ceasad.
Management has reviewed the Company's accounts receivable and determined that expected credit
losses are not material io the financial statements as a wholbe.

Inventories
Inveniories consist principally of merchandise and supplies. Inventory ks recorded al the lower of first-in,
first-out ("FIFO") cost or net realizable valuea,
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Camp Jellysione LLC

(A Subsidiary of Sun Communities Operating Limited Partnership and Sun Homea Servicas, Inc.)
Motes to the Financial Statements

December 31, 2024 and 2023

Property and eguipment
Property and equipment is stated at cost. Depreciation is provided on the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives of the related assets or over the respective lease term, whichever is shorter.

Goodwill

As part of a prior acquisition transaction, goodwill was recognized and is not being amortized. The
goodwill is reviewed al least annually for indications of impairment, with consideration given to financial
parformance and other relevant factors. Mo impairment was deemed to have occurred at December 31,
2024 and 2023,

Existing franchise relationships

As part of a prior acquisition transaction, the Company recorded an intangible asset representing the
estimated fair value of existing franchise relationships supported by executed franchise agreemeants with
axisting businesses. The franchise agreemeants ane subject to termination by either party under panalty of
early franchise termination fees determined on a case-by-case basis. Based on previous experience, it is
expected that the relationships last on average 27 years. The camrying value is amortized over 27T years,
beginning January 1, 2022, and is evaluated annually for impairmient, No impairment was deemed fo
have occurred at December 31, 2024 and 2023. Accumulated amortization as of December 31, 2024 and
2023 totaled $1,611,111 and 31,074,074, respectively.

Future amortization is as follows for the years ended December 31:

2025 § B3r.037

2026 537,037

2027 537,037

2028 537,037

2029 537,037

Thereafter 10,203,704

$ 12,888,889

Revenue recognition
The Company derives its income primarily from royalty revenue and merchandise sales, and recognizes
this revenue as follows:

Foyalty revenue is based on gross receipts of franchisees and includes operating, advertising and Club
Yogi Rewards (CYR) royalties. The Company recognizes operating royalty revenues over time.
Advertising and CYR royalties are only to be used for brand marketing, advertising, and facilitation of the
CYR program. Once this performance obligation has been satisfied, by incurring applicable costs,
advertising and CYR royalties are recognized. Franchise transfer and terrilory fees are recognized at the
time of the transaction and are not malterial to the transaction price. Initial franchise fees, when assessed
and collected, are considered eamed at a point in time as the Company has separate and distinct
performance obligations related to the initial fee, typically to provide merchandise.

174197262v2

36



Camp Jellysiona LLC

(A Subsidiary of Sun Communities Operating Limited Partnership and Sun Homea Servicas, Inc.)
Motes to the Financial Statemeants

December 31, 2024 and 2023

For the years ended December 31, the below table illusirates the breakout of royalty revenues

recognizad:
2024 2023
Operating royalties § 4,508,318 4,488,563
Club Yogi Rewards royalties 1,060,169 1,050,873
Advertising royalties 2,479,380 3,008,250
Total royalty revenue § 8047868  B.545686

Merchandise sales are recognized when the product is shipped and recorded in an amount that reflects
the consideration the Comipany expects 1o be entitied 1o in exchange for those products. Sales and other
taxes the Company collects concurrant with revenue-producing activities are excluded from revenua.
Shipping and handling fees charged o franchisees are reported within revenue. Incidental items that are
immaterial in the conlext of the contract are recognized as expense. The Company does not have any
significant financing components as payment is received at or shortly after the point of sale. Costs
incurred to obtain a contract are expansed as incurred whean the amortization period s less than a year.

The nature of the Company’s business gives rise to variable consideration, as rights to retlums and
discounts do exist. Upon the transfer of control, the Company recognizes the amount of the consideration
less the applicable discount, as it is included directly in the transfer price. As historical data has shown,
returns are infrequent and represent an insignificant amount of total merchandise sales. Returns and
discounis are recorded as direct reductions against merchandise sales. Since all discounts are included
within the transfer price at the time of the sale, the expense at year end represents iotal discounts applied
for the year,

During 2024, no termination of franchise agreements prior to the contract expiration date occurred. During
2023, one franchises terminated their franchise agreement prior to the contract expiration date, resulting
in a one-time early termination fee of $76,717. There were no performance obligations 1o be satisfied by
the Company in relation io these terminations. Upon mutual agreement of the fransaction price, based
upon terms within the franchise agreement, the fees were recognized as early termination fees.

At December 31, 2024 and 2023, deferred revenue of $796,224 and $885,052, respectively, include
advertising and CYR royalties received in excess of revenue recognized and prepayments for
merchandise not shipped at year end. Deferred revenue is considered a contract liabdlity under the
revenue recognition standard.

The below table ilustrates the balances of accounts receivable and deferred revenue at January 1, 2023:

Accounts receivable § 473,656
Defered revenue 31,624,795

Revenue recognized from amounts included in deferred revenue at the beginning of 2024 and 2023
totaled S885,052 and $739,747, respactively,

10
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Camp Jellystona LLC
(A Subsidiary of Sun Communities Oparating Limited Parinership and Sun Home Services, Inc.)

MNotes to the Financial Statements
Decambear 31, 2024 and 2023

Income taxes

Effective Decembaer 31, 2021, CJS bacame a disregarded antity of SCOLP with respect to its senes A
meambership interest and a disregarded entity of SHS with respect to its series B mambership inlerest and
will be included in each members' federal income tax relurn under provisions of the Internal Revenue
Code. In accordance with Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2018-12, income taxes have not bean
aliocated from SCOLP or SHS o CJS as it is a disregarded entity.

Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with U.5. GAAP requires management to make
estimales and assumpticns that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the dabte of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
révanues and axpanses during the reporting pericd. Actual results could differ from those astimates.

Subsequent events

The Company evaluates events and transactions occurring subseguent to the date of the financial
statemants for matters requinng recogniton or disclosure in the financial statements. The accompanying
financial statemeants consider events through June 4, 2025, the date on which the financial siatemeanis
ware available 1o be issued.

Z. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT:

Property and equipment consist of the following at December 31:

2024 2023
Fusrniture and fistures § 12781 B.B3T
Construction in progress 701,841 32,818
Machinery and equipment 213,641 184 967
928,363 226,423
Less accumulated depreciation 54871 _22842
$E73402 203,481
3. GOODWILL:
Goodwill consists of the following at December 31:
2024 2023
Goodwill - assembled workforce $ 210,000 210,000
Goodwill - acquisition 0,282 893 9,282,503
Gross camying value $ B.492.893 2492 503

No amortization was recognized in relation to these goodwill amounts in 2024 and 2023,

1
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Camp Jallysiocne LLC

(A Subsidiary of Sun Communities Operating Limited Partnership and Sun Home Services, Inc.)
Motes to the Financial Statements

December 31, 2024 and 2023

4. LEASE OBLIGATION:

During 2021, the Company entered into a laase for new office and warahouse space which commenced
on November 1, 2021 and would terminate in February 2029, Effective December 31, 2022, the Company
axgcuted an agreemant to vacate premises of and abandon this leasad space. In connaction with the
abandonment, the Company recognized and expensed the remaining right-of-use asset as of the date of
the abandonment for a total of $1.055,661. Additionally, the Company accrued for the estimaled
remaining common area maintenance and taxes associated with the abandoned spaces as no futune
banafil is expacted from the space. During 2024, the Company entered ino a lsase lemination
agreament of the office space resulting in a final payment of $524,933 which directly decreased the
outstanding lease liability. The amount acerued for common area maintenance lotaled $317 677 and
$391.518 for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

Az the lease agreement for the warehouse was not terminated, the following is a schedule of future
minimum lease payments for the abandoned space for the years ended December 31:

2025 § 92584
2026 95,309
2027 97,692
2028 100,134
2029 25,187
411,306
Less imputed interast 121.443)
§ 388863

The Company created an ascrow account 1o pay this ramaining lease lability over the course of tha
original lease agreement. The escrow account was sel up with an initial balance of $1,287 275 in
Decamber 2022, The balance of the ascrow account was 3467941 and 51,135,798 at December 31,
2024 and 2023, respactively.

5. EMPLOYEE SAVINGS PLAN:

The Company participates in a 401(k) plan sponsored by the parent company of SHS covering eligible
employeas as defined by the plan. The plan allows for matching and discretionary contributions, as
determined by SHS' parent company. Company confributicns of 530,066 and $28.675 were made for the
years endad Decamber 31, 2024 and 2023, respectivaly.

6. ADVERTISING COSTS:

Advertising cosls are expansed as they occur. The Company expensed $1,988 428 and $2, 735,767,
respectively, for advertising In 2024 and 2023.

12
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Camp Jellysione LLC
(A Subsidiary of Sun Communities Operating Limited Partnership and Sun Home Services, Inc.)

Motes to the Financial Statements
Dacamber 31, 2024 and 2023

7. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

Az described in Note 1, the Company is whelly ewned by Sun Communities Oparating Limited
Parinership ("SCOLP") and Sun Home Services, Inc. ("SHS"). As part of operations, the Company enters
into certain transactions with its parent companies and thair affiliates. Thers wane no amounts due 1o
SCOLP as of December 31, 2024 and 2023. The amounts due to SHS lotaled $1,795.978 and
§2,370,253 for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

During 2024 and 2023, the Company also recaived royalty revenues lotaling $3,913.312 and 54,130,845,

respectively, from parks cwned by the parent companies. Al December 31, 2024 and 2023, accounts
receivable due from these parks totaled 5114.538 and $220,587, respectively.

13
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ER HACKI 10100 Innovation Drive, Suite 400, Deyton, Ohio 45342
BUSINESS ADVISO F. 937.226.0070 | F. 937.226.1626

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Members of
Camp Jellystone LLC

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Camp Jellystone LLC, which comprise the
balance sheets as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, and the related statements of operations, members’
equity and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Camp Jellystone LLC as of December 31, 2023 and 2022 and the results of its
operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be
independent of Camp Jellystone LLC and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Camp Jellystone LLC's ability

to continue as a going concem within one year after the date that the financial statements are available to
be issued.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or emmor, and to issue an auditors’ report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The nisk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from ermor, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the ovemide of intemnal control.
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the
aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial
statements.
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In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:

Exercise professional judgment and maintain professicnal skepticism throughout the audits.

ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements.

Obtain an understanding of intermal control relevant to the audits in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
apinion on the efectiveness of the Camp Jellystone LLC's internal control. Accordingly, no such
opinion is expressed.

Ewvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by managemeant, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statemants.

Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt abowt the Camp Jellystone LLC's ability to continue as a going
concem for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with govemance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings. and certain imternal contrel related
matters that we identified during the audit

Clrk, Sohacker, Hockett & Co

Cincinnati, Ohio

July 10, 2024
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Azsais

Cumrent assets:
Cash
Restricted cash, current portion
Accounts receivable - trade, met
Inventaries
Prepaid expenses

Property and equipment - net

Cther assets:

Restricted cash, net of current porticn
Goodwill
Existing franchise relationships, net

5

Camp Jellystone LLC
(A Subsidiary of Sun Communities Operating Limited Partnership and Sun Home Services, Ine.)

Balance Shests
December 31, 2023 and 2022

2023 2022
3.501.456 1,808,931
183,150 188,438
815,357 473,656
1,493,010 1,761,535
171,488 132,000
8,174,472 4, 485,581
203.481 44,284
842,648 1,098,836
9,462 903 0,402,003
13,425,926 13,062,863
23,881,587 24 554,782
30,238,520 20,084,637

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Camp Jellystone LLC

(A Subsidiary of Sun Communities Operating Limited Partnership and Sun Home Services, Inc.)
Balance Sheets (Continued)

December 31, 2023 and 2022

2023 2022

Liakilities and Membars' Equity
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 3 1,586,185 1,825,850

Related party payables 2,370,253 1,275,544

Abandoned lease liability, cumsnt portion 183,150 188.438

Deferred revenus 285,062 1,624 700

5.034,850 5,018,132

COther liabilities:

Abandoned lease liabilty, net of current portion 534,856 1,007,338
Members' equity:

Series A membership units (429 437) (124, 258)

Series B membership units 24,868,351 23,183,422

24,388,814 23,030,186
F 30,238,520 20,084,637

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
4
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Royalty revenue

Merchandise =ales, net

Franchize transfer and termitory fees
Earty termination fees

COrther

Cost of merchandise sold
Operating expense
Di=preciation expenss
Amortization expense

O perating income

Other (expenses) income:
Early lease abandonment
Loss on disposal of property and eguipment
Crther

Met incomse

Camp Jellystone LLC
(A Subsidiary of Sun Communities Operating Limited Parinership and Sunm Home Services, Inc.)

Statements of Operations
Years Ended December 31, 2023 and 2022

2023 2022
§ 5545688 8,570,018
3,957,270 4,343,110
11,500 80,000

78.717 102,385

163 4,841

12,501,338 13,080,382
2,312,324 2,856,115
7,568,478 8,078,808
22,167 7.857

537.037 537,037
10,440,008 10,479,818
2,151,330 2,800,544
- {1,655, 550)
(15.414) {98.,581)

33,968 18,231
18,554 {1,733,000)

§  2.160,884 866,644

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Balance - January 1, 2022
Distributions

Met income (loss)

Balance - December 31, 2022
Distributions

Met income (loss)

Balance - December 31, 2023

Camp Jellystone LLC
(A Subsidiary of Sun Communities Operating Limited Partnership and Sun Home Services, Inc.)

Statements of Members' Equity
Years Ended December 31, 2023 and 2022

Members' Equity

Series A Series B
Units Units Total

S 250,000 22,040,872 23,180,872
- (1,027,350} (1,027,350)

(374,258) 1.240.800 BEa.544

k3 (124,258) 23,163,422 23,030,186
- (839,138) (839,13B)

(375.181) 2,545,065 2,160,884

b3 (4095,437) 24,880,351 24,360,014

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.

48

[i]



174197262v2

Cash flows from operating activities:
Mt incoms
Adjustments to reconcile et incoms to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation
Amortization
Amortization of operating lease nght-of-use asset
Loss on disposal of fixed assets
Loss on early lease abandonment
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Acoounts receivable
Invwentaries
Prepaid expenses
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Related party payables
Deferred revenus
Lease liability

Met cash provided by operating activiies

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of fived assets

Cash flows from financing activities:
Members" distributions

Cash used by financing activities
Met change im cash and restricted cash
Cash and restricted cash at beginning of year
Zash and restricted cash at end of year

Supplernental cash flow disclosures of nmon-cash activities:
Early lease abandonment (Mote 4)

Camp Jellystone LLC
(A Subsidiary of Sun Communities Operating Limited Partnership and Sum Home Serdces, Ino.)

Statements of Cash Flows
Years Endad December 31, 2023 and 2022

2023 2022
$ 2.160.884 66,644
22,167 7.857
537.037 537,037
- 188,120
15.414 96,531
- 1,655,550
{341.701) {80.604)
268 525 (1,208,370}
(39,409) 115,813
{330,755) 266,219
1,081,300 1,278,944
(730,747) (656,528)
{167.672) 198,505)
2 475,962 2840710
{196.778) {109.,878)
(539.138) {1.027.350)
{839,138) (1,027 350)
1,440,048 1,703 482
3,197.208 1.403.724
$ 4837354 3,197,208
3 - 1,055,661

See aoccompanying notes o the financial statements.
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Camp Jellystone LLC

{A Subsidiary of Sun Communities Operating Limited Partnership and Sun Home Senvices, Inc.)
Motes to the Financial Statements

December 31, 2023 and 2022

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

The following accounting principles and practices of Camp Jellystone LLC {the "Company™) are set forth
to facilitate the understanding of data presented in the financial statements.

Business activity

Camp Jellystone LLC ("CJ5"), a Delaware limited liability company, is owned by Sun Jellystone Holding
LLC ["5JH"). SJH assigned seres A LLC units of CJ5 to Sun Communities Operating Limited Partnership
("SCOLP7) and series B LLC units of CJS to Sun Home Services, Inc. ("SHS™). The Seres A units hald
rights to the franchise license and Seres B units owns all other assets of CJ5. The Company is the
exclusive franchisor of campgrounds under the Yogi Bear's Jellystone Park Camps - Resorts. Thess
campgrounds are operated throughout the United States and Canada.

Adoption of new accounting standard

The Company adopted Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Stamdards Update
{ASU) 2016-13, Ainancial Instruments - Credit Lozzses (Topic 326); Measurement of Credi Losses an
Financial inzfrumentz, as amended, on January 1, 2023, Topic 326 modifies the measurement of expacted
credit losses on certain financial instruments. The Company adopted this new guidance wtilizing the
modified retrospective transition method. The adoption of this standard did not have a material impact on
the Company’s financial statements.

Cash and restricted cash

The Company maintains cash balances in a fimancial institution that may, at times, exceed federally
insured limits. Mo losses have been incurmed and management believes the Company is not exposed to
any significant credit risk of loss im cash.

As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Company had 51,135,788 and 1,287 275, respectively, of cash
in an escrow account designated to pay the remainder of the abandoned lease obligation (Mote 4). These
amounts are classified as restricted cash.

The following table provides a reconciliation of cash and restricted cash reporied within the balance
sheets that sum to the total of the same such amounts shown in the statements of cash flows:

2023 2022
Cash 5 3501456 1,809,831
Restricted cash, current portion 183,150 188 439
Restricted cash, net of current portion 042 848 1,098 836
Total cash and restricted cash shown in the
staternents of cash flows 3 Agar2o4 2197 208

Accounts receivable

Agcounts recevable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from outstanding balances.
An allowance for credit losses is an estimate based upon historical account write-off trends, facts abowt
the current financial condition of the debtor, forecasts of future operating results based upon current
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Camp Jellystone LLC

(A Subsidiary of Sun Communities Operating Limited Parimership and Sun Home Services, Inc.)
Motes to the Financial Statements

December 31, 2023 and 2022

trends and macroeconomic factors. Credit quality is monitored through the timing of payments compared
to payment terms and known facts regarding the financial condition of debtors. Accounts receivable
balamzes are charged off against the allowance for credit losses after recovery efforts have ceased.
Management has reviewed the Company’s accounts receivable and determined that expecied credit
losses are mot material io the financial statements as a whaole.

Inventories
Inventories consist principally of merchandise and supplies. Inventory is recorded at the lower of first-im,
first-cut ("FIFO™) cost or net realizable value.

Property and equipment
Property and equipment is stated at cost Depreciation is provided on the straight-line method owver the
estimated useful lives of the related asssts or over the respective leass term, whichever is shorter.

Goadwrill

The goodwill recognized upon the December 31, 2021 acquisition tramsaction is not being amortized but
will be reviewed at least annually for indications of impairment, with consideration given to financial
performance and other relevant factors. Mo impairment was deemed to have cccumed at December 31,
2023 and 2022.

Existing franchise relationships

As a result of the December 31, 2021 acquisition transaction, the Company recorded an intangible asset
representing the estimated fair value of existing framchise relationships supported by executed framchise
agreements with existing businesses. The franchise agreements are subject to termination by either party
under penalty of early franchise termination fees determined on a case-by-case basis. Based on previous
experience, it is expectad that the relationships last on average 27 years. The camying value is amaortized
ower 27 years, beginning January 1, 2022, and is evaluated annually for impaiment. Mo impairment was
deemed to have cccurred at December 31, 2023 and 2022, Accumulated amortization as of December
31, 2023 and 2022 totaled 31,074,074 and $537,037, respectively.

Future amortization is as follows for the years ended December 31:

2024 ¥ 537037
2025 53r.037
2028 537.037
2027 537.037
2028 537.037
Thereafter 10.740.741

$13420028

Revenue recognition
The Company derives its income primarily from royaltty revenue and merchandise sales, and recognizes
this revenue as follows:

Raoyalty revenues is based on gross receipts of franchisees and includes operating, advertising and Clukb
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Camp Jellystone LLC

(A Subsidiary of Sun Communities Operating Limited Partnership and Sun Home Services, Inc.)
Motes to the Financial Staterments
December 31, 2023 and 2022

Code. In accordance with ASU 2018-12, income taxes have not been allocated from SCOLP or SHS to
CJ5 as it is a disregarded entity.

Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with U.5. GAAP requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilties and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilites at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting pericd. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Subsequent events

The Company evaluates events and transactions accurting subsequent to the date of the financial
statements for matiers requiring recognition or disclosure in the financial statements. The accompanying
financial statements consider events through July 10, 2024, the date on which the financial statements
were available to be issued.

2. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT:

Property and equipment consist of the following at December 31:

2023 2022
Furmiture and fixtures 5 8837 B.Ba7
Construction in progress 32,8189 5,082
Machinery and equipment 184, 067 32,431
226,423 46,160
Lass accumulated depreciation 22,842 1.876
5203481 44 284
3. GOODWILL:
Goodwill consists of the following at December 31:
2023 2022
Goodwill - assembled workforce ¥ 210,000 210,000
Goodwill - acquisition 8 282 003 9 282 603
Gross camying value § 0402002 2402003

Mo amortization was recognized in relation to these goodwill amounts in 2023 and 2022.
4. LEASE OBLIGATION:
Dwring 2021, the Company entered into a lease for new office and warehouse space which commenced

on November 1, 2021 and would terminate in February 20208, Effective December 31, 2022, the Company
executed an agreement to vacate premises of and abandon this leased space. In connection with the

11

174197262v2
52



174197262v2

Camp Jellystons LLC

(A Subsidiary of Sum Communities Operating Limited Partnership and Sun Home Senvices, Inc)
Motes io the Financial Statements

December 31, 2023 and 2022

Yogi Rewards (CYR) royalies. The Company recognizes operating royalty revenues over time.
Advertising and CYR royalties are only to be used for brand marketing, advertising, and facilitation of the
YR program. Cnce this performance cbligation has been satisfied, by incurring applicable costs,
adverising and CYR royalties are recognized. Franchise transfer and territory fees are recognized at the
time of the transaction and are not matenal to the transaction price. Initial franchise fees, when assessed
and collected, are considered eamed at a point in time as the Company has separate and distinct
performance cbligations related to the initial fee, typically to provide merchandise.

Merchandise sales are recognized when the product is shipped and recorded in an amount that reflects
the consideration the Company expects to be entited to in exchange for those products. Sales and other
taxes the Company collects concurment with revenue-producing activities are excluded from revenue.
Shipping and handling fees charged to franchisees are reported within revenue. Incidental items that are
immaterial in the context of the contract are recognized as expense. The Company does not have any
significant financing componenis as payment is recenved at or shortly after the point of sale. Costs
imcurred to obtain a contract are expensed as incurred when the amonization period is less than a year.

The nature of the Company's business gives rise to vanable consideration, as rights to returns and
discounts do exist. Upon the transfer of control, the Company recognizes the amount of the consideration
less the applicable discount, as it is included directly in the fransfer price. As historical data has shown,
retums are infrequent and represent an insignificant amount of wotal merchandise sales. Returns and
discounts are recorded as direct reductions against merchandise sales. Since all discounts are included
within the transfer price at the time of the sale, the expense at year end represents total discounts applied
for the year.

Dwring 2023 and 2022, one franchise and two franchisees terminated their franchise agreement prior to
the confract expiration date, resulting in one-time early termination fees totaling 376,717 and 102,385,
respectively. There were no performance obligations to be satisfied by the Company in relation to these
terminations. Upon mutual agreement of the fransaction price, based upon terms within the franchize
agreement, the fees were recognized as early termination fees.

At December 31, 2023 and 2022, deferred revenue of $885,052 and 51.624.798, respectively, include
adverising and CYR royalties received in excess of revenue recognized and prepayments for
merchandise not shipped at year end. Defermed revenue is considered a contract liability under the
revenue recognition standand.

The below table illustrates the balances of accounts receivable and deferred revenue at January 1, 2022:

Accounts receivable F 303.0652
Deferred revenus $2.311.385

Revenue recognized from amounts included in deferred revenue at the beginning of 2023 and 2022
totaled $738,747 and $685.586, respectively.

Income taxes

Effective December 31, 2021, CJS became a disregarded entity of SCOLP with respect to its series A
membership interest and a disregarded entity of SHS with respect to its series B membership interest and
will be included in each members’ federal income tax returm under provisions of the Intemnal Revenue

10
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Camp Jellystone LLC

(A Subsidiary of Sun Communities Operating Limited Parinership and Sun Home Services, Inc)
Motes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2023 and 2022

Code. In accordance with ASL 2018-12, income taxes have not been allccated from SCOLP or SHS to
CJSE as itis a disregarded entity.

Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with U.5. GAAP reguires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent asseis and liabiliies at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting pericd. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Subsequent events

The Company evaluates events and transactions occurring subsequent to the date of the financial
staternemnts for matiers requiring recognition or disclasure in the financial statements. The accompanying
financial statements consider events through July 10, 2024, the date on which the financial statements
were available to be issued.

2. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMEMNT:

Property and equipment consist of the following at December 31:

2023 2022
Furmiture and fixtures 5 g8y 8,837
Construction im progress 32,819 5,082
Machinery and eguipment 184 887 32431
226,423 46,160
Less accumulated depreciation 22842 1,876
5203481 44 2384
3. GOODWILL:
Goodwill consists of the following at December 31:
2023 2022
Goodwill - assembled workforce ¥ 210,000 210,000
Goodwill - acquisition 0.282 083 0,282 083
Gross camrying value $ 0402002 £.402,002

Mo amortization was recognized in relation to these goodwill amounts in 2023 and 2022.
4. LEASE OBLIGATION:
Dwring 2021, the Company entered inte a lease for new office and warehouse space which commenced

on Movember 1, 2021 and would terminate in February 2028, Effective December 31, 2022, the Company
executed an agreement to vacate premises of and abandon this leased space. In connection with the

11
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Camp Jellystone LLC

{A Subsidiary of Sun Communities Operating Limited Partnership and Sun Home Senvices, Inc.)
Motes to the Financial Statements

December 31, 2023 and 2022

abandonment, the Company recognized and expensed the remaining right-of-use asset as of the date of
the abandonment for a total of 51,055,861, Additionally, the Company accrued for the estimated
remaining common area maintenance and taxes associated with the abandoned spaces as no future
benefit is expected from the space. The amount accrued for common area maintenance totaled $381.518
and 5481.234 for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

Az the lease agreement itself was not terminated, the following is a schedule of future minimum lease
payments for the abandoned space for the years ended December 31:

2024 3 183,150
2025 187,878
2028 202028
2027 208,001
2028 213,201
Thereafter 83,578
1,088,838

Less imputed interest (T0.T30)
51022100

The Company created an escrow account to pay this remaining lease liability over the course of the
origimal lease agreement. The escrow account was set up with an initial balance of 51,287,275 in
December 2022. The balance of the escrow account was 31,135,798 at December 31, 2023

5. EMPLOYEE SAVINGS PLAN:

The Company participates in a 401(k) plan sponsored by the parent company of SHS covering eligible
employees as defined by the plan. The plan allows for matching and discretionary contributions, as
determined by SHS' parent company. Company contributicns of 328,875 and 521,143 were made for the
years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

6. ADVERTISING COSTS:

Advertising costs are expensed as they coccur. The Company expensed 32,735,787 and 52,245 381,
respectvely, for advertising im 2023 and 2022.

7. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

Az described in Mote 1, the Company is wholly owned by Sun Communities Operating Limited
Partnership ("SCOLP") and Sun Home Services, Inc. ("5HS"). As part of operations, the Company enters
imbz certain transactions with its parent companies and their affiliates. There were no amounts dus to
SCOLP as of December 31, 2023 and 2022. The amounis due to SHS totaled $2,270.253 and
$1.278.844 for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

During 2023 and 2022, the Company also received royalty revenues totaling 54,130,845 and 34,321,425,
respectvely, from parks owned by the parent companies. At December 31, 2023 and 2022, accounts

receivable due from these parks totaled $220,587 and $36.148, respectively.

12
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Dated:

Exhibit D
Franchise Agreement

YOGI BEAR’S JELLYSTONE PARK
CAMP-RESORT
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

between

Business Entity

And

Camp Jellystone, LLC

20

174197262v2



TABLE OF CONTENTS

ATTICIE T GRANT L.ttt bbbttt b et sn e nne s 1
Article 11 CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION ...t 3
Article I TERM AND RENEWAL ..o 4
Article IV OBLIGATIONS OF FRANCHISEE...........coccoiiiiiii s 5
Article V OBLIGATIONS OF CUS ... .o 11
Article VIROYALTY AND SERVICE AND OTHER FEES ...........ccoooiiiiiiiieee 12
Article VII STATEMENTS AND RECORDS.......coocoiiiiiieinieese e 13
Article VIII RELATIONSHIP OF PARTIES; INDEMNIFICATION ......ccccoooiiiiiiiiiiiicieine 14
ATICIE DX TRANSFER ...ttt 16
ATTICIE X INSURANCE ...ttt bbb 17
Article X1 DEFAULT AND TERM ....ccoooiiiiiiiiie e 18
Article X1l EFFECT OF TERMINATION OR EXPIRATION ......cccoiiiiiiiieieee e 21
Article X111 CONSENT TO JURISDICTION. ..ot 23
Article XTIV MISCELLANEOUS ..o 24
ADDENDA

ADDENDUM A --  Legal Description of Franchise Location: Exclusive Territory Agreement
(If Any)

ADDENDUM B --  Selected Camp-Resort Facilities, Standards and Specifications
ADDENDUM C --  Terms and Conditions of Right of First Refusal

ADDENDUM D --  Consent to Participate in Network-Wide Promotions
ADDENDUM E --  Data Privacy

ADDENDUM F --  State Law Addenda

ADDENDUM G --  Acknowledgement by FRANCHISEE

ADDENDUM H --  Guaranty



YOGI BEAR’S JELLYSTONE PARK
CAMP-RESORT
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

THIS FRANCHISE AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) is made and entered into this

day of 20 __ (the “Effective Date”) by and between Camp Jellystone LLC, a Delaware
limited liability company (“CJS” or “FRANCHISOR”), and , a
whose corporate address is and physical address is -

(“FRANCHISEE”). (As used herein, the term “FRANCHISEE” is, as
the case may be and as the context requires, a corporation, a partnership, an individual or a group
of individuals. In the event that “FRANCHISEE” is a corporation, limited liability company or
partnership, the term “FRANCHISEE” shall include all shareholders, members, general partners
and other principals. The singular neuter usage includes the masculine, feminine and plural.)

RECITALS:

WHEREAS, CJS holds an exclusive license from Warner Bros. Discovery Global Themed
Entertainment, a division of Warner Bros. Discovery Inc. (collectively “Licensor” or “WB”) to
use the name, character, symbol, design, likeness and visual representation of YOGI BEAR and
other trademarks and service marks associated therewith (the “Marks”) in connection with the
construction, operation and franchising of campgrounds and resorts; and,

WHEREAS, CJS has developed and is the owner of a method and system for development
and operation of campgrounds and resorts (hereinafter referred to as “JELLYSTONE PARK
CAMP-RESORTS”), which consists, among other things, of distinctive and readily recognized
designs, theming elements and formats for operation of campgrounds, including (without
limitation) statues, signs, characterizations, artwork and character costumes, and certain standards,
methods, specifications and procedures prescribed by CJS, all of which may be changed, further
developed or otherwise modified from time to time (the “System”); and,

WHEREAS, FRANCHISEE owns an interest in certain real estate described hereinafter
for which FRANCHISEE desires to obtain a franchise for the operation of a JELLYSTONE PARK
CAMP-RESORT under the System and as part of the network of all JELLYSTONE PARK
CAMP-RESORTS (the “Network™), and CJS is willing to grant such franchise;

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements
herein contained and other good and valuable consideration, and intending to be legally bound, the
parties do hereby agree as follows;

ARTICLE IGRANT

@) Rights Granted. CJS hereby grants to FRANCHISEE, and FRANCHISEE hereby
accepts, a franchise (the “Franchise”) to operate one (1) JELLYSTONE PARK CAMP-RESORT
(the “CAMP-RESORT”) in compliance with the standards and specifications of the System and
as part of the Network at the location described in Addendum A attached hereto and incorporated
herein. Your designated territory shall be a distance of at least twenty-five (25) miles from the
front entrance of your CAMP-RESORT as determined by primary access routes and shall be




designated in Addendum A. If, in CJS’s sole judgment after analyzing traffic count, the number
of your available campsites, other available campsites within an hour’s driving time and other
market factors, additional protected distance is appropriate, a different territory may be mutually
agreed upon and shall be set forth in Addendum A. The term “CAMP-RESORT” shall include the
real estate upon which the CAMP-RESORT is located. The principal business of the CAMP-
RESORT shall be the short-term rental of camping sites to the general public and sales of related
products and services. As used herein “Short-Term” is defined as periods of less than one (1)
calendar year (i.e., daily, weekly, monthly or seasonal). FRANCHISEE shall not engage in the
sale or long-term (periods of one (1) calendar year or more) rental, lease, license or other transfer
of campsites or lots, and shall not grant any interests or rights granting the grantee the long-term
right or continuing periodic right, either alone or in common with others, to the use of a campsite
or campsites in the CAMP-RESORT.

(b) Use of the Marks. FRANCHISEE acknowledges and agrees that all usage of the
Marks by FRANCHISEE and any goodwill established thereby shall inure to the exclusive
benefit of CJS and Licensor, and that this Agreement does not confer any goodwill or other
interest in the Marks upon FRANCHISEE (other than the right to use the Marks in the operation
of the CAMP-RESORT in compliance with this Agreement). All provisions of this Agreement
applicable to the Marks shall apply to any additional or substitute trade and service marks and
commercial symbols hereafter authorized for use by and licensed to FRANCHISEE by CJS.
FRANCHISEE shall have the right to use all names, logos, marks, symbols, slogans, designs,
signs, characterizations, theming elements and similar items now or hereafter prescribed by CJS
for use by FRANCHISEE in connection with the System during the term of this Agreement and
shall have the obligation to maintain the presentation thereof. FRANCHISEE agrees to use the
foregoing and the Marks, including YOGI BEAR’S JELLYSTONE PARK CAMP-RESORT,
YOGI BEAR’S JELLYSTONE PARK System and other combinations thereof, in the form or
forms then currently prescribed by CJS and solely in connection with and exclusively for the
promotion, development and conduct of the CAMP-RESORT and strictly in accordance with
this Agreement and all instructions, rules, regulations and procedures prescribed from time to
time by CJS with respect thereto.

(©) Other Franchises. CJS retains the right, in its sole discretion, to: (i) operate,
franchise the operation of or otherwise grant rights to operate YOGI BEAR’S JELLYSTONE
PARK CAMP-RESORTS for such locations as CJS, in its sole discretion but subject to the
provisions of Addendum A granting FRANCHISEE an exclusive territory, deems appropriate;
(i) operate, franchise the operation of or otherwise grant rights to operate campgrounds and
resorts other than YOGI BEAR’S JELLYSTONE PARK CAMP-RESORTS that utilize the
YOGI BEAR name and logo for such locations as CJS, in its sole discretion, deems appropriate;
and (iii) provide or sell consulting or other advisory services to any campgrounds or camping
resorts.

(d) Limitation on FRANCHISEE’s Use of Marks. FRANCHISEE agrees to use the
Marks as the sole trade identification of the CAMP-RESORT, provided that FRANCHISEE shall
identify itself as the independent owner and operator thereof in the manner prescribed by CJS.
FRANCHISEE shall not use any Mark as part of any corporate or trade name or with any prefix,
suffix or other modifying words, terms, designs or symbols (other than logos and additional trade
and service marks licensed to FRANCHISEE hereunder) or in modified form, nor may




FRANCHISEE use any Mark in connection with the manufacture or sale of any products or the
performance of any services not expressly authorized in writing by CJS. FRANCHISEE agrees
to prominently display the Marks at the CAMP-RESORT on literature, Short-Term rental and
lease agreements, invoices and other forms designated by CJS and in connection with advertising
and marketing materials. All Marks shall be displayed in the manner prescribed from time to
time by CJS. FRANCHISEE agrees to give such notices of trade and service mark registrations
as CJS specifies and to obtain such fictitious or assumed name registrations as may be required
under applicable law.

(e) Notification of Infringements and Claims. FRANCHISEE shall notify CJS, as soon
as reasonably possible, of any apparent infringement of or challenge to FRANCHISEE’s use of
any Mark or any claim by any person of any rights in any Mark, and FRANCHISEE shall not
communicate with any person other than CJS and its counsel in connection with any such
infringement, challenge or claim. CJS shall have sole discretion to take such action as it deems
appropriate and the right to exclusive control of any litigation or other proceedings arising out
of any such infringement, challenge, or claim or otherwise relating to any Mark. FRANCHISEE
agrees to execute any and all instruments and documents, render such assistance and do such
acts and things as may, in the opinion of CJS’s counsel, be necessary or advisable to protect and
maintain the interest of CJS in any litigation or other proceeding or otherwise to protect and
maintain the interest of CJS in the Marks.

)] Discontinuance of Use of Marks; Additional or Substitute Marks. If, in CJS’s sole
judgment, it becomes advisable at any time for the CAMP-RESORT to modify or discontinue
use of any Mark or for the CAMP-RESORT to use one (1) or more additional or substitute trade
or service marks, FRANCHISEE agrees, within a reasonable time after notice thereof by CJS,
to comply with CJS’s directions to modify or otherwise discontinue the use of such Mark or to
use the additional or substitute prescribed trade or service marks. FRANCHISEE shall provide
CJS with evidence, in the form requested by CJS, of the discontinuation of use of any such Mark
or of the modification of any such Mark or of the use by FRANCHISEE of the prescribed
additional or substitute trade or service marks. All costs incurred by FRANCHISEE in the
discontinuation of use or modification of any such Mark or in the use of additional or substitute
prescribed trade or service marks shall be borne solely by FRANCHISEE.

(9) Identification of the CAMP-RESORT. FRANCHISEE agrees to operate the
CAMP-RESORT under the name YOGI BEAR’S JELLYSTONE PARK CAMP-RESORT,
(location) without prefix or suffix or other phrases (including, but not limited to
FRANCHISEE’s name) and only that name. Subject to Paragraph (f) of this Article I, at all
times in the operation, advertisement and promotion of the CAMP-RESORT, FRANCHISEE
shall feature the words “YOGI BEAR’S JELLYSTONE PARK CAMP-RESORT” as then
prescribed by CJS together with the distinguishing characteristics of the System in substantially
the same combination, arrangement and manner as then prescribed by CJS, so that the CAMP-
RESORT will be readily recognizable by the public as a JELLYSTONE PARK CAMP-
RESORT that is a member of the Network. FRANCHISEE will be required to display signage,
provided by CJS to FRANCHISEE at no cost, identifying FRANCHISEE as being independently
owned and operated under a franchise issued by CJS. If FRANCHISEE shall also show its own
business name (corporate, partnership or individual) in advertising, it shall include in such
advertising the word “FRANCHISEE” or other means of identifying itself as operating the




CAMP-RESORT as an independent owner and operator under a franchise from CJS.
FRANCHISEE acknowledges and agrees that FRANCHISEE shall be responsible for any and
all costs associated with remedying any violation of this subparagraph (g) as reasonably
determined by CJS.

(h) Reservation of Rights. All rights not expressly granted in this Agreement to
FRANCHISEE relating to the Marks and System are reserved to FRANCHISOR, including but
not limited to: (a) the right to operate and authorize others to operate businesses using the Marks
and/or System at any location other than a location granted to FRANCHISEE; (b) the right to
use or authorize others to use the Marks and/or System, or any other trademarks or systems, in
connection with the manufacture and sale of products at wholesale or retail, through the use of
toll free telephone numbers, catalogs, direct mail, the Internet or through any distribution
channels; (c) the right to operate or authorize others to operate any business that does not use the
Marks or the System at any location, and (d) the right of our parent, Sun Communities, Inc. to
own, operate or acquire campgrounds and other similar parks under different tradenames and
marks than those that are licensed to you, which parks may be located within your designated
territory.

ARTICLE Il
CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION

FRANCHISEE expressly acknowledges and recognizes that CJS has the sole exclusive
right to use the Marks in connection with the development, operation and franchising of YOGI
BEAR identified campgrounds and camp-resorts, that CJS is the sole owner of the System and its
distinguishing characteristics now or from time to time hereafter used or adopted as part of or in
connection with the System and that CJS has the exclusive right to grant this Franchise and to grant
franchises to others to use the System. FRANCHISEE shall not infringe upon, use or imitate the
Marks (or any mark confusingly similar thereto), the System or any of their distinguishing
characteristics except under written agreement with CJS. FRANCHISEE further agrees that
FRANCHISEE has no interest in the Marks, the System or any of their distinguishing
characteristics except as created hereby and that each and every use by FRANCHISEE of any
trademarks, trade names and service marks and all color schemes and combinations, signs,
characterizations, theming elements and standards, specifications and similar items now or
thereafter comprising the System (collectively, the “Confidential Information”) shall inure to the
benefit of CJS. FRANCHISEE agrees that the Confidential Information is a valuable asset and
that FRANCHISEE: (1) shall not use the Confidential Information in any other business or
capacity; (2) shall maintain the confidentiality of the Confidential Information during and after the
term of this Agreement; and (3) shall not make unauthorized copies of any portion of the
Confidential Information disclosed in written form.

Upon expiration or termination of this Agreement, FRANCHISEE shall forever maintain
the confidentiality of the Confidential Information and shall refrain from using the Confidential
Information and shall immediately return to CJS all copies of all documents, instructions and other
materials, including (without limitation) the Brand Standards Manual (hereinafter defined)
furnished to FRANCHISEE under the terms of this Agreement.



ARTICLE Il
TERM AND RENEWAL

@) Term and Renewal. The term of this Agreement and the Franchise shall be for a
term of seven (7) years beginning on the Effective Date and shall expire on December 31, 20
(the “Initial Term”) unless earlier terminated pursuant to Article XI of this Agreement.

(b) Right to Renewal. If, upon the expiration of the Initial Term of the Franchise, the
Network shall continue to be in existence, then, subject to the provisions of subparagraphs (i)-
(x) below, FRANCHISEE shall have the right to renew the Franchise on the terms and conditions
contained in CJS’s then-standard franchise agreement for JELLYSTONE PARK CAMP-
RESORTS, for a single renewal term of five (5) years commencing on the expiration date of this
Agreement, January 1, 20__ and expiring on December 31, 20__ (the Renewal Term”).

FRANCHISEE will have the option to remain a FRANCHISEE for one (1) additional
period of a minimum of five (5) years and a maximum of ten (10) years if all of the following
conditions are fulfilled:

Q) FRANCHISEE is not in default of this Agreement or any other agreement
between the parties and no affiliate of FRANCHISEE is in default under any agreement between
the affiliate and FRANCHISOR.

(i) FRANCHISEE, during the past twelve (12) months, has not received from
FRANCHISOR two (2) or more notices of default of the terms of this Agreement or any
specification, standard or operating procedure of FRANCHISOR (whether or not such notices
related to the same or different violations and whether or not those violations have been remedied
by FRANCHISEE).

(ili)  FRANCHISEE provides written notice of its intent to continue as a
FRANCHISEE not more than twelve (12) months and not less than six (6) months before the
beginning of the option period.

(iv)  FRANCHISEE is able to maintain possession of the Franchise Location and
agrees to refurbish the Franchise Location in compliance with the then applicable standards of
FRANCHISOR for a CAMP-RESORT, such standards being reasonably and consistently applied,
or FRANCHISEE has been able to secure and develop, in compliance with the then applicable
standards of FRANCHISOR used in the granting of a franchise, suitable alternative premises for
the Franchise Business. Any alternative premises must be acceptable to and approved in advance
by FRANCHISOR.

(v) FRANCHISEE, throughout the term of this Agreement, has satisfied all
material reporting requirements and all monetary obligations to FRANCHISOR and any affiliates
of FRANCHISOR, suppliers and creditors (excepting reasonable disputes that Franchisee is
attempting in good faith to resolve) within the amount of time specified for satisfaction or cure of
default with respect to such obligation.



(vi)  FRANCHISEE has satisfied any additional training requirements for new
or existing franchisees of FRANCHISOR.

(vii) FRANCHISEE has signed a general release, in a form specified by
FRANCHISOR, of any and all claims against FRANCHISOR, its subsidiaries and affiliates, and
their respective officers, directors, agents, members and employees.

(vii) FRANCHISEE has signed and returned to FRANCHISOR, within thirty
(30) days of receipt from FRANCHISOR, the then-current standard franchise agreement in use by
FRANCHISOR at the time of FRANCHISEE’s notice to FRANCHISOR, together with such other
documents as are then customarily used by FRANCHISOR to grant new franchises, all of which
will replace this Agreement. The new standard franchise agreement signed by FRANCHISEE
may have substantial differences from this Agreement, including, without limitation, different or
increased fees.

(ixX)  FRANCHISEE has paid a renewal fee equal to $2500 at the time of renewal.
This fee must be paid at the time the new standard franchise agreement is delivered to
FRANCHISOR.

(x) FRANCHISOR has approved the renewal of the franchise. If all of the other
conditions in this Section are met, FRANCHISOR will not withhold approval of renewal except
for good cause.

Failure or refusal by FRANCHISEE to sign the franchise agreement and other documents
and pay the renewal fee within thirty (30) days after delivery of the franchise agreement and other
documents to FRANCHISEE, when FRANCHISOR approves renewal of the franchise, will be
deemed an election by FRANCHISEE not to renew the franchise. If FRANCHISEE does not elect
to renew its franchise relationship, does not qualify for renewal or does not comply with the
requirements for renewal specified above, the franchise relationship between FRANCHISOR and
FRANCHISEE will automatically terminate on completion of the term set forth in this Agreement.

ARTICLE IV
OBLIGATIONS OF FRANCHISEE

@) Facilities of the CAMP-RESORT. FRANCHISEE agrees to operate the CAMP-
RESORT as a JELLYSTONE PARK CAMP-RESORT and, upon execution of this Agreement,
shall commence and diligently pursue the operation of the CAMP-RESORT, which shall be built
or converted, completed and maintained according to the standards and specifications provided or
approved by CJS in writing, including, but not limited to, those identified on Addendum B attached
hereto and incorporated herein. The CAMP-RESORT, including, without limitation, all buildings,
signs and appurtenances, shall conform to CJS’s standards and specifications for JELLYSTONE
PARK CAMP-RESORTS as set forth or referred to in the CJS’s Brand Standards Manual. You
understand and agree to ensure that the operation of the Camp-Resort will be subject to all federal,
state and local laws, ordinances and regulations and manufacturer specifications pertaining to the
operation of the businesses in general. You should be aware that there may be other general laws
that apply to your CAMP-RESORT’s operation, and you should make further inquiries to find out




about these regulations as part of your decision-making process. For example, laws and
regulations related to boarding, lodging and food service establishments may apply, as well as
those that apply to business generally, such as the Americans With Disabilities Act, Federal Wage
and Hour Laws and the Occupational Safety and Health Act.

FRANCHISEE shall not alter the CAMP-RESORT in any manner that negatively affects
the CAMP-RESORT, the Network, CJS’s rights in the Marks or the System. The CAMP-
RESORT at all times shall contain not fewer than () Qualifying Campsites (as
identified below) and not fewer than ( ) Qualifying Full Service Cabins available at
all times for Short-Term rental by the general public. The term “Qualifying Campsites” as used
in this Agreement shall mean campsites graded level and improved for parking of campers and
recreational vehicles thereon, with water and electrical hook-ups available thereon and sanitary
facilities reasonably accessible to such campsite and the term “Qualifying Full-Service Cabins” as
used in this Agreement shall mean a cabin or park model that contains a full bathroom and a
kitchenette.

(b) Management, Opening Date and Training. FRANCHISEE shall advise CJS of a
Designated Owner who must have an ownership interest in the Franchise. If FRANCHISEE
desires to have a manager or management company, other than a Designated Owner, devote full
time and effort to the day-to-day active management and operation of the Franchise Business in
place of a Designated Owner, the manager or management company must successfully complete
the training program designated by CJS and must be approved, in writing, by us. We shall have
sole discretion as to the approval of such management company.

FRANCHISEE agrees to open the CAMP-RESORT for business as soon as reasonably
possible, but in no event later than (the “Opening Date”). CJS must approve the
CAMP-RESORT in writing prior to the Opening Date. CJS reserves the right to withhold approval
until all identified improvements and upgrades are completed. Each individual who will assume
primary general management responsibility for the daily operation of the CAMP-RESORT shall
attend the next regularly scheduled session of training and instruction at CJS’s Certification and
Management Program (“CAMP”). If the CAMP-RESORT employs a new manager at any time
during the term of this Agreement, the new manager shall be required to attend the next regularly
scheduled session of training and instruction at CJS’s CAMP.

After completion of CJS’s CAMP, FRANCHISEE agrees to have at least one (1) general
operator attend at least one (1) or more training sessions administered by CJS annually, while the
CAMP-RESORT is affiliated with the Network. These additional training sessions are generally
held in first and fourth quarters of the year.

All costs associated with the additional training sessions shall be borne solely by the
FRANCHISEE.

(©) Promotion and Continuous Operation. For the Initial Term and any Renewal Term
of this Agreement, FRANCHISEE agrees to use commercially reasonable efforts to establish,
develop and promote the business of the CAMP-RESORT and to maximize the Gross Revenues
(as defined in Paragraph (c) of Article VI) of the CAMP-RESORT. Until formally approved for
opening by CJS, FRANCHISEE shall not advertise or promote the CAMP-RESORT or utilize the




Marks without prominently disclosing at the same time that the CAMP-RESORT is under
construction or conversion. The CAMP-RESORT shall be open minimally for business during all
times of the year when camping is normally done in the geographic area where the CAMP-
RESORT is located and during all times of the year that the CAMP-RESORT is listed in the
Network directory as being open for business.

(d) Standards of Operation.

Q) FRANCHISEE shall secure and maintain in force in its name all required
licenses, permits and certificates relating to the operation of the CAMP-RESORT.

(i) FRANCHISEE shall operate the CAMP-RESORT in full compliance with
all applicable laws, ordinances and regulations, including, without limitation, all government
regulations relating to workers” compensation insurance, unemployment insurance, building and
zoning codes, health or safety, environmental matters and withholding and payment of federal and
state income taxes, social security taxes and sales taxes.

(iii)  All advertising by FRANCHISEE shall be factually accurate and in good
taste (in the reasonable judgment of CJS), shall conform to the highest standards of ethical
advertising and shall identify FRANCHISEE as the independent owner and operator of the CAMP-
RESORT in the manner then prescribed by CJS. FRANCHISEE shall in all dealings with its
customers, suppliers, CJS and public officials adhere to the highest standards of honesty, integrity,
fair dealing and ethical conduct. FRANCHISEE agrees to refrain from any business or advertising
practice that may be injurious to the business of CJS and the goodwill associated with the Marks
and other JELLYSTONE PARK CAMP-RESORTS in the Network.

(iv)  FRANCHISEE shall notify CJS in writing within five (5) days of the
occurrence of: (i) the commencement of any action, suit or proceeding against FRANCHISEE
which may materially adversely affect the operation or financial condition of FRANCHISEE or
the CAMP-RESORT; (ii) the issuance of any order, writ, injunction, award, or decree of any court,
agency, or other governmental instrumentality which may adversely affect the operation or
financial condition of FRANCHISEE or the CAMP-RESORT,; and (iii) the receipt of any notice
of violation of any law, ordinance or regulation related to health or safety. In each instance,
FRANCHISEE shall include in or with such written notice its intended response or course of action
with respect to such action, suit, proceeding, order, injunction, award, decree or notice of violation.

(v) FRANCHISEE agrees to operate and maintain the CAMP-RESORT and
everything pertaining thereto and to provide services, facilities, equipment and recreational
programs in compliance with the rules, standards, terms and conditions set forth herein for
JELLYSTONE PARK CAMP-RESORTS as set forth or referred to in CJS’s Brand Standards
Manual. FRANCHISEE further agrees to keep all facilities, including, but not limited to, dining
areas, parking areas, restrooms, pools, fire areas, picnic tables, trash cans, electrical hookups,
disposal units, freshwater facilities and all other facilities and equipment in prime condition,
making or causing to be made any and all repairs and performing all maintenance, painting,
repairing and cleaning as required by applicable law or by good business practices. FRANCHISEE
recognizes that the Brand Standards Manual may from time to time require amendment or revision
in light of CJS’s experience and development of the System, competitive conditions in the camping



industry and other factors, and agrees to comply with any and all such amendments and revisions
to such Brands Standards Manual. FRANCHISEE agrees and understands that it is the essence of
this Agreement that the operation of the CAMP-RESORT be conducted in accordance with the
Brand Standards Manual, the System, all procedures prescribed by CJS and the highest levels and
standards of quality and cleanliness and in a manner which shall not reflect adversely upon the
name or good will of CJS, its business, Licensor, or other JELLYSTONE PARK CAMP-RESORT
franchisees in the Network or the Marks. Mandatory specifications, standards and operating
procedures prescribed from time to time by CJS in the Brand Standards Manual, or otherwise
communicated to FRANCHISEE in writing, shall constitute provisions of this Agreement as if
fully set forth herein. All references herein to this Agreement shall include all such mandatory
specifications, standards and operating procedures. In the event any specifications, standards and
operating procedures prescribed from time to time by CJS in the Brand Standards Manual conflict
in whole or in part with any specifications, standards and operating procedures otherwise
communicated to FRANCHISEE in writing by CJS, the specifications, standards and operating
procedures prescribed from time to time by CJS in the Brand Standards Manual shall prevail in all
respects.

(vi)  FRANCHISEE shall provide CJS with a written report of (1) any accident or
injury to a guest at the CAMP-RESORT or (2) any unanticipated problems or disruptions involving
risks to guests or others at the CAMP-RESORT, within five (5) days of such incident. The written
report shall be in the form provided in CJS’s Brand Standards Manual.

(e) Operation of Food Service Establishments. Pursuant to this Agreement,
FRANCHISEE shall have the right to operate, maintain or cause to be maintained commissaries,
grocery stores, restaurants or other food service establishments on the CAMP-RESORT property
covered by this Agreement (“Food Service Establishment”) that shall be operated in connection
with or incidentally to the CAMP-RESORT. The name of such Food Service Establishment as
well as signs, designs, theme and decor must be approved by CJS. FRANCHISEE shall secure
and maintain all required licenses, permits and certificates relating to operation of all Food Service
Establishments and shall operate or cause all Food Service Establishments to be operated and
maintained in full compliance with all applicable laws, ordinances and regulations, including,
without limitation, all applicable laws governing the sale of alcoholic beverages. FRANCHISEE
is encouraged to obtain and maintain in full force and effect throughout the term of this Agreement,
a food borne illness policy covering any Food Service Establishment.

() Sale of Products at the CAMP-RESORT. FRANCHISEE understands and
acknowledges that CJS’s right to use the Marks is derived, in part, through a license agreement
with Licensor and that use of the Marks upon products not authorized for sale by CJS at the CAMP-
RESORT will result in substantial injury to CJS and will constitute and infringement of the rights
of CJS and Licensor in and to the Marks. Therefore, FRANCHISEE agrees to purchase all
products bearing the Marks only from CJS or approved suppliers of CJS. FRANCHISEE further
agrees not to purchase or sell any item or product bearing any of the Marks that has been purchased
from any manufacturer or supplier other than CJS or supplier approved by CJS. In the event that
FRANCHISEE desires to purchase any item or product bearing any Mark from a manufacturer or
supplier other than CJS or its subsidiaries or affiliates or a supplier that has been approved by CJS,
FRANCHISEE shall notify CJS in advance, setting forth such information concerning the
manufacturer or supplier and the product or item as CJS reasonably requests. CJS may, in its




discretion, grant or deny permission for FRANCHISEE to purchase and sell any product bearing
any Mark at the CAMP-RESORT. In no event will permission be granted if the Marks, CJS’s
license to use the Marks or Licensor’s rights to the Marks are jeopardized or threatened in any
manner. In the event any testing of requested products is required, all costs shall be borne by
FRANCHISEE.

(9) Sale of Alcoholic Beverages. In the event FRANCHISEE shall engage in the sale
of alcoholic beverages on the premises of or in connection with the operation of the CAMP-
RESORT, FRANCHISEE agrees that neither the names nor likenesses of YOGI BEAR, any of the
related cartoon characters or the MARKS will be employed to advertise the sale of alcoholic
beverages or to identify alcoholic beverages which may be sold. Without limiting the generality
of Paragraph (d) of this Article IV, FRANCHISEE further agrees that in connection with the sale
of alcoholic beverages, FRANCHISEE will at all times comply with all applicable federal, state
and local laws and ordinances.

(h) Mail, Message and Information Services; Internet Services. FRANCHISEE agrees
to provide access to mail services for registered guests at the CAMP-RESORT. Additionally,
FRANCHISEES are required to provide information on local activities, nearby tourist attractions
and points of interest within the area surrounding the CAMP-RESORT. FRANCHISEE further
agrees to make available on the CAMP-RESORT premises such brochures, periodicals and other
information, as CJS shall from time-to-time supply to FRANCHISEE, to promote the
JELLYSTONE PARK CAMP-RESORT Network and the Marks. FRANCHISEE shall provide
access to a wireless internet carrier for use by customers at its CAMP-RESORT, unless the CAMP-
RESORT of FRANCHISEE is geographically located in an area that is not serviced by a carrier.

(i) Assessment of the CAMP-RESORT. To determine whether FRANCHISEE and
the CAMP-RESORT are complying with this Agreement, the System and specifications and
standards then prescribed by CJS, CJS or its designated agents shall have the right, at any
reasonable time and with or without prior notice to FRANCHISEE, to (1) assess the CAMP-
RESORT; (2) observe the operations of the CAMP-RESORT for such consecutive or intermittent
periods as CJS deems necessary; (3) interview personnel of the CAMP-RESORT,; (4) interview
customers of the CAMP-RESORT; and (5) inspect and copy any books, records and documents
relating to the operation of the CAMP-RESORT, including, but not limited to, forms and reports
required by local and/or state revenue or taxing authorities. FRANCHISEE shall fully cooperate
with CJS in connection with any such assessments, observations and interviews. FRANCHISEE
shall present to its customers such evaluation forms and customer comments cards as are
prescribed from time to time by CJS and shall participate in any survey performed by or on behalf
of CJS. FRANCHISEE shall execute (or initial to acknowledge receipt of) any assessment and
consulting reports prepared by or on behalf of CJS in connection with any assessment and shall
promptly take any and all actions necessary or appropriate to bring the CAMP-RESORT into full
compliance with this Agreement and the Brand Standards Manual. In the event of noncompliance,
CJS may impose a noncompliance fee of $500 for the first event and $1,000 for each event
thereafter.

FRANCHISEE understands that the purpose of this Assessment is not to ensure that the
FRANCHISEE is in compliance with federal, state or local laws, regulations or ordinances, but is
only intended to ensure compliance only with our Brand Standards Manual.



()] Advertising. In addition to FRANCHISEE’s obligation to pay the marketing,
advertising and promotional fee as provided in Paragraph (c) of Article VI, FRANCHISEE agrees
to spend on advertising and promotion of the CAMP-RESORT during the term of this Agreement
an amount equal to at least five percent (5.0%) of Gross Revenues, inclusive of the two percent
(2.0%) marketing, advertising, rewards program and promotional fee, as defined in Paragraph (c)
of Article V1.

(k) Exclusive Use. FRANCHISEE agrees to use the CAMP-RESORT site solely for
the operation of a JELLYSTONE PARK CAMP-RESORT in accordance with all rules,
regulations, specifications, standards and operating procedures prescribed from time to time by
CJS. FRANCHISEE shall refrain from using said premises or permitting the use thereof in any
other manner or for any other purpose or activity without first obtaining the written consent of
CJS, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld.

() Approval of Advertising. Prior to their use by FRANCHISEE, samples of all
advertising and promotional materials not prepared or previously approved by CJS, shall be
submitted to CJS for approval. If written disapproval is not received by FRANCHISEE within
thirty (30) days from the date of receipt by CJS of such materials, CJS shall be deemed to have
given the required approval. FRANCHISEE shall not use any advertising or promotional materials
that CJS has disapproved. FRANCHISEE agrees to comply with the terms and conditions of CJS’s
Social Media Policy, as described in the Brand Standards Manual, and agrees to remove any online
content in violation of such policy as determined by CJS within twenty-four (24) hours of a written
request from CJS.

(m) Competition. Neither FRANCHISEE (nor any shareholder, member or partner of
FRANCHISEE) nor any member of the immediate family of FRANCHISEE (i.e. spouse, child or
sibling) shall, as long as this Agreement remains in force and effect, directly or indirectly own any
interest in, operate or be in any manner connected with or associated with any campground,
camping facilities or camp resort other than such as are franchised by CJS within fifty (50) miles
of the CAMP-RESORT without the express written consent of CJS.

(n) Payment of Accounts. FRANCHISEE agrees that it will promptly pay when due
and owing all amounts to CJS or its affiliates from time to time for merchandise, equipment or
otherwise. FRANCHISEE agrees that, in addition to CJS’s rights set forth in Article IX,
subparagraph (b), should FRANCHISEE at any time during the term of this Agreement become
delinquent for a period of ten (10) days or more in payments due and owing to CJS or its affiliates
for merchandise, equipment or otherwise, FRANCHISEE will provide to CJS, upon CJS’s request,
an approved bank draft for any future purchases and CJS reserves the right, in addition to a claim
for default, to initiate any of the following while such delinquency exists: (1) withhold the approval
of any future advertising materials bearing the Marks; (2) not allow FRANCHISEE or its designee,
to attend any training session sponsored by CJS; and (3) not permit FRANCHISEE the ability to
purchase any merchandise materials under the control of CJS. FRANCHISEE agrees that amounts
not paid when due and owing shall bear interest at the lesser of eighteen percent (18%) per annum
or the maximum rate permitted by applicable law.

(0) Themed Elements. As part of the Initial Franchise Fee, you will receive certain
themed elements. The provided items include: (i) One (1) of each Yogi Bear™, Boo Boo™, and




Cindy Bear™ character costume; (ii) One (1) themed front entrance sign; (iii) Four (4) standard
size fiberglass statues consisting of one (1) each Yogi Bear, Boo Boo, Cindy Bear, and Ranger
Smith™; and (iv) themed signage for each required facility in your CAMP-RESORT.
FRANCHISEE can purchase additional themed elements from CJS for use in the operation of the
CAMP-RESORT (collectively, the “Themed Elements”). FRANCHISEE shall be responsible for
maintaining these Themed Elements in accordance to the Brand Standards Manual and shall be
responsible for all replacement costs thereafter CJS shall provide a costume maintenance schedule
for the provided costumes and will assume all costs with respect to such maintenance. Such
Themed Elements shall at all times remain in the possession of or under the control of the
FRANCHISEE and such Themed Elements shall remain in the possession of and under the control
of the FRANCHISEE. FRANCHISEE may not use the Themed Elements in audiovisual or visual
works or distribute audiovisual or visual works containing the Themed Elements, including,
without limitation, in conjunction with electronic or digital media, television, cable television, and
internet streaming services, or on or through any platform or service now existing or hereinafter
created, without the prior written consent of CJS for each such use or distribution. Upon the
termination, expiration or cancellation of this Agreement or the Franchise for any reason
whatsoever, all Themed Elements shall be either (i) immediately returned to CJS by
FRANCHISEE at FRANCHISEE’s expense or (ii) sold to another franchisee of CJS subject to
CJS’s prior written approval. FRANCHISEE agrees that FRANCHISEE’S failure to comply with
the provisions of the immediately preceding sentence would result in irreparable injury to CJS not
adequately compensated by money damages and that, in such event, CJS shall, without prejudice
to its other rights and remedies, have the right to obtain a mandatory injunction and other equitable
relief without the necessity of posting bond or other security.

(p) Participation in Network Promotions. FRANCHISEE shall cooperate in any
Network or System-wide promotions funded and implemented by CJS for the purpose of
promoting the System, including participation in the Jellystone Park™ Consumer Gift Card
Program.

Q) Referral Obligation. FRANCHISEE covenants and agrees to refer guests and
customers of the CAMP-RESORT, whenever reasonably possible, during the Initial Term and/or
any Renewal Term of this Agreement to other JELLYSTONE PARK CAMP-RESORTS.

() System-Wide Reservation Program. CJS has designated a System-Wide
Reservation Program that will allow customers to make a campsite reservation at any CAMP-
RESORT. All franchisees must pay a monthly fee for the System-Wide Reservation Program to
CJS, or its designee, the then current campsite reservation fee charged by the vendor at the
FRANCHISEE’s CAMP-RESORT. This fee will be used to maintain the System-Wide
Reservation Program. In accordance with a reasonable onboarding schedule as determined by
FRANCHISOR, FRANCHISEE will within a reasonable amount of time after Notice by
FRANCHISOR, convert to the system, and FRANCHISEE agrees to promptly execute a
Franchisor-approved license agreement for use of the software. FRANCHISEE will be responsible
for the monthly fee and any additional per booking costs and fees associated with its use.

System-Wide Reservation Program. CJS is co-branding a System-Wide Reservation
Program (“Reservation Program”) with Rezplot Systems, LLC, whose tradename is Campspot’
that will allow customers to make a campsite reservation at any participating Camp-Resort. While



this Reservation Program is currently not mandatory for certain Camp-Resorts due to their current
franchise agreement language, it is the intention of CJS to require its use at the time of franchise
agreement renewal. This Reservation Program is the only reservation software that will be
permitted to accept online reservations through our website, campjellystone.com.

All franchisees utilizing the Reservation Program will be required to use a specific card card
processor, currently Card Connect, and active enrollment in the approved online travel agency
(“OTA”), Marketplace. Participating Camp-Resorts will be responsible for paying any and all
associate fees as billed by Campspot, on a monthly basis. These fees for the Reservation Program
shall be stated in the Brands Standards Manual and may be amended from time to time upon notice

Franchisee will publish its own privacy policy on its website, or at the direction of
Franchisor publish a Franchisor approved privacy policy on its website, which discloses to
customers that reservation data may be accessed by Campspot, CJS, any alternative third-party
reservation service provider designated by CJS or any CJS franchisee for purposes of providing
any services associated with CJS. The privacy policy will also be required to include that
Customer’s personal information may be transferred to any customer relationship management
or reservation system that CJS adopts or implements.

Q) Minimum and Maximum Fees Charged to Customers. Subject to applicable federal
or state antitrust laws, CJS shall have discretion to require minimum and/or_maximum prices for
customer charges. In addition, any fees or charges to be imposed by FRANCHISEE that are not
part of the CJS franchise system, such as resort fees, amenity fees or other such similar fees that
may be charged by FRANCHISEE to its customers for use of the CAMP-RESORT facilities, must
be approved in advance by CJS. To the extent approved by CJS, these fees must be fully disclosed
to guests prior to making a reservation in an open and obvious manner and must at all times comply
with applicable law and regulation. These obligations to understand and comply with applicable
laws and regulations include as well those that may apply to fees and charges you require for
customers to access and use the online reservation system for booking at your franchise location.

ARTICLE V
OBLIGATIONS OF CJS

@) Site Approval. CJS approves the location of FRANCHISEE’s site as suitable for
the CAMP-RESORT subject to the upgrading or development of amenities or facilities, if any,
necessary to comply with standards and specifications of the System. The specific upgrades or
development requirements are described in Addendum B attached hereto and incorporated herein.
The approval of any site by CJS shall not be deemed a representation or warranty by CJS that the
use of said site by FRANCHISEE for a CAMP-RESORT will result in profit or gain to
FRANCHISEE. Nor shall any site approval by CJS be deemed a representation or warranty by
CJS that such site may be developed into a CAMP-RESORT in compliance with applicable laws
and regulations. FRANCHISEE shall bear sole responsibility for site selection and development
and for compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

(b) Conceptual Designs. CJS agrees to review conceptual designs for buildings and
other features of the System. FRANCHISEE shall at its own cost obtain such functional designs




and plans as may be necessary to conform to applicable building codes, laws, ordinances and
regulations.

(©) Training. CJS agrees to provide FRANCHISEE or the individual who will assume
primary general management responsibility for the daily operation of the CAMP-RESORT with
initial training and instruction in the operation of a JELLYSTONE PARK CAMP-RESORT both
on site at the CAMP-RESORT and at CJS’s CAMP, which location shall be determined by CJS.
In connection with the initial CAMP, FRANCHISEE agrees to pay travel expenses to the training
location. CJS agrees to pay for lodging and meal costs during CAMP training. In the event that the
FRANCHISEE enrolls an employee in the recreational training program (known as “CARE”), CJS
agrees to pay for lodging and meal costs during CARE training program.

(d) Promotion. CJS agrees to promote the JELLYSTONE PARK CAMP-RESORT
Network through the use of advertising or by such other means and at such times and in such
manner and amount as CJS shall in its sole discretion deem appropriate.

(e) Internet Address; Social Networking. FRANCHISEE acknowledges and agrees
that FRANCHISEE must obtain prior written authorization and assignment of Internet address
from Licensor if FRANCHISEE desires to have an Internet address utilizing any of the Marks for
the JELLYSTONE PARK CAMP-RESORT. CJS will use its reasonable best efforts to facilitate
the authorization and the assignment process. FRANCHISEE further acknowledges and agrees
that FRANCHISEE must obtain prior written approval to maintain a social networking account
for the FRANCHISEE’s JELLYSTONE PARK CAMP-RESORT or social networking accounts
using the Marks, including, without limitation, social networking accounts with Facebook, Twitter
and Instagram. FRANCHISEE must comply with CJS’s Social Media Policy in maintaining such
social network accounts and CJS shall have the sole discretion to determine which content should
be removed. It is intent of CJS to discontinue the authorization of vanity sites at some time in the
future, at which time all FRANCHISEES will be required to participate in a singular website
program.

() Camp-Resort Brochure. CJS agrees to issue from time to time for distribution by
franchisees and CJS a brochure of JELLYSTONE PARK CAMP-RESORTS in the Network.
Provided that FRANCHISEE shall be current in the payment of all amounts due and owing CJS
and provided that FRANCHISEE shall not be in material breach of this Agreement, the CAMP-
RESORT shall be listed in each edition of the brochure commencing with the edition next
published following the Effective Date of this Agreement.

(9) Brand Standards Manual. CJS will make available to FRANCHISEE, during the
term of the Franchise, the JELLYSTONE PARK CAMP-RESORTS Brand Standards Manual (the
“Brand Standards Manual””). FRANCHISEE may obtain from CJS an access code, at no cost or
expense to FRANCHISEE that will enable FRANCHISEE to view the Brand Standards Manual
from CJS’s website. The Brand Standards Manual shall contain mandatory standards and
specifications; information for performance of camping services; advertising standards; standards
for maintenance of the CAMP-RESORT; information on the permitted use of the YOGI BEAR
name, mark and likeness; information concerning all aspects of the System prescribed from time
to time by CJS for JELLYSTONE PARK CAMP-RESORTS; and information relative to other
obligations of FRANCHISEE under this Agreement and the operation of a JELLYSTONE PARK




CAMP-RESORTS. The Brand Standards Manual, and FRANCHISEE’s obligations thereunder,
may be modified by CJS from time to time to reflect changes in the System and CJS shall provide
prompt written notice to FRANCHISEE at any time CJS modifies the Brand Standards Manual
(“Notice of Changes”). FRANCHISEE must use the most current version of the Brand Standards
Manual by viewing the current copy off the internet after receiving Notice of Changes from CJS.
In the event of a dispute relative to the contents of the Brand Standards Manual, the master copies
maintained by CJS at its principal office shall be controlling. Mandatory specifications, standards
and operating procedures set forth in the Brand Standards Manual shall constitute provisions of
this Agreement as if fully set forth herein. FRANCHISEE must retain possession of the Brand
Standards Manual at all times and may not, at any time, copy any part of the Brand Standards
Manual (whether downloaded off the internet or in any digital format or device).

(h) Guidance and Assistance. CJS shall furnish guidance to FRANCHISEE with
regard to the System and the specifications and standards applicable to a JELLYSTONE PARK
CAMP-RESORT and any modifications thereof. Such guidance and assistance shall, in the
discretion of CJS, be furnished in the form of the Brand Standards Manual, bulletins, written
reports and recommendations, other written materials and/or telephone consultations or in-person
consultations at the offices of CJS or at the CAMP-RESORT. If assistance not customarily
provided to other franchisees in operating their camp-resorts is required by FRANCHISEE, or
required by CJS, and must take place at CAMP-RESORT, all expenses for such assistance,
including a per diem charge for travel and living expenses for CJS personnel shall be paid by
FRANCHISEE.

(1) Themed Elements. CJS shall sell or furnish to the FRANCHISEE the Themed
Elements, which shall be held by FRANCHISEE under the terms and conditions contained in
Paragraph (o) of Article IV. With respect to the Costumes reference in Article 1\VV(0), it is
understood that CJS will be responsible for the ongoing refurbishment cost of these Costumes as
prescribed in the Brands Standards Manual.

Retail Store Training. For a period of two (2) days we will train you and your employees at your
store with respect to management and operation of your retail store.

ARTICLE VI
INITIAL FRANCHISE FEE, ROYALTY AND SERVICE AND OTHER FEES

In consideration of the rights granted hereunder, FRANCHISEE agrees to pay to CJS the
following:

@) Initial Franchise Fee. An Initial Franchise Fee in the amount of Seventy-Five
Thousand Dollars ($75,000.00) shall be paid upon execution of this Agreement. THE INITIAL
FRANCHISE FEE IS FULLY EARNED BY CJS AND IS NON-REFUNDABLE UPON
EXECUTION OF AND APPROVAL BY CJS OF THIS AGREEMENT, PROVIDED THAT, IF
WE REJECT A SITE THAT HAS BEEN TIMELY PROPOSED TO US WE WILL REFUND
75% OF THE INITIAL FRANCHISE FEE.




The Initial Franchise Fee will be invoiced in two (2) installments, fifty percent (50.0%)
due at the time of signing the Franchise Agreement, and fifty percent (50.0%) due the following
September 30th, 20__.

(b) Royalty and Service Fee. Commencing on the Effective Date, FRANCHISEE shall
pay to CJS a royalty and service fee of either:

() For New Construction Franchisees: Six Percent (6%) of FRANCHISEE’s
Gross Revenues for the CAMP-RESORT and all related facilities from
January 1, 20 to December 31, 20 . FRANCHISEE shall pay CJS a
royalty and service fee of Four and One-Half Percent (4.50%) of
FRANCHISEE’s Gross Revenues for the CAMP-RESORT and all related
facilities from January 1, 20 and expiring on December 31, 20 . or;

(i) For Conversion Franchisees: Four and One-Half Percent (4.50%) of
FRANCHISEE’s Gross Revenues for the CAMP-RESORT and all related
facilities.

Said royalty and service fee shall be paid to CJS during the term of this Agreement, in the
manner prescribed by CJS in Article VII, Paragraph (a). As used herein, “Gross Revenues” shall
mean the total of all sales, rentals or services performed at or by the CAMP-RESORT, including
(but not limited to) the gross receipts from any vending machines, cocktail lounges, gift or souvenir
shops and Food Service Establishments. Gross Revenues shall exclude refunds, sales, use or
service taxes to be paid by FRANCHISEE or the CAMP-RESORT to the appropriate taxing
authority after collection from customers. It is understood and agreed that in the event that
FRANCHISEE shall lease, license or grant concessions for any stores, restaurants or other
facilities on the premises of the CAMP-RESORT, Gross Revenues shall include the total Gross
Revenues derived by such leases, licenses or concessionaires and not merely amounts received by
FRANCHISEE as rentals, license fees, concession fees or otherwise.

(©) Marketing, Advertising, Rewards Program and Promotional Fee. Commencing on
the Effective Date, a marketing, advertising and promotional fee of one and five tenths’ percent
(2.0%) of FRANCHISEE’S Gross Revenues (which shall not be reduced by the Base Business
Exclusion) is payable in the same manner as the royalty and service fee. The marketing,
advertising, rewards program and promotional fee will be applied by CJS, in its sole discretion, to
cover costs of marketing, promoting, advertising, to reimburse FRANCHISEE with respect to
certain reward certificate redemptions at the CAMP-RESORT and improving the JELLYSTONE
PARK CAMP-RESORT Systems and Network, including local, regional or national advertising,
publishing directories, market research, public relations, training, meetings and seminars. CJS
undertakes no obligation to ensure that expenditure of the marketing, advertising, rewards program
and promotional fee affecting any geographic area is proportional or equivalent to the marketing,
advertising, rewards program and promotional fee paid by the JELLYSTONE PARK CAMP-
RESORT operating within that geographic area or that any JELLYSTONE PARK CAMP-
RESORT will benefit directly or in proportion to its payment from CJS’s application of the
marketing, advertising, rewards program and promotional fee.




(d) Credit Card Processing Fees. Should you choose to pay any of our fees or charges
by credit card, you agree that we may charge you for all credit card processing fees we incur.

ARTICLE VII
STATEMENTS AND RECORDS

@ Monthly Reports and Remittance. FRANCHISEE agrees to furnish to CJS each
monthly period, along with the royalty and service fee and marketing, advertising and promotional
fee referred to in Paragraphs (c) and (d) of Article VI, such royalty reports and operating data as
may be prescribed by CJS for said preceding period in such form as CJS may, from time to time,
designate. All reports and operating data are to be remitted to CJS no later than ten (10) business
days after the close of each monthly period.

(b) Annual Reports. FRANCHISEE agrees on or before sixty (60) days following the
close of FRANCHISEE’s accounting year to furnish CJS with an unaudited balance sheet and
income statement for the CAMP-RESORT for the previous accounting year. FRANCHISEE
further agrees on or before ninety (90) days following the close of FRANCHISEE’s accounting
year to furnish CJS with an audited balance sheet and income statement for the CAMP-RESORT
for the previous accounting year prepared by an independent accountant or accounting service in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles and in such form as CJS may require,
prepared by an independent accountant or accounting service and verified to be correct by
FRANCHISEE, or, in lieu thereof, with FRANCHISEE’s operating reports of results for that year
and with FRANCHISEE’s tax returns. FRANCHISEE agrees to provide CJS written notice of its
intent to file an extension of its tax filing with the Internal Revenue Service no later than seven (7)
calendar days following the filing of such extension.

(©) Books and Records. FRANCHISEE shall, with respect to the business done by it
related to the CAMP-RESORT, keep on the premises or at its principal place of business at all
times, true and accurate records, accounts, books and data which shall accurately reflect the Gross
Revenues of the CAMP-RESORT. CJS or its designee shall have the right at all reasonable times
to inspect, examine, audit and copy records, accounts and books. FRANCHISEE understands and
acknowledges that CJS or its designee may obtain documents and records from vendors providing
services and/or products to FRANCHISEE (including the reservation vendor of CJS) to confirm
compliance with the obligations of FRANCHISEE in this Agreement. Any such inspection,
examination and/or audit shall be at CJS’s sole expense unless the same is necessitated by
FRANCHISEE’S failure in a timely manner to prepare and deliver royalty reports, remittances
and financial statements as herein above provided or to keep and preserve complete records; or
unless such inspection reveals an underpayment in royalties or fees due to CJS of two percent (2%)
or more for any period. In any of these events, the cost of the inspection, examination and/or audit
shall be paid by FRANCHISEE upon demand by CJS.

d) Data Sharing and Restrictions. FRANCHISEE acknowledges CJS may receive, in
connection with its activities related to CAMP-RESORT, reports from the system-wide reservation
system. Other than the parent company of CJS and those entities related to CJS, CJS will not share
such reports with third parties, including other franchisees. FRANCHISEE must also execute
Addendum E attached hereto and incorporated herein, acknowledging this responsibility.




ARTICLE VI
RELATIONSHIP OF PARTIES; INDEMNIFICATION

It is understood and agreed by the parties hereto that this Agreement does not create a
fiduciary relationship between them, that CJS and FRANCHISEE shall be independent contractors
and that nothing in this Agreement is intended to make either party a general or special agent, joint
venturer, partner, fiduciary or employee of the other for any purpose. FRANCHISEE shall
conspicuously identify itself in all dealings with customers, suppliers, public officials, and
personnel of the CAMP-RESORT and others as the owner of the CAMP-RESORT operating under
a franchise with CJS and shall place such other notices of independent ownership on such forms,
business cards, stationery, advertising and other materials at all camper check-in areas as CJS may
require from time to time.

CJS has not authorized or empowered FRANCHISEE to use the Marks except as provided
by this Agreement and FRANCHISEE shall not employ any of the Marks in signing any contract,
check, purchase agreement, negotiable instrument or legal obligation, application for any license
or permit or in a manner that may result in liability of CJS for any indebtedness or obligation of
FRANCHISEE. Except as expressly authorized by this Agreement, neither CJS nor
FRANCHISEE shall make any express or implied agreements, warranties, guarantees or
representations, or incur debt in the name of or on behalf of the other or represent that their
relationship is any other than FRANCHISOR and FRANCHISEE. Neither CJS nor FRANCHISEE
shall be obligated by or have any liability under any agreements or representation made by the
other that are not expressly authorized hereunder, nor shall CJS be obligated for any damage to
any person or property directly or indirectly arising out of the operation of the CAMP-RESORT,
or FRANCHISEE’s business conducted pursuant to the Franchise, whether caused by
FRANCHISEE’s negligent or willful action or failure to act. CJS shall have no liability for any
sales, use, occupation, excise, gross receipts, income, property or other taxes, whether levied upon
FRANCHISEE, the CAMP-RESORT or FRANCHISEE’s property or upon CJS, in connection
with the sales made or business conducted by FRANCHISEE or payments to CJS pursuant hereto.

FRANCHISEE acknowledges and agrees that, except as otherwise provided in this
Agreement, CJS does not have authority to exercise control over the means or manner in which
FRANCHISEE operates the CAMP-RESORT. All franchise operations will be determined by
FRANCHISEE in its own judgment, subject only to legal requirements, the terms of this
Agreement, and the standard, procedures and policies FRANCHISOR prescribes for the
preservation of the goodwill associated with the Marks. FRANCHISEE shall maintain a
competent and conscientious staff who have been trained in CAMP-RESORT operations in
accordance with the procedures set forth in the Brand Standards Manual, and who meet required
governmental health and employment standards. FRANCHISEE shall take such steps as are
necessary to ensure that its employees do not violate FRANCHISOR’S policies relating to the use
of any electronic medium, including, but not limited to, prohibiting employees from posting any
information relating to FRANCHISOR, the Franchise System, or the Marks without
FRANCHISOR’S prior written approval. You are exclusively responsible for hiring, retention,
and firing decisions related to all employees of your franchise. You are exclusively responsible for
establishing the terms, conditions, and benefits of employment for all employees, including
without limitation, hiring, firing, scheduling, employee discipline, employee performance
evaluations, awards, promotions, demotions, work assignments, wages, benefits, vacation time,



and sick time policies, the compensation rates for all employees, and for ensuring that all
employees are properly trained in the operation of your franchise consistently with the Brand
Standards Manual. You acknowledge that we do not have direct or indirect control, including
through the implementation of our System, of your employment decisions.

FRANCHISEE agrees to defend, indemnify and forever release, remise and discharge and
forever hold harmless CJS, its current and former shareholders, members, directors, officers,
employees, agents, affiliates and assignees against liability and expenses for any claims arising out
of the construction, conversion or operation of the CAMP-RESORT (including without limitation
any such injury or property damage claims alleging negligence or active malfeasance on the part
of the CAMP-RESORT personnel) as well as use of the Marks in any manner not in accordance
with this Agreement. For purposes of this indemnification, claims shall mean and include all
obligations, actual consequential and punitive damages, taxes and costs reasonably incurred in the
preparation, investigation and defense of any claim against CJS (including, without limitation,
reasonably incurred accountants’, attorneys’ and expert witness fees, costs of investigation and
proof of facts, court costs, other litigation expenses and travel and living expenses).
Notwithstanding FRANCHISEE’s obligations hereunder, CJS shall have the right to defend any
such claim against it. FRANCHISEE’s defense and indemnity obligations hereunder shall continue
in full force and effect subsequent to and notwithstanding the expiration or termination of this
Agreement.

ARTICLE IX
TRANSFER

@ Transfer by FRANCHISEE. FRANCHISEE understands and acknowledges that
the rights and duties created by this Agreement are personal to FRANCHISEE and that CJS has
granted the Franchise and the right to operate the CAMP-RESORT to FRANCHISEE in reliance
upon the individual or collective character, skill, aptitude, business ability and financial capacity
of FRANCHISEE and its principals. Accordingly, neither this Agreement nor the Franchise (or
any interest herein) nor the right to operate the CAMP-RESORT as a JELLYSTONE PARK
CAMP-RESORT may be transferred without prior written approval of CJS, and any such transfer
without CJS’s approval shall constitute a breach hereof. As used in this Agreement the term
“transfer” shall include the transfer of any interest in this Agreement, the Franchise, the
FRANCHISEE, or the CAMP-RESORT as determined at CJS’s sole discretion: (1) by voluntary,
involuntary, direct or indirect assignment, sale or other transfer by FRANCHISEE; (2) by merger
or consolidation or by the transfer or issuance of stock, securities convertible to stock, partnership
interests, voting rights or any other security or document representing an ownership or controlling
interest in FRANCHISEE; (3) by divorce, insolvency, corporate or partnership dissolution
proceeding or otherwise by operation of law; and (4) by will, declaration of trust, transfer in trust
or under the laws of interstate succession.

(b) Conditions for Approval of Transfer. FRANCHISEE may, in writing, request
CJS’s approval of a transfer. CJS will not unreasonably withhold its approval subject to the
following conditions: (1) the proposed transferee and its owners must be individuals of good moral
character and otherwise meet CJS’s then-applicable standards for JELLYSTONE PARK CAMP-
RESORT franchisees; (2) the transferee must have sufficient business experience, aptitude and
financial resources to operate the CAMP-RESORT, as determined by CJS in its sole discretion;




(3) FRANCHISEE must pay such royalty and service fees, marketing, advertising and promotion
fees and amounts owed for purchases by FRANCHISEE from CJS and its affiliates which are then
due, owing and unpaid; (4) the transferee must execute CJS’s then-standard franchise agreement,
which may include a royalty and service fee adjustment to the then current minimum royalty and
service fee amount referenced in the Franchise Disclosure Document, for a term at least equal to
the unexpired term of this Agreement; provided, however, if the unexpired term of this Agreement
at the time of this transfer is three (3) years or less, the term of the franchise agreement to be
executed by the transferee shall be five (5) years; (5) the transferee and its personnel must agree
to complete CJS’s training to CJS’s reasonable satisfaction; (6) FRANCHISEE or the transferee
must have paid CJS Five Thousand Dollars ($5,000) to defray expenses incurred by CJS; (7)
FRANCHISEE and its owners must execute a general release, in form satisfactory to CJS, of any
and all claims against CJS, its affiliates and their shareholders, members, officers, directors,
employees and agents. If FRANCHISEE is in full compliance with this Agreement, and if the
proposed transfer is to current owners of FRANCHISEE, to immediate family members of
FRANCHISEE, to a corporation wholly-owned by FRANCHISEE which conducts no business
other than the CAMP-RESORT and which is actively managed and controlled by FRANCHISEE,
or if the transfer is by bequest, inheritance or gift to immediate family member, subparagraph (6)
of the above requirements regarding payment of a transfer fee shall not apply.

(c) Effect of Consent to Transfer. CJS’s consent to a transfer of this Agreement and
the Franchise, or any interest in FRANCHISEE, shall not be deemed a waiver of CJS’s right to
demand exact compliance by the transferee with any of the terms or conditions of the new franchise
agreement executed by transferee.

(d) CJS’s Right of First Refusal. FRANCHISEE hereby represents and warrants that
it is the owner of the real estate upon which the CAMP-RESORT is located (the “Real Property”)
and grants to CJS, under the terms and conditions contained in Addendum C, attached hereto and
incorporated herein, a right of first refusal, granting CJS, or its assignee, the right to purchase,
ground lease or otherwise acquire, as applicable, any interest in the Real Property for which
FRANCHISEE has received a bona fide written offer (the “Right of First Refusal””). In the event
the Real Property is owned by a person or entity that is not the FRANCHISEE, such person or
entity must also execute Addendum C acknowledging and agreeing to our Right of First Refusal
and that we are an intended beneficiary as a condition of our granting FRANCHISEE a CAMP-
RESORT franchise. In addition, CJS shall have the right to record a notice of its Right of First
Refusal against the Real Property in the records of the county in which the Real Property is located,
in a form acceptable to CJS in its sole discretion. CJS shall unconditionally be permitted to assign
any or all of its rights in connection with the Right of First Refusal to any third-party, in its sole
discretion.

(e Transfer by CJS. This Agreement is fully transferable by CJS and shall inure to the
benefit of any transferee or other legal successor to the interest of CJS herein.

ARTICLE X
INSURANCE

@ Types of Insurance. FRANCHISEE agrees, at its sole cost and expense, to obtain
and maintain in full force and effect throughout the term of this Agreement, such types and




amounts of insurance as are set forth in this Article from insurance carriers that maintain an AM
Best rating of “A” of better. The parties acknowledge that current requirements include the
following:

(i) General Liability Insurance. Commercial general liability insurance covering all
operations by or on behalf of FRANCHISEE, providing insurance for bodily injury liability and
property damage liability for the limits indicated below. Coverage should be included for independent
contractors, premises and operations, product and completed operations and contractual liability.
Limits of liability should be provided in amounts not less than:

$1,000,000 per occurrence

$2,000,000 products and completed operations aggregate
$2,000,000 general aggregate

$1,000,000 personal and advertising injury

The commercial general liability policy shall name CJS, Sun Communities, Inc. and
respectively their directors and officers, Warner Bros. Discovery Inc., its subsidiaries and
affiliates, and any other parties designated by CJS as additional insureds. and any other parties
designated by CJS as additional insureds. The policy shall include a waiver of the insurance
carrier’s right of subrogation against CJS with the FRANCHISEE’s insurance. In the event
FRANCHISEE determines to purchase umbrella/excess coverages, the above entities must be
listed as co-insureds as well.

(i) Liquor Liability Coverage. If the CAMP-RESORT distributes, sells,
serves, or furnishes alcoholic beverages, liquor liability coverage shall also be purchased for an
amount not less than $1,000,000.

(iii))  Automobile Liability Insurance. Automobile liability, including coverage
for all owned, hired, and non-owned vehicles, shall be maintained with minimum limits of
$1,000,000 combined single limit.

(iv) Umbrella Liability Insurance. Umbrella liability insurance with a limit of
at least $1,000,000 per occurrence and in the aggregate and shall apply over the commercial general
liability, automobile liability, and employer’s liability policies as required above.

(v)  Business Interruption Insurance. Business interruption insurance covering
loss of profits and necessary continuing expenses, including any and all fees payable by
FRANCHISEE to CJS pursuant to and in accordance with this Agreement, contributions and other
amounts due to CJS and its Affiliates under or in connection with this Agreement, for interruptions
caused by loss or damage caused by fire, lightning, windstorm and all other risks covered by the
usual all-risk policy form of property insurance and providing coverage for the actual loss sustained.

(vi) Cyber Liability Insurance/Technology. Errors and omissions insurance
covering the CAMP-RESORT’s technology system and the data and other information generated
by or stored in that system.




(b) Certificate of Insurance. Prior to the commencement of operations, FRANCHISEE
agrees to furnish to CJS a Certificate of Insurance documenting that the required insurance
coverage is in effect. All policies shall be renewed annually through the Initial Term and any
Renewal of this Agreement and FRANCHISEE shall cause a renewal Certificate of Insurance for
each required coverage to be mailed or e-mailed to CJS prior to the expiration of such coverage.

(c) Insurance Requirements as Minimums. FRANCHISEE understands and
acknowledges that preceding amounts of coverage are minimum amounts that may be increased
throughout the Initial Term and any Renewal of this Agreement by written agreement between the
parties and do not represent a recommendation by CJS as to the amount of insurance coverage
FRANCHISEE should maintain for the CAMP-RESORT. If this Article X is modified by written
agreement between the parties, FRANCHISEE agrees to make such changes within thirty (30)
days of such written notice. FRANCHISEE further acknowledges and understands that it is
FRANCHISEE’s sole responsibility to determine the proper insurance coverage that is appropriate
to protect FRANCHISEE’s interest and that FRANCHISEE may elect, in its sole discretion, to
seek the advice of an independent insurance broker to assist FRANCHISEE in making an informed
determination.

(d) Placement of Insurance by CJS. If FRANCHISEE fails to take out or keep in force
any insurance required by Article X above and such failure continues for ten (10) days after the
receipt by FRANCHISEE of written notice from CJS of such non-compliance, CJS may, in its sole
discretion, without assuming any obligation in connection therewith, purchase such insurance and
charge the cost to FRANCHISEE. FRANCHISEE agrees to immediately reimburse CJS for all
costs incurred by CJS in connection with the placement of such insurance.

ARTICLE XI
DEFAULT AND TERM

@ Default by FRANCHISOR; Termination by Franchisee. FRANCHISOR will be
considered in default of this Agreement if FRANCHISOR breaches any material obligations of
FRANCHISOR under this Agreement. FRANCHISEE may terminate this Agreement only if: (a)
FRANCHISEE is in full compliance with all terms of this Agreement; (b) FRANCHISEE provides
written notice to FRANCHISOR specifying a material default of this Agreement by
FRANCHISOR and the proposed date of termination; and (¢) FRANCHISOR has committed the
default and has not cured the default within thirty (30) days of written notice from FRANCHISEE
of the default. Written notice from FRANCHISEE of the default must specify in writing with
particularity the nature of the default and the steps FRANCHISEE requests that FRANCHISOR
take to cure the default. FRANCHISOR will have not less than thirty (30) days to cure the default.
Failure of FRANCHISEE to comply with the provisions of this Section will result in any attempt
to terminate being deemed null and void and without legal effect.

(b) Events of Default by FRANCHISEE; No Right to Cure. Any of the following
events will constitute a default by FRANCHISEE and good cause for termination of this
Agreement by FRANCHISOR. On the happening of any of these events, FRANCHISOR may, at
its option, terminate this Agreement effective on delivery of written notice to FRANCHISEE
without affording FRANCHISEE an opportunity to cure (except as may be required by applicable
law).




() FRANCHISEE fails to: (i) enter into a lease or sublease for a Franchise
Location, or (ii) open the Franchise Location within the time frame required by this Agreement,
(iii) acquire a Franchise Location within the applicable time period required by this Agreement.

(i) FRANCHISOR determines that FRANCHISEE cannot, will not or has not
completed FRANCHISOR’s pre-opening training programs to the satisfaction of FRANCHISOR,
or fails to demonstrate the qualities and abilities that FRANCHISOR deems necessary for the
successful operation of the Franchise Business.

(ili)  FRANCHISEE is unable to obtain, without extraordinary administrative
proceedings or litigation, any permit or license necessary to develop and open the Franchise
Business.

(iv)y  FRANCHISEE has made any material misrepresentation or engaged in
dishonesty or fraud to or against FRANCHISOR or its agents or affiliates, or suppliers or
customers of the Franchise Business.

(v) A substantial number of material complaints from customers have been
received relating to products or services provided by FRANCHISEE or the acts or omissions of
FRANCHISEE related to operations of the Campground.

(vi)  Any assignment or transfer of this Agreement or the Franchise Business
without complying with Article XI1I of this Agreement.

(vii)  The conviction of, or plea of guilty or no contest by FRANCHISEE or a
Designated Owner to: (i) a crime, offense or misconduct for which the minimum penalty includes
imprisonment for more than one year; or (ii) any crime, offense or misconduct for which the
minimum penalty includes imprisonment for one-year or less that involves fraud or dishonesty or
IS in any other way relevant to the operation of the Franchise Business.

(viii) FRANCHISEE has received three or more prior notices of default and/or to
terminate, whether or not for the same or similar default, during any consecutive twelve (12) month
period.

(ix)  FRANCHISEE has failed to attend two or more required monthly meetings
within any consecutive 12-month period.

(x) Any abandonment by FRANCHISEE of the Franchise Business. Abandon-
ment will be conclusively presumed if FRANCHISEE fails to open the Franchise Business for
business for a period of ten (10) or more consecutive calendar days without the prior written
consent of FRANCHISOR or fails to open the Franchise Business for business for a total of thirty
(30) calendar days within a ninety (90) day period.



(xi)  FRANCHISEE operates the Franchise Business in a manner that presents a
health or safety hazard to its customers, employees, or the public, and the same cannot by its nature
be cured within a reasonable time period.

(xii)  Intoxication, illegal drug use or other substance abuse by FRANCHISEE or
a Designated Owner that interferes with the operation of the Franchise Business.

(xiit)  Any conduct by FRANCHISEE that reflects materially and adversely on
the operation or reputation of the Franchise Marks or Franchise System.

(xiv)  Adjudication of bankruptcy of Franchisee, the insolvency of the Franchise
Business, appointment of a receiver or trustee to take charge of the Franchise Business by a court
of competent jurisdiction or the general assignment by FRANCHISEE for the benefit of creditors.

(©) Events of Default by FRANCHISEE; Right to Cure. Any of the following events
will constitute a default by FRANCHISEE and good cause for termination of this Agreement by
FRANCHISOR. On the happening of any of these events, FRANCHISOR may, at its option,
terminate this Agreement effective on written notice to FRANCHISEE and FRANCHISEE’s
failure to cure the defaults during a cure period set forth below:

() Failure of FRANCHISEE to promptly pay its obligations to
FRANCHISOR, an affiliate of FRANCHISOR or third-party suppliers as they become due, or the
occurrence of any other default under a lease or finance agreement for the real or personal property
involved in the Franchise Business.

(i) Failure of FRANCHISEE to operate in accordance with the uniform
standards of FRANCHISOR, failure of FRANCHISEE to meet current minimum performance
standards according to the provisions of the Operations Manual or failure to permit store
evaluations and inspections by FRANCHISOR’s representatives.

(iii)  Failure of FRANCHISEE to purchase products and services for use in the
Franchise Business from Designated Suppliers.

(iv)  If FRANCHISEE is an entity other than a natural person, any dispute,
disagreement or controversy among the stockholders, members, partners, directors, officers or
managers of FRANCHISEE, which materially and adversely affects the ownership, operation,
management or business of the Franchise Business.

(v) Any other material breach of this Agreement by FRANCHISEE or a
material breach by FRANCHISEE or any corporation, partnership, limited liability company or
other entity controlling, controlled by or under common control with FRANCHISEE or any of the
owners of FRANCHISEE, of any of the terms of any other agreements entered into with
FRANCHISOR or its affiliates.

(vi)  The cancellation of any guaranty of the obligations of this Agreement by
any owner of FRANCHISEE.



Written notice of termination from FRANCHISOR under this Article XI must specify any
defaults under this Agreement or other reasons for termination and the date the termination will be
effective. The effective date of termination must be: (i) at least fifteen (15) days from the date of
notice for defaults involving the payment of money to FRANCHISOR or its affiliates; and (ii) at
least thirty (30) days from the date of notice in all other instances. Termination will be
automatically effective without further action by FRANCHISOR on the date specified in the notice
as the effective date of termination unless FRANCHISEE completely cures, before the date
specified in the notice as the effective date of termination, all the defaults or other reasons for
termination specified by FRANCHISOR in the notice.

ARTICLE Xl
EFFECT OF TERMINATION OR EXPIRATION

@) Obligations of FRANCHISEE. On expiration or termination of this Agreement for
any reason (including termination on a transfer), FRANCHISEE’s rights to use the Franchise
Marks and the Franchise System and all other rights associated with being an authorized
FRANCHISEE of FRANCHISOR will cease and FRANCHISEE must do the following:

() FRANCHISEE must immediately and permanently discontinue the use of
the Franchise Marks, the Franchise System and any marks and names and logos confusingly
similar to the Franchise Marks, and any other materials that may, in any way, indicate that
FRANCHISEE is or was a FRANCHISEE of FRANCHISOR, or in any way associated with
FRANCHISOR.

(i) FRANCHISEE must immediately discontinue all advertising placed or
ordered. FRANCHISEE must remove and deliver to FRANCHISOR all sign faces, advertising
and promotional material, stationery, letterhead, forms and any other items bearing the Franchise
Marks. FRANCHISEE must bear the cost of sign and other identification removal and the cost of
shipping signs and other materials to FRANCHISOR. If FRANCHISEE remains in possession of
the Franchise Location, FRANCHISEE must alter the premises to distinguish the premises from
the appearance of a CAMP-RESORT.

(i)  FRANCHISEE must cease using the Operations Manual and all proprietary
business information provided by FRANCHISOR and must return to FRANCHISOR all copies of
the Operations Manual and other materials received from FRANCHISOR containing information
about the Franchise Business.

(iv)y  FRANCHISEE must immediately and permanently cease to use all
telephone and fax numbers, email addresses, websites, domain names and other comparable
electronic identifiers that have been used in the Franchise Business and if requested by
FRANCHISOR, must assign all such telephone and fax numbers, email addresses, website
addresses, domain names and other comparable electronic identifiers to FRANCHISOR.
FRANCHISEE acknowledges that as between FRANCHISOR and FRANCHISEE,
FRANCHISOR has the sole rights to all telephone and fax numbers, email addresses, website
addresses, domain names and other comparable electronic identifiers used in the Franchise
Business and all written and online directory listings associated with the CAMP RESORT.
FRANCHISEE authorizes FRANCHISOR and appoints FRANCHISOR and any officer of



FRANCHISOR as its attorney-in-fact, to direct the applicable service providers and all listing
agencies to transfer those items to FRANCHISOR or its agent or assignee if FRANCHISEE fails
or refuses to do so. The applicable service providers and all listing agencies may accept the
direction in this Agreement as conclusive evidence of the exclusive rights of FRANCHISOR in
such telephone and fax numbers, email addresses, website addresses, domain names, other
comparable electronic identifiers such as Google Business Profile, and directory listings and its
authority to direct their transfer.

(v) FRANCHISEE must cease using any business name containing any of the
Franchise Marks and must file an abandonment or discontinuance of the name with the appropriate
local, county or state agency. FRANCHISEE shall not use the terms “former Yogi Bear’s
Jellystone Park or any other similar terms denoting an association or relationship with the
FRANCHISOR and shall not represent to the public that FRANCHISEE is a FRANCHISEE or
that the park/campground/CAMP-RESORT business is or was associated with the Yogi Bear’s
Jellystone Park System.

(vi)  FRANCHISEE must immediately pay all sums and debts owing to
FRANCHISOR and its subsidiaries and affiliates, whether such sums and debts owing to
FRANCHISOR and its subsidiaries and affiliates are evidenced by promissory note, invoice, bill
or other writing, and notwithstanding the fact that such sums and debts may not at that time be
fully due and payable, such debts being accelerated automatically without further notice to
FRANCHISEE.

(vii)  FRANCHISEE must sell to FRANCHISOR all or part of FRANCHISEE’s
inventory or products on hand as of the date of termination or expiration that are uniquely identified
with FRANCHISOR, if any, as FRANCHISOR may request in writing before or within thirty (30)
days after the date of termination or expiration. The sales price will be the current published prices
then being charged by the manufacturer or supplier to authorized franchisees of FRANCHISOR,
not including any costs of storage or transportation paid by FRANCHISEE to bring the goods
initially to the Franchise Business, minus all costs incurred or to be incurred by FRANCHISOR to
restore the goods or the packaging of the goods to a saleable condition and minus a reasonable
allowance for physical deterioration, obsolescence or damage to the extent not restored.

Additionally, FRANCHISOR may purchase, at the fair market value, all Themed Elements
and/or Marks not provided to FRANCHISEE as described in Article IV, subparagraph (p). For
the purposes of determining fair market value, FRANCHISEE agrees that the fair market value is
the undepreciated value of the item and such depreciation will be based on a five (5) year straight
line depreciation basis from the original date of purchase from CJS. In the event, CJS desires
FRANCHISEE to destroy any or all Themed Elements, FRANCHISEE will provide evidence of
such disposal.

(b) Termination of Lease; Option to Assume Lease. On expiration or termination of
this Agreement, FRANCHISOR may terminate any lease or sublease entered into with
FRANCHISEE for the Franchise Location.

If this Agreement terminates or expires for any reason, other than a termination by
FRANCHISEE for cause, FRANCHISOR will have the right to assume FRANCHISEE’s lease for



the Franchise Location. If FRANCHISOR exercises this right, FRANCHISOR must assume and
hold FRANCHISEE harmless from all liability under the lease arising after the assumption by
FRANCHISOR. If the Franchise Location is owned by FRANCHISEE and this Agreement
terminates or expires for any reason other than a termination by FRANCHISEE for cause,
FRANCHISOR will have the option to lease the Franchise Location on substantially the same
terms and conditions contained in FRANCHISEE’s lease for the Franchise Location, or, if no lease
exists, then on terms and conditions that are commercially reasonable. The options granted in this
Section must be exercised by FRANCHISOR within thirty (30) days of the date of expiration or
termination of this Agreement.

(© Option to Purchase Non-Real Assets. If this Agreement expires or terminates for
any reason, except termination by FRANCHISEE for cause, FRANCHISOR will have the option,
but not the obligation to purchase the non-real estate assets of the Franchise Business. The
purchase price will be the fair value of the assets as agreed by the parties or in the absence of an
agreement, as determined by an independent qualified appraiser selected by FRANCHISOR and
FRANCHISEE. If FRANCHISOR and FRANCHISEE cannot agree on an independent appraiser,
each will select an independent appraiser qualified or certified to make the appraisal. The
independent appraisers chosen will then select a third independent appraiser. The third
independent appraiser will determine the fair value of the assets and his or her determination will
be binding on the parties. The purchase price will be reduced by any unpaid debts, obligations,
and current and long-term liabilities of the Franchise Business that FRANCHISOR agrees to
assume and any amounts owing to FRANCHISOR by FRANCHISEE. FRANCHISOR must
exercise the option granted in this Section within forty-five (45) days following the determination
of a price for the assets. Closing of the sale must take place within forty-five (45) days after
FRANCHISOR exercises its option to purchase the assets or a later date, if agreed to by the parties,
as necessary to comply with applicable bulk sales or other similar laws.

(d) Surviving Obligations. Termination or expiration of this Agreement will not affect
FRANCHISEE’s obligations or liability to FRANCHISOR for amounts owed to FRANCHISOR
under this Agreement or for FRANCHISOR’s damages attributable to the loss of bargain resulting
from termination of this Agreement before its expiration (as set forth in Paragraph (e) of Article
XII). Also, termination of this Agreement will not affect FRANCHISEE’s obligations under
Article VI relating to the Franchise Marks, Article VIII relating to indemnification, Article XI
relating to confidentiality, Paragraph (c) of Article XII relating to FRANCHISOR’s option to
purchase the assets of the Franchise Business, Paragraph (p) of Article XIV relating to dispute
resolution and other obligations in this Agreement or any other agreements between
FRANCHISOR and third parties, which, by their terms or intent, survive termination or expiration
of this Agreement.

(e) Damages for Loss of Bargain/Liquidated Damages. In addition to any other
remedies available to FRANCHISOR, if this Agreement is terminated before its expiration (other
than termination by FRANCHISEE for cause), FRANCHISOR will be entitled to recover from
FRANCHISEE damages attributable to the loss of bargain resulting from that termination. The
parties stipulate and agree that the damages for FRANCHISOR’s loss of bargain will be The
royalty that you would have paid to us will be calculated by taking the average monthly amount
of those payments for the twelve-month period [or such lesser period if you were not in operation
for a full twelve month period] immediately preceding the date of termination and multiplying that




amount by the number of months left in the term of the Franchise Agreement at the time of
termination, utilizing an interest rate of five percent (5%). Such amount must be paid within fifteen
(15) days after the effective date of termination.

In the event the CAMP-RESORT has not been opened, total liquidated damages shall be
limited to the Initial Franchise Fee, initial costs due to CJS for the Themed Elements and Initial
Inventory. FRANCHISEE acknowledges and agrees the CJS’s damages and lost opportunities
upon termination of the Agreement will be difficult to ascertain and that the foregoing formula is
a reasonable estimate thereof and does not constitute a penalty or forfeiture. CJS’s right to
liquidated damages is cumulative with all other available remedies.

The parties acknowledge and agree that the actual damages that would be sustained by
FRANCHISOR if this Agreement is terminated before its expiration are incapable of calculation
at the time of execution of this Agreement. The parties further acknowledge and agree that the
damages set forth in this Section are a reasonable estimation of those damages.

()] Remedies. Termination or expiration of this Agreement and/or enforcement of the
provisions of this Article will not affect or prejudice any other rights or remedies of
FRANCHISOR for breach of this Agreement by FRANCHISEE whether those rights and remedies
are contained in this Agreement or otherwise provided by law or equity.

ARTICLE X
CONSENT TO JURISDICTION

Any action, cause of action or claim, of any nature whatsoever, whether at law or in equity,
arising out of or relating to this Agreement, or the breach thereof, or to the Franchise shall be
initiated exclusively in the Oakland County, Michigan state court or federal district court located
in Detroit, Michigan. FRANCHISEE hereby exclusively consents to the personal jurisdiction of
the federal and state courts in Michigan and agrees that it shall not attempt to transfer or remove
from said courts any action, cause of action or claim described in this Article XIII on grounds of
forum non conveniens or otherwise.

ARTICLE XIV
MISCELLANEOUS

@) Security Interest, Financing Statements. To secure payment of all FRANCHISEE’S
present and future debts, obligations and liabilities to CJS, FRANCHISEE agrees to grant CJS
upon CJS’s request a security interest in all FRANCHISEE’s Yogi Bear inventory, including but
not limited to souvenir items and other merchandise. Upon such request, FRANCHISEE agrees
to execute such security agreements and Uniform Commercial Code financing statements in such
form and at such time as may be required to CJS to evidence CJS’s security interest in such
inventory.

(b) Assignability of CJS’s Economic Rights. CJS shall have the unlimited right to sell,
assign, pledge or encumber any security interest or any other note, obligation or indebtedness of
FRANCHISEE, including CJS’s option and rights of first refusal hereunder, without notice to
FRANCHISEE.




(© Force Majeure. Neither CJS nor FRANCHISEE shall be liable for loss or damage
or deemed to be in breach of this Agreement if its failure to perform its obligations, hereunder, is
prevented from doing so by cause or causes beyond such parties control, which shall include,
without limitation: (1) transportation shortages, inadequate supply of equipment, merchandise,
supplies, labor, material or energy or from the voluntary foregoing of the right to acquire or use
any of the foregoing in order to accommodate or comply with the orders, requests, regulations,
recommendations, or instructions of any federal, state, or municipal government or any department
or agency thereof; (2) compliance with any law, ruling, order, regulation, requirement or
instruction of any federal, state or municipal government or any department or agency thereof
including those relating to a pandemic; (3) acts of God; or (4) acts or commissions of a similar
event or cause. Any delay resulting from any of said causes shall extend performances accordingly
or excuse performance, in whole or in part, as may be reasonable, except that said causes shall not
excuse payments of amounts owed at the time of such occurrence of payment of royalties due on
any sales thereafter.

(d) Notices or Demands. Any notice, demand, request of other writing required or
permitted by this Agreement or the Brand Standards Manual shall be deemed to have been
delivered by hand, one (1) business day after transmission by email or other electronic system or
three (3) business days after placement in the United States Mail by Registered or Certified Mail,
postage prepaid, and addressed as follows:

If to CJS: Camp Jellystone, LLC
27777 Franklin Road, Ste.300
Southfield, M1 48034
Attention: President

With required Mathew Chosid, Esq.

copies to: Taft Stettinius & Hollister, LP
27777 Franklin Road, Ste. 2500
Southfield, Ml 48034

If to FRANCHISEE:

or such other address as the party to which such notice is directed may have designated by notice
in writing given pursuant to this paragraph.

(e) Binding Effect. The covenants, conditions, restrictions and limitations of this
Agreement shall apply to all individuals executing the same and if the rights of FRANCHISEE
hereunder are assigned to a corporation pursuant to consent given by CJS, such covenants,
conditions, restrictions and limitations shall apply to the activities of all stockholders, officers,
directors, agents, subsidiaries and affiliates of FRANCHISEE or such corporate assignee.
FRANCHISEE agrees that a failure by any party to comply with the covenants, conditions,
restrictions and limitations imposed on such individual by this paragraph shall constitute a breach
thereof.




()] No Waiver. CJS and FRANCHISEE may by written instrument unilaterally waive
or reduce any obligation of or restriction upon the other under this Agreement. Other than waivers
granted by CJS for a specified time (which waivers shall be in writing), any waiver granted by
such party shall be without prejudice to any other rights such party may have, will be subject to
continuing review by such party and may be revoked, in such party’s sole discretion, at any time
and for any reason, effective upon delivery to other party of ten (10) days’ prior written notice.
Except in the case of a specific waiver as identified above, forbearance, delay, neglect or omission
on the part of CJS or FRANCHISEE to insist upon the compliance by the other party with any of
the terms of this Agreement shall not constitute a waiver thereof or a modification of this
Agreement.

(0) Severability. If any provision of this Agreement shall be construed to be illegal or
invalid, it shall be deemed stricken and deleted herefrom to the same extent and effect as if never
incorporated herein. All other provisions hereof shall continue in full force and effect. If under
any applicable and binding law, any provision of this Agreement or any specification, standard or
operating procedure prescribed by CJS is invalid or unenforceable, the provision of such law shall
be substituted for the comparable provisions hereof, and CJS shall have the right, in its reasonable
discretion, to modify such invalid or unenforceable provision, specification, standard or operating
procedure to the extent required to be valid and enforceable.

(h) Amendment. This Agreement may not be amended, changed, modified or
discharged unless such amendment, change, modification or discharge is in writing and signed by
all parties executing this Agreement.

() Entire Agreement. This Agreement and the Addenda attached hereto or executed
herewith contain the entire understanding of the parties and no prior, contemporaneous, oral or
written understanding of the parties shall be applicable hereto except as specifically set forth
herein, provided, nothing in this Agreement, the Addenda or any related agreement is intended to,
or shall be construed as, a disclaimer of representations made by CJS in the Franchise Disclosure
Document.

() Rights of Parties are Cumulative. The rights of CJS and FRANCHISEE hereunder
are cumulative and no exercise or enforcement by CJS or FRANCHISEE of any right or remedy
hereunder shall preclude the exercise or enforcement by CJS or FRANCHISEE of any other right
or remedy hereunder or which CJS or FRANCHISEE is entitled by law to enforce.

(k) Governing Law. Except to the extent governed by the United States Trademark
Act of 1946 (Lanham Act, 15 U.S.C. Sections 1051, et seq.) or other federal law, the parties agree
that Michigan law shall govern the construction, interpretation, validity and enforcement of this
Agreement.

M Miscellaneous. Nothing in this Agreement is intended, nor shall be deemed, to
confer any rights or remedies upon any person or legal entity not a party hereto. If two (2) or more
persons are at any time FRANCHISEE hereunder, whether or not as partners or joint venturers,
their obligations and liabilities to CJS shall be joint and several. This Agreement shall be executed
in multiple copies, each of which shall be deemed an original.



(m)  Acknowledgements. FRANCHISEE acknowledges that it has read this Agreement
and CJS’s Franchise Disclosure Document and that it understands and accepts the terms,
conditions and covenants contained in this Agreement as being reasonably necessary to maintain
CJS’s high standards of quality and service and the uniformity of those standards at all
JELLYSTONE PARK CAMP-RESORTS and thereby to protect and preserve the goodwill of the
Marks, the Network and the System. FRANCHISEE acknowledges that it has conducted an
independent investigation of the business venture contemplated by this Agreement and recognizes
that it involves business risks and that the success of the venture is largely dependent upon the
business abilities of FRANCHISEE. CJS expressly disclaims the making of, and FRANCHISEE
acknowledges that it has not received or relied upon, any representations, guaranty, or warranty,
express or implied, as to the revenues, profits, success of the business venture contemplated by
this Agreement or other financial performance representations. FRANCHISEE acknowledges that
it has not received or relied on any representations about the Franchise by CJS or its shareholders,
members, officers, directors, employees, or agents that are contrary to the statements made in
CJS’s Franchise Disclosure Document or to the terms herein. FRANCHISEE acknowledges that
in all of its dealings with CJS, the shareholders, members, officers, directors, employees, and
agents of CJS act only in a representative capacity and not in an individual capacity.
FRANCHISEE further acknowledges that this Agreement, and all business dealings between
FRANCHISEE and such individuals as a result of this Agreement, are solely between
FRANCHISEE and CJS. FRANCHISEE further represents to CJS, as an inducement to its entry
into this Agreement, that FRANCHISEE has made no misrepresentations in obtaining the
Franchise.

(n) Anti-Terrorism _Law_Compliance. @~ FRANCHISEE AND ITS EQUITY
OWNERS AGREE TO COMPLY WITH, AND TO ASSIST FRANCHISOR, TO THE FULLEST
EXTENT POSSIBLE IN FRANCHISOR’S EFFORTS TO COMPLY WITH ANTI-
TERRORISM LAWS OF THE UNITED STATES. IN CONNECTION WITH THAT
COMPLIANCE, FRANCHISEE, AND ITS OWNERS CERTIFY, WARRANT AND
REPRESENT THAT NONE OF FRANCHISEE’S, OR IT’S EQUITY OWNER’S PROPERTY,
OR INTERESTS, ARE SUBJECT TO BEING BLOCKED UNDER ANY ANTI-TERRORISM
LAWS, AND THAT FRANCHISEE AND ITS OWNERS OTHERWISE ARE NOT IN
VIOLATION OF ANY ANTI-TERRORISM LAWS. “ANTI-TERRORISM LAWS” MEANS
EXECUTIVE ORDER 1324 ISSUED BY THE PRESIDENT OF THE UNITED STATES, THE
USA PATRIOT ACT, AND ALL OTHER PRESENT AND FUTURE FEDERAL, STATE AND
LOCAL LAWS, ORDINANCES, REGULATIONS, POLICIES, LISTS AND OTHER
REQUIREMENTS OF ANY GOVERNMENTAL AUTHORITY ADDRESSING OR IN ANY
WAY RELATING TO TERRORIST ACTS AND ACTS OF WAR. FRANCHISEE SHALL
IMMEDIATELY NOTIFY FRANCHISOR OF ANY MISREPRESENTATION OR BREACH
OF THIS REQUIREMENT. FRANCHISOR MAY TERMINATE THIS AGREEMENT
WITHOUT ANY OPPORTUNITY FOR FRANCHISEE TO CURE UNDER THIS
AGREEMENT UPON ANY MISREPRESENTATION OR BREACH BY FRANCHISEE OF
THIS SECTION.

(o) No Reliance. Except as expressly provided to the contrary in this Agreement,
FRANCHISOR makes no representations, warranties or guaranties upon which FRANCHISEE
may rely. FRANCHISOR does not assume any liability or obligation to FRANCHISEE by



providing any waiver, approval, consent or suggestion to FRANCHISEE in connection with this
Agreement, or by reason of any neglect, delay, or denial of any request therefor unless such
conduct would otherwise constitute a breach of an express obligation of FRANCHISOR under this
Agreement.

(p)  No Class Action or Consolidation. Each party hereto agrees that any litigation or
other form of mutually agreed upon dispute resolution will only be conducted on an individual,
not a class-wide basis, and that a proceeding between the FRANCHISOR and FRANCHISEE may
not be consolidated with any other proceeding between the parties and any other person,
corporation, limited liability company, partnership or other entity. The parties waive, to the fullest
extent allowed by law, any right to pursue or participate as a lead plaintiff, petitioner or class
representative in any claim on a class or consolidated basis.

[Remaining Page Intentionally Blank. Signatures on Following Page.]



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, these presents have been executed and delivered by or on
behalf of CJS and FRANCHISEE the day and year first above written.

Camp Jellystone LLC

Attest: a Delaware limited liability company
By: By:
Robert E. Schutter, Jr.
Title: Title: President
Attest: FRANCHISEE
By: By:
Title: Title:

REAL ESTATE RECORD OWNER
As To Art. IX(d) and Addendum C of
the Franchise Agreement:

Attest:
By: By:
Title: Title:

FOR CORPORATE
FRANCHISEES:

I, , do hereby certify that | am Secretary
of the FRANCHISEE and that the following is a true and correct copy of a Resolution adopted by
the Board of Directors of FRANCHISEE: “RESOLVED THAT ANY OFFICER OF THE
CORPORATION MAY, IN THE NAME OF THE CORPORATION, EXECUTE THE
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT ATTACHED HERETO.”

Secretary
(Seal)



FOR PARTNERSHIPS/LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANIES:

I, , do hereby certify that | am a partner or
member in FRANCHISEE and warrant that my other partners/members have empowered me to
enter into this FRANCHISE AGREEMENT.

(Partner)



ADDENDUM A
LEGAL DESCRIPTION - PROTECTED TERRITORY
TOA
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

DATED:

BETWEEN: (FRANCHISEE)

WHOSE ADDRESS IS:

AND: Camp Jellystone, LLC (“CJS”) (FRANCHISOR)

1.

The Yogi Bear’s JELLYSTONE PARK Camp-Resort to be operated pursuant to this
Franchise Agreement shall be located at [location]. The legal description of the property
is attached as Exhibit I.

The following “Protected Territory” is hereby granted to FRANCHISEE for the term of
the franchise.

The exclusivity of the above-described territory applies only to: (i) the establishment and
operation by a person other than the Franchisee of a Yogi Bear’s JELLYSTONE PARK
Camp-Resort or; (ii) to the establishment and operation by a person other than the
FRANCHISEE of any facility or site staffed with employees of another Yogi Bear’s
JELLYSTONE PARK Camp-Resort(s) (“Ancillary Operations”). This exclusivity does not
pertain to the establishment or operation of campgrounds and resorts or related facilities
and sites other than Camp-Resorts or related facilities and sites that utilize the Yogi Bear
name and logo. There is no exclusive right: to the use of the Marks in any other fashion; to
sell or distribute items bearing the Marks, whether or not those items may also be available
for distribution at a Camp-Resort; to advertise, solicit business, or otherwise to promote a
Yogi Bear’s JELLYSTONE PARK Camp-Resort. It is expressly understood and agreed
that persons other than the FRANCHISEE are free to utilize billboards, broadcast media,
direct mail solicitation, tradeshows or call centers in a FRANCHISEE’s exclusive territory
without violating such exclusivity.

CJS will not modify the FRANCHISEE’s exclusive territory described above during the term of
the Franchise Agreement without the written permission of the FRANCHISEE. The exclusive
territory will terminate upon termination or expiration of the Franchise Agreement. Upon renewal
of the Franchise Agreement, continuation of the exclusive territory will be conditioned upon
FRANCHISEE’s satisfactory compliance with all of CJS’s requirements and upon any changes in
population and other demographic conditions.

[Remaining Page Intentionally Blank. Signatures on Following Page.]



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, these presents have been executed and delivered by or on
behalf of CJS and FRANCHISEE the day and year first above written.

CAMP JELLYSTONE LLC

Attest: A Delaware limited liability company
By: By:
Robert E. Schutter, Jr.
Title: Executive Assistant Title: President
Attest: FRANCHISEE
By: By:

Title: Title:




ADDENDUM B
(Refer to Article 1V, Paragraph (a) of the Franchise Agreement)

DATED:

BETWEEN: (FRANCHISEE)
WHOSE ADDRESS IS:

AND: CAMP JELLYSTONE LLC (*CJS”) (FRANCHISOR)

THE FOLLOWING FACILITIES AND FEATURES ARE REQUIRED FOR A YOGI BEAR’S
JELLYSTONE PARK CAMP-RESORT. THEY MUST BE DEVELOPED AND INSTALLED
OR (IF PRE-EXISTING) MUST BE RENOVATED, AS INDICATED, BY THE
COMPLETION DATE.

ITEMS TO BE ADDRESSED COMPLETION
DATE

I understand the importance of promoting the Yogi Bear image nationwide and in my marketplace
and of developing our upgrading and maintaining my Camp-Resort as a quality member of the
Yogi Bear Camp- Resort System.

As part of my commitment, and as identified in the Franchise Agreement, | have agreed to the
items identified above, and until these requirements are completed, I will prominently display on
site, in any CJS approved advertising, signage or other promotional material, the identification
“Under Construction/Conversion”.

[Remaining Page Left Intentionally Blank]



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have hereunto set their hands as of the date
and year first written above.

CAMP JELLYSTONE LLC

Attest: A Delaware limited liability company
By: By:
Robert E. Schutter, Jr.
Title: Executive Assistant Title: President
Attest: FRANCHISEE
By: By:

Title: Title:




ADDENDUM C
NOTICE OF EXISTENCE OF RIGHT OF FIRST REFUSAL

Dated:

Name of Owner of Real Property:
Principal Place of Business:
Address of Real Property:

Legal Description: (See Attached Exhibit 1 in this Addendum A)

The undersigned record owner of real property acknowledges that as it is the owner of the land on
which FRANCHISEE’s Camp-Resort is located, it will receive benefit from the grant of a Camp
Jellystone franchise to FRANCHISEE. In consideration of the grant by Camp Jellystone, LLC
(“CJS”) to FRANCHISEE of a Camp Jellystone Camp-Resort franchise, the above-named record
owner of the above-referenced real property (the “Real Property”) hereby grants CJS, , or its
assignee, as intended express third-party beneficiaries, a right of first refusal to purchase or lease
the above-identified real property (the “Right of First Refusal”) in connection with a franchise
agreement between FRANCHISEE and CJS dated , 20 (the “Franchise Agreement”)
and agrees to be bound by all the provisions of Article 1X(d) of the Franchise Agreement, to the
same extent as if the undersigned were a signatory to the Franchise Agreement.

CJS shall have the right to record a notice of its Right of First Refusal against the Real Property in
the records of the county in which the Real Property is located, in form and substance acceptable
to CJS in its sole discretion. By the terms of Article IX of said Franchise Agreement, in the event
FRANCHISEE or the record owner of the Real Property receives a bona fide written offer to
purchase, ground lease or otherwise convey (excluding any reservation, lease, or license of
campsites to customers in the ordinary course) any interest in the Real Property, CJS shall be
provided, in accordance with the notice provisions of the Franchise Agreement, an exact copy of
such of such offer. Upon its receipt, CJS shall have a period of thirty (30) days within which to
deliver to the record owner a notice, in accordance with the notice provisions of the Franchise
Agreement, of its intention to purchase, ground lease or otherwise acquire, as applicable, the Real
Property on the same economic terms and conditions as those contained in such offer; provided
that, if the offer provides for any or all of the consideration to be paid in a form other than cash,
CJS shall be permitted to substitute an equivalent amount of cash consideration for such portion
of non-cash consideration. Any purported transfer of the Real Property by the record owner
without complying with this Right of First Refusal or the related provisions of the Franchise
Agreement shall be invalid and of no legal force and effect. The record owner of the Real Property
acknowledges that the Real Property is unique and that CJS would be irreparably injured in a
manner not compensable by monetary damages if the record owner of the Real Property fails to
comply with the terms of this Right of First Refusal or the related provisions of the Franchise
Agreement. In such event, CJS shall be entitled, in addition to all rights and remedies available at
law under the Franchise Agreement, to a preliminary and permanent injunction against any



purported transfer of the Real Property in violation of the Right of First Refusal or the related
provisions of the Franchise Agreement, all without the need to post bond or other security. CJS
shall unconditionally be permitted to assign any or all of its rights in connection with the Right of
First Refusal to any third-party, in its sole discretion. This instrument shall be governed by the
internal substantive laws of the State of Michigan.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have hereunto set their hands as of the date
and year first written above.

CAMP JELLYSTONE LLC

Attest: A Delaware limited liability company
By: By:
Stephanie Sears Robert E. Schutter, Jr.
Title: Executive Assistant Title: President
Attest: FRANCHISEE
By: By:

Title: Title:




ADDENDUM D
CONSENT TO PARTICIPATE IN NETWORK-WIDE PROMOTIONS

DATED:
BETWEEN: (FRANCHISEE)
WHOSE ADDRESS IS:

AND: CAMP JELLYSTONE LLC (“CJS”) (FRANCHISOR)

WHEREAS, from time to time Camp Jellystone LLC (“CJS”) has the opportunity to
become involved in promotions that, to be successful, require the participation of all or nearly all
the members of the Yogi Bear’s Jellystone Park Camp-Resort network (the “Network™); and

WHEREAS, the parties hereto agree that such Network-wide promotions provide benefits
to all participants; and,

WHEREAS, FRANCHISEE hereby agrees to participate in such Network-wide
promotions, in accordance with the following provisions:

1. FRANCHISEE will permit CJS to commit FRANCHISEE to participate in a maximum
of three (3) Network-wide promotions per calendar year.

2. Each of these promotions will be entirely funded by CJS and will require no out-of-
pocket monetary contribution from FRANCHISEE.

3. As a participating party, FRANCHISEE will agree to accept an “offer medium” (for
example, a discount coupon, proof of purchase item etc.) that in no event would, taken
in the aggregate, have a value that exceeds 5% of your average gross monthly sales.

4. Each promotion would be subject to certain limitations, including but not limited to:

- Not applicable with any other offer or discount

- Based on availability

- Offer medium” must be presented at the time of transaction
- Offer valid at participating locations only; and,

- Offer void where prohibited by law

5. Each Network-wide promotional program will be presented to the Yogi Advisory
Council (“YAC”) for approval prior to CJS’s committal. A two-thirds (2/3) majority
vote of the entire YAC committee would be needed to implement the promotion.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have hereunto set their hands as of the date
and year first written above.

CAMP JELLYSTONE LLC

Attest: A Delaware limited liability company
By: By:
Robert E. Schutter, Jr.
Title: Executive Assistant Title: President
Attest: FRANCHISEE
By: By:

Title: Title:




ADDENDUM E
DATA/PRIVACY ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

DATED:
BETWEEN: (FRANCHISEE)
WHOSE ADDRESS IS:

AND: CAMP JELLYSTONE LLC (*CJS”) (FRANCHISOR)

WHEREAS, the Agreement requires Franchisee to comply with applicable laws, which
includes privacy laws;

WHEREAS, Franchisee maintains a website(s) and/or mobile application(s) related to its
franchise under the Agreement (the “Site”);

WHEREAS, Franchisee recognizes that it must maintain a privacy policy on the Site
(“Privacy Policy”);

WHEREAS, if Franchisee is an existing franchisee, it agrees that pursuant to applicable
law, to continue sharing personal information with CJS, it must enter and comply with this DPA,;

WHEREAS, if Franchisee is a new franchisee, it recognizes that to share personal
information with CJS, it is necessary to enter and comply with this DPA.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing recitals, and of the mutual
covenants and agreements hereinafter set forth, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby
acknowledged, the parties, intending to be legally bound, hereby agree as follows:

1. General Provisions

a. All capitalized terms used but not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings
given such terms in the Agreement. Any capitalized terms set forth below shall
become part of the defined terms in the Addendum as additional definitions or, if
such defined term is already in the Agreement, then the defined term in this
Addendum, shall solely apply to this Addendum.

b. This Addendum may be executed by electronic signature and may be executed in
counterparts, each of which when so delivered shall be deemed an original, and all of
which shall constitute one and the same agreement.

c. Except as expressly stated otherwise in this Addendum, this Addendum is
intended to supplement, and not to supersede the Agreement. Except as expressly



stated otherwise in this Addendum, in the event of any inconsistency between this
Addendum and the Agreement, the Agreement shall control.

2. ADDENDUM.

The following terms supersede any inconsistent terms in the Agreement:

1. Privacy Policy Requirements for the Site: Franchisee agrees to maintain a Privacy
Policy on the Site that is publicly accessible. Franchisee agrees to ensure that at all
times the Site has a conspicuous link to the Privacy Policy, similar to links for other
menu items in size, color and font, ensuring that it is easily visible and accessible to
“Users.” Users includes Site visitors and customers of Franchisee.

2. General Obligation with Respect to User Privacy: Franchisee is responsible for the
following, among other things, related to the Site:

a.

compliance with all applicable laws that relate to data protection and individual
privacy and publicity rights and ensuring that its privacy policy remains
compliant with applicable laws;

Franchisee must revise or update its Privacy Policy with any language that CJS
may require, in its sole and absolute discretion, provided such language does not
violate applicable law. However, CJS has no obligation or responsibility to
provide such language or revisions, and Franchisee is solely responsible for
ensuring that the privacy policy on its website at all times complies with
applicable law.

posting an online Privacy Policy that:

i. discloses in a legally sufficient manner how data (including personal
information) is collected on or through the Site (including data collection by
third parties);

ii. discloses the purposes for which data is collected and used by Franchisee,
Franchisor and their service providers; and

iii.  includes instructions on how Users can control the collection of data by
web browsers and mobile devices.

Where the Site attracts Users from states that have enacted privacy laws, provide
specific notices in compliance with the legal requirements of those laws.
Franchisee shall ensure that it performs all its obligations under the privacy policy
and as required by applicable law.

3. Specific Disclosures and Use of Customer Personal Information to be Included
in Franchisee’s Privacy Policy: Franchisee must disclose to Users how their
personal information may be used. This disclosure in the Privacy Policy must include,
without limitation, the following uses:

a.

Making reservations;

b. Communications regarding the customer’s use of the campsite;

C.

Administering rewards program;



d. Marketing and communication with customer in relation to the customer’s use of
Camp Jellystone Park campgrounds, which may include marketing and
communications from trusted third parties; and

e. Internal business purposes of CJS and Franchisee.

4. Privacy Policy Disclosure: Franchisee must include in its Privacy Policy the
following language, in addition to all other language required under applicable law
and this DPA (Franchisee may adjust the language to be consistent with the defined
terms and references in Franchisee’s Privacy Policy):

Your personal information may be disclosed, accessed, or shared with third-
party service providers, our affiliates and our franchisor, including without
limitation:

e Campspot;

e Camp Jellystone LLC; and

e any third-party reservation service provider designated by us or any of

the aforementioned entities.

The sharing of information is for the purpose of delivering products and
services you may request or communicating with you about products and
services that we believe you may be interested in.

Third parties that we share information with have their own privacy and data
collection practices. If you would like to review those privacy policies, please
contact us, and will direct you to the privacy policy for the third party(ies)
with which we shared your personal information.

5. Additional Provisions:

a. Franchisee must implement and maintain reasonable security measures to protect
its Users’ personal information from unauthorized access, disclosure, alteration,
and destruction.

b. Franchisee will notify CJS within forty-eight (48) hours of any actual or suspected
breach of security or other event leading to the accidental or unlawful destruction,
loss, alteration, unauthorized disclosure of, or unauthorized access to (including
unauthorized internal access), personal information of any User.

c. Franchisee will provide CJS with reports on the compliance status of its privacy
policy and data protection measures it employed, as reasonably requested by CJS.

d. Franchisee agrees to indemnify and hold harmless CJS from any claims, damages,
or losses arising out of related to Franchisee’s failure to comply with the terms of
this Addendum.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have hereunto set their hands as of the date
and year first written above.

CAMP JELLYSTONE LLC

Attest: A Delaware limited liability company
By: By:
Robert E. Schutter, Jr.
Title: Executive Assistant Title: President
Attest: FRANCHISEE
By: By:

Title: Title:




ADDENDUM F

STATE SPECIFIC ADDENDA TO FRANCHISE
AGREEMENT

Exhibit E - State Law Addenda to the Franchise Disclosure Document

General

These states have statutes which may supersede the franchise agreement in your relationship with
Us including the areas of termination and renewal of your franchise: ARKANSAS [Stat. Section
70-807], CALIFORNIA [Bus. & Prof. Code Sections 20000-20043], CONNECTICUT [Gen. Stat.
Section 42-133e et seq.], DELAWARE [Code, Tit. 6, Chap. 25, Section 2551 et seq.], HAWAII
[Rev. Stat. Section 482E-1], ILLINOIS [ILCS 705/1-44], INDIANA [Stat. Section 23-2-2.7],
IOWA [Code Sections 523H.1 - 523H.17], MICHIGAN [Stat. Section 19.854(27)],
MINNESOTA [Stat. Section 80C.14], MISSISSIPPI [Code Section 75-24-51], MISSOURI [Stat.
Section 407.400], NEBRASKA [Rev. Stat. Section 87-401], NEW JERSEY [Stat. Section 56:10-
1], SOUTH DAKOTA [Codified Laws Section 37-5A-51], VIRGINIA [Code 13.1-557-574-13.1-
564], WASHINGTON [Code Section 19.100.180], WISCONSIN [Stat. Section 135.03]. These
and other states may have court decisions that may supersede the franchise agreement in your
relationship with Us including the areas of termination and renewal of your franchise.

Some states have statutes that limit Our ability to restrict your activity after the franchise agreement
has ended. Other states have court decisions limiting Our ability to restrict your activity after the
franchise agreement has ended.

A provision in the franchise agreement that terminates the franchise upon your bankruptcy may
not be enforceable under Title 11, United States Code.



Q) California Addendum

(Applies only to California FRANCHISEES)

California Business and Professions Code Sections 20000 through 20043 provide rights to the
FRANCHISEE concerning termination and non-renewal of a franchise. If the Franchise
Agreement contains a provision that is inconsistent with the law, the law will control.

SECTION 31125 OF THE CALIFORNIA CORPORATIONS CODE REQUIRES US TO GIVE
YOU A DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT APPROVED BY THE COMMISSIONER, BEFORE WE
ASK YOU TO CONSIDER A MATERIAL MODIFICATION OF YOUR FRANCHISE
AGREEMENT. THE CALIFORNIA FRANCHISE INVESTMENT LAW REQUIRES THAT A
COPY OF ALL PROPOSED AGREEMENTS RELATING TO THE SALE OF THE
FRANCHISE BE DELIVERED TOGETHER WITH THE FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE
DOCUMENT.

Neither We nor any person identified in Item 2 is subject to any currently effective order of any
national securities association or national securities exchange, as defined in the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, 15 U.S.C.A. 78a et. seq., suspending or expelling the persons from
membership in that association or exchange.

YOU MUST SIGN A GENERAL RELEASE OF CLAIMS IF YOU TRANSFER YOUR
FRANCHISE. CALIFORNIA CORPORATIONS CODE 831512 VOIDS A WAIVER BY THE
PERSON ACQUIRING A FRANCHISE OF CERTAIN RIGHTS UNDER THE FRANCHISE
INVESTMENT LAW (CALIFORNIA CORPORATIONS CODE 8831000 THROUGH 31516).
BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONS CODE §20010 VOIDS A WAIVER OF CERTAIN RIGHTS
UNDER THE FRANCHISE RELATIONS ACT (BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONS CODE
§820000 THROUGH 20043).

The franchise agreement provides for termination upon bankruptcy. This provision may not be
enforceable under federal bankruptcy law (11 U.S.C.A. Sec. 101 et. seq.)

The franchise agreement contains a covenant not to compete that extends beyond the termination
of the franchise. This provision may not be enforceable under California law.

The franchise contains a liquidated damages clause. Under California Civil Code Section 1671,
certain liquidated damages clauses are unenforceable.

You must resolve disputes through binding arbitration. The arbitration will occur in Birmingham,
Tennessee with the costs of arbitration being borne equally by the parties. Each party will bear its
own expenses, including attorney’s fees. Prospective FRANCHISEEs are encouraged to consult
private legal counsel to determine the applicability of California and federal laws (such as Business
and Professions Code Section 20040.5, Code of Civil Procedure Section 1281, and the Federal
Arbitration Act) to any provisions of a franchise agreement restricting venue to a forum outside
the State of California.

The Antitrust Law Section of the Office of the California Attorney General views maximum price
agreements as per se violations of the Cartwright Act. As long as this represents the law of the
State of California, We will not interpret the Franchise Agreement as permitting or requiring
maximum price limits.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Addendum has been executed and delivered by or on
behalf of Camp Jellystone, LLC and FRANCHISEE the day and year first above written.

Camp Jellystone LLC

Attest: a Delaware limited liability company
By: By:
Robert E. Schutter Jr.
Title: Title: President
Attest: FRANCHISEE
By: By:
Title: Title:

(i) Hawaii Addendum

(Applies only to Hawaii franchisees)

If your Business will be in Hawaii, You will not pay your Initial Fee to Us until your business is
open and we have completed all of Our material pre-opening obligations to you. Item 5 of the
Franchise Disclosure Document and Article 2 of the Franchise Agreement are amended
accordingly. Please review Item 11 for our pre-opening obligations. You must have your bank
verify that you have sufficient funds available at the time We sign the Agreement. The only
condition on your obligation to pay the Initial Fee is that We must complete all of Our material
pre-opening obligations to you.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Addendum has been executed and delivered by or on
behalf of Camp Jellystone, LLC and FRANCHISEE the day and year first above written.

Camp Jellystone LLC

Attest: a Delaware limited liability company
By: By:

Title: Title: President

Attest: FRANCHISEE

By: By:

Title: Title:




(iii)  HMlinois Addendum (Applies only to Illinois FRANCHISEES)

The Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act, Section 4, prohibits any agreement that specifies jurisdiction
or venue of any lawsuit in a place outside of the state of Illinois. The Act does permit agreements
to require you to arbitrate outside the state of Illinois. The Act prohibits choice of law provisions
that would require the application of any laws except the laws of the state of Illinois (Section 41).
You cannot waive any of your rights given to you by the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act (Section
41). You may have other rights under the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act or other laws of the
state of Illinois. To the extent that the Franchise Agreement is inconsistent with Illinois law, the
inconsistent terms of the Franchise Agreement will not be enforced and the terms of the applicable
Illinois law shall apply.

The conditions under which you can be terminated and your rights on non-renewal may be affected
by Hlinois law, 815 ILCS 705/19 and 705/20. The termination and nonrenewal conditions and
rights for Illinois franchises are set forth in sections 19 and 20 of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure
Act of 1987. 815 ILCS 705/19, 20 (West 2010).

The Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act will govern any franchise agreement if: (a) it applies to a
franchise located in Illinois; or (b) a FRANCHISEE who resides in Illinois

The franchise agreement will be interpreted and construed under the substantive laws of Illinois,
except to the extent governed by the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act or the United States
Trademark Act of 1946 (Lanham Act, 15 U.S.C., Sections 1051 et seq.).

Any provision in a franchise agreement that designates jurisdiction or venue in a forum outside of
Illinois is void. 815 ILCS 705/4 (West 2010). However, a franchise agreement may provide for
arbitration in a venue outside of Illinois. 815 ILCS 705/41 (West 2012).

Any condition, stipulation, or provision purporting to bind any person acquiring a franchise to
waive compliance with any provision of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act or any other law of
Illinois is void. 815 ILCS 705/41 (West 2010).

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Addendum has been executed and delivered by or on
behalf of Camp Jellystone, LLC and FRANCHISEE the day and year first above written.

Camp Jellystone LLC

Attest: a Delaware limited liability company
By: By:

Title: Title: President

Attest: FRANCHISEE

By: By:

Title: Title:




(iv)  Indiana Addendum

(Applies only to Indiana FRANCHISEES)

Indiana law prohibits requiring you to prospectively agree to a release or waiver which purports to
relieve any person from liability imposed by the Indiana Franchise Practices Act (IC 23-2-2.7(5)).
The Franchise Agreement shall be deemed amended to the extent necessary to comply with I1C 23-
2-2.7(5).

Indiana law limits the parties agreement to resolve disputes in any jurisdiction outside of Indiana
(IC 23-2-2.7(10). Subject to the Federal Arbitration Act, the Franchise Agreement shall be deemed
amended and the forum for any court proceedings shall be in Indiana.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Addendum has been executed and delivered by or on
behalf of Camp Jellystone, LLC and FRANCHISEE the day and year first above written.

Camp Jellystone LLC

Attest: a Delaware limited liability company
By: By:

Title: Title: President

Attest: FRANCHISEE

By: By:

Title: Title:

(v) Maryland Addendum (Applies only to Maryland FRANCHISEES)

The Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law, COMAR 02.02.08.16L, provides that,
as a condition of the sale of a franchise, we may not require you to agree to a release, assignment,
novation, waiver, or estoppel that would relieve a person from liability under the Franchise
Registration and Disclosure Law. Item 17 of the Franchise Disclosure Document is amended by
adding: any general release required as a condition of sale and/or assignment/transfer shall not
apply to any liability under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law.

The Franchise Agreement and Franchise Disclosure Document shall be deemed amended so that
no release, assignment, novation, waiver or estoppel is required if it would violate the Maryland
Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law. Nothing in the franchise agreement, including any
acknowledgments or representations, shall be deemed a release or waiver of any right or obligation
under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law.

Item 17 of the Franchise Disclosure Document is amended by adding the following: The provision
in the Franchise Agreement that provides for termination upon bankruptcy of the FRANCHISEE
may not be enforceable under federal bankruptcy law (11 U.S.C. Section 101, et. seq.).



Based upon the franchisor’s financial condition, the Maryland Securities Commissioner has
required a financial assurance. Therefore, all initial fees an payments owed by FRANCHISEEs
shall be deferred until the franchisor completes its pre-opening obligations under the franchise
agreement.

Item 17 of the Franchise Disclosure Document and Article 19 of the Franchise Agreement are
amended by adding: any claims arising under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure
Law must be brought within 3 years after the grant of the franchise.

Avrticle 19 of the Franchise Agreement is amended to provide as follows: Any lawsuit permitted
under this Article shall be brought in the federal or state courts located in the State of Maryland.
Item 17 is hereby amended by adding the identical language in the “summary” column of line v.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Addendum has been executed and delivered by or on
behalf of Camp Jellystone, LLC and FRANCHISEE the day and year first above written.

Camp Jellystone LLC

Attest: a Delaware limited liability company
By: By:

Title: Title: President

Attest: FRANCHISEE

By: By:

Title: Title:

(vi)  Michigan Addendum

(Applies only to Michigan FRANCHISEE)

NOTICE UNDER MICHIGAN'S FRANCHISE INVESTMENT LAW

THE STATE OF MICHIGAN PROHIBITS CERTAIN UNFAIR PROVISIONS THAT
ARE SOMETIMES IN FRANCHISE DOCUMENTS. IF ANY OF THE FOLLOWING
PROVISIONS ARE IN THESE FRANCHISE DOCUMENTS, THE PROVISIONS ARE VOID
AND CANNOT BE ENFORCED AGAINST YOU.

1. A prohibition on the right of a FRANCHISEE to join an association of
FRANCHISEEs.

2. A requirement that a FRANCHISEE assent to a release, assignment, novation,
waiver or estoppel which deprives a FRANCHISEE of rights and protections provided in this act.



This shall not preclude a FRANCHISEE, after entering into a franchise agreement, from settling
any and all claims.

3. A provision that permits a Franchisor to terminate a franchise prior to the expiration
of its term except for good cause. Good cause shall include the failure of the FRANCHISEE to
comply with any lawful provision of the franchise agreement and to cure such failure after being
given written notice thereof and a reasonable opportunity, which in no event need be more than
thirty (30) days, to cure such failure.

4, A provision that permits a Franchisor to refuse to renew a franchise without fairly
compensating the FRANCHISEE by repurchase or other means for the fair market value at the
time of expiration of the FRANCHISEE's inventory, supplies, equipment, fixtures and furnishings.
Personalized materials which have no value to the Franchisor and inventory, supplies, equipment,
fixtures and furnishings not reasonably required in the conduct of the franchise business are not
subject to compensation. This subsection applies only if: (1) the term of the franchise is less than
five (5) years and (2) the FRANCHISEE is prohibited by the franchise or other agreement from
continuing to conduct substantially the same business under another trademark, service mark, trade
name, logotype, advertising or other commercial symbol in the same area subsequent to the
expiration of the franchise or the FRANCHISEE does not receive at least six (6) months advance
notice of Franchisor's intent not to renew the franchise.

5. A provision that permits the Franchisor to refuse to renew a franchise on terms
generally available to other FRANCHISEEsS of the same class or type under similar circumstances.
This section does not require a renewal provision.

6. A provision requiring that arbitration or litigation be conducted outside this state.
This shall not preclude the FRANCHISEE from entering into an agreement, at the time of
arbitration, to conduct arbitration at a location outside this state.

7. A provision which permits a Franchisor to refuse to permit a transfer of ownership
of a franchise, except for good cause. This subdivision does not prevent a Franchisor from
exercising a right of first refusal to purchase the franchise. Good cause shall include, but is not
limited to:

a. the failure of the proposed transferee to meet the Franchisor's then
current reasonable qualifications or standards;

b. the fact that the proposed transferee is a competitor of the Franchisor
or sub-Franchisor;

C. the unwillingness of the proposed transferee to agree in writing to
comply with all lawful obligations; and

d. the failure of the FRANCHISEE or proposed transferee to pay any
sums owing to the Franchisor or to cure any default in the franchise agreement
existing at the time of the proposed transfer.



8. A provision that requires the FRANCHISEE to resell to the Franchisor items that
are not uniquely identified with the Franchisor. This subdivision does not prohibit a provision that
grants to a Franchisor the right of first refusal to purchase the assets of a FRANCHISEE on the
same terms and conditions as a bona fide third party willing and able to purchase those assets, nor
does this subdivision prohibit a provision that grants the Franchisor the right to acquire the assets
of a franchise for the market or appraised value of such assets if the FRANCHISEE has breached
the lawful provisions of the franchise agreement and has failed to cure the breach in the manner
provided in subsection 3.

9. A provision which permits the Franchisor to directly or indirectly convey, assign
or otherwise transfer its obligations to fulfill contractual obligations to the FRANCHISEE unless
provision has been made for providing the required contractual services.

THE FACT THAT THERE IS A NOTICE OF THIS OFFERING ON FILE WITH THE
ATTORNEY GENERAL DOES NOT CONSTITUTE APPROVAL, RECOMMENDATION OR
ENDORSEMENT BY THE ATTORNEY GENERAL.

IFF FRANCHISOR'S MOST RECENT UNAUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENT
SHOWS A NET WORTH OF LESS THAN ONE HUNDRED ($100,000) DOLLARS, YOU
HAVE THE RIGHT TO REQUEST THE ESCROW OF THE INITIAL INVESTMENT AND
OTHER FUNDS PAID UNTIL OBLIGATIONS TO PROVIDE REAL ESTATE, IMPROVE-
MENTS, EQUIPMENT INVENTORY, TRAINING OR OTHER ITEMS INCLUDED IN THE
FRANCHISE OFFERING ARE FULFILLED.

ANY QUESTIONS REGARDING THIS NOTICE MAY BE DIRECTED TO THE
STATE OF MICHIGAN, DEPARTMENT OF ATTORNEY GENERAL, CONSUMER
PROTECTION DIVISION, ATTN: FRANCHISE, 670 LAW BUILDING, LANSING,
MICHIGAN 48913, TELEPHONE (517) 373-7117.

(vii)  Minnesota Addendum (Applies only to Minnesota FRANCHISEES)

Minn. Stat. 880C.21 and Minn. Rule 2860.4400J prohibit us from requiring litigation to be
conducted outside Minnesota. In addition, nothing in the Franchise Disclosure Document or
agreement can abrogate or reduce any of your rights as provided for in Minnesota Statutes, Chapter
80C, or your rights to any procedure, forum, or remedies provided for by the laws of the
jurisdiction.

With respect to franchises governed by Minnesota law, the franchisor will comply with Minn. Stat.
880C.214, Subds. 3, 4, and 5 which require, except in certain specified cases, that We give you 90
days’ notice of termination (with 60 days to cure) and 180 days’ notice of non-renewal of the
franchise agreement.

We will protect your right to use the trademarks, service marks, trade names, logotypes or other
commercial symbols or indemnify you from any loss, costs or expenses arising out of any claim,
suit or demand regarding the use of the name, to the extent required by Minn. Stat. 880C.12, Subd.

1(9).



To the extent governed by Minn. Rule 2860.4400J, you shall not be deemed to have waived any
rights under Minnesota law. You shall not be deemed to have consented to Us obtaining injunctive
relief, although We may seek injunctive relief. A Court or the arbitrators shall determine whether
to require a bond as a condition of injunctive relief.

If your Business will be in Minnesota, you will not pay your Initial Fee to Us until your business
is open and we have completed all of Our material pre-opening obligations to you. Item 5 of the
Franchise Disclosure Document is amended accordingly. Please review Item 11 for our pre-
opening obligations. You must have your bank verify that you have sufficient funds available at
the time We sign the Agreement. The only condition on your obligation to pay the Initial Fee is
that We must complete all of Our material pre-opening obligations to you.

Section 26.5 of the Franchise Agreement, Limitations of Claims, is amended to comply with Minn.
Stat. 80C.17, Subd.5.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Addendum has been executed and delivered by or on
behalf of Camp Jellystone, LLC and FRANCHISEE the day and year first above written.

Camp Jellystone LLC

Attest: a Delaware limited liability company
By: By:

Title: Title: President

Attest: FRANCHISEE

By: By:

Title: Title:

(viii) New York Addendum

(Applies only to New York FRANCHISEEs)

Item 3 is amended to read as follows:

Neither We nor any person identified in Item 2 above have any administrative, criminal or material
civil action (or a significant number of civil actions irrespective of materiality) pending against us
alleging a violation of any franchise law, antitrust or securities law, fraud, embezzlement,
fraudulent conversion, restraint of trade, unfair or deceptive practices, misappropriation of
property or comparable allegations.

Neither We nor any person identified in Item 2 above have been convicted of a felony or pleaded
nolo contendere to any felony charge or during the 10 year period immediately preceding the date
of this Franchise Disclosure Document, been convicted of or pleaded nolo contendere to a
misdemeanor charge been held liable in any other civil action by final judgment or been the subject



of any other material complaint or other legal proceeding where such felony, misdemeanor civil
action, complaint or other legal proceeding involved violation of any franchise law, antifraud or
securities law, fraud, embezzlement, fraudulent conversion, restraint of trade, unfair or deceptive
practices, misappropriation of property or comparable allegations.

Neither We nor any person identified in Item 2 above is subject to any currently effective injunctive
or restrictive order or decree relating to the franchise or under any federal, state or Canadian
franchise, securities, antitrust, trade regulation or trade practice law as a result of a concluded or
pending action or proceeding brought by a public agency, or is subject to any currently effective
order of any national securities association or national securities exchange as defined by the
Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, suspending or expelling such person from membership in
such association or exchange, or is subject to a currently effective injunctive or restrictive order
relating to any other business activity as a result of an action brought by a public agency or
department.

Item 4 is amended to read as follows:

During the 10 year period immediately preceding the date of the Franchise Disclosure Document
neither We nor any predecessor, affiliate, current officer or general partner of Us has been the
subject of a bankruptcy proceeding, been adjudged bankrupt or reorganized due to insolvency or
been a principal officer of a company or a general partner of a partnership at or within one year of
the time that such company or partnership became the subject of a bankruptcy proceeding or was
adjudged bankrupt or reorganized due to insolvency or is subject to any such pending bankruptcy
or reorganization proceeding.

Item 5 is amended by adding the following: We will use the Initial Fee for the purposes of covering
the costs of selling the franchise and other franchises, for your initial training, for general overhead
and for profit.

Item 12 is amended by adding the following: Although We will consider many factors in
determining the boundaries of your Marketing Area, it will contain a population of not less than
25,000 people.

Item 17 is amended by changing the caption and preliminary statement to read as follows:

Iltem 17: RENEWAL, TERMINATION, TRANSFER AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION
THIS TABLE LISTS CERTAIN IMPORTANT PROVISIONS OF THE
FRANCHISE AND RELATED AGREEMENTS PERTAINING TO
RENEWAL, TERMINATION, TRANSFER AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION.
YOU SHOULD READ THESE PROVISIONS IN THE AGREEMENTS
ATTACHED TO THIS FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT.

Item 17 D is amended by adding the following: You may terminate the agreement on any grounds
available by law.

Item 17 J is amended by adding the following: We will only assign to an assignee who in Our
good faith judgment is willing and able to assume Our obligations.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Addendum has been executed and delivered by or on
behalf of Camp Jellystone, LLC and FRANCHISEE the day and year first above written.



Camp Jellystone LLC

Attest: a Delaware limited liability company
By: By:

Title: Title: President

Attest: FRANCHISEE

By: By:

Title: Title:

(ix)  North Dakota Addendum

(Applies only to North Dakota FRANCHISEES)

Under North Dakota law, no modification or change We make to the Manual or method of
operation may materially affect your status, rights or obligations under the Franchise Agreement.

Covenants not to compete are considered unenforceable in the State of North Dakota.

Under North Dakota law, a requirement that you consent to liquidated damages or termination
penalties in the event of termination of the franchise agreement is considered unenforceable.

The North Dakota Franchise Investment Law (Section 51-19-09) requires that the laws of North
Dakota, which laws will prevail, will govern the Franchise Agreement. Further, North Dakota law
requires that all issues or disagreements relating to the Franchise Agreement will be arbitrated,
tried, heard and decided within the jurisdiction of courts in the state of North Dakota.

Under the North Dakota Franchise Investment Law (Section 51-19-09), a North Dakota
FRANCHISEE may not be required to execute a general release upon renewal of the Franchise
Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Addendum has been executed and delivered by or on
behalf of Camp Jellystone, LLC and FRANCHISEE the day and year first above written.

Camp Jellystone LLC

Attest: a Delaware limited liability company
By: By:
Title: Title: President

Attest: FRANCHISEE



By: By:

Title: Title:

(x) Rhode Island Addendum

(Applies only to Rhode Island FRANCHISEES)

Item 17 is amended by adding the following: Section 19-28.1-14 of the Rhode Island Franchise
Investment Act provides that a provision in a franchise agreement restricting jurisdiction or venue
to a forum outside this state or requiring the application of the laws of another state is void with
respect to a claim otherwise enforceable under this Act.

If your Business will be in Rhode Island, you will not pay your Initial Fee to Us until your business
is open and we have completed all of Our material pre-opening obligations to you. Item 5 of the
Franchise Disclosure Document and Article 6 of the Franchise Agreement are amended
accordingly. Please review Item 11 for our pre-opening obligations. You must have your bank
verify that you have sufficient funds available at the time We sign the Agreement. The only
condition on your obligation to pay the Initial Fee is that We must complete all of Our material
pre-opening obligations to you.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Addendum has been executed and delivered by or on
behalf of Camp Jellystone, LLC and FRANCHISEE the day and year first above written.

Camp Jellystone LLC

Attest: a Delaware limited liability company
By: By:

Title: Title: President

Attest: FRANCHISEE

By: By:

Title: Title:

(xi)  South Dakota Addendum

(Applies only to South Dakota FRANCHISEES)



Covenants not to compete upon termination or expiration of a franchise agreement are generally
unenforceable in South Dakota, except in certain instances as provided by law.

In the event that either party shall make demand for arbitration, such arbitration shall be conducted
in a mutually agreed upon site in accordance with Section 11 of the Commercial Arbitration Rules
of the American Arbitration Association.

The law regarding franchise registration, employment, covenants not to compete, and other matters
of local concern will be governed by the laws of the State of South Dakota; but as to contractual
and all other matters, this agreement and all provisions of this instrument will be and remain
subject to the application, construction, enforcement and interpretation under the governing law of
the state where the franchise is located.

Any provision of the franchise agreement which requires you to agree to jurisdiction and venue
outside of South Dakota is void with respect to any cause of action which is otherwise enforceable
in South Dakota.

Notwithstanding any term of the franchise agreement, we not terminate the franchise agreement
upon default without first affording you thirty (30) days’ notice with an opportunity to cure the
default within that time.

To the extent required by South Dakota law, all provisions giving any party a right to liquidated
damages are hereby deleted from the franchise agreement and the parties shall be entitled to their
actual damages instead.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Addendum has been executed and delivered by or on
behalf of Camp Jellystone, LLC and FRANCHISEE the day and year first above written.

Camp Jellystone LLC

Attest: a Delaware limited liability company
By: By:

Title: Title: President

Attest: FRANCHISEE

By: By:

Title: Title:




(xii)  Virginia Addendum

(Applies only to Virginia FRANCHISEES)
Item 17 of the Franchise Disclosure Document is amended by adding the following: The provision

in the Franchise Agreement that provides for termination upon your bankruptcy may not be
enforceable under federal bankruptcy law (11 U.S.C. Section 101, et. seq.).

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Addendum has been executed and delivered by or on
behalf of Camp Jellystone, LLC and FRANCHISEE the day and year first above written.

Camp Jellystone LLC

Attest: a Delaware limited liability company
By: By:

Title: Title: President

Attest: FRANCHISEE

By: By:

Title: Title:




(xiii) Washington Addendum (Applies only to Washington FRANCHISEES)

The State of Washington has a statute, RCW 19.100.180 which may supersede the franchise
agreement in your relationship with the franchisor including the areas of termination and renewal
of your franchise. There may also be court decisions which may supersede the franchise agreement
in your relationship with the franchisor including the areas of termination and renewal of your
franchise.

In any arbitration involving a franchise purchased in Washington, the arbitration site shall be either
in Washington or in a place as mutually agreed upon at the time of the arbitration, or as determined
by the arbitrator.

In the event of a conflict of laws, the provisions of the Washington Franchise Investment Protection
Act, Chapter 19.100 RCW shall prevail.

A release or waiver of rights executed by a FRANCHISEE shall not include rights under the
Washington Franchise Investment Protection Act except when executed pursuant to a negotiated
settlement after the agreement is in effect and where the parties are represented by independent
counsel. Provisions such as those which unreasonably restrict or limit the statute of limitations
period for claims under the Act, rights or remedies under the Act such as a right to a jury trial may
not be enforceable.

Transfer fees are collectable to the extent they reflect the franchisor’s reasonable estimated or
actual costs in effecting a transfer.

The state law addendum, above, if applicable, is a part of the Franchise Agreement and supersedes
any inconsistent term(s) of the Franchise Agreement

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Addendum has been executed and delivered by or on
behalf of Camp Jellystone, LLC and FRANCHISEE the day and year first above written.

Camp Jellystone LLC

Attest: a Delaware limited liability company
By: By:

Title: Title: President

Attest: FRANCHISEE

By: By:

Title: Title:




ADDENDUM G

ACKNOWLEDGMENT ADDENDUM

(Acknowledgment Addendum to the
Camp Jellystone, LLC Franchise Agreement)

As you know, you and we are entering into a Franchise Agreement for the operation of a Camp
Jellystone franchise. The purpose of this Acknowledgment Addendum is to determine whether
any statements or promises were made to you that we have not authorized or that may be untrue,
inaccurate or misleading, and to be certain that you understand the limitations on claims that may
be made by you by reason of the offer and sale of the franchise and operation of your business.
Please review each of the following questions carefully and provide honest responses to each
question.

Acknowledgments and Representations.*

1.

Did you receive a copy of our Franchise Disclosure Document (and all exhibits and
attachments) at least fourteen calendar days prior to signing the Franchise Agreement?
Check one: (1) Yes () No. If no, please comment:

Have you studied and reviewed carefully our Franchise Disclosure Document and
Franchise Agreement?
Check one: (1) Yes () No. If no, please comment:

Did you receive a copy of the Franchise Agreement at least seven calendar days prior to
the date on which the Franchise Agreement was executed?
Check one: (1) No () Yes. If no, please comment:

Do you have any questions about the information contained in both the Franchise
Disclosure Document and Franchise Agreement?
Check one: () Yes (L) No. If yes, please comment:

Was any oral, written or visual claim or representation made to you which contradicted the
disclosures in the Disclosure Document?

Check one: (1) No () Yes. If yes, please state in detail the oral, written or visual claim
or representation:




10.

Did any employee or other person speaking on behalf of CAMP JELLYSTONE, LLC
make any oral, written or visual claim, statement, promise or representation to you that
stated, suggested, predicted or projected sales, revenues, expenses, earnings, income or
profit levels at any CAMP JELLYSTONE location or business, or the likelihood of success
in your CAMP JELLYSTONE business?

Check one: (1) No () Yes. If yes, please state in detail the oral, written or visual claim
or representation:

Did any employee or other person speaking on behalf of CAMP JELLYSTONE, LLC
make any statement or promise regarding the costs involved in operating a franchise that
is not contained in the Franchise Disclosure Document or that is contrary to, or different
from, the information contained in the Franchise Disclosure Document.

Check one: (1) Yes (L) No. If yes, please comment:

Do you understand that the franchise granted is for the right to operate a CAMP
JELLYSTONE Franchise business in the Franchised Area only and that we have the right,
subject only to the limited rights granted to you under the Franchise Agreement, to issue
franchises or operate competing businesses for or at locations, as determined by us, near
your Franchised Area?

Check one: (1) Yes () No. If no, please comment:

Do you understand that the Franchise Agreement contains the entire agreement between
you and us concerning your CAMP JELLYSTONE business, meaning that any prior oral
or written statements not set out in the Franchise Agreement will not be binding?

Check one: (1) Yes (L) No. If no, please comment:

Do you understand that the success or failure of your CAMP JELLYSTONE business will
depend in large part upon your skills and experience, your business acumen, the location
of your Franchised Area, the local market for products and services provided under The
CAMP JELLYSTONE trademarks, interest rates, the economy, inflation, the number of
employees you hire and their compensation, competition and other economic and business
factors? Further, do you understand that the economic and business factors that exist at the
time you open your CAMP JELLYSTONE business may change?

Check one: (1) Yes () No. If no, please comment:




YOU UNDERSTAND THAT YOUR ANSWERS ARE IMPORTANT TO US AND THAT WE
WILL RELY ON THEM. BY SIGNING THIS ADDENDUM, YOU ARE REPRESENTING
THAT YOU HAVE CONSIDERED EACH QUESTION CAREFULLY AND RESPONDED
TRUTHFULLY TO THE ABOVE QUESTIONS. IF MORE SPACE IS NEEDED FOR ANY
ANSWER, CONTINUE ON A SEPARATE SHEET AND ATTACH.

NOTE: IF THE RECIPIENT IS A CORPORATION, PARTNERSHIP, LIMITED
LIABILITY COMPANY OR OTHER ENTITY, EACH OF ITS PRINCIPAL OWNER
AND MINORITY OWNERS MUST EXECUTE THIS ACKNOWLEDGMENT.

FRANCHISE OWNERS: APPROVED ON BEHALF OF CAMP

JELLYSTONE FRANCHISING, L.L.C.

Signed: Signed:
Print Name: Print Name:
Date: Date:

Signed:

Print Name:

Date:

*Such representations are not intended to nor shall they act as a release, estoppel or waiver of any
liability incurred under any state franchise law or regulation precluding such liability. In addition,
no statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a FRANCHISEE in
connection with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i)
waiving any claims under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement,
or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other
person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any
document executed in connection with the franchise.



ADDENDUM H

JOINT AND SEVERAL UNCONDITIONAL GUARANTY

This Joint and Several Unconditional Guaranty (this “Guaranty’) dated as of , 20,
IS made by , an individual residing in the State of and
, an individual residing in the State of (and each additional

individual whose signature appears at the end of this Guaranty under the heading “Guarantors”)
(collectively referred to herein as the “Guarantors™), in favor of CAMP JELLYSTONE, LLC, a
Delaware limited liability (“CJS” or “Franchisor”), and is executed with respect to that certain CJS
Franchise Agreement (the “Franchise Agreement”) of even date herewith between Franchisor and
, having a business address of (referred

to herein as “FRANCHISEE”).
RECITALS:

A. FRANCHISEE and CJS are prepared to execute the Franchise Agreement, and, as an
inducement to CJS to enter into the Franchise Agreement, each of the Guarantors has agreed to
guarantee the performance of all obligations of FRANCHISEE and to abide by the terms set forth
by the Franchise Agreement and any other agreements (the “Other Agreements”) executed
between FRANCHISEE and CJS now or in the future (collectively, the “Obligations™) and to
execute this Guaranty; and

B. Each Guarantor, individually, will directly benefit from the agreement by CJSt o enter into
the Franchise Agreement and any Other Agreements with FRANCHISEE.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing, the execution of the Franchise Agreement
and Other Agreements and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of
which are acknowledged, and intending to be legally bound, the Guarantors, and each of them,
agree as follows:

Section 1: Statement of Guaranty. The Guarantors, and each of them, jointly and severally,
unconditionally, absolutely and irrevocably guarantee prompt and satisfactory performance of the
Obligations provided by the Franchise Agreement and Other Agreements in accordance with all
its terms and conditions, and all renewals, extensions, modifications and amendments of the
Franchise Agreement. If FRANCHISEE defaults in performance of its Obligations under the
Franchise Agreement according to its terms and conditions, the Guarantors, and each of them,
jointly and severally, irrevocably and unconditionally agree that they are each liable to CJS as
primary obligors for the full payment and performance of the Obligations and all damages, costs,
and expenses that CJS is entitled to recover from FRANCHISEE by reason of such default.

Section 2: Payment. The Guarantors, and each of them, jointly and severally, agree that, if any
of the Obligations requiring payment to CJS of sums of money are not punctually paid to CJS
when such amounts are due according to the terms of the Franchise Agreement and/or the Other
Agreements, the Guarantors, and each of them, shall, immediately upon demand by CJS and
without any other notice whatsoever, pay the amount due to CJS at the address listed in the




Franchise Agreement or at such other address as CJS may notify the Guarantors in writing. It shall
not be necessary for SAROKI’S, and CJS shall not be required in order to enforce such payment
by any of the Guarantors, first to institute suit or exhaust its remedies against FRANCHISEE or
others liable for such amount. CJS shall not be required to mitigate damages or take any other
action to reduce, collect or enforce the Obligations. No setoff, counterclaim, reduction or
diminution of any Obligation, or any defense of any kind or nature that any of the Guarantors has
or may have against FRANCHISEE or CJS shall be available under this Guaranty to such
Guarantor. No payment by any of the Guarantors shall discharge the liability of such Guarantor
hereunder until all Obligations have been satisfied in full.

Section 3: Duration and Requirement to Keep Contact Information Current. This Guaranty
shall continue in force until all Obligations under the Franchise Agreement and the Other
Agreements have been satisfied or until FRANCHISEE’s liability to CJS under the Franchise
Agreement has been completely discharged, whichever occurs first. The Guarantors, and each of
them, agree to provide written updated contact information to CJS within thirty (30) days of any
change. The Guarantors, and each of them, shall not be discharged from liability under the
Guaranty as long as any claim by CJS against FRANCHISEE remains outstanding.

Section 4: Joint and Several Liability. The Guarantors, and each of them, shall be jointly and
severally liable for all Obligations under this Guaranty. This Guaranty may be enforced against
any of the Guarantors separately or against all Guarantors jointly.

Section 5: Waivers and Consents. The Guarantors, and each of them, hereby: (a) assent to all
terms and agreements made by FRANCHISEE with CJS either before or after the date of this
Guaranty; and (b) consent that CJS may without in any manner impairing its rights or the
obligations of the Guarantors hereunder: (1) waive or delay the exercise of its rights or remedies
against FRANCHISEE or any other person or entity, including, without limitation, any of the
Guarantors; (2) release FRANCHISEE or any other person or entity, including, without limitation,
any of the Guarantors; (3) make, grant or give any adjustment, indulgence, forbearance or
compromise to FRANCHISEE or to any of the Guarantors; (4) renew, extend or modify the terms
of, or increase, any of the Obligations or any agreement evidencing the same; and (5) apply
payments by FRANCHISEE, the Guarantors, or any other person or entity to any of the
Obligations.

Section 6: Notices. The Guarantors, and each of them, hereby waive all notices whatsoever with
respect to this Guaranty or with respect to the Obligations, including, but without limitation, notice
of: (a) CJS*s acceptance of this Guaranty or its intention to act, or its action, in reliance hereon;
(b) the present existence or future incurring of any of the Obligations or any terms or amounts of
the Obligations or any change therein; (c) any default by FRANCHISEE or any surety, pledgor,
grantor of security, or guarantor, including, without limitation, any of the Guarantors; and (d) the
obtaining or release of any guaranty or surety agreement (in addition to this Guaranty), pledge,
assignment, or other security for all or any part of the Obligations.

Section 7: Benefit. This Guaranty shall inure to the benefit of SAROKI’S, its successors and
assigns, and to any person to whom CJS may grant an interest in any of the Obligations, and shall




be binding upon the Guarantors and their respective successors, assigns, heirs, executors,
administrators and legal representatives.

Section 8: Jurisdiction and Venue. Each Guarantor, (a) agrees that any action, suit or proceeding
by such party seeking any relief whatsoever arising out of, relating to and/or in connection with
this Agreement and any dispute(s) by and between the parties shall be brought, prosecuted and
enforced solely in the Oakland County Circuit Court, except for those claims or actions which
must be filed, prosecuted and/or enforced in a federal court and in such event any such action must
be filed, prosecuted and enforced solely and exclusively in the U.S. District Court for the Eastern
District of Michigan, (b) agrees to submit to the sole and exclusive jurisdiction of such courts for
purposes of all actions, suits and/or proceedings arising out of, relating to and/or in connection
with this Agreement, and/or any disputes(s) by and between the parties, (c) waives and agrees not
to assert any objection that it may now or hereafter have to the venue of any such action, suit and/or
proceeding brought in such a court or any claim that any such action, suit or proceeding brought
in such a court has been brought in an inconvenient forum, (d) waives any right to transfer or
remove and agrees not to transfer or remove any action, suit or proceeding originally brought in
the Oakland County Circuit Court to the U.S. District Court for the Eastern District of Michigan
and/or to any other federal or state court regardless of where located; and further waives any right
to transfer and agrees not to transfer or seek to transfer any suit, proceeding or action from the U.S.
District Court for the Eastern District of Michigan to any other federal court, (e) agrees that a final
judgment in any such action, suit or proceeding shall be final and conclusive and may be enforced
in other jurisdictions by suit on the judgment or in any other manner provided by applicable Law,
and (f) agrees that service of process in any such action shall be in accordance with the laws of the
State of Michigan or by registered mail, return receipt requested. Notwithstanding the foregoing,
Franchisor, in its sole and absolute discretion, may file any action that includes a claim for
injunctive relief in or near the location where Franchise is located.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Guarantors, and each of them, intending to be jointly and severally

legally bound hereby, have caused this Guaranty to be executed as of the date and year first above
written.

Camp Jellystone LLC

Attest: a Delaware limited liability company
By: By:

Title: Title: President

Attest: FRANCHISEE

By: By:

Title: Title:
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EXHIBIT F

STATE LAW ADDENDA TO THE FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

1. GENERAL

These states have statutes which may supersede the franchise agreement in your relationship with Us
including the areas of termination and renewal of your franchise: ARKANSAS [Stat. Section 70-807],
CALIFORNIA [Bus. & Prof. Code Sections 20000-20043], CONNECTICUT [Gen. Stat. Section 42-133e
et seq.], DELAWARE [Code, Tit. 6, Chap. 25, Section 2551 et seq.], HAWAII [Rev. Stat. Section 482E-
1], ILLINOIS [ILCS 705/1-44], INDIANA [Stat. Section 23-2-2.7], IOWA [Code Sections 523H.1 —
523H.17], MICHIGAN [Stat. Section 19.854(27)], MINNESOTA [Stat. Section 80C.14], MISSISSIPPI
[Code Section 75-24-51], MISSOURI [Stat. Section 407.400], NEBRASKA [Rev. Stat. Section 87-401],
NEW JERSEY [Stat. Section 56:10-1], SOUTH DAKOTA [Codified Laws Section 37-5A-51], VIRGINIA
[Code 13.1-557-574-13.1-564], WASHINGTON [Code Section 19.100.180], WISCONSIN [Stat. Section
135.03]. These and other states may have court decisions that may supersede the franchise agreement in
your relationship with Us including the areas of termination and renewal of your franchise.

Some states have statutes that limit Our ability to restrict your activity after the franchise agreement has
ended. Other states have court decisions limiting Our ability to restrict your activity after the franchise
agreement has ended.

A provision in the franchise agreement that terminates the franchise upon your bankruptcy may not be
enforceable under Title 11, United States Code.

a. California Addendum (Applies only to California franchisees)

California Business and Professions Code Sections 20000 through 20043 provide rights to the franchisee
concerning termination and non-renewal of a franchise. If the Franchise Agreement contains a provision
that is inconsistent with the law, the law will control.

SECTION 31125 OF THE CALIFORNIA CORPORATIONS CODE REQUIRES US TO GIVE YOU A
DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT APPROVED BY THE COMMISSIONER, BEFORE WE ASK YOU TO
CONSIDER A MATERIAL MODIFICATION OF YOUR FRANCHISE AGREEMENT. THE
CALIFORNIA FRANCHISE INVESTMENT LAW REQUIRES THAT A COPY OF ALL PROPOSED
AGREEMENTS RELATING TO THE SALE OF THE FRANCHISE BE DELIVERED TOGETHER
WITH THE FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT.

Neither We nor any person identified in Item 2 is subject to any currently effective order of any national
securities association or national securities exchange, as defined in the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
15 U.S.C.A. 78a et. seq., suspending or expelling the persons from membership in that association or
exchange.

YOU MUST SIGN A GENERAL RELEASE OF CLAIMS IF YOU TRANSFER YOUR FRANCHISE.
CALIFORNIA CORPORATIONS CODE 831512 VOIDS A WAIVER BY THE PERSON ACQUIRING
A FRANCHISE OF CERTAIN RIGHTS UNDER THE FRANCHISE INVESTMENT LAW
(CALIFORNIA CORPORATIONS CODE 8831000 THROUGH 31516). BUSINESS AND
PROFESSIONS CODE §20010 VOIDS A WAIVER OF CERTAIN RIGHTS UNDER THE FRANCHISE
RELATIONS ACT (BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONS CODE 8820000 THROUGH 20043).

The franchise agreement provides for termination upon bankruptcy. This provision may not be enforceable
under federal bankruptcy law (11 U.S.C.A. Sec. 101 et. seq.)

The franchise agreement contains a covenant not to compete that extends beyond the termination of the
franchise. This provision may not be enforceable under California law.



The franchise contains a liquidated damages clause. Under California Civil Code Section 1671, certain
liquidated damages clauses are unenforceable.

You must resolve disputes through binding arbitration. The arbitration will occur in Birmingham, Michigan
with the costs of arbitration being borne equally by the parties. Each party will bear its own expenses,
including attorney’s fees. Prospective franchisees are encouraged to consult private legal counsel to
determine the applicability of California and federal laws (such as Business and Professions Code Section
20040.5, Code of Civil Procedure Section 1281, and the Federal Arbitration Act) to any provisions of a
franchise agreement restricting venue to a forum outside the State of California.

The Antitrust Law Section of the Office of the California Attorney General views maximum price
agreements as per se violations of the Cartwright Act. As long as this represents the law of the State of
California, We will not interpret the Franchise Agreement as permitting or requiring maximum price limits.

b. Hawaii Addendum (Applies only to Hawaii franchisees)

If your Business will be in Hawaii, You will not pay your Initial Fee to Us until your business is open and
we have completed all of Our material pre-opening obligations to you. Item 5 of the Franchise Disclosure
Document and Article 2 of the Franchise Agreement are amended accordingly. Please review ltem 11 for
our pre-opening obligations. You must have your bank verify that you have sufficient funds available at
the time We sign the Agreement. The only condition on your obligation to pay the Initial Fee is that We
must complete all of Our material pre-opening obligations to you.

C. Ilinois Addendum (Applies only to Illinois franchisees)

The Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act, Section 4, prohibits any agreement that specifies jurisdiction or
venue of any lawsuit in a place outside of the state of Illinois. The Act does permit agreements to require
you to arbitrate outside the state of Illinois. The Act prohibits choice of law provisions that would require
the application of any laws except the laws of the state of Illinois (Section 41). You cannot waive any of
your rights given to you by the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act (Section 41). You may have other rights
under the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act or other laws of the state of Illinois. To the extent that the
Franchise Agreement is inconsistent with Illinois law, the inconsistent terms of the Franchise Agreement
will not be enforced, and the terms of the applicable Illinois law shall apply.

The conditions under which you can be terminated and your rights on non-renewal may be affected by
Illinois law, 815 ILCS 705/19 and 705/20. The termination and nonrenewal conditions and rights for Illinois
franchises are set forth in sections 19 and 20 of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act of 1987. 815 ILCS
705/19, 20 (West 2010).

The Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act will govern any franchise agreement if: (a) it applies to a franchise
located in Illinois; or (b) a franchisee who resides in Illinois.

The franchise agreement will be interpreted and construed under the substantive laws of Michigan, except
to the extent governed by the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act or the United States Trademark Act of 1946
(Lanham Act, 15 U.S.C., Sections 1051 et seq.).

Franchisor will defer franchisee’s payment of initial franchise fees until Franchisor has satisfied all of its
pre-opening initial obligations to Franchisee and Franchisee has commenced doing business. The Office
of the Illinois Attorney General has imposed this deferral requirement due to the Franchisor’s current
financial condition.



Any provision in a franchise agreement that designates jurisdiction or venue in a forum outside of lllinois
is void. 815 ILCS 705/4 (West 2010). However, a franchise agreement may provide for arbitration in a
venue outside of Illinois. 815 ILCS 705/41 (West 2012).

Any condition, stipulation, or provision purporting to bind any person acquiring a franchise to waive
compliance with any provision of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act or any other law of Illinois is void.
815 ILCS 705/41 (West 2010).

d. Indiana Addendum (Applies only to Indiana franchisees)

Indiana law prohibits requiring you to prospectively agree to a release or waiver which purports to relieve
any person from liability imposed by the Indiana Franchise Practices Act (IC 23-2-2.7(5)). The Franchise
Agreement shall be deemed amended to the extent necessary to comply with 1C 23-2-2.7(5).

Indiana law limits the parties agreement to resolve disputes in any jurisdiction outside of Indiana (1C 23-2-
2.7(10). Subject to the Federal Arbitration Act, the Franchise Agreement shall be deemed amended and
the forum for any court proceedings shall be in Indiana.

e. Maryland Addendum (Applies only to Maryland franchisees)

The Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law, COMAR 02.02.08.16L, provides that, as a
condition of the sale of a franchise, we may not require you to agree to a release, assignment, novation,
waiver, or estoppel that would relieve a person from liability under the Franchise Registration and
Disclosure Law. Item 17 of the Franchise Disclosure Document is amended by adding: any general release
required as a condition of sale and/or assignment/transfer shall not apply to any liability under the Maryland
Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law.

The Franchise Agreement and Franchise Disclosure Document shall be deemed amended so that no release,
assignment, novation, waiver or estoppel is required if it would violate the Maryland Franchise Registration
and Disclosure Law. Nothing in the franchise agreement, including any acknowledgments or
representations, shall be deemed a release or waiver of any right or obligation under the Maryland Franchise
Registration and Disclosure Law.

Item 17 of the Franchise Disclosure Document is amended by adding the following: The provision in the
Franchise Agreement that provides for termination upon bankruptcy of the franchisee may not be
enforceable under federal bankruptcy law (11 U.S.C. Section 101, et. seq.).

Based upon the franchisor’s financial condition, the Maryland Securities Commissioner has required a
financial assurance. Therefore, all initial fees and payments owed by franchisees shall be deferred until the
franchisor completes its pre-opening obligations under the franchise agreement.

Item 17 of the Franchise Disclosure Document and Article 19 of the Franchise Agreement are amended by
adding: any claims arising under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law must be brought
within 3 years after the grant of the franchise.

Article 19 of the Franchise Agreement is amended to provide as follows: Any lawsuit permitted under this
Avrticle shall be brought in the federal or state courts located in the State of Maryland. Item 17 is hereby
amended by adding the identical language in the “summary” column of line v.

f. Michigan Addendum (Applies only to Michigan franchisees)




NOTICE UNDER MICHIGAN'S FRANCHISE INVESTMENT LAW

THE STATE OF MICHIGAN PROHIBITS CERTAIN UNFAIR PROVISIONS THAT ARE
SOMETIMES IN FRANCHISE DOCUMENTS. IF ANY OF THE FOLLOWING PROVISIONS ARE
IN THESE FRANCHISE DOCUMENTS, THE PROVISIONS ARE VOID AND CANNOT BE
ENFORCED AGAINST YOU.

1. A prohibition on the right of a franchisee to join an association of franchisees.

2. A requirement that a franchisee assent to a release, assignment, novation, waiver or
estoppel which deprives a franchisee of rights and protections provided in this act. This shall not preclude
a franchisee, after entering into a franchise agreement, from settling any and all claims.

3. A provision that permits a Franchisor to terminate a franchise prior to the expiration of its
term except for good cause. Good cause shall include the failure of the franchisee to comply with any
lawful provision of the franchise agreement and to cure such failure after being given written notice thereof
and a reasonable opportunity, which in no event need be more than thirty (30) days, to cure such failure.

4. A provision that permits a Franchisor to refuse to renew a franchise without fairly
compensating the franchisee by repurchase or other means for the fair market value at the time of expiration
of the franchisee's inventory, supplies, equipment, fixtures and furnishings. Personalized materials which
have no value to the Franchisor and inventory, supplies, equipment, fixtures and furnishings not reasonably
required in the conduct of the franchise business are not subject to compensation. This subsection applies
only if: (1) the term of the franchise is less than five (5) years and (2) the franchisee is prohibited by the
franchise or other agreement from continuing to conduct substantially the same business under another
trademark, service mark, trade name, logotype, advertising or other commercial symbol in the same area
subsequent to the expiration of the franchise or the franchisee does not receive at least six (6) months
advance notice of Franchisor's intent not to renew the franchise.

5. A provision that permits the Franchisor to refuse to renew a franchise on terms generally
available to other franchisees of the same class or type under similar circumstances. This section does not
require a renewal provision.

6. A provision requiring that arbitration or litigation be conducted outside this state. This
shall not preclude the franchisee from entering into an agreement, at the time of arbitration, to conduct
arbitration at a location outside this state.

7. A provision which permits a Franchisor to refuse to permit a transfer of ownership of a
franchise, except for good cause. This subdivision does not prevent a Franchisor from exercising a right of
first refusal to purchase the franchise. Good cause shall include, but is not limited to:

a. the failure of the proposed transferee to meet the Franchisor's then current
reasonable qualifications or standards;

b. the fact that the proposed transferee is a competitor of the Franchisor or
sub-Franchisor;

C. the unwillingness of the proposed transferee to agree in writing to comply
with all lawful obligations; and



d. the failure of the franchisee or proposed transferee to pay any sums owing
to the Franchisor or to cure any default in the franchise agreement existing at the time of
the proposed transfer.

8. A provision that requires the franchisee to resell to the Franchisor items that are not
uniquely identified with the Franchisor. This subdivision does not prohibit a provision that grants to a
Franchisor the right of first refusal to purchase the assets of a franchisee on the same terms and conditions
as a bona fide third party willing and able to purchase those assets, nor does this subdivision prohibit a
provision that grants the Franchisor the right to acquire the assets of a franchise for the market or appraised
value of such assets if the franchisee has breached the lawful provisions of the franchise agreement and has
failed to cure the breach in the manner provided in subsection 3.

9. A provision which permits the Franchisor to directly or indirectly convey, assign or
otherwise transfer its obligations to fulfill contractual obligations to the franchisee unless provision has
been made for providing the required contractual services.

THE FACT THAT THERE IS A NOTICE OF THIS OFFERING ON FILE WITH THE
ATTORNEY GENERAL DOES NOT CONSTITUTE APPROVAL, RECOMMENDATION OR
ENDORSEMENT BY THE ATTORNEY GENERAL.

IF FRANCHISOR'S MOST RECENT UNAUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENT SHOWS A
NET WORTH OF LESS THAN ONE HUNDRED ($100,000) DOLLARS, YOU HAVE THE RIGHT TO
REQUEST THE ESCROW OF THE INITIAL INVESTMENT AND OTHER FUNDS PAID UNTIL
OBLIGATIONS TO PROVIDE REAL ESTATE, IMPROVEMENTS, EQUIPMENT INVENTORY,
TRAINING OR OTHER ITEMS INCLUDED IN THE FRANCHISE OFFERING ARE FULFILLED.

ANY QUESTIONS REGARDING THIS NOTICE MAY BE DIRECTED TO THE STATE OF
MICHIGAN, DEPARTMENT OF ATTORNEY GENERAL, CONSUMER PROTECTION DIVISION,
ATTN: FRANCHISE, 670 LAW BUILDING, LANSING, MICHIGAN 48913, TELEPHONE (517) 373-
7117.

g. Minnesota Addendum (Applies only to Minnesota franchisees)

Minn. Stat. 880C.21 and Minn. Rule 2860.4400J prohibit us from requiring litigation to be conducted
outside Minnesota. In addition, nothing in the Franchise Disclosure Document or agreement can abrogate
or reduce any of your rights as provided for in Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 80C, or your rights to any
procedure, forum, or remedies provided for by the laws of the jurisdiction.

With respect to franchises governed by Minnesota law, the franchisor will comply with Minn. Stat.
880C.214, Subds. 3, 4, and 5 which require, except in certain specified cases, that We give you 90 days’
notice of termination (with 60 days to cure) and 180 days’ notice of non-renewal of the franchise agreement.

We will protect your right to use the trademarks, service marks, trade names, logotypes or other commercial
symbols or indemnify you from any loss, costs or expenses arising out of any claim, suit or demand
regarding the use of the name, to the extent required by Minn. Stat. 880C.12, Subd. 1(g).

To the extent governed by Minn. Rule 2860.4400J, you shall not be deemed to have waived any rights
under Minnesota law. You shall not be deemed to have consented to Us obtaining injunctive relief, although
We may seek injunctive relief. A Court or the arbitrators shall determine whether to require a bond as a
condition of injunctive relief.

If your Business will be in Minnesota, you will not pay your Initial Fee to Us until your business is open
and we have completed all of Our material pre-opening obligations to you. Item 5 of the Franchise



Disclosure Document and Article 6 of the Franchise Agreement are amended accordingly. Please review
Item 11 for our pre-opening obligations. You must have your bank verify that you have sufficient funds
available at the time We sign the Agreement. The only condition on your obligation to pay the Initial Fee
is that We must complete all of Our material pre-opening obligations to you.

Section 26.5 of the Franchise Agreement, Limitations of Claims, is amended to comply with Minn. Stat.
80C.17, Subd.5.

h. New York Addendum (Applies only to New York franchisees)

Item 3 is amended to read as follows:

Neither We nor any person identified in Item 2 above have any administrative, criminal or material civil
action (or a significant number of civil actions irrespective of materiality) pending against us alleging a
violation of any franchise law, antitrust or securities law, fraud, embezzlement, fraudulent conversion,
restraint of trade, unfair or deceptive practices, misappropriation of property or comparable allegations.

Neither We nor any person identified in Item 2 above have been convicted of a felony or pleaded nolo
contendere to any felony charge or during the 10 year period immediately preceding the date of this
Franchise Disclosure Document, been convicted of or pleaded nolo contendere to a misdemeanor charge
been held liable in any other civil action by final judgment or been the subject of any other material
complaint or other legal proceeding where such felony, misdemeanor civil action, complaint or other legal
proceeding involved violation of any franchise law, antifraud or securities law, fraud, embezzlement,
fraudulent conversion, restraint of trade, unfair or deceptive practices, misappropriation of property or
comparable allegations.

Neither We nor any person identified in Item 2 above is subject to any currently effective injunctive or
restrictive order or decree relating to the franchise or under any federal, state or Canadian franchise,
securities, antitrust, trade regulation or trade practice law as a result of a concluded or pending action or
proceeding brought by a public agency, or is subject to any currently effective order of any national
securities association or national securities exchange as defined by the Securities and Exchange Act of
1934, suspending or expelling such person from membership in such association or exchange, or is subject
to a currently effective injunctive or restrictive order relating to any other business activity as a result of an
action brought by a public agency or department.

Item 4 is amended to read as follows:

During the 10 year period immediately preceding the date of the Franchise Disclosure Document neither
We nor any predecessor, affiliate, current officer or general partner of Us has been the subject of a
bankruptcy proceeding, been adjudged bankrupt or reorganized due to insolvency or been a principal officer
of a company or a general partner of a partnership at or within one year of the time that such company or
partnership became the subject of a bankruptcy proceeding or was adjudged bankrupt or reorganized due
to insolvency or is subject to any such pending bankruptcy or reorganization proceeding.

Item 5 is amended by adding the following: We will use the Initial Fee for the purposes of covering the
costs of selling the franchise and other franchises, for your initial training, for general overhead and for
profit.

Item 12 is amended by adding the following: Although We will consider many factors in determining the
boundaries of your Marketing Area, it will contain a population of not less than 25,000 people.

Item 17 is amended by changing the caption and preliminary statement to read as follows:

Item 17: RENEWAL, TERMINATION, TRANSFER AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION THIS
TABLE LISTS CERTAIN IMPORTANT PROVISIONS OF THE FRANCHISE



AND RELATED AGREEMENTS PERTAINING TO RENEWAL, TERMINATION,
TRANSFER AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION. YOU SHOULD READ THESE
PROVISIONS IN THE AGREEMENTS ATTACHED TO THIS FRANCHISE
DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT.

Item 17 D is amended by adding the following: You may terminate the agreement on any grounds available
by law.

Item 17 J is amended by adding the following: We will only assign to an assignee who in Our good faith
judgment is willing and able to assume Our obligations.

i North Dakota Addendum (Applies only to North Dakota franchisees)

Under North Dakota law, no modification or change We make to the Manual or method of operation may
materially affect your status, rights or obligations under the Franchise Agreement.

Covenants not to compete are considered unenforceable in the State of North Dakota.

Under North Dakota law, a requirement that you consent to liquidated damages or termination penalties in
the event of termination of the franchise agreement is considered unenforceable.

The North Dakota Franchise Investment Law (Section 51-19-09) requires that the laws of North Dakota,
which laws will prevail, will govern the Franchise Agreement. Further, North Dakota law requires that all
issues or disagreements relating to the Franchise Agreement will be arbitrated, tried, heard and decided
within the jurisdiction of courts in the state of North Dakota.

Under the North Dakota Franchise Investment Law (Section 51-19-09), a North Dakota franchisee may not
be required to execute a general release upon renewal of the Franchise Agreement.

J. Rhode Island Addendum (Applies only to Rhode Island franchisees)

Item 17 is amended by adding the following: Section 19-28.1-14 of the Rhode Island Franchise Investment
Act provides that a provision in a franchise agreement restricting jurisdiction or venue to a forum outside
this state or requiring the application of the laws of another state is void with respect to a claim otherwise
enforceable under this Act.

If your Business will be in Rhode Island, you will not pay your Initial Fee to Us until your business is open
and we have completed all of Our material pre-opening obligations to you. Item 5 of the Franchise
Disclosure Document and Article 6 of the Franchise Agreement are amended accordingly. Please review
Item 11 for our pre-opening obligations. You must have your bank verify that you have sufficient funds
available at the time We sign the Agreement. The only condition on your obligation to pay the Initial Fee
is that We must complete all of Our material pre-opening obligations to you.

k. South Dakota Addendum (Applies only to South Dakota franchisees)

Covenants not to compete upon termination or expiration of a franchise agreement are generally
unenforceable in South Dakota, except in certain instances as provided by law.

In the event that either party shall make demand for arbitration, such arbitration shall be conducted in a
mutually agreed upon site in accordance with Section 11 of the Commercial Arbitration Rules of the
American Arbitration Association.

The law regarding franchise registration, employment, covenants not to compete, and other matters of local
concern will be governed by the laws of the State of South Dakota; but as to contractual and all other
matters, this agreement and all provisions of this instrument will be and remain subject to the application,



construction, enforcement and interpretation under the governing law of the state where the franchise is
located.

Any provision of the franchise agreement which requires you to agree to jurisdiction and venue outside of
South Dakota is void with respect to any cause of action which is otherwise enforceable in South Dakota.

Notwithstanding any term of the franchise agreement, we will not terminate the franchise agreement upon
default without first affording you thirty (30) days’ notice with an opportunity to cure the default within
that time.

To the extent required by South Dakota law, all provisions giving any party a right to liquidated damages
are hereby deleted from the franchise agreement and the parties shall be entitled to their actual damages
instead.

l. Virginia Addendum (Applies only to Virginia franchisees)

Item 17 of the Franchise Disclosure Document is amended by adding the following: The provision in the
Franchise Agreement that provides for termination upon your bankruptcy may not be enforceable under
federal bankruptcy law (11 U.S.C. Section 101, et. seq.).

m. Washington Addendum (Applies only to Washington franchisees)

The State of Washington has a statute, RCW 19.100.180 which may supersede the franchise agreement in
your relationship with the franchisor including the areas of termination and renewal of your franchise.
There may also be court decisions which may supersede the franchise agreement in your relationship with
the franchisor including the areas of termination and renewal of your franchise.

In any arbitration involving a franchise purchased in Washington, the arbitration site shall be either in
Washington or in a place as mutually agreed upon at the time of the arbitration, or as determined by the
arbitrator.

In the event of a conflict of laws, the provisions of the Washington Franchise Investment Protection Act,
Chapter 19.100 RCW shall prevail.

A release or waiver of rights executed by a franchisee shall not include rights under the Washington
Franchise Investment Protection Act except when executed pursuant to a negotiated settlement after the
agreement is in effect and where the parties are represented by independent counsel. Provisions such as
those which unreasonably restrict or limit the statute of limitations period for claims under the Act, rights
or remedies under the Act such as a right to a jury trial may not be enforceable.

Initial Fees of new Washington franchisees are held in an escrow account until the franchisee's business is
open. This escrow is a condition of registration pursuant to WAC 460-80-460.

Transfer fees are collectable to the extent they reflect the franchisor’s reasonable estimated or actual costs
in effecting a transfer.

The state law addendum, above, if applicable, is a part of the Franchise Agreement and supersedes any
inconsistent term(s) of the Franchise Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Addendum on the day and year indicated
below.



Dated:

[effective

FRANCHISOR:
CAMP JELLYSTONE, LLC

By:

Title:

date]

Date signed:

FRANCHISEE:

Franchisee

Address:

Phone:




EXHIBIT G
STATE EFFECTIVE DATES

The following states required that the Franchise Disclosure Document be registered or filed
with the state, or be exempt from registration: California, Illinois, Indiana, Maryland, Michigan,
Minnesota, New York, North Dakota, Rhode Island, South Dakota, Virginia, Utah, Washington
and Wisconsin.

This Franchise Disclosure Document is effective and may be used in the following states,
where the document is filed, registered or exempt from registration, as of the Effective Date stated
below:

State Effective Date
California Exempt 7/14/2023
Illinois Exempt 7/11/2023
Indiana Perm. Exempt 7/7/2022
Maryland Exempt 10/4/2023
Michigan February 25, 2023
Minnesota August 17, 2023
New York Perm. Exempt 7/13/2022
North Dakota Exempt 7/12/2023
Rhode Island Exempt 7/15/2023
South Dakota July 14, 2023 to August 2,

2024
Utah Exempt 7/14/23
Virginia Exempt 8/4/23
Washington Exempt 7/14/2023
Wisconsin July 17/2023

Other states may require registration, filing, or exemption of a franchise under other laws, such as
those that regulate the offer and sale of business opportunities or seller-assisted marketing plans.



FRANCHISEE COPY
RECEIPT

THIS DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT SUMMARIZES CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE FRANCHISE
AGREEMENT AND OTHER INFORMATION IN PLAIN LANGUAGE. READ THIS DISCLOSURE
DOCUMENT AND ALL AGREEMENTS CAREFULLY.

NEW YORK AND RHODE ISLAND REQUIRE THAT WE GIVE YOU THIS DISCLOSURE
DOCUMENT AT THE EARLIER OF THE FIRST PERSONAL MEETING OR 10 BUSINESS DAYS
BEFORE YOU SIGN A BINDING AGREEMENT WITH US OR MAKE ANY PAYMENT TO US.
MICHIGAN, OREGON, WASHINGTON AND WISCONSIN REQUIRE US TO GIVE YOU THIS
DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT AT LEAST 10 BUSINESS DAYS BEFORE SIGNING A BINDING
AGREEMENT WITH US OR PAYING ANY CONSIDERATION, WHICHEVER IS FIRST TO OCCUR.

IF CJS OFFERS YOU A FRANCHISE, WE MUST PROVIDE THIS DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT TO
YOU 14 CALENDAR DAYS BEFORE YOU SIGN A BINDING AGREEMENT WITH, OR MAKE A
PAYMENT TO, THE FRANCHISOR OR ANY AFFILIATE IN CONNECTION WITH THE
PROPOSED FRANCHISE SALE.

IF CJS DOES NOT DELIVER THIS DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT ON TIME OR IF IT CONTAINS A
FALSE OR MISLEADING STATEMENT, OR A MATERIAL OMISSION, A VIOLATION OF
FEDERAL AND STATE LAW MAY HAVE OCCURRED AND SHOULD BE REPORTED TO THE
FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION, WASHINGTON, DC 20580 AND YOUR STATE AGENCY, IF
ONE IS LISTED IN EXHIBIT A OF THIS DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT.

Date of Issuance:

The individual sellers for CJS are Robert E. Schutter, Jr., Jon P. Burek, Lisa D. Courtney, and Steve M.
Stafford with an address of 27777 Franklin Road, Ste. 300, Southfield, Michigan 48034, Tel. No. (513)
831-2100.

I received a disclosure document with an issuance date of that included the following exhibits:

A State Agencies/Agents for Service D Yogi Bear’s Jellystone Park Franchise

of Process Agreement with Addenda
B  List of Franchises E Brand Standards Manual Table of Contents
C Financial Statements F  State Addenda (if applicable)

Date:

Signature of Prospective Franchisee,
Individually or as an Officer or Partner
of:

Please sign and date this Receipt as of the date that you received the disclosure document. Please return
the signed, dated Receipt to the Company President at the above address.




FRANCHISOR COPY
RECEIPT

THIS DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT SUMMARIZES CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE FRANCHISE
AGREEMENT AND OTHER INFORMATION IN PLAIN LANGUAGE. READ THIS DISCLOSURE
DOCUMENT AND ALL AGREEMENTS CAREFULLY.

NEW YORK AND RHODE ISLAND REQUIRE THAT WE GIVE YOU THIS DISCLOSURE
DOCUMENT AT THE EARLIER OF THE FIRST PERSONAL MEETING OR 10 BUSINESS DAYS
BEFORE YOU SIGN A BINDING AGREEMENT WITH US OR MAKE ANY PAYMENT TO US.
MICHIGAN, OREGON, WASHINGTON AND WISCONSIN REQUIRE US TO GIVE YOU THIS
DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT AT LEAST 10 BUSINESS DAYS BEFORE SIGNING A BINDING
AGREEMENT WITH US OR PAYING ANY CONSIDERATION, WHICHEVER IS FIRST TO OCCUR.

IF CJS OFFERS YOU A FRANCHISE, WE MUST PROVIDE THIS DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT TO
YOU 14 CALENDAR DAYS BEFORE YOU SIGN A BINDING AGREEMENT WITH, OR MAKE A
PAYMENT TO, THE FRANCHISOR OR ANY AFFILIATE IN CONNECTION WITH THE
PROPOSED FRANCHISE SALE.

IF CJS DOES NOT DELIVER THIS DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT ON TIME OR IF IT CONTAINS A
FALSE OR MISLEADING STATEMENT, OR A MATERIAL OMISSION, A VIOLATION OF
FEDERAL AND STATE LAW MAY HAVE OCCURRED AND SHOULD BE REPORTED TO THE
FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION, WASHINGTON, DC 20580 AND YOUR STATE AGENCY, IF
ONE IS LISTED IN EXHIBIT A OF THIS DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT.

Date of Issuance: ------- .
The individual sellers for CJS are Robert E. Schutter, Jr., Jon P. Burek, Lisa D. Courtney, Steve M. Stafford
with an address of 27777 Franklin Road, Ste. 300, Southfield, Michigan 48034, Tel. No. (513) 831-2100.

I received a disclosure document with an issuance date of that included the following exhibits:

A State Agencies/Agents for Service D Yogi Bear’s Jellystone Park Franchise

of Process Agreement with Addenda
B  List of Franchises E Brand Standards Manual Table of Contents
C Financial Statements F  State Addenda (if applicable)

Date:

Signature of Prospective Franchisee,
Individually or as an Officer or Partner
of:

Please sign and date this Receipt as of the date that you received the disclosure document. Please return
the signed, dated Receipt to the Company President at the above address.
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	(g) Identification of the CAMP-RESORT.  FRANCHISEE agrees to operate the CAMP-RESORT under the name YOGI BEAR’S JELLYSTONE PARK CAMP-RESORT, ______ (location) without prefix or suffix or other phrases (including, but not limited to FRANCHISEE’s name) ...

	Article II  CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION
	Article III TERM AND RENEWAL
	(a) Term and Renewal.  The term of this Agreement and the Franchise shall be for a term of seven (7) years beginning on the Effective Date and shall expire on December 31, 20__ (the “Initial Term”) unless earlier terminated pursuant to Article XI of t...
	(b) Right to Renewal.  If, upon the expiration of the Initial Term of the Franchise, the Network shall continue to be in existence, then, subject to the provisions of subparagraphs (i)-(x) below, FRANCHISEE shall have the right to renew the Franchise ...

	Article IV OBLIGATIONS OF FRANCHISEE
	(a) Facilities of the CAMP-RESORT.  FRANCHISEE agrees to operate the CAMP-RESORT as a JELLYSTONE PARK CAMP-RESORT and, upon execution of this Agreement, shall commence and diligently pursue the operation of the CAMP-RESORT, which shall be built or con...
	FRANCHISEE shall not alter the CAMP-RESORT in any manner that negatively affects the CAMP-RESORT, the Network, CJS’s rights in the Marks or the System.  The CAMP-RESORT at all times shall contain not fewer than ______________ (  ) Qualifying Campsite...
	(b) Management, Opening Date and Training. FRANCHISEE shall advise CJS of a Designated Owner who must have an ownership interest in the Franchise.  If FRANCHISEE desires to have a manager or management company, other than a Designated Owner, devote fu...
	FRANCHISEE agrees to open the CAMP-RESORT for business as soon as reasonably possible, but in no event later than ___________ (the “Opening Date”).  CJS must approve the CAMP-RESORT in writing prior to the Opening Date.  CJS reserves the right to wi...
	(c) Promotion and Continuous Operation.  For the Initial Term and any Renewal Term of this Agreement, FRANCHISEE agrees to use commercially reasonable efforts to establish, develop and promote the business of the CAMP-RESORT and to maximize the Gross ...
	(d) Standards of Operation.
	(i) FRANCHISEE shall secure and maintain in force in its name all required licenses, permits and certificates relating to the operation of the CAMP-RESORT.
	(ii) FRANCHISEE shall operate the CAMP-RESORT in full compliance with all applicable laws, ordinances and regulations, including, without limitation, all government regulations relating to workers’ compensation insurance, unemployment insurance, build...
	(iii) All advertising by FRANCHISEE shall be factually accurate and in good taste (in the reasonable judgment of CJS), shall conform to the highest standards of ethical advertising and shall identify FRANCHISEE as the independent owner and operator of...
	(iv) FRANCHISEE shall notify CJS in writing within five (5) days of the occurrence of:  (i) the commencement of any action, suit or proceeding against FRANCHISEE which may materially adversely affect the operation or financial condition of FRANCHISEE ...
	(v) FRANCHISEE agrees to operate and maintain the CAMP-RESORT and everything pertaining thereto and to provide services, facilities, equipment and recreational programs in compliance with the rules, standards, terms and conditions set forth herein for...
	(vi) FRANCHISEE shall provide CJS with a written report of (1) any accident or injury to a guest at the CAMP-RESORT or (2) any unanticipated problems or disruptions involving risks to guests or others at the CAMP-RESORT, within five (5) days of such i...

	(e) Operation of Food Service Establishments.  Pursuant to this Agreement, FRANCHISEE shall have the right to operate, maintain or cause to be maintained commissaries, grocery stores, restaurants or other food service establishments on the CAMP-RESORT...
	(f) Sale of Products at the CAMP-RESORT.  FRANCHISEE understands and acknowledges that CJS’s right to use the Marks is derived, in part, through a license agreement with Licensor and that use of the Marks upon products not authorized for sale by CJS a...
	(g) Sale of Alcoholic Beverages.  In the event FRANCHISEE shall engage in the sale of alcoholic beverages on the premises of or in connection with the operation of the CAMP-RESORT, FRANCHISEE agrees that neither the names nor likenesses of YOGI BEAR, ...
	(h) Mail, Message and Information Services; Internet Services.  FRANCHISEE agrees to provide access to mail services for registered guests at the CAMP-RESORT. Additionally, FRANCHISEES are required to provide information on local activities, nearby to...
	(i) Assessment of the CAMP-RESORT.  To determine whether FRANCHISEE and the CAMP-RESORT are complying with this Agreement, the System and specifications and standards then prescribed by CJS, CJS or its designated agents shall have the right, at any re...
	(j) Advertising.  In addition to FRANCHISEE’s obligation to pay the marketing, advertising and promotional fee as provided in Paragraph (c) of Article VI, FRANCHISEE agrees to spend on advertising and promotion of the CAMP-RESORT during the term of th...
	(k) Exclusive Use.  FRANCHISEE agrees to use the CAMP-RESORT site solely for the operation of a JELLYSTONE PARK CAMP-RESORT in accordance with all rules, regulations, specifications, standards and operating procedures prescribed from time to time by C...
	(l) Approval of Advertising.  Prior to their use by FRANCHISEE, samples of all advertising and promotional materials not prepared or previously approved by CJS, shall be submitted to CJS for approval.  If written disapproval is not received by FRANCHI...
	(m) Competition.  Neither FRANCHISEE (nor any shareholder, member or partner of FRANCHISEE) nor any member of the immediate family of FRANCHISEE (i.e. spouse, child or sibling) shall, as long as this Agreement remains in force and effect, directly or ...
	(n) Payment of Accounts.  FRANCHISEE agrees that it will promptly pay when due and owing all amounts to CJS or its affiliates from time to time for merchandise, equipment or otherwise.  FRANCHISEE agrees that, in addition to CJS’s rights set forth in ...
	(p) Participation in Network Promotions.  FRANCHISEE shall cooperate in any Network or System-wide promotions funded and implemented by CJS for the purpose of promoting the System, including participation in the Jellystone Park™ Consumer Gift Card Pro...
	(q) Referral Obligation.  FRANCHISEE covenants and agrees to refer guests and customers of the CAMP-RESORT, whenever reasonably possible, during the Initial Term and/or any Renewal Term of this Agreement to other JELLYSTONE PARK CAMP-RESORTS.
	(r) System-Wide Reservation Program. CJS has designated a System-Wide Reservation Program that will allow customers to make a campsite reservation at any CAMP-RESORT. All franchisees must pay a monthly fee for the System-Wide Reservation Program to CJ...
	System-Wide Reservation Program. CJS is co-branding a System-Wide Reservation Program (“Reservation Program”) with Rezplot Systems, LLC, whose tradename is Campspot’ that will allow customers to make a campsite reservation at any participating Camp-Re...
	All franchisees utilizing the Reservation Program will be required to use a specific card card processor, currently Card Connect, and active enrollment in the approved online travel agency (“OTA”), Marketplace.  Participating Camp-Resorts will be resp...
	(t) Minimum and Maximum Fees Charged to Customers.  Subject to applicable federal or state antitrust laws, CJS shall have discretion to require minimum and/or maximum prices for customer charges. In addition, any fees or charges to be imposed by FRANC...

	Article V OBLIGATIONS OF CJS
	(a) Site Approval.  CJS approves the location of FRANCHISEE’s site as suitable for the CAMP-RESORT subject to the upgrading or development of amenities or facilities, if any, necessary to comply with standards and specifications of the System.  The sp...
	(b) Conceptual Designs.  CJS agrees to review conceptual designs for buildings and other features of the System.  FRANCHISEE shall at its own cost obtain such functional designs and plans as may be necessary to conform to applicable building codes, la...
	(c) Training.  CJS agrees to provide FRANCHISEE or the individual who will assume primary general management responsibility for the daily operation of the CAMP-RESORT with initial training and instruction in the operation of a JELLYSTONE PARK CAMP-RES...
	(d) Promotion.  CJS agrees to promote the JELLYSTONE PARK CAMP-RESORT Network through the use of advertising or by such other means and at such times and in such manner and amount as CJS shall in its sole discretion deem appropriate.
	(e) Internet Address; Social Networking.  FRANCHISEE acknowledges and agrees that FRANCHISEE must obtain prior written authorization and assignment of Internet address from Licensor if FRANCHISEE desires to have an Internet address utilizing any of th...
	(f) Camp-Resort Brochure.  CJS agrees to issue from time to time for distribution by franchisees and CJS a brochure of JELLYSTONE PARK CAMP-RESORTS in the Network.  Provided that FRANCHISEE shall be current in the payment of all amounts due and owing ...
	(g) Brand Standards Manual.  CJS will make available to FRANCHISEE, during the term of the Franchise, the JELLYSTONE PARK CAMP-RESORTS Brand Standards Manual (the “Brand Standards Manual”).  FRANCHISEE may obtain from CJS an access code, at no cost or...
	(h) Guidance and Assistance.  CJS shall furnish guidance to FRANCHISEE with regard to the System and the specifications and standards applicable to a JELLYSTONE PARK CAMP-RESORT and any modifications thereof.  Such guidance and assistance shall, in th...
	(i) Themed Elements.  CJS shall sell or furnish to the FRANCHISEE the Themed Elements, which shall be held by FRANCHISEE under the terms and conditions contained in Paragraph (o) of Article IV. With respect to the Costumes reference in Article IV(o), ...
	Retail Store Training.  For a period of two (2) days we will train you and your employees at your store with respect to management and operation of your retail store.

	Article VI INITIAL FRANCHISE FEE, ROYALTY AND SERVICE AND OTHER FEES
	(a) Initial Franchise Fee.  An Initial Franchise Fee in the amount of Seventy-Five Thousand Dollars ($75,000.00) shall be paid upon execution of this Agreement.  THE INITIAL FRANCHISE FEE IS FULLY EARNED BY CJS AND IS NON-REFUNDABLE UPON EXECUTION OF ...
	The Initial Franchise Fee will be invoiced in two (2) installments, fifty percent (50.0%) due at the time of signing the Franchise Agreement, and fifty percent (50.0%) due the following September 30th, 20__.
	(b) Royalty and Service Fee.  Commencing on the Effective Date, FRANCHISEE shall pay to CJS a royalty and service fee of either:
	(i) For New Construction Franchisees: Six Percent (6%) of FRANCHISEE’s Gross Revenues for the CAMP-RESORT and all related facilities from January 1, 20__ to December 31, 20__. FRANCHISEE shall pay CJS a royalty and service fee of Four and One-Half Per...
	(ii) For Conversion Franchisees: Four and One-Half Percent (4.50%) of FRANCHISEE’s Gross Revenues for the CAMP-RESORT and all related facilities.
	Said royalty and service fee shall be paid to CJS during the term of this Agreement, in the manner prescribed by CJS in Article VII, Paragraph (a).  As used herein, “Gross Revenues” shall mean the total of all sales, rentals or services performed at o...

	(c) Marketing, Advertising, Rewards Program and Promotional Fee.  Commencing on the Effective Date, a marketing, advertising and promotional fee of one and five tenths’ percent (2.0%) of FRANCHISEE’S Gross Revenues (which shall not be reduced by the B...

	Article VII STATEMENTS AND RECORDS
	(a) Monthly Reports and Remittance.  FRANCHISEE agrees to furnish to CJS each monthly period, along with the royalty and service fee and marketing, advertising and promotional fee referred to in Paragraphs (c) and (d) of Article VI, such royalty repor...
	(b) Annual Reports.  FRANCHISEE agrees on or before sixty (60) days following the close of FRANCHISEE’s accounting year to furnish CJS with an unaudited balance sheet and income statement for the CAMP-RESORT for the previous accounting year. FRANCHISE...
	(c) Books and Records.  FRANCHISEE shall, with respect to the business done by it related to the CAMP-RESORT, keep on the premises or at its principal place of business at all times, true and accurate records, accounts, books and data which shall accu...
	(d) Data Sharing and Restrictions.  FRANCHISEE acknowledges CJS may receive, in connection with its activities related to CAMP-RESORT, reports from the system-wide reservation system.  Other than the parent company of CJS and those entities related to...

	Article VIII RELATIONSHIP OF PARTIES; INDEMNIFICATION
	Article IX TRANSFER
	(a) Transfer by FRANCHISEE.  FRANCHISEE understands and acknowledges that the rights and duties created by this Agreement are personal to FRANCHISEE and that CJS has granted the Franchise and the right to operate the CAMP-RESORT to FRANCHISEE in relia...
	(b) Conditions for Approval of Transfer.  FRANCHISEE may, in writing, request CJS’s approval of a transfer.  CJS will not unreasonably withhold its approval subject to the following conditions:  (1) the proposed transferee and its owners must be indiv...
	(c) Effect of Consent to Transfer.  CJS’s consent to a transfer of this Agreement and the Franchise, or any interest in FRANCHISEE, shall not be deemed a waiver of CJS’s right to demand exact compliance by the transferee with any of the terms or condi...
	(d) CJS’s Right of First Refusal.  FRANCHISEE hereby represents and warrants that it is the owner of the real estate upon which the CAMP-RESORT is located (the “Real Property”) and grants to CJS, under the terms and conditions contained in Addendum C,...
	(e) Transfer by CJS.  This Agreement is fully transferable by CJS and shall inure to the benefit of any transferee or other legal successor to the interest of CJS herein.

	Article X INSURANCE
	(a) Types of Insurance.  FRANCHISEE agrees, at its sole cost and expense, to obtain and maintain in full force and effect throughout the term of this Agreement, such types and amounts of insurance as are set forth in this Article from insurance carrie...
	(i) General Liability Insurance.   Commercial general liability insurance covering all operations by or on behalf of FRANCHISEE, providing insurance for bodily injury liability and property damage liability for the limits indicated below.  Coverage sh...
	(ii) Liquor Liability Coverage.  If the CAMP-RESORT distributes, sells, serves, or furnishes alcoholic beverages, liquor liability coverage shall also be purchased for an amount not less than $1,000,000.
	(iii) Automobile Liability Insurance.  Automobile liability, including coverage for all owned, hired, and non-owned vehicles, shall be maintained with minimum limits of $1,000,000 combined single limit.
	(iv) Umbrella Liability Insurance.   Umbrella liability insurance with a limit of at least $1,000,000 per occurrence and in the aggregate and shall apply over the commercial general liability, automobile liability, and employer’s liability policies as...
	(v) Business Interruption Insurance.  Business interruption insurance covering loss of  profits  and necessary continuing expenses, including any and all fees payable by FRANCHISEE to CJS pursuant to and in accordance with this Agreement, contribution...
	(vi) Cyber Liability Insurance/Technology.  Errors and omissions insurance covering the CAMP-RESORT’s technology system and the data and other information generated by or stored in that system.

	(b) Certificate of Insurance.   Prior to the commencement of operations, FRANCHISEE agrees to furnish to CJS a Certificate of Insurance documenting that the required insurance coverage is in effect. All policies shall be renewed annually through the I...
	(c) Insurance Requirements as Minimums.  FRANCHISEE understands and acknowledges that preceding amounts of coverage are minimum amounts that may be increased throughout the Initial Term and any Renewal of this Agreement by written agreement between th...
	(d) Placement of Insurance by CJS.  If FRANCHISEE fails to take out or keep in force any insurance required by Article X above and such failure continues for ten (10) days after the receipt by FRANCHISEE of written notice from CJS of such non-complian...

	Article XI DEFAULT AND TERM
	(b) Events of Default by FRANCHISEE; No Right to Cure.  Any of the following events will constitute a default by FRANCHISEE and good cause for termination of this Agreement by FRANCHISOR.  On the happening of any of these events, FRANCHISOR may, at it...
	(c) Events of Default by FRANCHISEE; Right to Cure.  Any of the following events will constitute a default by FRANCHISEE and good cause for termination of this Agreement by FRANCHISOR.  On the happening of any of these events, FRANCHISOR may, at its o...

	Article XII EFFECT OF TERMINATION OR EXPIRATION
	(a) Obligations of FRANCHISEE.  On expiration or termination of this Agreement for any reason (including termination on a transfer), FRANCHISEE’s rights to use the Franchise Marks and the Franchise System and all other rights associated with being an ...
	(b) Termination of Lease; Option to Assume Lease.  On expiration or termination of this Agreement, FRANCHISOR may terminate any lease or sublease entered into with FRANCHISEE for the Franchise Location.
	(c) Option to Purchase Non-Real Assets.   If this Agreement expires or terminates for any reason, except termination by FRANCHISEE for cause, FRANCHISOR will have the option, but not the obligation to purchase the non-real estate assets of the Franchi...
	(d) Surviving Obligations.  Termination or expiration of this Agreement will not affect FRANCHISEE’s obligations or liability to FRANCHISOR for amounts owed to FRANCHISOR under this Agreement or for FRANCHISOR’s damages attributable to the loss of bar...
	(e) Damages for Loss of Bargain/Liquidated Damages.  In addition to any other remedies available to FRANCHISOR, if this Agreement is terminated before its expiration (other than termination by FRANCHISEE for cause), FRANCHISOR will be entitled to reco...
	In the event the CAMP-RESORT has not been opened, total liquidated damages shall be limited to the Initial Franchise Fee, initial costs due to CJS for the Themed Elements and Initial Inventory.  FRANCHISEE acknowledges and agrees the CJS’s damages an...

	Article XIII CONSENT TO JURISDICTION
	Article XIV MISCELLANEOUS
	(a) Security Interest, Financing Statements. To secure payment of all FRANCHISEE’S present and future debts, obligations and liabilities to CJS, FRANCHISEE agrees to grant CJS upon CJS’s request a security interest in all FRANCHISEE’s Yogi Bear invent...
	(b) Assignability of CJS’s Economic Rights.  CJS shall have the unlimited right to sell, assign, pledge or encumber any security interest or any other note, obligation or indebtedness of FRANCHISEE, including CJS’s option and rights of first refusal h...
	(c) Force Majeure.  Neither CJS nor FRANCHISEE shall be liable for loss or damage or deemed to be in breach of this Agreement if its failure to perform its obligations, hereunder, is prevented from doing so by cause or causes beyond such parties contr...
	(d) Notices or Demands.  Any notice, demand, request of other writing required or permitted by this Agreement or the Brand Standards Manual shall be deemed to have been delivered by hand, one (1) business day after transmission by email or other elect...
	(e) Binding Effect.  The covenants, conditions, restrictions and limitations of this Agreement shall apply to all individuals executing the same and if the rights of FRANCHISEE hereunder are assigned to a corporation pursuant to consent given by CJS, ...
	(f) No Waiver.  CJS and FRANCHISEE may by written instrument unilaterally waive or reduce any obligation of or restriction upon the other under this Agreement.  Other than waivers granted by CJS for a specified time (which waivers shall be in writing)...
	(g) Severability.  If any provision of this Agreement shall be construed to be illegal or invalid, it shall be deemed stricken and deleted herefrom to the same extent and effect as if never incorporated herein.  All other provisions hereof shall conti...
	(h) Amendment.  This Agreement may not be amended, changed, modified or discharged unless such amendment, change, modification or discharge is in writing and signed by all parties executing this Agreement.
	(i) Entire Agreement.  This Agreement and the Addenda attached hereto or executed herewith contain the entire understanding of the parties and no prior, contemporaneous, oral or written understanding of the parties shall be applicable hereto except as...
	(j) Rights of Parties are Cumulative.  The rights of CJS and FRANCHISEE hereunder are cumulative and no exercise or enforcement by CJS or FRANCHISEE of any right or remedy hereunder shall preclude the exercise or enforcement by CJS or FRANCHISEE of an...
	(k) Governing Law.  Except to the extent governed by the United States Trademark Act of 1946 (Lanham Act, 15 U.S.C. Sections 1051, et seq.) or other federal law, the parties agree that Michigan law shall govern the construction, interpretation, validi...
	(l) Miscellaneous.  Nothing in this Agreement is intended, nor shall be deemed, to confer any rights or remedies upon any person or legal entity not a party hereto.  If two (2) or more persons are at any time FRANCHISEE hereunder, whether or not as pa...
	(m) Acknowledgements.  FRANCHISEE acknowledges that it has read this Agreement and CJS’s Franchise Disclosure Document and that it understands and accepts the terms, conditions and covenants contained in this Agreement as being reasonably necessary to...
	(n) Anti-Terrorism Law Compliance.  FRANCHISEE AND ITS EQUITY OWNERS AGREE TO COMPLY WITH, AND TO ASSIST FRANCHISOR, TO THE FULLEST EXTENT POSSIBLE IN FRANCHISOR’S EFFORTS TO COMPLY WITH ANTI-TERRORISM LAWS OF THE UNITED STATES.  IN CONNECTION WITH TH...
	(o) No Reliance.  Except as expressly provided to the contrary in this Agreement, FRANCHISOR makes no representations, warranties or guaranties upon which FRANCHISEE may rely.  FRANCHISOR does not assume any liability or obligation to FRANCHISEE by p...
	(p)       No Class Action or Consolidation.  Each party hereto agrees that any litigation or other form of mutually agreed upon dispute resolution will only be conducted on an individual, not a class-wide basis, and that a proceeding between the FRANC...
	REAL ESTATE RECORD OWNER
	ADDENDUM A
	LEGAL DESCRIPTION - PROTECTED TERRITORY  TO A FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

	1. The Yogi Bear’s JELLYSTONE PARK Camp-Resort to be operated pursuant to this Franchise Agreement shall be located at [location].  The legal description of the property is attached as Exhibit l.
	2. The following “Protected Territory” is hereby granted to FRANCHISEE for the term of the franchise.
	3. The exclusivity of the above-described territory applies only to: (i) the establishment and operation by a person other than the Franchisee of a Yogi Bear’s JELLYSTONE PARK Camp-Resort or; (ii) to the establishment and operation by a person other t...
	ADDENDUM B
	(Refer to Article IV, Paragraph (a) of the Franchise Agreement)
	ADDENDUM C
	NOTICE OF EXISTENCE OF RIGHT OF FIRST REFUSAL
	ADDENDUM D
	CONSENT TO PARTICIPATE IN NETWORK-WIDE PROMOTIONS
	ADDENDUM E
	DATA/PRIVACY ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
	General
	(i) California Addendum
	(Applies only to California FRANCHISEEs)
	(ii) Hawaii Addendum
	(Applies only to Hawaii franchisees)
	(iii) Illinois Addendum  (Applies only to Illinois FRANCHISEEs)
	(iv) Indiana Addendum
	(Applies only to Indiana FRANCHISEEs)
	(v) Maryland Addendum  (Applies only to Maryland FRANCHISEEs)
	(vii)  Minnesota Addendum  (Applies only to Minnesota FRANCHISEEs)
	(viii) New York Addendum
	(Applies only to New York FRANCHISEEs)
	(ix) North Dakota Addendum
	(Applies only to North Dakota FRANCHISEEs)
	(x) Rhode Island Addendum
	(Applies only to Rhode Island FRANCHISEEs)
	(xi) South Dakota Addendum
	(Applies only to South Dakota FRANCHISEEs)
	(xii) Virginia Addendum
	(Applies only to Virginia FRANCHISEEs)
	(xiii) Washington Addendum   (Applies only to Washington FRANCHISEEs)



